
July 13, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 1 of 6 

 

 

City of Guadalupe 
 

AGENDA 
 

Regular Meeting of the Guadalupe City Council 
 

Tuesday, July 13, 2021, at 6:00 pm 

City Hall, 918 Obispo Street, Council Chambers 

 
This meeting will also be held virtually via Zoom 

 
https://zoom.us/j/91520587172 

Meeting ID: 915 2058 7172 

1(408)638-0968, 91520587172# US (San Jose) 
1(669)900-6833, 91520587172# US (San Jose) 

 

 

The City Council meeting will be broadcast live on Charter Spectrum Cable Channel 20. 
 

If you choose not to attend the City Council meeting but wish to make a comment during oral 

communications or on a specific agenda item, please submit via email to juana@ci.guadalupe.ca.us no 

later than 1:00 pm on Tuesday, July 13, 2021. Alternatively, you may provide public comment through 

the Zoom application either: 

(1) by clicking on the link above at the appointed time.  Members of the public 

wishing to be called on for public comment should click on the “Raise Hand” button 

on Zoom when the item they wish to speak on has begun. When the chair calls for 

public comment, you will be announced and your microphone will be unmuted. 

Comments from the public are limited to 3 minutes per speaker. The public will not 

be able to share their video or screen; or  

(2) by calling either of the two phone numbers listed above at least 10 minutes 

prior to the start of the meeting.  PLEASE MUTE YOUR PHONE UNTIL YOU ARE 

CALLED TO SPEAK. If you do not have a mute button, you may mute by pressing the 

star key followed by the number six (*6). You can unmute by pressing the same 

keys (*6). To “raise your hand” on the phone, dial *9 when the item you wish to 

speak on has begun. When the chair calls for public comment, you will be 

announced when it is your turn to speak, and your microphone will be unmuted. 

Comments from the public are limited to 3 minutes per speaker.  

 

 
 

 

https://zoom.us/j/91520587172
mailto:juana@ci.guadalupe.ca.us


July 13, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 2 of 6 

 

Please be advised that, pursuant to State Law, any member of the public may address the City Council concerning any 
item on the Agenda, before or during Council consideration of that item.  Please be aware that items on the Consent 
Calendar are considered to be routine and are normally enacted by one vote of the City Council.  If you wish to speak on 
a Consent Calendar item, please do so during the Community Participation Forum. 
 
The Agenda and related Staff reports are available on the City’s website: www.ci.guadalupe.ca.us Friday before Council 
meeting. 
 
Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this agenda 
will be made available the Friday before Council meetings at the Administration Office at City Hall 918 Obispo Street, 
Monday through Friday between 8:00 am and 4:30 pm, and also posted 72 hours prior to the meeting.  The City may 
charge customary photocopying charges for copies of such documents. Any documents distributed to a majority of the 
City Council regarding any item on this agenda less than 72 hours before the meeting will be made available for 
inspection at the meeting and will be posted on the City’s website and made available for inspection the day after the 
meeting at the Administrator Office at City Hall 918 Obispo Street, Monday through Friday between 8:00 am and 4:30 
pm. 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, 
including review of the Agenda and related documents, please contact the Administration Office at (805) 356.3891 at 
least 72 hours prior to the meeting.  This will allow time for the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility to the meeting. 

 

1. ROLL CALL:  
 

  Council Member Liliana Cardenas 

  Council Member Gilbert Robles 

  Council Member Eugene Costa Jr. 

Mayor Pro Tempore Tony Ramirez 

  Mayor Ariston Julian 

 

2. MOMENT OF SILENCE 

 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

4. AGENDA REVIEW 

At this time the City Council will review the order of business to be conducted and receive 
requests for, or make announcements regarding, any change(s) in the order of business.  

  

5. COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION FORUM 

Each person will be limited to a discussion of three (3) minutes or as directed by the Mayor.  This 
time is reserved to accept comments from the public on Consent Calendar items, Ceremonial 
Calendar items, Closed Session items, or matters not otherwise scheduled on this agenda. 
Pursuant to provisions of the Brown Act, no action may be taken on these matters unless they are 
listed on the agenda, or unless certain emergency or special circumstances exist.  City Council may 
direct staff to investigate and/or schedule certain matters for consideration at a future City 
Council meeting. 

 
 
 

http://www.ci.guadalupe.ca.us/


July 13, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 3 of 6 

 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR  

The following items are presented for City Council approval without discussion as a single agenda 
items in order to expedite the meeting.  Should a Council Member wish to discuss or disapprove 
an item, it must be dropped from the blanket motion of approval and considered as a separate 
item. 

 
A. Waive the reading in full of all Ordinances and Resolutions. Ordinances on the Consent 

Calendar will be adopted by the same vote cast as the first meeting, unless City Council 
indicates otherwise. 
 

B. Approve payment of warrants for the period ending July 7, 2021 and ratify payment of 
warrants for the period ending June 30, 2021. 

 
C. Approve the Minutes of the City Council regular meeting of June 22, 2021, to be ordered 

filed. 

 

D. Adopt Resolution No. 2021-51 approving a Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) for 

Unrepresented City Employees.  

 

E. Adopt Resolution No. 2021-52 approving an agreement with Andrew Goodwin Designs to 

complete all architecture and engineering design work for the historic renovation of the 

Royal Theater in amount not to exceed $286,870.00.  

 

F. Adopt Resolution No. 2021-53 approving the “Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail 

Feasibility Study”.  

 

G. Adopt Resolution No. 2021-54 authorizing Mayor Julian to execute a construction contract 

with W.M. Lyles Company for the Wastewater Effluent Irrigation Pump Station 

Rehabilitation Project on behalf of the City, and authorizes the City to enter into a contract 

with Wallace Group for inspection services on this project. 

 

H. Adopt Resolution No. 2021-55 Notice of Completion of Improvements and Conditions for 

Phase 4.B. of Tract 29,027 Point Sal Dunes.  

 
I. MONTHLY REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS 

 

1. Planning Department Report for June 2021 
2. Building Department Report for June 2021 
3. Public Works/Engineering Report for June 2021 

 

7. CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT: (Information Only) 

 

 

 

 

 



July 13, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 4 of 6 

 

8. DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC SAFETY REPORT: (Information Only) 

 

• Guadalupe Police Department Response to Individuals in Crisis due to Mental Health Issues 

• Contracted Supplemental Law Enforcement Services between the City of Guadalupe and Santa 

Maria Public Airport District 

• Focusing on Children Under Stress - Video 

 

PUBLIC HEARING  

 

9. Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District for Fiscal Year 2021/2022. 

 

Written report: Shannon Sweeney, Public Works Director / City Engineer 

Recommendation: That the City Council conduct a public hearing to provide all present with 

the opportunity to speak regarding the assessments for the Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting 

District and adopt Resolution No. 2021-56 confirming the Engineer’s Report, Assessment Diagram, 

and assessments related thereto for fiscal year 2021/2022.  

 

10. Guadalupe Benefit Assessment District No. 1 (Point Sal Dunes/Riverview) for Fiscal Year 

2021/2022. 

 

Written report:  Shannon Sweeney, Public Works Director / City Engineer 

Recommendation: That the City Council conduct a public hearing to provide all present with 

the opportunity to speak regarding the assessments for the Guadalupe Benefit Lighting District 

No. 1 and adopt Resolution No. 2021-57 setting the proposed assessments for fiscal year 

2021/2022. 

 

11. Guadalupe Lighting District for Fiscal Year 2021/2022. 

 

Written report: Shannon Sweeney, Public Works Director / City Engineer 

Recommendation: That the City Council conduct a public hearing to provide all present with 

the opportunity to speak regarding the assessments for the Guadalupe Lighting District and adopt 

Resolution No. 2021-58 setting the proposed assessments for fiscal year 2021/2022.   

 

REGUAR BUSINESS   

 
12. Water Standby Charges for Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

 
Written report: Shannon Sweeney, Public Works Director / City Engineer 
Recommendation: That the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2021-59 directing staff to 
forward to the Auditor Controller’s Office of the County of Santa Barbara the Water Standby 
Charges for vacant parcels within the City of Guadalupe for fiscal year 2021/2022.  
 
 
 



July 13, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 5 of 6 

 

13. City of Guadalupe 75th Anniversary Celebration – Special Event Application (Waiver of Fees). 
 
Written report: Todd Bodem, City Administrator 
Recommendation: City Council discussion and consideration regarding a request of waiving 
fees for use of the Veterans Memorial Plaza in the amount of $110.00.  
 

14. Cannabis Business Permit Applications Procedure and Guidelines. 
 
Written report: Todd Bodem, City Administrator 
Recommendation: That the City Council review, comment, and provide input on the proposed 
Cannabis Business Permit Applications Procedures and Guidelines document.  

 

15. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

 

16. ANNOUNCEMENTS - COUNCIL ACTIVITY/COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

17. ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION MEETING 

 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

18. Conference with Labor Negotiators 

(Subdivision (a) of Government Code Section 54957.6) 

Agency designated representatives: City Administrator, Human Resources Manager and Che 

Johnson, Partner, Liebert, Cassidy & Whitmore; Employee Organizations: International Association 

of Firefighters (IAFF) 
 

19. CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCMENTS 

 

20. ADJOURNMENT  

 
I hereby certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing 
amended agenda was posted on the City Hall display case and website not less than 72 hours prior to the 
meeting.  Dated this 9th day of July 2021. 
 
 
 

___________________________________ 
Todd Bodem, City Administrator 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Todd Bodem 



July 13, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 6 of 6 

 

PROPOSED FUTURE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 

 

Council Meeting:  Date and Subject Department Agenda Category 

Tuesday, July 27, 2021, at 6:00 pm / Regular Meeting 

Organic Waste Disposal Reduction Ordinance  City Attorney Public Hearing  

City Attorney Performance Evaluation Human Resources Closed Session 

Parks Improvements FY 21/22 Public Works Dept Consent Calendar  

American Rescue Plan – Funding Administration Dept Regular Business 

Application Procedures, Guidelines & Fees for 
Commercial Cannabis – Resolutions 

Administration Dept Regular Business 

Tuesday, August 10, 2021, at 6:00 pm / Regular Meeting 

Organic Waste Disposal Reduction Ordinance – 
Second Reading 

City Attorney Consent Calendar 

Short-Term Rentals Ordinance  City Attorney Regular Business 

   

   

Tuesday, August 24, 2021, at 6:00 pm / Regular Meeting 

Short-Term Rentals Ordinance – Second Reading City Attorney Consent Calendar 

   

   

Thursday, August 26, 2021, at 6:00 pm / Special Meeting 

EMC Planning Group Presentation – General Plan 
Update 

Planning Department  

Other Unscheduled Items Proposed Date 
of Item 

Department Agenda Category 

Urban Footprint Civic Plan  Ariston – Request CC New Business 

City Hall Repairs   New Business 

Tree Ordinance  Public Works New Business 

Sidewalk Vending Ordinance  Planning Department New Business 

Vacant Property Ordinance  Administration Dept New Business 

Sign Ordinance  Planning Dept New Business 

Pasadera Public Infrastructure Dedication  Public Works Dept New Business 

Food Truck and Special Event Ordinance  Planning Dept New Business 

Gift Policy  City Attorney New Business 

Master Fee Schedule CPI FY 2021-22  Finance Department Regular Business 

Planning/Building Tracking Software   Planning Dept. New Business 

    



Agenda Item No. 6B (1) 

REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GUADALUPE 
Agenda of July 13, 2021 

c./ 

Prepar�
Veronica Fabian 
Finance Account Clerk Finance Director 

Approved by: 
Todd Bodem 
City Administrator 

SUBJECT: Payment of warrants for the period ending July 07, 2021 to be 

Approved for payment by the City Council. Subject to having been 

certified as being in conformity with the budget by the Finance Department 

staff. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the City Council review and approve the listing of hand checks and warrants to be paid on 

July 14, 2021. 

BACKGROUND: 

Submittal of the listing of warrants issued by the City to vendors for the period and explanations for 

disbursement of these warrants. An exception, such as an emergency hand check may be required to be 

issued and paid prior to submittal of the warrant listing, however, this warrant will be identified as 

"Ratify" on the warrant listing. 

1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



Prepared y: 

Agenda Item No. 6b (2) 

REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GUADALUPE 
Agenda of July 13, 2021 

<._...
.., viewed by: Approved by: 

Veronica Fabian 

Finance Account Clerk 

L rena Zarate 

Finance Director 

Todd Bodem 

City Administrator 

SUBJECT: Payment of warrants for the period ending June 30, 2021 to be 

approved for payment by the City Council. Subject to having been 

certified as being in conformity with the budget by the Finance Department 

staff. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the City Council review and approve the listing of hand checks and warrants to be paid on 

July 8, 2021. 

BACKGROUND: 

Submittal of the listing of warrants issued by the City to vendors for the period and explanations for 

disbursement of these warrants. An exception, such as an emergency hand check may be required to be 

issued and paid prior to submittal of the warrant listing, however, this warrant will be identified as 

"Ratify" on the warrant listing. 

1



REPORT. 
RUN .... 
Ri.-n By. 

Jun 30 21 Wednesday 
Jun 30 21 Time: 15:13 
\�ronica Fabian 

6661 FERN CANYON ROAD 

INVOICE-TYPE DESCRIPTION 

City of Guadalupe 
Invoice/Pre-Paid Check Audit Trail 

Batch Cl0630 - 15:13 

*** VENDOR.: ADV04 (ADVANTAGE TECHNICAL SERVICES INC.) 

PERIOD DATE 

4377 PW-TANK INSPECTION OF ELEVATED TANK 07-21 06/16/21 N N N 

G/L Account No 

89 4444 3071 

TERM-DESCRI P1'ION 

A-NET30 FROM INVOICE 

Line Description Unit (s) Unit Cost 

0001 PW-TANK INSPECTION OF ELEVATED TANK 4998.00 
( CIP CIP 089-401 ) 

Invoice Extension ----> 

Vendor Total ---------> 

P.O. BOX 8473 

INVOICE-TYPE DESCRIPTION 

*** VENDOR.: ALLOl (ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES INC.-NPB MAIN) 

PERIOD DATE TERM-DESCRIPTION 

A-NET30 FROM INVOICE 1673601 ADM-CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE -AUG 8TH PARADE 

Line Description 

0001 ADM-CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE -AUG 8TH PARADE 

07-21 06/21/21 N N N 

G/L Account No Unit ( s) Unit Cost 

01 4140 2300 1 803.00 
( General Fund Non-Departmentl Liability Insur 

Invoice Extension ----> 

PAGE 
ID # 

CTL. 

001 
PY-IP 

GUA 

G/L ACCOUNT No 

2010 

Amount 

4998.00 

4998.00 

4998.00 

G/L ACCOUNT No 

2010 

Amount 

803.00 

803.00 

INVOICE-TYPE DESCRIPTION 

1678680 

PERIOD DATE 

07-21 06/25/21 N N N 

G/L Account No 

TERM-DESCRIPTION 

A-NET30 FROM INVOICE 

G/L ACCOUNT No 

2010 

Line 

0001 

ADM-CERTIFICATE OF INS-DAMAGE TO PROPERTY ADDED 

Description 

75TH ANNIVERSARY EVENT 

Certificate of Insurance - Damage to Property Coverage

Unit (s) Unit Cost 

01 4140 2300 1 100. 00
( General Fund Non-Departmentl Liability Insur 

Invoice Extension ----> 

Vendor Total ---------> 

Amount 

100.00 

100.00 

903.00 

*** VENDOR.: AMA02 (AMAZON BUSINESS) 
P.O.BOX 035184 
INVOICE-TYPE DESCRIPTION 

11HR9J794 PD-PILOT BETTER RETRACTBLE BALLPOINT BEN 

Line Description 

0001 INV#:1TQ1-1HR9-J794 ACCT#:1A9RD4DAF93AUQ 

INVOICE-TYPE DESCRIPTION 

PERIOD DATE 

07-21 06/11/21 N N N 

G/L Account No 

01 4200 1500 

TERM-DESCRIPTION 

A-NET30 FROM INVOICE 

Unit(s) Unit Cost 

1 136. 72
( General Fund Police Equipment Replc ) 

Invoice Extension ----> 

PERIOD DATE 

7X9J3LPR1 PD-PROCASE IPAD 10.2 CASE 2020 IPAD 8TH GENERATION 07-21 06/21/21 N N N 

TERM-DESCRIPTION 

A-NET30 FROM INVOICE 

Line Description 

0001 INV#:1YC7-X9J3-LPR1 ACCT#:A19RD4DAF93AUQ 

INVOICE-TYPE DESCRIPTION 

NX36DGXJG FINANCE-TONER 

Line Description 

0001 INV#:1JCN-X36D-GXJG ACCT#:A19RD4DAF93AUQ 

G/L Account No Unit (s) Unit cost 

01 4200 1500 1 373.72 
( General Fund Police Equipment Replc ) 

Invoice Extension ----> 

PERIOD DATE 

07-21 06/29/21 N N N 

TERM-DESCRIPTION 

A-NET30 FROM INVOICE 

G/L Account No Unit (s) Unit Cost 

01 4120 1200 1 61. 98 
( General Fund Finance Off Suppl/Postg) 

Invoice Extension ----> 

G/L ACCOUNT No 

2010 

Amount 

136. 72

136. 72

G/L ACCOUNT No 

2010 

Amount 

373. 72

373.72 

G/L ACCOUNT No 

2010 

Amount 

61.98 

61. 98 

2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



June 22, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting MINUTES Page 1 of 11 

MINUTES 

City of Guadalupe 

Regular Meeting of the Guadalupe City Council 

Tuesday, June 22, 2021, at 6:00 pm 

City Hall, 918 Obispo Street, Council Chambers 

1. ROLL CALL:

Council Member Liliana Cardenas 

Council Member Gilbert Robles 

Council Member Eugene Costa Jr. 

Mayor Pro Tempore Tony Ramirez 

Mayor Ariston Julian 

All members present.   

(Note:  The abbreviation “CM” for “Council Member” will be used in these minutes.) 

2. MOMENT OF SILENCE

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. AGENDA REVIEW

No requests for changes to the agenda were made.

5. COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION FORUM

Each person will be limited to a discussion of three (3) minutes or as directed by the Mayor.  This
time is reserved to accept comments from the public on Consent Calendar items, Ceremonial
Calendar items, Closed Session items, or matters not otherwise scheduled on this agenda. Pursuant
to provisions of the Brown Act, no action may be taken on these matters unless they are listed on
the agenda, or unless certain emergency or special circumstances exist.  City Council may direct staff
to investigate and/or schedule certain matters for consideration at a future City Council meeting.

Ms. Shirley Boydstun thanked the Chief Cash and Josue Meraz, Code Compliance Coordinator, for
the Code Compliance Monthly Report.  She also mentioned a flyer with details for the City’s 75th

Anniversary will be going out in the July water billing.

Ms. Boydstun further commented on the Water Quality Report recently sent out to residents.  She
said, “I am concerned that the many samples registered at the upper end of allowable ranges.
Specifically, the ‘Total Dissolved Solids” range of 280 of the 280 maximum.  About 15 years ago, the
City was in a similar situation but worse.  In order to keep functioning water-wise, the City had to

Agenda Item No. 6C



June 22, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting MINUTES  Page 2 of 11 

 

contract with State water to blend with our well and groundwater to keep within allowable range. I 
know this is a rhetorical question, but what can be done to give 2021 a better report?” 
 

6. PROCLAMATION 
 

• Juneteenth  
 

Mayor Julian prefaced the reading of the Proclamation by saying, “I don’t know about anyone else, 
but for me, Juneteenth has always popped up on my calendar.  I really started digging into it as we 
moved forward with things happening in the United States.  I just wanted to read a little something 
from Prevention Institute.  One is a motto: ‘We are still fighting for absolute equality’.  June 19, 2021, 
will mark the 156th anniversary of ‘Juneteenth’, commemorating the day Black people of Texas 
learned of their freedom.  This announcement came two and a half years after enslaved people were 
declared ‘free’ under the terms of the Emancipation Proclamation.  Archives from that time show 
that declaration brought about a complex mix of emotions for Black people who were elated at the 
news of their freedom and hopeful to find family members that they had been forcibly separated 
from.  It also infuriated whites, who whipped and chained Black enslaved people who were 
celebrating the news on what they called ‘Jubilee Day’.  Freedom from slavery did not mean freedom 
from white supremacy.”  The mayor then proceeded to read the Proclamation. 
 
CM Ramirez mentioned that he attended Lompoc’s Juneteenth celebration, which he said was really 
beautiful and lasted a long time, about five hours, with performances and all.  He emphasized the 
following, “You can read about things online.  But it’s not until you get immersed into the culture 
that you realize how much you don’t know about it.  It was nice to be immersed and to put yourself 
in other people’s shoes.” 

 

7. CONSENT CALENDAR  

The following items are presented for City Council approval without discussion as a single agenda 
items in order to expedite the meeting.  Should a Council Member wish to discuss or disapprove an 
item, it must be dropped from the blanket motion of approval and considered as a separate item. 

 
A. Waive the reading in full of all Ordinances and Resolutions. Ordinances on the Consent 

Calendar will be adopted by the same vote cast as the first meeting, unless City Council 
indicates otherwise. 
 

B. Approve payment of warrants for the period ending June 16, 2021. 
 

C. Approve the Minutes of the City Council regular meeting of June 8, 2021, to be ordered filed. 

 

D. Receive the May 2021 Financial Report. 

 

E. Approve the Santa Barbara County Animal Services Agreement one year extension at a cost 

of $61,900 FY 2021-2022.  

 

F. Adopt Resolution No. 2021-45 approving agreement with Guadalupe Union School District 
for funding of a School Resource Officer under the COPS in School Partner Program.  

 



June 22, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting MINUTES  Page 3 of 11 

 

G. Request by Sam Duarte, Director of The Little House by the Park to use Downtown Parking 
Lot (AKA, Veterans Memorial Plaza) for a “Safe and Sane” Fireworks Sale Fundraiser.  

 

H. Adopt Resolution No. 2021-46 authorizing Mayor Julian to execute a construction contract 

with V. Lopez Junior and Sons General Engineering Contractors, Inc. for the Trunk Main 

Improvement Project. 

 

I. Adopt Resolution No. 2021-47 to approve the purchase of 10 acre-feet supplemental water 

through the Central Coast Water Authority (CCWA) 2021 Supplemental Water Purchase 

Program.  

 

J. Adopt Resolution No. 2021-48 approving the Memorandum of Understanding with Service 

Employees International Union, Local 620 for July 1, 2021 – June 30, 2023. 

 
K. MONTHLY REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS 

 

1. Department of Public Safety Report – May 2021 

• Police Department Report 

• Fire Department Report 

• Code Compliance Report (January – May 2021) 
2. City Treasurer’s Report for May 2021 
3. Recreation and Parks Report for May 2021 
4. Human Resources Report for May 2021 

 

Items #7.D, #7.F., 7.I, and 7.K.4. were pulled.   

 

Mayor Julian asked if there were any written comments or emails on anything on the agenda.  Mr. 

Philip Sinco, City Attorney, said, “Yes, there is a revised agreement for Item #7.I. which was pulled.  

That revised agreement is on the table in the back of the chambers.” 

 

In speaking on Item #7.I., Ms. Boydstun said, “The City would have more acre feet of water if a prior 
City Administrator some years ago had not sold off several acre feet or more to the City of Solvang.  
In return the City of Solvang offered a pick-up truck in return.  I personally purchased the truck for 
the City, but the water was still sold off to the now disadvantage of having to purchase additional 
water from the CCWA.” 
 

Motion was made by Council Member Costa, Jr. and seconded by Council Member Cardenas to 

approve the remainder of the Consent Calendar.  5-0 Passed. 

 

Item #7.D. – Receive the May 2021 Financial Report 

 

Mayor Julian referred to the staff report, specifically, page 4 of 6, first paragraph, which showed the 

balance in the General Fund at the end of June 2020 at $485,622.  As of end of May 2021, it’s down 

to $218,339.  He then said, “It’s projected that at the end of this fiscal year, we will have “zero” 

reserve balance.  Voters wanted to make sure Public Safety departments were staffed and solvent.  



June 22, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting MINUTES  Page 4 of 11 

 

That was done.  The other item was eliminating our debt.  Now we’re moving on our debt and dealing 

with that.” 

 

The mayor further said, “By the end of this fiscal year, we have nothing.  We should be looking at 

$804,117, or 15% reserves.  We need to be really careful.  It’s always mentioned that ‘it’s a budgeted 

item’.   If revenues aren’t there, items should be eliminated or reduced to the amount of the revenues.  

We know that with Pasadera we’re using resources to generate income, but they built 53 homes 

versus 100 homes.  That hurt.  Restaurants were considered essential, but they weren’t fully open.  

Some may have done well, but some haven’t.  Word of caution:  Be diligent in our expenses.  There’s 

the thought that monies will be coming from the Cares Act but that can’t be used to pay salaries, 

etc.  I think we’re doing fine with personnel, Police and Fire but at the expense of the Recreation 

Department. We need to provide more resources to parks and recreation, but that hasn’t happened.  

I know that staff is working now trying to get individuals to care for our parks.”    

 

He continued by saying, “Every time we see the Financial end-of-the-month reports, we need to see 

where our resources are, where they’re not, and what do we need? Again, we can’t just rely on 

Pasadera.  The Council needs to be diligent about revenues in and expenses out.  The need to look at 

additional resources for income will be a big-ticket item for us.” 

 

Item #7.F. – Authorizing the City of Guadalupe to approve the agreement with the Guadalupe Union 

School District for funding of a School Resources Officer. 

 

CM Ramirez had several questions of Chief Cash on this item.  The first was on the agreement with 

the school, specifically Section 1.1.1. which referenced “The mission of the School Resource Officer 

(SRO) will be to…provide crisis interventions and counseling services in addition to those provided in 

the school…” CM Ramirez asked, “What training is there for the SRO and what services are 

provided?”  Chief Cash responded, “I spoke with Dr. Handall.  The SRO Program is reviewed every 

year.  The program began in 1999.”   

  

Chief continued by saying, “I’ve paid attention to what’s happening nationally with officers being 

moved out of schools.  We’re unique here.  In my previous positions, the SRO was involved in the 

schools but as a security force, rather than a learning type situation.  That’s how ‘DARE’ came along 

to bring officers in to teach.  In reading the agreement, you think, ‘Is the SRO supposed to be at a 

medical level to do it crisis intervention and counseling?’  No. That officer for us here is so vital to 

Guadalupe.  The SRO, Maria, has time to work with the kids.  There’s a gulf between home and school 

and the SRO is the tie there. Teachers don’t always have the time or understanding to deal with 

students’ behavioral issues.  The SRO can reach out to families and go to their homes.  Maria can 

help families find resources on parenting and counseling.  She can talk to Latina females to build 

their self-esteem and make them feel comfortable talking with her. They see her as a possibility of 

what can be.  We take a holistic approach by finding out what’s happening with the child, both at 

school and at home.  Sometimes that officer is the only one who can bridge that information.” 

 



June 22, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting MINUTES  Page 5 of 11 

 

Chief then read a letter from Lara Clinton, Santa Barbara District Attorney’s Office about the SRO, 

Maria Negranti.  Maria was commended for her professionalism, collaboration, and interest in cases 

dealing with crimes against children. 

 

Chief mentioned, “Maria will also attend school events.  But she will adjust her schedule to do so 

alleviating overtime.  She relays information to the other officers because they all work as a team.  

The School Resource Officer is a real community-type resource that is vital and of value to all of us 

in the community.” 

 

CM Ramirez focused on the phrase “counseling services”. He said, “There’s a certain level of 

experience and education that goes into that phrase.  Maybe it should some something like 

‘mentorship’ instead.  The SRO should know when the level of expertise required is beyond her 

capabilities.  This is a mental health issue or a social services issue.”   Mr. Sinco said, “I reviewed the 

agreement.  I don’t have a problem using ‘mentorship’ for ‘counseling services’.  We can approve 

tonight and I’m sure there won’t be a problem with the school district on this change.” 

 

At this time, Mayor Julian asked if there was a counselor on site with the Family Services Center.  He 

said, “I see in the contract that the way it’s laid out primarily deals with keeping kids in school or 

truancy issues.  There isn’t in-depth counseling.” 

 

The mayor then asked about Section 1.1.13 of the Agreement which referenced that the “…SRO will 

serve on District’s Safety Committee and provide annual input for School Safety Plans”.  He said, 

“Who’s involved on this committee and what do they do?”  Chief Cash said, “The Safety committee 

involves the SRO and school staff.  On the mental health side, I believe they have resources there 

where the SRO leaves off who can provide in-depth counseling.” 

 

CM Costa, Jr. said, “There is an outreach counselor here for the schools, both at Mary Buren and at 

McKenzie.  The person is from ‘Fighting Back Santa Maria’.  That person goes between both schools.  

I don’t think Officer Negranti does counseling as said in the contract because we have those people.  

Our outreach counselors handle counseling.  We have ‘mandatory reporting’ and can’t do 

investigations.  Issues have to be referred to Child Protective Services.”  Chief Cash added, “We are 

reactive.  The SRO will only intercede when the school requests.  We won’t overstep.” 

 

Mayor Julian then said, “Back to the subject of safety, they need to know what we’re going to do if 

there’s an active shooter incident.” Chief said, “I’ve talked to Dr. Handall.  We meet with the 

principals to see what concerns there are.  We meet with teachers and will talk about emergency 

preparedness, what’s happening City-wide, how to protect students, etc.  We have our plans as do 

the schools.  We try not to supersede what the schools feel they need to do.  We’ll work with them, 

and we share our plans.  Again, we’re not going to overstep.” 

 

CM Ramirez asked about any overtime issues.  He said, “Like the airport where we pull officers from 

patrol duty to fill in at the airport.  Are officers being pulled to back up SRO?  The PD Monthly Report 

shows one officer short.”  Chief Cash said, “I just handed in the airport report that was asked before.  



June 22, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting MINUTES  Page 6 of 11 

 

It has the stats requested.  I also did the mental health statistical report.  Those will be on the 7/13 

agenda.  The SRO contract was previously not to the City’s advantage.  Now we get 50% costs back.”  

 

CM Ramirez restated his comment and question on overtime.  He said, “Your monthly report shows 

one officer short.  Is that because of the SRO duty, like the airport?  If the SRO was put back in the 

‘fold or staffing’ of patrol officers, would you no longer be one officer short?  Chief said, “We’re one 

position short because an officer is out on worker’s comp.  SRO is part of the regular rotation.  We 

share her with the school which pays one-half her salary.”   

 

Chief continued saying, “As for overtime, that happens only if the SRO, Maria, is on vacation, out, 

etc.  If there isn’t anything school-related, the SRO goes on patrol duty.  This is part of the regular 

rotation.  When Maria is out, the officer doesn’t handle specific SRO duties but rather is available 

should the school call for needed assistance.  ‘Pulling her out’ for SRO duty doesn’t deplete the PD 

officer staffing.” 

 

CM Costa, Jr. added, “Maria’s primary responsibility is to the City.  She’s leased to the school.  She’s 

there for breaks and lunch, sometimes at the end of the school day.  But if she gets a call, she leaves 

the school. When she’s gone, another officer isn’t ‘pulled’ to fill her slot.  An officer would just deal 

with any calls from the school, as needed.”  Chief added, “The school is very lenient.  It’s like the 

airport situation.  If there aren’t any flights, the officer goes back on patrol duty here in town.” 

   

The discussion continued with changing the phrase “counseling services”.  CM Cardenas suggested 

“advising’. CM Ramirez then said, “I’m ok with the contract if the wording is changed to ‘mentorship’ 

and/or advisory services’.”  Mr. Sinco said, “The resolution to approve the agreement could happen 

tonight with the wording changed.  I’m sure the school district won’t have a problem with it.” 

 

Motion was made by Council Member Costa, Jr. and seconded by Council Member Ramirez to 

approve Resolution No. 2021-45 as amended using the phrase, mentorship and/or advisory 

services, instead of the phrase, counseling services, in the Agreement with Guadalupe Union 

School District for funding of a School Resources Officer under the COPS in School Partner 

Program.  5-0 Passed. 

 

Item #7.K.4. – Human Resources Monthly Report 

 

CM Ramirez said, “It’s commendable that there is movement on what we talked about…an 

internship program for Public Works and Public Safety.  This is a good opportunity to highlight these 

internships.  This is awesome to be able to take and utilize our local talents.  And when I say ‘local’, 

I mean within the 30-mile radius that you’re using.  This is something commendable and I want to 

thank the staff.  Ms. Emiko Gerber, HR Manager, said, “It was really the Chief (Cash) and Shannon 

(Sweeney, Public Works Director/City Engineer), who developed these internship programs.  On the 

Public Works Internship Program, there are areas of specialty needed, and it’s an hourly-paid 

internship, so it’s structured slightly different from what we’re doing for Public Safety.  The Public 

Safety Internship Program, that’s more like the Paid-Call Firefighter structure, with a stipend.” 

 



June 22, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting MINUTES  Page 7 of 11 

 

Ms. Gerber continued saying, “The Public Works Internship Program is tailored for those with 

interests in wastewater and water.  Blake Thomas was an intern here through an internship via a 

scholarship sponsored by an outside organization. He will be returning on September 20th as a City 

sponsored intern.  He will be assigned various projects working in the office.  However, once the 

water meter implementation program occurs, he will also be working out in the field. The Public 

Works Internship Program, however, hasn’t been fully implemented yet.  As for the Public Safety 

Internship Program, there are some interested local candidates, and there’s a lot of buzz created 

there. These programs will provide avenues for our community’s youth to go into with a career path 

to follow.” 

 

CM Ramirez suggested that an internship program be replicated for “Recreation” as he knows there 

is a lot of local interest.  He also mentioned that Hancock has a Recreation Management Program.  

Ms. Gerber said, “Maybe that’s an area we need to talk more about.  There could be a career path 

for the recreation field, too.”  CM Ramirez then added, “The beauty about the Hancock program is 

that in their degree, it’s built in that the student has to have internship hours so this would be 

perfect.”   

 

Chief Cash added, “I had a meeting at the Academy with the President and deans of the Public Safety 

academies, both Police and Fire.  When we were pitching this program, trying to give these kids an 

avenue to go to the academies, they said, ‘Why don’t you talk to your council member (CM Ramirez).  

He does the counseling on that session?’  I didn’t know that.  So, we’re hoping you’ll be a part of this 

to help us guide them, not only to learn these skills and behind the scenes of government, but to put 

them on a path to college.”  CM Ramirez said that he would be a part of that process. 

 

CM Cardenas asked, “How long can people be in an internship program?”  Ms. Sweeney responded 

for the Public Works program.  She said, “It’s somewhat variable. It depends on the situation.  Blake 

Thomas graduates in June 2022.  He’s in an engineering program at school.  The budget is cost 

neutral as we are under filling a position with him.  I’d like to have an ‘OIT’, Operator-in-Training.  

One for water and one for wastewater. Finding certified operators is challenging to do. Maybe a 

college student from Guadalupe who can work 10 hours a week, building up enough hours and 

experience enough to pass the test and get their certification.  And if someone wanted to stick here 

until they got that certification, that would be ideal as a goal to create a path to a full-time job either 

here, if there are positions open, or elsewhere.  I don’t care so long as they get that certificate and 

join the industry.  So, it’s variable depending on the student or intern.” 

 

CM Cardenas asked, “Where can I get info to blast these programs to our schools?”  Ms. Gerber said, 

“Right now, we’re still reviewing the flyer and application with our City Attorney for the Public Safety 

Internship Program. More paperwork needs to occur on the Public Works Internship Program.  Once 

all has been reviewed and approved by the City Attorney, we can put in the packets and start 

announcing and really campaign for it.”  

 

Ms. Gerber continued saying, “With the Public Safety Internship Program, ideally, we’d like to have 

them in the position for two years so they can get the full cycle and full scope of training.  We want 



June 22, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting MINUTES  Page 8 of 11 

 

to make sure that we’re not just scratching the surface but that the type of experience they’re getting 

is meaningful.” 

 

Item #7.K.3. – Recreation and Parks Report was not pulled, but Mayor Julian asked Charlie Guzman, 

Recreation Coordinator, to have the Recreation Commission meeting minutes included in his monthly 

report.  The mayor also asked about facilities rentals now that City Hall has re-opened.  Mr. Guzman 

said, “There was an event this past weekend.  The client was happy, and there were some 

maintenance issues.”  He also reported that the City auditorium is being rented this coming Friday 

for a funeral reception, and on Sunday, for a Kiwanis benefit.  The mayor asked if there was an 

attendant for past Friday’s event.  Mr. Guzman said, “Yes, we hired someone to serve as an 

attendant.” 

 

Item #7.I. – Adopt Resolution No. 2021-47 to approve the purchase of 10 acre-feet supplemental 

water through the Central Coast Water Authority (CCWA) 2021 Supplemental Water Purchase 

Program. 

 

Ms. Sweeney said, “This was pulled because today, right after lunch, I received an email from the 

CCWA with a change in language to the Binding Agreement.  There are copies in front of you.  I 

immediately sent the email to Philip who said that the changes weren’t substantial.  Even if this 

passes tonight, it won’t be truly passed until Mojave Water Agency meets this Thursday, June 24th.  

The CCWA asked that if we passed this, it be signed and in Mojave’s hands for their meeting on the 

24th.  We don’t see them having an issue.” 

 

Motion made by Council Member Costa, Jr. and seconded by Council Member Cardenas to adopt 

Resolution No. 2021-47 with changes to binding agreement. 5-0 Passed.  

 

Motion made by Council Member Cardenas and seconded by Council Member Ramirez to approve 

the balance of the Consent Calendar (Items 7D & 7K4).  5-0 Passed.   
 

8. CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT: (Information Only) 

 

Mr. Bodem reported the following:  1) No closed session tonight.  It will be rescheduled for the next 

meeting on July 13th; 2) on Thursday, June 24th, there will be a tour through the City relating to the 

General Plan Update; 3) an email was sent to all regarding a special council meeting on August 26th 

to go over the General Plan, and 4) American Rescue Act – all financial procedures and processes 

have been set up and ready for when monies come in. 

 

9. DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC SAFETY REPORT: (Information Only) 

 

Chief Cash said that there was an informational attachment in the agenda packet. 

 

REGUAR BUSINESS   

 

 



June 22, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting MINUTES  Page 9 of 11 

 

10. Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District for fiscal year 2021/2022. 

 

Written report: Shannon Sweeney, Public Works Director / City Engineer 

Recommendation: That the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2021-49 initiating proceeding for 

the annual levy of assessments for the Pasadera Lighting District for FY 2021-22 and Resolution No. 

2021-50 approving the Engineer’s Report for the Pasadera Landscape and Lighting District and 

declaring the City Council intent to levy assessments.  

 
The California Streets and Highway Code allows for the creation of Landscape and Lighting Districts 
for the purpose of funding the continued operations and maintenance of local parks, landscaping 
and light improvements with the Districts. The Districts allows for the levy and collection of annual 
assessments on the County tax rolls from property within the District that receive benefit of the 
improvements. 
 
CM Ramirez recused himself as he resides in Pasadera. (CM Cardenas took over the meeting as 
Mayor Julian briefly stepped out.) Ms. Sweeney said that this action is an annual event.  It’s an 
attempt to levy fees for taking care of lighting, irrigation, landscaping and parks in Pasadera.   
 
Public Hearing opened at 7:10 p.m.  No comments.  Public Hearing closed at 7:11 p.m. 
 
Motion was made by Mayor Julian and seconded by Council Member Robles to approve 
Resolution No. 2021-49 and Resolution No. 2021-50.  4-0 Passed (Council Member Ramirez 
recused). 

  

11. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

 

CM Cardenas said, “Regarding the Special Events Application, we’re currently going over costs and 

may have a request to the Council to possibly waive fees.” 

 

Mr. Bodem previously mentioned a special council meeting on August 26th to discuss the General 

Plan. 

 

12. ANNOUNCEMENTS - COUNCIL ACTIVITY/COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

CM Cardenas mentioned that the vendor form for the City’s 75th anniversary was now online.  She 

said that some vendors have already returned them.  The sponsorship letter was still being finalized.  

She added, “They’re still working on the stage.  Infinity Healing Ceremony will have an altar to 

commemorate all that the community has gone through and the losses as a result of COVID.  There 

will be OBON dancers, CHC and others from agency representatives on the committee. Varying 

agencies on education, informational, historical, etc. on Guadalupe will also attend.  We’re looking 

at an open street festival.  The gazebo will be for event presenters.  At the July 13th council meeting, 

the Special Events Application will be presented for the gazebo.” 

 

CM Ramirez asked, “What is the difference between a 501(c)3 entity and a 501(c)6?  Mr. Sinco said, 

“501(c)3 entities encompass a wide range of charitable groups.  A 501(c)6, like GBA, would be 



June 22, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting MINUTES  Page 10 of 11 

 

business groups or groups promoting business interests and business conditions.  501(c)6 can’t give 

tax deductions, but a 501(c)3 can. 501(c)6 groups are not political in nature.”   

 

Mr. Bodem said, “The Cal Trans application for the City’s 75th anniversary has been submitted.”  CM 

Cardenas asked, “If it isn’t approved, is there an alternate route?”  Chief Cash said, “We have Plan B 

and others, if it isn’t approved.” 

 

CM Ramirez also mentioned that there would be a 5k race at the festival. 

 

Mayor Julian said, “The County wants to push electrical bikes.  They’re willing to give the City a bike 

which can run from about $400 up to $1,000.  Just charge it up and let it go.” 

 

CM Robles talked a little bit about the email from Infinity Healing.  An event will be held on Saturday, 

June 26th, and he will be attending.  He said, “This will bring closure to losses due to COVID.  Chumash 

elders, rabbis and other denominations will be there.  Similar to what will be done here on August 

8th.  It’s at 12 noon at Solvang Park.”  CM Ramirez added that he was also interested in attending 

the event and that this group is also interested in doing a mural. 

 

Mayor Julian reported that:  1) at the June 17th SBCAG meeting, there was a discussion of “a lot of 

transportation monies”.  He thanked Ms. Sweeney for being a representative on the Technical 

Advisory Committee and for representing Guadalupe; 2) Air Pollution Control District will be donating 

clean air room units, valued at about $75-$80 each.  These air purifiers are free for City and Casmalia 

because of fires, smoke and sand coming from the west.  There’s $100K available to buy these 

purifiers and they’ll start moving them in August or so, and 3) he received a call regarding “Small 

Town Grants Program”.  He said, “There is a $25M grant available for the whole nation.  Guadalupe 

was selected as one of 10 towns that can receive one of these grants.   (Teresa Young nominated 

Guadalupe as a potential recipient.)  In speaking with Michelle Shaw, T-Mobile Marketing Director, 

she said that they are providing the monies.  Cities with populations under 50,000 may be eligible 

for upwards to $2M.  Ms. Shaw asked me if we have engineers or City staff to give support to this.  I 

told her we did.  We won’t be hearing from them for a while, so I’ll set it aside for now.” 

 

13. ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION MEETING 

 

Mr. Bodem had previously announced that there would be no closed session tonight. 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

 

14. Conference with Labor Negotiators 

(Subdivision (a) of Government Code Section 54957.6) 

Agency designated representatives: City Administrator and Human Resources Manager;  

Employee Organizations: International Association of Firefighters (IAFF) 

 

15. CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCMENTS 

 



June 22, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting MINUTES  Page 11 of 11 

 

16. ADJOURNMENT  

 

Motion was made by Council Member Costa, Jr. and seconded by Council Member Robles to 

adjourn.  4-0 Passed.  Meeting adjourned at 7:14 p.m. 
 
 

 Prepared by:      Approved by: 

 

 

 ___________________________   ________________________________ 

               Amelia M. Villegas, City Clerk    Ariston Julian, Mayor 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 1 of 1 

Agenda Item No. 6D 

REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GUADALUPE 
Agenda of July 13, 2021 

_________________________________ 
Prepared by:   
Todd Bodem, City Administrator 

SUBJECT: Adoption of Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) for Unrepresented City employees. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended City Council adopt attached Resolution No. 2021-51 approving a Cost-of-Living 
Adjustment (COLA) commensurate with the SEIU COLA Increase Schedule of 3.0% effective July 1, 2021, 
and 3.0% effective July 1, 2022 for unrepresented City employees. 

DISCUSSION: 

Three City employees are not represented by any of the three recognized labor associations. These 
employees are the Public Works Director/City Engineer, the Finance Director, and the Human Resources 
Coordinator (the City Administrator and the Director of Public Safety have employment contracts 
negotiated and approved by the City Council and are therefore not part of the unrepresented group). 
As such, this unrepresented group has no established collective bargaining unit to negotiate a MOU or 
other regularly negotiated labor contract. The basic terms of employment for unrepresented (and 
represented) employees are outlined in the City’s Personnel Rules.  Because of this, the City Council has 
the authority to determine their salary and change them when desirable or necessary. Historically, the 
City Council has granted unrepresented employees the same wages and benefits negotiated by the City 
with the SEIU organization.     

The City Council previously granted COLA adjustments to the SEIU group.  Under Article 8. WAGES in the 
2021-2023 SEIU MOU, it states the following: 

1. Effective July 1, 2021, salaries/wages for SEIU positions shall be increased by 3.0% over the pay
ranges in effect on June 30, 2021.

2. Effective July 1, 2022, salaries/wages for SEIU positions shall be increased by 3.0% over the pay
ranges in effect on June 30, 2022.

It is the City Administrator’s recommendation to allow the same COLA salary adjustment at 3.0% for 
unrepresented employees retroactive to July 1, 2021 and 3.0% effective July 1, 2022.   

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution No. 2021-51



Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-51 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY GUADALUPE  
ADOPTING A COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT FOR UNREPRESENTED CITY EMPLOYEES 

WHEREAS, unrepresented City employees are not recognized by any of the three labor associations; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Guadalupe and SEIU were signatories to a 2021-2023 Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU); and 

WHEREAS, the MOU between the City and SEIU included a cost of living salary adjustments (COLA) 
increase of 3.0% effective on July 1, 2021 and 3.0% effective July 1, 2022; and  

WHEREAS, historically, the COLA granted by the City Council to its unrepresented employees have 
paralleled the wages and benefits negotiated by the City with the SEIU organization; and 

WHEREAS, Resolution No. 2013-48 establishes wages and benefits for designated unrepresented 
employees further stating that in no case may a progression in salary range exceed 5% in 12 calendar 
months without the express consent of City Council.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Guadalupe as follows: 

SECTION 1. The City Council hereby approves the City Administrator’s recommendation of a COLA 
increase for unrepresented City employees commensurate with the SEIU COLA Increase Schedule of 
3.0% effective retroactively to July 1, 2021 and 3.0% effective July 1, 2022.   

SECTION 2. If any provision or any part of a provision of this resolution shall be finally determined to be 
invalid, illegal, or otherwise unenforceable, such determination shall not impair or otherwise affect the 
validity, legality or enforceability of the remaining provisions or parts of provisions of this resolution, 
which shall remain in full force and effect as if the unenforceable provision or part were deleted. 

SECTION 3. The City Clerk is hereby authorized to make minor changes herein to address clerical errors, 
so long as substantial conformance of the intent of this document is maintained. In doing so, the City 
Clerk shall consult with the City Administrator and City Attorney concerning any changes deemed 
necessary. 

SECTION 4. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting on the 13th day of July 2021 by the following 
vote: 

Attachment 1



Page 2 of 2 

MOTION: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

I, Amelia M. Villegas, City Clerk of the City of Guadalupe DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a full, 
true, and correct copy of Resolution No. 2021-51 which is duly and regularly introduced and adopted by 
said City Council at a regular meeting held July 13, 2021, by the following vote:   

ATTEST: 

___________________________________ 
Ariston Julian, Mayor 

____________________________________  
Amelia M. Villegas, City Clerk  

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

___________________________________ 
Philip Sinco, City Attorney 



Page 1 of 3 

Agenda Item No. 6E

REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GUADALUPE 
Agenda of July 13, 2021 

_______________________________ 
Prepared by:   
Todd Bodem, City Administrator  

SUBJECT:  Agreement for services between the City of Guadalupe and Andrew Goodwin Designs 
to complete all architecture and engineering design work for the historic renovation 
of the Royal Theater in amount not to exceed $286,870 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2021-52 approving an agreement with 
Andrew Goodwin Designs, who were the sole responders to the City’s revised Request for Proposals 
(RFP) for the design-build proposal to historically renovate the Royal Theater building (848 Guadalupe 
Street) and incorporate the two (2) adjoining properties located at 836 Guadalupe Street, and 
authorizing the mayor to sign the agreement on behalf of the City.   

BACKGROUND: 

The Royal Theater is a significant structure in the City’s downtown.  Constructed in 1939, it operated as 
an active movie theater until closed in 1989.  Following its closure, the building was intermittently used 
for a variety of purposes including a performing arts theater and public meeting space until 2011.  In 
2011 it was red tagged due to a minor interior electrical fire.  The former Redevelopment Agency of the 
City of Guadalupe (RDA) purchased the property in 2001 and with the dissolution of the RDA ownership 
transferred to the Successor Agency of the City of Guadalupe (the “Successor Agency”) in 2012.  In 
accordance with state law, the Successor Agency adopted a Long-Range Property Management Plan (the 
“LRPMP”) to guide the disposition of the property.  The LRPMP stipulates that the theater should be 
transferred to the City and ultimately the theater should be renovated as some form of Public Performing 
Arts Center. In May of 2018, the Successor Agency property was transferred to the City.  

On January 24, 2019, the Successor Agency requested the Santa Barbara Countywide Oversight Board 
(the “Oversight Board”) approve (1) a Bond Proceeds Expenditure Agreement between the City of 
Guadalupe and the Successor Agency providing for the transfer of excess bond proceeds in the amount 
of $658,887 to the City for Bond eligible purposes, (2) directing the transfer of such funds to the City, 
and (3) making certain findings in connection therewith.  The Oversight Board approved Resolution No. 
19-3 (attachment 1) and the Department of Finance approved the Oversight Board Action pursuant to a
letter dated April 30, 2019 (attachment 2).  The City is able to expend the proceeds on any expenditure
that is allowable under State Law and Bond Proceeds expenditure agreement, and use of these proceeds
for design/engineering/remodeling for the Royal Theater is an allowable expenditure.



Page 2 of 3 

On September 10, 2019, the City Council directed staff to develop a RFP to renovate the Royal Theatre 
and adjacent two lots. 

On January 14, 2020, the City Council approved the hiring of Lisa Wise Consulting, inc. for the 
development of the RFP. 

This RFP was released on March 16th, 2020, with a deadline date of May 1, 2020. No proposal was 
received.  This was not surprising in light of the fact that the implications of the Coronavirus were just 
becoming known and Governor Newsom issued the state’s “stay at home” order on March 19, 2020, 
only a few days after the City issued the RFP  

In September of 2020, the City hired Carole Denardo to complete a historic resource inventory and 
evaluation of the Royal Theatre building at 848 Guadalupe Street to determine if the Royal Theater met 
the criteria to be both a federal and state historical property. The report was submitted to the City in 
February 2021 and indicated the Royal Theatre building meets the eligibility standards for the National 
Register/California Register.  

On February 25, 2021, the City Council approved Carole Denardo to complete the application for 
submission to the National Register, allowing the Royal Theatre building to be listed on the Historical 
registry for both the federal and state. This action is still in process.  

Based on the City Council wishes, City staff released a second, revised RFP, for the renovation of the 
Royal Theatre with a change from a developer approach to a design-build RFP, allowing the City to 
maintain ownership during and after renovations. The RFP was also changed to indicate that the design 
build team would submit a proposal that assumed the building would be registered historical.  

The RFP was released April 16, 2021, with a deadline date of May 17, 2021. One design build proposal 
was received on May 14, 2021, from Andrew Goodwin Designs/ Specialty Construction, Inc. 

DISCUSSION: 

The rehabilitation of the theater is a high priority for the City and downtown property owners, and the 
Guadalupe Business Association.  City staff previously made an attempt to find a developer to renovate 
the theatre butr was unsuccessful.   

Accordingly, staff decided upon a change of approach to a design-build concept rather than a developer 
proposal.  The design build approach has the advantage of allowing the City to remain the owner 
throughout the renovation process and possibly afterwards.   

A design-build proposal allows the City to approve all work, including construction cost into one 
contract/agreement, eliminating the seal bid process and have a consistent team throughout the 
process. However, City staff also requested that the process be spilt into two phases: design/engineering 
and construction, since there is not funding presently available for the construction phase. City staff 
informed Andrew Goodwin Designs/ Specialty Construction, Inc. in writing (attachment 3) that the 
City staff would only ask the City Council to approve an agreement up to “shovel ready .” However, 



Page 3 of 3 

depending on construction funding rules, the City would commit to the same team once 
construction funds are obtained. 

Additionally, the submitted proposal from Andrew Goodwin Designs/ Specialty Construction, Inc. 
listed Specialty Construction, Inc. as the lead (traditionally, how a design-build would be set up). 
However, since the staff is recommending that the Council approve only the design/engineering 
phase, this required that the lead entity be Andrew Goodwin Designs. 

“Shovel ready” is a term used by funding agencies to say that the project is ready for the construction 
phase, ready to go. This approach by the funder is to ensure their funds get used quickly. City staff has, 
in its letter, required with Andrew Goodwin Designs to be the lead on this phase of the project and for 
Specialty Construction, Inc, with funders’ approval, to be the lead on the construction phase once 
funding is obtained. The attached agreement reflects this requirement, which has been agreed by 
Specialty Construction, Inc. 

Los Amigos de Guadalupe has applied on behalf of the City to the State Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) program for a planning grant, which requires that the scope of work of the plan 
be to bring the project to shovel ready. The theatre would be an eligible renovation project under 
the State CDBG program, however, like other funding sources, they require the project be shovel 
ready (their definition is being 90 days away from issuing a construction contract). 

Regardless of the funding source, City staff believes that getting the project ready for renovation 
makes the project more competitive for funding, gives the City a real cost to renovate, and allows 
the City to apply for historical tax credits, apply to foundations, and potentially start a capital 
campaign. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The agreement for bringing the project, architecture, and engineering work, would be $286,870. The 
City has submitted a CDBG application for a planning activity that would fund, if awarded, $230,000 of 
this cost. City staff understands that the design/engineering work for the Royal Theater is an allowable 
expenditure to cover either the gap ($56,870) if CDBG funds are awarded or the full amount if the City’s 
application is unsuccessful with CDBG.  There is enough excess bond proceeds to cover the entire cost 
of $286,870 and recommends it approve this expenditure even if the grant is not awarded to the City.  

Note: to bring the project to shovel ready, City staff would need additional funding to complete all 
environmental clearances, both state and federal, to ensure the project is ready to go regardless of the 
eventual funder. These costs will be brought to council for approval later. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Oversight Board approved Resolution No. 19-3
2. April 30, 2019 Department of Finance OB Action Letter
3. June 4, 2021, City Notice Letter re: Royal Theater Building RFP
4. Resolution No. 2021-52
5. Agreement for consultant services between the city and Andrew Goodwin Designs



~~ y-----. 
Santa Barbara Countywide Oversight Board 

105 East Anapamu Street Rm . 303 + Santa Barbara CA 93101 + (805)568-2100 
S BCOve rs ight Boa rd. 0 rg + S BCOve rs ight Boa rd Staff@co.Sa nta-Ba rba ra. ca. us 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM 

FOR AGENDA: January 24,2019 Consent 0 Board Action Required ~ 

DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

December 13,2018 

MEMBERS OF THE COUNTYWIDE OVERSIGHT BOARD 

Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Guadalupe 

Approval of Bond Proceeds Expenditure Agreement by and between the 
Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Guadalupe and 
the City of Guadalupe 

RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Adopt A Resolution of the Santa Barbara Countywide Oversight Board with Oversight of the Successor 
Agency to the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Guadalupe (1) Approving a Bond Proceeds 
Expenditure Agreement between the City of Guadalupe and the Successor Agency to the 
Redevelopment Agency of the City of Guadalupe Providing for the Transfer of Excess Bond Proceeds to 
the City for Bond-Eligible Purposes, (2) Directing the Transfer of Such Funds to the City, and (3) Making 
Certain Findings In Connection Therewith 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

Section 34191.4(c)(1) of the Dissolution Act allows a successor agency that has received a finding of 
completion to use bond proceeds from bonds issued prior to 2011 for the purposes for which the bonds 
were sold and provides that such proceeds in excess of amounts needed to satisfy approved 
enforceable obligations shall be expended in a manner consistent with the original bond covenants. 
Section 34191.4(c)(1) further provides that such expenditures of bond proceeds shall constitute "excess 
bond proceeds obligations" that shall be listed separately on the successor agency's Recognized 
Obligation Payment Schedule. Further, Health and Safety Code Section 34178(a) allows a successor 
agency and its sponsoring city to enter into agreements, subject to Oversight Board approval pursuant to 
Health and Safety Code Section 34180(h) . 

The Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Guadalupe (the "Successor 
Agency") received its finding of completion under Health and Safety Code Section 34179.7 from the 
California Department of Finance ("OOF") on March 18, 2013. See Exhibit "C." 

The Successor Agency is in receipt of bond proceeds derived from its Guadalupe Redevelopment 
Agency (Guadalupe Redevelopment Project) Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, Series 2003 [Bank 
Qualified], issued in the original aggregate principal amount of $6,455,000 (the "Excess Bond 
Proceeds"). The Oversight Board previously approved the expenditure of these Excess Bond Proceeds 
for the renovation of the Royal Theatre on the SA's ROPS for the January-June 2019 period. In the 
event the Successor Agency does not spend all such Excess Bond Proceeds during the January-June 
2019 ROPS period , the Successor Agency desires to transfer all remaining Excess Bond Proceeds to 
the City of Guadalupe to enable the City to spend such moneys on renovations to the Royal Theatre or 
other bond-eligible activities as determined by the City. See Exhibit "0" for an excerpt from the 2003 
Bonds Official Statement relating to the then-contemplated uses of the proceeds of the 2003 Bonds. 

In order to facilitate the use of Excess Bond Proceeds consistent with all applicable bond covenants and 
legal requirements, the Successor Agency and the City have negotiated the terms of that certain Bond 
Proceeds Expenditure Agreement ("Agreement") in the form presented to the Oversight Board at this 
meeting (see Exhibit "B"). The Agreement provides for the Successor Agency to transfer current and 

Members: + Jessica Blazer + Jeff Frapwell + Craig Geyer + Luke Rioux + Carolle Van Sande + Conrad Tedeschi 

Attachment 1



future Excess Bond Proceeds by the Successor Agency to the City and requires the City to spend such 
proceeds on the renovation of the Royal Theatre or other purposes consistent with all applicable bond 
covenants. The Successor Agency and City intend that the Agreement shall constitute an excess bond 
proceeds obligation within the meaning of Health and Safety Code Section 34191.4(c)(1) to be paid from 
Excess Bond Proceeds. 

DISCUSSION: 

Numerous successor agencies have entered into arrangements similar to the Agreement with their host 
jurisdictions, and such arrangements have been approved by OOF. The Agreement provides the City 
with the flexibility to spend the Excess Bond Proceeds on eligible projects from time to time, in the 
discretion of the City, without needing to obtain future approvals from the Oversight Board or OOF, 
provided that the uses of such Excess Bond Proceeds comply with all applicable bond covenants. The 
City currently anticipates that the Excess Bond Proceeds will be used for the renovation of the Royal 
Theatre; however, the Bond Proceeds Expenditure Agreement provides the City with flexibility to select 
other projects, provided that the Excess Bond Proceeds are spent in accordance with the 2003 Bond 
covenants. 

Concurrently herewith, the Successor Agency has submitted its Recognized Obligation Payment 
Schedule for fiscal year 2019-20, which includes a request to transfer Excess Bond Proceeds to the City 
pursuant to the Bond Proceeds Expenditure Agreement. 

ATTACHMENT(S): t8I 

Exhibit A Resolution 
Exhibit B Bond Proceeds Expenditure Agreement 
Exhibit C Finding of Completion 
Exhibit 0 Excerpt from 2003 Bonds Official Statement 

SBCOB Counsel Concurrence: Yes 



RESOLUTION OF THE SANTA BARBARA COUNTYWIDE OVERSIGHT BOARD 

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING (1) A BOND ) 
PROCEEDS EXPENDITURE AGREEMENT ) RESOLUTION NO. 19-3 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF GUADALUPE AND THE ) 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE REDEVELOPMENT ) 
AGENCY OF THE CITY OF GUADALUPE ' ) 
PROVIDING FOR THE TRANSFER OF EXCESS ) 
BOND PROCEEDS TO THE CITY FOR BOND- ) 
ELIGIBLE PURPOSES, (2) DIRECTING THE ) 
TRANSFER OF SUCH FUNDS TO THE CITY, AND ) 
(3) MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS IN CONNECTION ) 
THEREWITH ) 

WHEREAS, the Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency of the City of 
Guadalupe ("Successor Agency") has been established to take certain actions to wind 
down the affairs of the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Guadalupe 
("Redevelopment Agency") in accordance with California Health and Safety Code 
Sections 34170 et seq. ("Dissolution Law"), particularly Section 34173; and 

WHEREAS, prior to July 1, 2018 under Dissolution Law, in particular Sections 34179 
and 34180, certain actions of the Successor Agency were subject to the review and 
approval by a local seven-member oversight board, which oversaw and administered 
the Successor Agency's activities during the period from dissolution until June 30, 2018; 
and 

WHEREAS, , on and after July 1, 2018 under Dissolution Law, in particular Section 
341790), in every California county there shall be only one oversight board, with certain 
exceptions that do not apply in the County of Santa Barbara; and 

WHEREAS, as of, on and after July 1, 2018 the County of Santa Barbara through the 
Santa Barbara County Auditor Controller established the single Santa Barbara 
Countywide Oversight Board (the "Oversight Board") in compliance with Section 
341790), which serves as the oversight board to the 6 successor agencies currently 
existing and operating in Santa Barbara County, including the Successor Agency; and 

WHEREAS, Section 34191.4(c)(1) of Dissolution Law allows a successor agency that 
has received a finding of completion to use bond proceeds from bonds issued prior to 
2011 for the purposes for which the bonds were sold , provides that such proceeds in 
excess of amounts needed to satisfy approved enforceable obligations shall be 
expended in a manner consistent with the original bond covenants, and further provides 
that such expenditures shall constitute "excess bond proceeds obligations" that shall be 
listed separately on the successor agency's Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Successor Agency received its finding of completion under Health and 
Safety Code Section 34179.7 from the California Department of Finance ("DOF") on 
March 18, 2013; and 

WHEREAS, the California Community Redevelopment Law (Health and Safety Code 
Section 33000, et seq.) provides for a cooperative relationship between cities and their 



redevelopment agencies, as well as their successor agencies who have assumed the 
duties and obligations of the former redevelopment agencies; and 

WHEREAS, under Health and Safety Code Section 33220, a city may aid and 
cooperate in the planning, undertaking, construction, or operation of redevelopment 
projects; and 

WHEREAS, Health and Safety Code Section 33220(e) specifically authorizes a city to 
enter into an agreement with its redevelopment agency or any other public entity to 
further redevelopment purposes; and 

WHEREAS, Health and Safety Code Section 34178(a) allows a successor agency and 
its sponsoring city to enter into agreements, subject to Oversight Board approval 
pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 34180(h); and 

WHEREAS, the Successor Agency has proceeds of its Guadalupe Redevelopment 
Agency (Guadalupe Redevelopment Project) Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, Series 
2003 [Bank Qualified], issued in the original aggregate principal amount of $6,455,000 
that are not otherwise obligated for a project or other enforceable obligation ("Excess 
Bond Proceeds"); and 

WHEREAS, the Successor Agency is authorized pursuant to the Recognized Obligation 
Payment Schedule for the January-June 2019 period to spend the Excess Bond 
Proceeds to pay for the renovation of the Royal Theatre property; and 

WHEREAS, in order to facilitate the use of any Excess Bond Proceeds, the Successor 
Agency and the City have negotiated the terms of that certain Bond Proceeds 
Expenditure Agreement ("Agreement") requiring the transfer of current and future 
Excess Bond Proceeds by the Successor Agency to the City, and the City's use of such 
proceeds for the Royal Theatre renovation project and for other purposes the City may 
determine, consistent with all applicable bond covenants; and 

WHEREAS, the Successor Agency and the City intend that the Agreement shall 
constitute an excess bond proceeds obligation within the meaning of Health and Safety 
Code Section 34191.4(c)(1) to be paid from Excess Bond Proceeds; and 

WHEREAS, the Oversight Board desires to approve the Agreement in substantially the 
form submitted herewith, and direct the Successor Agency to list the Agreement, and 
the requirement to transfer Excess Bond Proceeds set forth therein, on the Recognized 
Obligation Payment Schedule for July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020 ("ROPS 19-20") 
(by amendment to such ROPS 19-20) as an obligation to be funded with Excess Bond 
Proceeds, and on each future Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule, as 
appropriate and in accordance with Dissolution Law. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Santa Barbara Countywide Oversight 
Board that: 

SECTION 1. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated into 
this Resolution by this reference. 

SECTION 2. The Oversight Board hereby finds and determines, based on all evidence 
and testimony contained in the record before it, that the use of Excess Bond Proceeds 
to fund City capital improvement projects including acquisition, construction and/or 
renovation of public buildings, facilities, structures, or other improvements is in 
accordance with Health and Safety Code Sections 33445, 33445.1, and 33679 and 
other applicable law. 



SECTION 3. The Oversight" Board hereby finds and determines that the expenditure of 
Excess Bond Proceeds in accordance with the Agreement will benefit the affected 
taxing entities and hereby approves the execution of the Agreement and the transfer of 
Excess Bond Proceeds to the City for the purposes described in the Agreement. 

SECTION 4. The Oversight Board hereby approves the Agreement in substantially the 
form submitted herewith. 

SECTION 5. The Successor Agency is hereby authorized and directed as follows: 

a. Execute the Agreement in substantially the form presented herewith with such 
changes, insertions and omissions as may be approved by the Executive Director of the 
Successor Agency; and 

b. List the Agreement, and the requirement to transfer Excess Bond Proceeds set forth 
therein (or, alternatively, list one or more specific projects to be funded using Excess 
Bond Proceeds transferred to the City, specifically including, without limitation, the 
Royal Theatre renovation project), on the Successor Agency's ROPS 19-20 as an 
obligation to be funded with Excess Bond Proceeds, and on each future Recognized 
Obligation Payment Schedule, as appropriate and in accordance with Dissolution Law; 
and 

c. Upon receiving approval from the California Department of Finance of the Agreement 
and ROPS 19-20 (for the period of July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020), on which ROPS 19-
20, the DOF has approved transfer of proceeds of the 2003 Bonds, transfer all Excess 
Bond Proceeds to the City for use by the City in accordance with the Bond Proceeds 
Expenditure Agreement. 

SECTION 6. The approval of this Resolution does not commit the Oversight Board to 
any action that may have a significant effect on the environment. As a result, such 
action does not constitute a project subject to the requirements of the California 
Environmental Quality Act. 

SECTION 7. If any provision of this Resolution or the application of any such provision 
to any person or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other 
provisions or applications of this Resolution that can be given effect without the invalid 
provision or application, and to this end the provisions of this Resolution are severable. 
The Oversight Board declares that the Oversight Board would have adopted this 
Resolution irrespective of the invalidity of any particular portion of this Resolution. 

SECTION 8. This Resolution shall take effect in accordance with Section 34179(h) of 
the Health and Safety Code 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Santa Barbara Countywide Oversight 
Board, this this 24th day of January, 2019. 

AYES: Board Members Frapwell, Rioux, Geyer, Tedeschi and Blazer 

NOES:None 

ABST AI N: None 

ABSENT: Board Member Van Sande 



ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Oversight Board Secretary Oversight Board Legal Counsel 



BOND PROCEEDS EXPENDITURE AGREEMENT 

This BOND PROCEEDS EXPENDITURE AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is entered into 
as of , 2019, by and between the CITY OF GUADALUPE, a California municipal 
corporation ("City"), and the SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
OF THE CITY OF GUADALUPE, a public body corporate and politic pursuant to Part 1.85 of 
Division 24 of the California Health & Safety Code ("Successor Agency"). 

RECITALS 

A. The City is a municipal corporation organized and operating under the laws of the 
State of California. 

B. The Successor Agency is a public body, corporate and politic, organized and 
operating under Pali 1.85 of Division 24 of the Dissolution Law (as defined in Recital D below). 

C. The Redevelopment Agency of the City of Guadalupe ("former Agency") previously 
was a California public body, corporate and politic, duly fonned by the City Council of the City 
("City Council") and was organized, existed and exercised the powers of a community 
redevelopment agency under the California Community Redevelopment Law, Health and Safety 
Code Section 33000, et seq. ("CRL"). 

D. Assembly Bill xl 26 ("AB xl 26"), effective on June 28, 2011, added Palis 1.8 and 
1.85 to Division 24 of the California Health and Safety Code and which laws were modified, in pali, 
and determined constitutional by the California Supreme COllli in the petition California 
Redevelopment Association, et al. v. Ana Matosantos, et aI. , Case No. S 194861 
("Matosantos Decision"), which laws and cOllli opinion caused the dissolution of all redevelopment 
agencies and winding down of the affairs of former redevelopment agencies. Thereafter, such laws 
were amended fllliher by Assembly Bill 1484 ("AB 1484") that was effective on June 27,2012, and 
thereafter fllliher amended by subsequent legislation (together AB xl 26, the Matosantos Decision, 
AB 1484, and subsequent amending legislation are referred to as the "Dissolution Law"). All 
statutory references herein are to the Dissolution Law unless otherwise stated. 

E. As of February 1, 2012, the former Agency became a dissolved community 
redevelopment agency pursuant to the Dissolution Law. 

F. As of and on and after February 1, 2012, the Successor Agency is performing its 
functions as the successor agency under the Dissolution Law to administer the enforceable 
obligations of the former Agency and is engaged in activities necessary and appropriate to wind 
down the affairs of the former Agency, all subject to the review and approval by a seven-member 
"Oversight Board" formed thereunder. 

G. Section 34191.4(c)(J) of the Dissolution Law allows a successor agency that has 
received a finding of completion to use bond proceeds from bonds issued prior to 2011 for the 
purposes for which the bonds were sold, provides that such proceeds in excess of amounts needed to 
satisfy approved enforceable obligations shall be expended in a manner consistent with the original 
bond covenants, and further provides that such expenditures shall constitute "excess bond proceeds 
obligations" that shall be listed separately on the successor agency's Recognized Obligation Payment 
Schedule ("ROPS"). 

4815-71 09-6696v5/200803-000 1 



H. The Successor Agency received the finding of completion from the State of 
California Depaliment of Finance ("DOF") dated as of March 18,2013. 

1. The CRL provided for, and the Dissolution Law continues to provide for, a 
cooperative relationship between sponsoring cities and their redevelopment agencies, as well as their 
successor agencies who have assumed the duties and obligations of the former redevelopment 
agencies. Under CRL Section 33220, a city may aid and cooperate in the planning, undeliaking, 
construction, or operation of redevelopment projects. CRL Section 33220(e) specifically authorizes 
a city to enter into an agreement with its redevelopment agency or any other public entity to fl.lliher 
redevelopment purposes. Section 34178(a) of the Dissolution Law allows a successor agency and its 
sponsoring city to enter into agreements, subject to Oversight Board approval under 
Section 34180(h) of the Dissolution Law. 

J. The Successor Agency has and will have proceeds of its Guadalupe Redevelopment 
Agency (Guadalupe Redevelopment Project) Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, Series 2003 [Bank 
Qualified], issued in the original principal amount of $6,455,000 (the "2003 Bonds"; and, together 
with other funds described in Section 2.1 below, "Bond Proceeds") that are not otherwise obligated 
for a project or other enforceable obligation. The Successor Agency desires to transfer all Excess 
Bond Proceeds (defined below) to the City to enable the City to expend or allocate such Excess Bond 
Proceeds for expenditures consistent with all applicable covenants of the 2003 Bonds. 

K. The Successor Agency desires to transfer its Excess Bond Proceeds to the City to 
enable the City to use or allocate such Excess Bond Proceeds in a manner consistent with the 
covenants of the 2003 Bonds and to undeliake projects and programs that were not previously funded 
and obligated by the former Agency pre-dissolution or by the Successor Agency post-dissolution, or 
by the City pre- or post-dissolution. The City Council and former Agency Board have found that the 
use of Excess Bond Proceeds to fund various capital improvements within and outside the Guadalupe 
Redevelopment Project Area complies with CRL Sections 33445, 33445.1, and 33679 and other 
applicable law. On January 24, 2019, the Oversight Board detennined that the expenditure of Excess 
Bond Proceeds in accordance with this Agreement will benefit the affected taxing entities, and 
approved the execution of this Agreement and the transfer of Excess Bond Proceeds to the City for 
the purposes described herein. 

L. In order to facilitate the use of Excess Bond Proceeds consistent with all applicable 
bond covenants, the Successor Agency and the City have negotiated this Agreement requiring the 
transfer of current and future excess bond proceeds by the Successor Agency to the City, and the 
City's agreement to use such proceeds consistent with all applicable covenants, conditions, 
restrictions and obligations under the 2003 Bonds. The paIiies intend that this Agreement shall 
constitute an excess bond proceeds obligation within the meaning of the Dissolution Law to be paid 
from Excess Bond Proceeds. With Oversight Board approval, the Successor Agency shall list the 
expenditure of the Excess Bond Proceeds on its ROPS 2019-20, subject to approval of this 
Agreement by the Oversight Board and DOF as an obligation to be funded with Excess Bond 
Proceeds. The Successor Agency shall list this Agreement on successive ROPS if required by the 
Dissolution Law and as appropriate to facilitate expenditure of all remaining Excess Bond Proceeds. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the paIiies hereto do mutually agree as follows: 

2 
4815-71 09-6696v5/200803-000 I 



1. RECITALS 

The recitals above are an integral part of this Agreement and set forth the intentions of the 
parties and the premises on which the paIties have decided to enter into this Agreement. 

2. DEFINITIONS 

For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the indicated meaning: 

2.1 "Bond Proceeds" is defined in Recital J and also includes (1) proceeds from tax 
allocation bonds issued on or before December 31,2010, (2) rents, sale proceeds and other revenues 
generated by propelties acquired and/or improved with proceeds from tax allocation bonds issued on 
or before December 31, 2010, (3) interest and principal paid on loans funded by proceeds from tax 
allocation bonds issued on or before December 31 , 2010, (4) moneys held by the trustee in 
connection with the issuance of the 2003 Bonds, and (5) other income or revenues generated from 
assets acquired or funded with proceeds from tax allocation bonds issued on or before December 31, 
2010. 

2.2 "Excess Bond Proceeds" means Bond Proceeds that are not needed to satisfy 
Enforceable Obligations listed on an approved ROPS. 

2.3 " Enforceable Obligations" mean enforceable obligations, other than Excess Bond 
Proceeds obligations, as defined under the Dissolution Law. 

3. SUCCESSOR AGENCY OBLIGATIONS 

The Successor Agency shall have the following obligations under this Agreement: 

3.1 Current Excess Bond Proceeds. The Successor Agency shall transfer to the City, as 
soon as practicable and no later than July 10, 2019, Excess Bond Proceeds currently held by the 
Successor Agency in an amount not to exceed (i) $658,887 (the "Base Amount"), together with 
(ii) any and all Excess Bond Proceeds held by the trustee for the 2003 Bonds or bonds issued to 
refund the 2003 Bonds, to the extent permitted to be released to or at the direction of the Successor 
Agency pursuant to the indentures for the 2003 Bonds or such refunding Bonds, as applicable (the 
"Trustee Amount"). 

3.2 Future Excess Bond Proceeds. The Successor Agency shall transfer to the City all 
future Excess Bond Proceeds held or received by the Successor Agency. Such future Excess Bond 
Proceeds shall include, without limitation, (1) Bond Proceeds previously obligated to a project or 
other Enforceable Obligation that become unobligated for any reason, (2) Bond Proceeds that 
become available in the form of rents, sale proceeds, loan repayments, other income, or other 
revenues that are generated by propelties or other assets acquired and/or improved with Bond 
Proceeds and that are not otherwise obligated to a project, program, or other Enforceable Obligation, 
and (3) any other funds held by the Successor Agency that qualify as Excess Bond Proceeds under 
this Agreement. 

The paIties intend that payments of future Excess Bond Proceeds be made to the City as soon 
as possible after such Excess Bond Proceeds become available. The transfer of future Excess Bond 
Proceeds to the City shall be made pursuant to an approved ROPS within 30 days of the 
commencement of the relevant ROPS period. The Successor Agency shall be responsible for 

3 
4815-71 09-6696v5/200803-000 1 



ensuring that payments of future Excess Bond Proceeds to the City, as such funds become available, 
are included on the next possible ROPS. 

3.3 Projects Funded By Excess Bond Proceeds. The Successor Agency assigns to the 
City all responsibilities in relation to the administration and implementation of any projects or 
programs funded by Excess Bond Proceeds. The Successor Agency assigns to the City all contracts 
entered into by the Successor Agency post-dissolution or the former Agency pre-dissolution related 
to the expenditure of Excess Bond Proceeds and any activities to be funded by Excess Bond 
Proceeds, with the exception of those contracts relating to Enforceable Obligations, including the 
bond documents for the 2003 Bonds, which shall be retained by the Successor Agency. The transfer 
of moneys held by the trustee for the 2003 Bonds shall remain subject to the terms of the indenture of 
trust prepared in connection with the issuance of the 2003 Bonds (the "2003 Indenture") and the 
covenants regarding compliance with applicable provisions of the Internal Revenue Code relating to 
the exclusion of interest on the 2003 Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes, 
executed by the former Agency in connection with the issuance of the 2003 Bonds (the "2003 Tax 
Celiificate"). 

4. CITY OBLIGATIONS 

The City shall have the following obligations under this Agreement: 

4.1 Excess Bond Proceeds. The City shall accept, hold, disburse and administer 
Excess Bond Proceeds transferred to the City by the Successor Agency under this Agreement, 
including cUlTent Excess Bond Proceeds and future Excess Bond Proceeds. The City shall retain any 
Excess Bond Proceeds that it receives, such as revenue generated from propeliies acquired or 
improved with Excess Bond Proceeds or payments on loans funded from Excess Bond Proceeds, 
without any obligation to return such funds to the Successor Agency, and shall use or allocate such 
funds for uses consistent with applicable covenants of the 2003 Bonds. 

The City may spend or allocate Excess Bond Proceeds (including the Base Amount and the 
Trustee Amount) received or retained under this Agreement on any project, program, or activity 
authorized under the 2003 Indenture and the 2003 Tax Celiificate. Notwithstanding anything to the 
contrary in this Agreement, the City shall spend or allocate Excess Bond Proceeds consistent with all 
covenants of the 2003 Bonds applicable to the paliicular Excess Bond Proceeds. The City shall be 
solely responsible for ensuring that Excess Bond Proceeds are maintained and spent (or allocated to 
expenditures) in accordance with all covenants of the 2003 Bonds and other applicable laws. The 
City may transfer funds between approved projects, programs and activities. 

The City hereby assumes all contracts entered into or assumed by the Successor Agency 
post dissolution or entered into by the former Agency pre-dissolution related to the expenditure of 
Excess Bond Proceeds and any activities to be funded by Excess Bond Proceeds, with the exception 
of those contracts relating to Enforceable Obligations, which shall be retained by the Successor 
Agency . The City shall perform its obligations hereunder, and under such assumed contracts, in 
accordance with the applicable provisions of federal , state and local laws, including the obligation to 
comply with environmental laws such as CEQA and/or NEPA, and shall timely complete the work 
required for each project commenced by the City pursuant to this Agreement and the 2003 Indenture 
and the 2003 Tax Celiificate. 

4 
4815-71 09-6696v5/200803-000 1 



5. ENTIRE AGREEMENT; WAIVERS; AND AMENDMENTS 

5.1 This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding and agreement of the parties 
with respect to the transfer and use of Excess Bond Proceeds. This Agreement integrates all of the 
terms and conditions mentioned herein or incidental hereto, and supersedes all negotiations or 
previous agreements between the palties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement. 

5.2 This Agreement is intended solely for the benefit of the City and the Successor 
Agency. Notwithstanding any reference in this Agreement to persons or entities other than the City 
and the Successor Agency, there shall be no third palty beneficiaries under this Agreement. 

5.3 All waivers of the provisions of this Agreement and all amendments to this 
Agreement must be in writing and signed by the authorized representatives of the parties. 

6. SEVERABILITY 

If any term, provision, covenant or condition of this Agreement is held by a COlllt of 
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions shall 
continue in full force and effect-unless the rights and obligations of the parties have been materially 
altered or abridged by such invalidation, voiding or unenforceability. In addition, the parties shall 
cooperate in good faith in an effolt to amend or modify this Agreement in a manner such that the 
purpose of any invalidated or voided provision, covenant, or condition can be accomplished to the 
maximum extent legally permissible. 

7. DEFAULT 

If either party fails to adequately perform an obligation required by this Agreement within 
thirty (30) calendar days of receiving written notice from the non-defaulting party, the party failing to 
perform shall be in default hereunder. In the event of default, the non-defaulting palty will have all 
the rights and remedies available to it at law or in equity to enforce the provisions of this contract, 
including without limitation the right to sue for damages for breach of contract or to seek specific 
performance. The rights and I:~medies of the non-defaulting palty enumerated in this paragraph are 
cumulative and shall not limit the non-defaulting palty's rights under any other provision of this 
Agreement, or otherwise waive or deny any right or remedy, at law or in equity, existing as of the 
date of the Agreement or hereinafter enacted or established, that may be available to the non
defaulting party against the defaulting palty. 

8. BINDING ON SUCCESSORS 

This Agreement shall be binding on and shall inure to the benefit of all successors and 
assigns of the palties, whether by agreement or operation of law. 

9. NON-LIABILITY OF MEMBERS, OFFICIALS, EMPLOYEES ANGE AGENTS; 
NON-RECOURSE OBLIGATION 

No member, officer, official, employee, agent or representative of the Successor Agency or 
the City shall be personally liable for performance by the Successor Agency or City hereunder, for 
breach or default by the City or Successor Agency hereunder, for any amounts which may be payable 
or become due hereunder, or for any judgment or execution thereon entered in any action. 

5 
4815-71 09-6696v5/200803-000 1 



10. FURTHER ASSURANCES 

Each pmty agrees to execute, acknowledge and deliver all additional documents and 
instruments, and to take such other actions as may be reasonably necessary to can'y out the intent of 
this Agreement. 

[SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE] 

6 
48 I 5-7 I 09-6696v51200803-000 I 



In witness whereof, the undersigned palties have executed this Bond Proceeds Expenditure 
Agreement as of the date first above written. 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

ATTEST: 

Secretary 

4815-71 09-6696v5/200803-000 I 

"CITY" 

CITY OF GUADALUPE, a California municipal 
corporation 

By: ________________________________ __ 

John Lizalde, Mayor 

"SUCCESSOR AGENCY" 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY 
OF GUADALUPE, a public body corporate and 
politic 

By: ____________________________ __ 

Cruz Ramos, Executive Director 

7 



~~T 01;-
~.". .t>; 
~ 1-

IExhibit c 
<f' ~ 
0. Z 
W 0 
o /IJ 
~ DEPARTMENT OF 

00'\1.,1'0"'>'1'-FIN AN "'" E _____ -::-:-___ --________ -E-D-M-U-N-D-G~. _B_R_D_W_N_J_R_. _a_G_D_V_E_R_N_O_R 
L..I 91 !5 L STREET. SACRAM ENTO CA . 95614-3705 • WWW. OOF..CA.GCV 

March 18, 2013 

Ms. Carolyn Galloway-Cooper, Finance Director 
City of Guadalupe 
918 Obispo Street 
Guadalupe, CA 93434 

Dear Ms. Galloway-Cooper: 

Subject: Request for a Finding of Completion 

The California Department of Finance (Finance) received the City of Guadalupe's request for a Finding of 
Completion. 

Finance has completed its review of your request, which may have included reviewing supporting . 
documentation submitted to substantiate payment or obtaining confirmation from tile county auditor
controller. Pursuant to Health and Safety Code (HSC) section 34179.7, we are pleased to inform you 
that Finance concurs that the Agency has made full payment of the amounts determined under HSC 
section 34179.6, subdivisions (d) or (e) and HSC section 34183.5. 

This letter serves as notification that a Finding of Completion has been granted. The Agency may now 
do the following: 

• Place loan agreements between the former redevelopment agency and sponsoring entity on the 
RaPS, as an enforceable obligation, provided the oversight board makes a find ing that the loan 
was for legitimate redevelopment purposes per HSC section 34191.4 (b) (1). Loan repayments 
will be governed by criteria in HSC section 34191.4 (a) (2). 

• Util ize proceeds derived from bonds issued prior to January 1, 2011 in a manner consistent with 
the original bond covenants per HSC section 34191.4 (c). 

Additionally, the Agency is required to submit a Long-Range Property Management Plan to Finance for 
review and approval, per HSC section 34191.5 (b) , within six months from the date of this letter. 

Please direct inquiries to Andrea Scharffer, Staff Finance Budget Analyst, or Chris Hill, Principal Program 
Budget Analyst, at (916) 445-1546. 

Sincerely, 

~ZA~Y 
Local Government Consultant 

cc: Mrs. Juana Merino-Escobar, Administrative Assistant, City of Guadalupe 
Mr. Ed Price, Division Chief Property Tax Division, County of Santa Barbara 
California State Controller's Office 



NEW ISSUE 
• FULL BOOK ENTRY 

IExhibit 0 RATINGS: 
Moody's: Au 

Standard & Poor's: AAA 
(See "MISCELLANEOUS-Ratiugstt hereiD) 

In the opinion of Hargrove & Costanzo, A Professional lAw Corporation, Fresno, California, Bond Counsel, subject, however 
to certain qualifications described herein, under existing law, the interest on the Series 200) Bonds is excluded from Jross income 
for federal income tax purpost!S, and'such interest is nol an item of tax preference for purposes of the federal altenliJtwe minimum 
tax imposed on individUlJls and corporations, although for the purpose of computing the alternative minimum tax imposed on certain 
corporations, such interest is taken into account in determining certain income and earnings. In the further opinion of Bond Counse~ 
such interest is exempt from California pers?na/ income taxes. See "MISCELLANEOUS-Tax Matters" herein. 

. $6,455,000 
GUADALUPE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

Guadalupe Redevelopment Project 
Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, Series 2003 

[Bank Qualified] 

Dated: Dllte of DeHvery Due: August 1, as SbOWD below 
The cartioned bonds (the "Series 2003 8000s"), are being issued by the Guadalupe Redevelopment Agency (the "AgeDC)'tt). 

Proceeds o . the Series 2003 Bonds will be used to (i) refund and deCease the Agency's Redevelopment Project Tax Allocation 
Refunding Bonds, Series ]997, currentI.Y outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of $875.000 (the "1997 Bouds"); (ii) 
finance additional redevelopment activities with resJX:Cl to its Guadalupe Redevelopment Project (the "Project Am"); (iii) fund 
a reserve account for the Series 2003 Bonds; and (IV) pay the costs of issuance associated WIth the Series 2003 Bonds. 

The Series 2003 Bonds will be delivered as fully registered bonds. registered in the name of Cede & Co. as nominee of The 
Depository Trust ComPanY, New York, New York ("DTC"), and wiD be available to ultimate purchasers (''Beuefidal Owaen") 
in the denomination of SS,OOO or any integral multiple thereof, under the book-entry system maintained by DTC. Beneficial 
Owners will not be entitled to receive delivery of bonds representinf their ownership interest in the Series 2003 Bonds. Interest 
on the Series 2003 Bonds will be payable on February 1 and August of each year, commencing on August 1,2003. The parrn.ent 
of principIII. premiums, if any, and semiannual interest on the Series 2003 Bonds will be made by U.S. Bank Naticmal ASSOCIation, 
Los Angeles, California, as trustee, to DTC for subsequent disbursement to DTC participants, so long as DTC or its nominee 
remains the registered owner of the Series 2003 Bonds. . 

The Series 2003 Bonds are subject to optional and mandatory redemption as described herein. 
The Series 2003 Bonds are special obligalions of the Agency and are payable exclusively from Tax Revenues (as defined herein) 

to be derived from tlte Project Area and from amounts on deposit in certain funds ani! accounts established pursuant to the 
Indenture. The receipt o/Tax Revenues is subject to certain risks and limitations. See "RISK FACTORS" and "LIMITATIONS ON 
TAX REVENUES AND POSSIBLE SPENDING LIMITATIONS" herein. 

.,MBIA 
Payment of the principal of and interest on the Series 2003 Bonds when due will be insured by a municipal bond insurance 

policy to be issued by MBJA Insurance Corporation simultaneously with delivery of the Bonds. See "SECURITY FOR TIlE 
SERIES ;!003 BONDS- Payment Pursuant to Municipal Bond Insurance Policy" and "APPENDIX G-SPEClMEN 
MUNICIPAL BOND INSURANCE POLICY" herein. 

TIlE SERIES 2003 BONDS ARE NOT A DEBT OF TIlE CITY OF GUADALUPE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, OR . 
ANY OF .ITS POLmCAL SUBDMSIONS OTHER THAN TIlE AGENCY, AND NEITHER TIlE CITY, TIlE STATE 
NOR ANY OF ITS POLmCAL SUBDIVISIONS, OTIlER THAN lHE AGENCY, IS LIABLE lHEREFOR. THE 
PRINCIPAL OF, PREMIUM, IF ANY, AND INrEREST ON TIlE SERIES 2003 BONDS ARE PAYABLE SOLELY FROM 
TAX REVENUES ALLOCATED TO mE AGENCY FROM THE PROJECT AREA AND AMOUNTS IN CERTAIN 
FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS HELD UNDER THE INDENTURE, NEmIER TIlE MEMBERS OF THE AGENCY NOR 
TIlE CITY COUNCIL OF TIlE CITY, NOR ANY PERSONS EXECUI1NG mE SERIES 2003 BONDS ARE LIABLE 
PERSONALLY ON lHE SERIES 2003 BONDS BY REASON OF THEIR ISSUANCE. 

. MATURITY SCHEDULE 
$1,785,000 Serial Bonds 

(~) l'rbIdpal Interest Prkle or Maturity PrtadpaJ Inlem:t Price or 
AlDin"" lUte \'Itdel (Auc-t 1) . Amoual lUte \'IdtI 

2006 115,000 2.000% 1.50% 2013 140,OOQ 3.750CA: 3.65% 
2W1 115,000 2.250% 2.00% 2014 145,000 3.7~ l00'h 
2008 120,000 2.750% 2.45% 2015 150,000 3.750% l00'h 
2009 120,000 3.000% 2.85% 2016 155,000 3.850% l00'h 
2010 125,000 3.250% 3.15% 2017 165,000 3.900% l00'h 
2011 130,000 3.500% 3.40% 2018 170,000 4.000% " 100% 
2013 . 135,000 3.750% r 3.50% 

$I.970,ooo 5.125'-' Term Bondi due August l. '1JJ1:1, Yield 4.60'-' 
$2,700,000 5.125'-' Term Bonck due Aupst l. 2035, Yield 4.65'-' 

This cover pa~e contains certain infonnation for quick reference only. It is not intended to be a summary of all factors relating 
to an investment In the Series 2003 Bonds. Investors should review the entire Official Statement before making an investment 
decision. 

The Series 2003 Bonds will be offered when, as and if issued and accepted by the Underwriter, subject to approval as 10 legality 
by Hargrove & Costanzo, A Professional Law Corporation, Fresno, Califomia, Bond Cowrsel, and sub;ect /0 certain otlur 
conditions. Hargrove & Costanzo is also acting as Disclosure CounseL James Rupp, Oxnard, California, has acted as Agency 
counsel in this transaction. It is anticipated that the Series 2003 Bonds, in book entry fOrm. will be available for delivery on or about 

April 3, 2003. I!E:1bancorp 
Dated: March 6, 2003 Piper Jaffray. 

... .j 

..... 



information and is not intended to indicate future or continuing trends in the financial or other affairs of the Agency or 
the City. No representation is made that past experience, as it might be shown by such financial and other information, 
will necessarily continue or be repeated in the jittw-e. 

There are certain statements in this Official Statement which describe events and/or actions connected with the 
closing in the present tense, although some of these events and/or actions have not yet occurred Prospective purchasers 
of bonds should wzderstand that these statements describe events and/or actions which have not yetpccurred but which 
will occur on the Date of Delivery, or shortly thereafter, in connection with the closing. All documents reje"ed to herein 
will be availablefrom the Trustee after the Date o/Delivery. '. 

FINANCING PROGRAM 

The Refunding 

.! 
, The Series 1997 Bonds. The Series 1997 Bonds are being refunded on a current basis. Pursuant to that-certain 
i EsCrow Agreement and Irrevocable Refunding Instructions (the "Escrow Agreement"), dated March 1,2003, given by 

the.Agency to U.S. Bank National Association, as the 1997 Trustee, the 1991 Trustee will establish and hold \Dlder and 
pursuant to the Escrow Agreement a special escrow accoW1t known as the "Series 1997 Refunding AccoWlt." 
ConCWTently with delivery of the Series 2003 Bonds, the Agency shall cause to be transferred to the Series 1997 Trustee 
the amoWlt of $904,493.75 in immediately available funds to be derived from a portion of the proceeds of sale of the 
Series 2003 Bonds. which amount the Trustee shall then tmnsfer for deposit into the Series 1997 Reftmding Account. 
All cash and securities in the Series 1997 Refunding Acco\Dlt are irrevocably pledged as a special trust fund for the 
payment of accrued interest, the principal and any optional redemption premium of the Series 1997 Bonds on July 1, 
2003. 

Sufficiency of the escrow to pay and redeem the Series 1997 Bonds on July 1, 2003 has been verified by Grant 
Thornton of Minneapolis, Minnesota. See "VERIFICATION" herein. 

As a result of the deposit and application of funds pursuant to the Escrow Agreement, the lien of Series 1997 
Bonds being refunded will be defeased and the Series 1997 Bonds will no longer have any claim against the Tax 
Revenues. -

The Project 

In addition to refunding the 1997 Bonds, Bond proceeds will be used to finance the \Dlcompleted projects 
specified in the Redevelopment Plan. In addition, to the extent that Series 2003 Bond Proceeds are available, the Agency 
may also finance, in whole or in part, and as allowed by the Redevelopment Law, the following projects; 

1. A hotel located within the Project Area and all necessary public infrastructure therefor; 

2. A dressing room and structure for the Royal Theater located within the Project Area and all public 
infrastructure associated therewith; 

3. An additional water storage tank to provide water service to the residents of the Project Area and all 
appurtenant structures thereto; 

4. Lighting and infrastructure development on Guadalupe Street; 

4 

'. 



,I 

5. Rehabilitation and infrastructure improvements on Lower Pioneer Street; 

6. Lamps and other public infrastructure improvement on Guadalupe Street; 

7. A community shopping· center and all associated public infrastructure improvements; 

8. Annexation to' Solaman Road; 

9. Construction of a police/fire/public works facility and all related infrastructure thereto; 

10. Construction of a public library and all related infrastructure thereto; 

11. Undergrounding of utilities and other public infrastructure improvements on Guadalupe Street; and 

12. Payoff of a pro rata share of the outstanding obligations owed to USDA for public infrastructure 
improvements within the Project Area. . 

Additional public improvements, other than the above listing, may also be financed to the extent of available 
Series 2003 Bond proceeds. 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

5 



Attachment 2



Attachment 3



RESOLUTION NO.  2021-52 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY GUADALUPE 
APPROVING THE CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF GUADALUPE AND 

ANDREW GOODWIN DESIGNS TO COMPLETE ALL ARCHITECTURE AND ENGINEERING DESIGN 
WORK FOR THE HISTORIC RENOVATION OF THE ROYAL THEATER IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO 

EXCEED $286,870.00 

WHEREAS, as of February 1, 2012, the former Redevelopment Agency of the City of Guadalupe 
(“the Agency”) was dissolved pursuant to the Dissolution Laws forming a Successor Agency of the 
Redevelopment Agency of the City of Guadalupe (“Successor Agency”); and 

WHEREAS, Health and Safety Code Section 34191.5 (b) required the Successor Agency to prepare a 
Long Range Property Management Plan (the “LRPMP”) addressing the future disposition and use 
of all real property of the former Agency (including the Royal Theater and two adjoining 
properties) no later than six months following the issuance by the California Department of 
Finance (“DOF”) a finding of completion to the Successor Agency on March 18, 2013; and 

WHEREAS, on February 26, 2015, the LRPMP was approved by the Oversight Board of the 
Successory Agency (OB) pursuanty to OB resolution No. 2015-02 of the OB; and 

WHEREAS, the LRPMP provides that certain property held by the Successor Agency (the Royal 
Theater located at 848 Guadalupe Street, APN 126-143-012 and two adjacent vacant parcels 
located at 836 Guadalupe Street, APN 115-101-011 and APN 115-113-001) will be transferred to 
the City of future development pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 34191.5, subdivisions 
(c)(2) and (c)(2)(A) (the “Property”); and 

WHEREAS, the Property is currently vacant and red-tagged due to an electrical fire that occurred 
in 2011; and 

WHEREAS, in May of 2018, the Property was transferred to the City; and 

WHEREAS, on January 24, 2019, the Successor Agency requested the Santa Barbara Countywide 
Oversight Board (“County OB”) approve (1) a Bond Proceeds Expenditure Agreement between the 
City and the Successor Agency providing for the transfer of excess bond proceeds  (“ 
Bond proceeds”) in the amount of $658,887 to the City for Bond eligible purposes, (2) directing the 
transfer of such funds to the City, and (3) making certain findings in connection therewith; and 

WHEREAS, the County OB approved Resolution No. 19-3 and the DOF approved the County OB 
action pursuant to a letter dated April 30, 2019, and therefore, the City is able to expend the bond 
proceeds on any expenditure that is allowable under State Law and Bond Proceeds expenditure 
agreement, and use of these proceeds  for design/engineering/remodeling for the Royal Theater is 
an allowable expenditure; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to renovate the Property so that the Property can be used for 
performances, concerts, community gatherings, educational and job training courses, and other 

Attachment 4



uses in accordance with the City General Plan, LRPMP, and applicable laws, as determined in the 
City’s sole and absolute discretion; and 

WHEREAS, in September 2019, the City determined the need to develop a Request for Proposal 
(RFP) and market the renovations of the Royal Theater and two adjacent vacant properties; and 

WHEREAS, one (1) proposal was received on December 19, 2019, from Lisa Wise Consulting, Inc. 
for the development of the RFP; and 

WHEREAS, this RFP was released on March 16, 2020, with a deadline date of May 1, 2020, but no 
proposals were received; and 

WHEREAS, in September 2020, the City hired Carole Denardo to complete a historic resource 
inventory and evaluation of the Royal Theater building at 848 Guadalupe Street to determine if the 
Royal Theater meets the criteria to be both federal and state historical property, and the report 
was submitted to the City in February 2021 indicating the Royal Theater building meets the 
eligibility standards for the National Register/California Register; and 

WHEREAS, on February 25, 2021, the City Council approved Carole Denardo to complete the 
application for submission to the National Register, allowing the Royal Theater building to be listed 
on the historic registry for both federal and state as this action is still in process as of this date; and 

WHEREAS, based on the City Council guidance, City staff released a second, revised RFP, for the 
renovation of the Royal Theater with a change from a developer approach to a design-build RFP, 
allowing the City to maintain ownership during and after renovations; and 

WHEREAS, the RFP was released on April 16, 2021, with a deadline date of May 17, 2021, and one 
design build proposal was received on May 14, 2021, from Andrew Goodwin Designs/Specialty 
Construction; and 

WHEREAS, City staff requested that the process be split into two phases: design/engineering and 
construction, since there is not funding presently available for the construction phase; and  

WHEREAS, City staff has recommended that the City Council approve only the design/engineering 
phase, and that it require that the lead entity be Andrew Goodwin Designs in order to bring this 
project to “shovel ready” which will increase its opportunity to secure Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) funds for the construction phase of the renovation project; and 

WHEREAS, the City has submitted a CDBG application for the planning activity that would fund, if 
awarded $230,000 of this cost and to use the Bond proceeds to fund the difference in cost, but to 
authorize the use of the Bond proceeds for the entire cost if the City does not receive a CDBG 
award. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Guadalupe as follows: 



1. That the City of Guadalupe enter into a contract for the design/engineering phase of the
renovations of the Royal Theater in amount not to exceed $286,870.00 with Andrew
Goodwin Design; and

2. That the Mayor is authorized to sign the contract on behalf of the City.
3. That the use of the Bond proceeds is authorized to fund any difference between the cost

for the design/engineering services under the contract if the City receives a CDBG award,
but that the Bond proceeds for the entire amount up to $286,870 are authorized to be
used if the City does not receive a CDBG award.

4. The City Clerk is hereby authorized to make minor changes herein to address clerical
errors, so long as substantial conformance of the intent of this document is maintained. In
doing so, the City Clerk shall consult with the City Administrator and City Attorney
concerning any changes deemed necessary.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting on the 13th day of July 2021 by the 
following vote: 

MOTION: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

I, Amelia M. Villegas, City Clerk of the City of Guadalupe DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing 
Resolution, being Resolution No. 2021-52, has been duly signed by the Mayor and attested by the 
City Clerk, all at a regular meeting of the City Council, held July 13, 2021, and that same was 
approved and adopted.   

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 
Ariston Julian, Mayor 

____________________________________  
Amelia M. Villegas, City Clerk  

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

___________________________________ 
Philip Sinco, City Attorney 



AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 
BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF GUADALUPE 
AND 

ANDREW GOODWIN DESIGNS 

THIS AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES (the "Agreement") is made and 
entered into this 13th day of July 2021, by and between the CITY OF GUADALUPE, a municipal 
corporation ("City") and ANDREW GOODWIN DESIGNS, a sole proprietorship  ("Consultant"). 

In consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions set forth herein, the 
parties agree as follows: 

Section 1. Term of Agreement.  Subject to the provisions of Section 18 
(Termination of Agreement) of this Agreement, the term of this Agreement shall be for a period 
of one (1) year from commencing on July 13, 2021 through July 13, 2023, as first shown above. 
Such term may be extended upon written agreement of both parties to this Agreement. 

Section 2. Scope of Services.  Consultant agrees to perform the services set 
forth in Exhibit A (Scope of Services) and made a part of this Agreement. 

Section 3. Additional Services.  Consultant shall not be compensated for any 
services rendered in connection with its performance of this Agreement which are in addition 
to or outside of those set forth in this Agreement or listed in Exhibit A, unless such additional 
services are authorized in advance and in writing by the City Council or City Administrator of 
City.  Consultant shall be compensated for any such additional services in the amounts and in 
the manner agreed to by the City Council or City Administrator. 

Section 4. Compensation and Method of Payment.  

(a) Subject to any limitations set forth in this Agreement, City agrees to pay
Consultant the amounts specified in Exhibit B (Compensation) and made a part of this 
Agreement.   

(b) Each month Consultant shall furnish to City an original invoice for all work
performed and expenses incurred during the preceding month.  The invoice shall detail 
charges by the following categories: labor (Administration, ministerial, and discretionary 
review). City shall independently review each invoice submitted by Consultant to 
determine whether the work performed and expenses incurred are in compliance with 
the provisions of this Agreement and Scope of Services.  In the event that no charges or 
expenses are disputed, the invoice shall be approved and paid according to the terms 
set forth in subsection (c).  In the event City disputes any charges or expenses, City shall 
return the original invoice to Consultant with specific items in dispute identified for 

Attachment 5



correction and re-submission.  All undisputed charges shall be paid in accordance with 
this Agreement and Scope of Services. 

 
 (c) Except as to any charges for work performed or expenses incurred by 
Consultant, which are disputed by City, City will cause Consultant to be paid within 
forty-five (15) days of receipt of Consultant's invoice. 

 
 (d) Payment to Consultant for work performed pursuant to this Agreement 
shall not be deemed to waive any defects in work performed by Consultant. 

 
 (e) Consultant shall have the right to suspend services if not paid in 
accordance with this Agreement. 

 
  Section 5. Inspection and Final Acceptance.  City may inspect and accept or 
reject any of Consultant's work under this Agreement, either during performance or when 
completed, if the work is found to be defective or not in compliance with the defined Scope of 
Services.  Acceptance of any of the Consultant's work by City shall not constitute a waiver of 
any of the provisions of this Agreement, including but not limited to, Sections 15 and 16, 
pertaining to indemnification and insurance, respectively.  Consultant agrees to cooperate in 
any such inspection.   
 
  Section 6. Ownership of Documents.  All original maps, models, designs, 
drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, reports, data, notes, computer files, files and other 
documents prepared, developed or discovered by Consultant in the course of providing any 
services pursuant to this Agreement shall become the sole property of City and may be used, 
reused or otherwise disposed of by City without the permission of the Consultant.  Reuse of any 
materials outside the scope of this Agreement shall be at the sole risk of the City. 
 
  Section 7. Consultant's Books and Records.   
 

 (a) Consultant shall maintain any and all documents and records 
demonstrating or relating to Consultant's performance of services pursuant to this 
Agreement.  Consultant shall maintain any and all ledgers, books of account, invoices, 
vouchers, canceled checks, or other documents or records evidencing or relating to 
work, services, expenditures and disbursements charged to City pursuant to this 
Agreement.  Any and all such documents or records shall be maintained in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles and shall be sufficiently completed and 
detailed so as to permit an accurate evaluation of the services provided by Consultant 
pursuant to this Agreement.  Any and all such documents or records shall be maintained 
for three (3) years from the date of execution of this Agreement and to the extent 
required by laws relating to the audits of public agencies and their expenditures, unless 
all documents and records are turned over to the City at the conclusion of the 
Agreement. 

 



 (b) Any and all records or documents required to be maintained pursuant to 
this section shall be made available for inspection, audit and copying, upon reasonable 
notice during regular business hours, upon written request by City or its designated 
representative.  Copies of such documents or records shall be provided directly to the 
City for inspection, audit and copying when it is practical to do so; otherwise, unless an 
alternative is mutually agreed upon, such documents and records shall be made 
available at Consultant's address indicated for receipt of notices in this Agreement.  The 
City shall compensate the Consultant for all costs associated with providing these 
materials to the City. 

 
 (c) Where City has reason to believe that any of the documents or records 
required to be maintained pursuant to this section may be lost or destroyed due to 
dissolution or termination of Consultant's business, City may, by written request, 
require that custody of such documents or records be given to the requesting party and 
that such documents and records be maintained by the requesting party.  Access to such 
documents and records shall be granted to City, as well as to its successors-in-interest 
and authorized representatives. 

 
  Section 8. Status of Consultant.   
 

(a) Consultant is and shall at all times during the terms of this Agreement 
remain a wholly independent Consultant and not an officer, employee or 
agent of City.  Consultant shall have no authority to bind City in any 
manner, nor to incur any obligation, debt or liability of any kind on behalf 
of or against City, whether by contract or otherwise, unless such 
authority is expressly conferred under this Agreement or is otherwise 
expressly conferred in writing by City. 
 

(b) The Consultant shall not obtain any rights to retirement, health care or 
any other benefits which may otherwise accrue to City’s employees.  
Consultant expressly waives any claim Consultant may have to any such 
rights. 

 
  Section 9. Standard of Performance.  Consultant represents and warrants 
that it has the qualifications, experience and facilities necessary to properly perform the 
services required under this Agreement in a thorough, competent and professional manner.  
Consultant shall at all times faithfully, competently and to the best of its ability, experience and 
talent, perform all services described herein.  In meeting its obligations under this Agreement, 
Consultant shall employ, at a minimum, generally accepted standards and practices utilized by 
persons engaged in providing services similar to those required of Consultant under this 
Agreement. 
 
  Section 10. Compliance With Applicable Laws, Permits and Licenses.  
Consultant shall keep itself informed of and comply with all applicable federal, state and local 



laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, regulations and rules in effect during the term of this 
Agreement applicable to Consultant.  Consultant shall obtain any and all licenses, permits and 
authorizations necessary to perform the services set forth in this Agreement.  Neither City, nor 
any elected or appointed boards, officers, officials, employees or agents of City, shall be liable 
at law or in equity as a result of any failure of Consultant to comply with this section. 
 
  Section 11. Nondiscrimination.  Consultant shall not discriminate, in any way, 
against any person on the basis of race, color, religious creed, national origin, ancestry, sex, 
age, disability, marital status or sexual orientation in connection with or related to the 
performance of this Agreement. 
 
  Section 12. Unauthorized Aliens.  Consultant hereby promises and agrees to 
comply with all of the provisions of the Federal Immigration and Nationality Act, 8 U.S.C.A. 
sections 1101, et seq., as amended, and in connection therewith, shall not employ 
unauthorized aliens for the performance of work and/or services covered by this Agreement, 
and should any liability or sanctions be imposed against City for such use of unauthorized 
aliens, Consultant hereby agrees to and shall reimburse City for the cost of all such liabilities or 
sanctions imposed, together with any and all costs, including attorney's fees, incurred by City. 
 
  Section 13. Conflicts of Interest.  Consultant agrees to at all times avoid 
conflicts of interest with the interests of the City in the performance of this Agreement. 
 
  Section 14. Confidential Information; Release of Information.   
 

 (a) All information gained or work product produced by Consultant in 
performance of this Agreement shall be considered confidential, unless such 
information is in the public domain or already known to Consultant.  Consultant shall 
not release or disclose any such information or work product to persons or entities 
other than City without prior written authorization from the City Administrator, except 
as may be required by law.   

 
 (b) Consultant shall not, without prior without prior written authorization 
from the City Administrator or unless requested by the City Attorney of City, voluntarily 
provide declarations, letters of support, testimony at depositions, responses to 
interrogatories or other information concerning the work performed under this 
Agreement.  A response to a subpoena or court order shall not be considered 
"voluntary" provided Consultant gives City notice of such court order or subpoena. 

 
 (c) If Consultant, or any officer, employee, agent or sub consultant of 
Consultant, provides any information or work product in violation of this section, then 
City shall have the right to reimbursement and indemnity from Consultant for any 
damages, costs and fees, including attorney's fees, caused by or incurred as a result of 
Consultant's conduct. 

 



 (d) Consultant shall promptly notify City should Consultant, its officers, 
employees, agents or sub consultants be served with any summons, complaint, 
subpoena, notice of deposition, request for documents, interrogatories, request for 
admissions or other discovery request, court order or subpoena from any party 
regarding this Agreement and the work performed thereunder.  City retains the right, 
but has no obligation, to represent Consultant or be present at any deposition, hearing 
or similar proceeding.  Consultant agrees to cooperate fully with City and to provide City 
with the opportunity to review any response to discovery requests provided by 
Consultant.  However, this right to review any such response does not imply or mean 
the right by City to control, direct, or rewrite said response.  Consultant shall be 
compensated for all costs associated with complying with this section. 

 
  Section 15. Indemnification.   
 

 (a) City and its respective elected and appointed boards, officials, officers, 
agents, employees and volunteers (individually and collectively, "Indemnitees") shall 
have no liability to Consultant or any other person for, and Consultant shall indemnify, 
defend, protect and hold harmless Indemnitees from and against, any and all liabilities, 
claims, actions, causes of action, proceedings, suits, damages, judgments, liens, levies, 
costs and expenses of whatever nature, including reasonable attorney's fees and 
disbursements (collectively, "Claims") which Indemnitees may suffer or incur or to 
which Indemnitees may become subject by reason of or arising out of any injury to or 
death of any person(s), damage to property, loss of use of property, economic loss or 
otherwise occurring as a result of or allegedly caused by Consultant's performance of or 
failure to perform any services under this Agreement or by the negligent or willfully 
wrongful acts or omissions of Consultant, its agents, officers, directors, sub consultants 
or employees, committed in performing any of the services under this Agreement. 

 
 (b) If any action or proceeding is brought against Indemnitees by reason of 
any of the matters against which Consultant has agreed to indemnify Indemnitees as 
provided above, Consultant, upon notice from City, shall defend Indemnitees at 
Consultant's expense by counsel acceptable to City, such acceptance not to be 
unreasonably withheld.  Indemnitees need not have first paid for any of the matters to 
which Indemnitees are entitled to indemnification in order to be so indemnified.  The 
insurance required to be maintained by Consultant under Section 16 shall ensure 
Consultant's obligations under this section, but the limits of such insurance shall not 
limit the liability of Consultant hereunder.  The provisions of this section shall survive 
the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement. 

 
 (c) The provisions of this section do not apply to Claims occurring as a result 
of the City's sole negligence or willfully wrongful acts or omissions. 

 
 (d) City agrees to indemnify Consultant for any such neglect or willfully 
wrongful acts committed by City or its officers, agents or employees. 



 
   
 Section 16. Insurance.  Consultant agrees to obtain and maintain in full force and 
effect during the term of this Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or 
damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work 
provided by Consultant, its agents, representatives or employees in performance of this 
Agreement.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less 
than A-:VII.  All insurance policies shall be subject to approval by City as to form and content.  
These requirements are subject to amendment or waiver, if so approved in writing by City 
Administrator.  Consultant agrees to provide City with copies of required policies upon request.  
 Prior to the beginning of and throughout the duration of the Work, Consultant and its 
subcontractors shall maintain insurance in conformance with the requirements set forth below. 
Consultant will use existing coverage to comply with these requirements. If that existing 
coverage does not meet the requirements set forth herein, Consultant agrees to amend, 
supplement or endorse the existing coverage to do so. Consultant acknowledges that the 
insurance coverage and policy limits set forth in this section constitute the minimum amount of 
coverage required. Any insurance proceeds available to Consultant or its subcontractors in 
excess of the limits and coverage identified in this Agreement and which is applicable to a given 
loss, claim or demand, will be equally available to City. 
 
  Consultant shall provide the following types and amounts of insurance. Without 
limiting Consultant’s indemnification of City, and prior to commencement of Work, Consultant 
shall obtain, provide and maintain at its own expense during the term of this Agreement, 
policies of insurance of the type and amounts described below and in a form satisfactory to 
City: 
 
 A. Minimum Scope of Insurance:  Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 
 
  (1) Insurance Services Office Form Commercial General Liability coverage 
(Occurrence Form CG 0001). 
 
  (2) Insurance Services Office Form No. CA 0001 covering Automobile 
Liability, including code 1"any auto" and endorsement CA 0025, or equivalent forms subject to 
written approval of City. 
 
  (3) Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the Labor Code of the 
State of California and Employers' Liability insurance and covering all persons providing services 
on behalf of the CONTRACTOR and all risks to such persons under this Agreement, along with a 
waiver of subrogation endorsement. 
 
  (4) Errors and omission liability insurance appropriate to the CONTRACTOR's 
profession. 
 



 B. Minimum Limits of Insurance:  Consultant shall maintain limits of insurance no 
less than: 
 
  (1) General Liability Insurance:  Consultant shall maintain commercial 
general liability insurance with coverage at least as broad as Insurance Services Office form CG 
00 01, in an amount not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate, for 
bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage, and a $2,000,000 completed operations 
aggregate. The policy shall provide or be endorsed to provide that CITY and its officers, officials, 
employees, agents, and volunteers shall be additional insureds under such policies. This 
provision shall also apply to any excess/umbrella liability policies. The policy must include 
contractual liability that has not been amended. Any endorsement restricting standard ISO 
“insured contract” language will not be accepted. This insurance and any umbrella or excess 
liability insurance shall be maintained for a minimum of three years or as long as there is a 
statutory exposure to completed operations claims, with the City and its officers, officials, 
employees, and agents continued as additional insured. 
 
  (2) Automobile Liability:  Consultant shall maintain automobile insurance at 
least as broad as Insurance Services Office form CA 00 01 covering bodily injury and property 
damage for all activities of the Consultant arising out of or in connection with Work to be 
performed under this Agreement, including coverage for any owned, hired, non-owned or 
rented vehicles, in an amount not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit for each accident. 
 
  (3) Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability: Consultant shall 
maintain Workers’ Compensation Insurance (Statutory Limits) and Employer’s Liability 
Insurance (with limits of at least $1,000,000) for Consultant’s employees in accordance with the 
laws of the State of California, Section 3700 of the Labor Code. In addition, Consultant shall 
require each subcontractor to similarly maintain Workers’ Compensation Insurance and 
Employer’s Liability Insurance in accordance with the laws of the State of California, Section 
3700 for all of the subcontractor’s employees. Consultant shall submit to CITY. 
 
  (4) Errors and Omissions Liability:  $1,000,000 per claim as appropriate for 
the profession. 
 
 C. Other Provisions:  Insurance policies required by this Agreement shall contain 
the following provisions: 
 
  (1) Notice of Cancellation:  Each insurance policy required by this Agreement 
shall be endorsed and state the coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled by the 
insurer or other party to this Agreement, reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty 
(30) days' prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested has been given to City. 
 
  (2) Primary/noncontributing: Coverage provided by Consultant shall be 
primary and any insurance or self-insurance procured or maintained by City shall not be 
required to contribute with it. The limits of insurance required herein may be satisfied by a 



combination of primary and umbrella or excess insurance. Any umbrella or excess insurance 
shall contain or be endorsed to contain a provision that such coverage shall also apply on a 
primary and non-contributory basis for the benefit of City before the City’s own insurance or 
self-insurance shall be called upon to protect it as a named insured. 
 
  (3) City’s Rights of Enforcement: In the event any policy of insurance 
required under this Agreement does not comply with these requirements or is canceled and not 
replaced, City has the right but not the duty to obtain the insurance it deems necessary and any 
premium paid by City will be promptly reimbursed by Consultant or City will withhold amounts 
sufficient to pay premium from Consultant payments. In the alternative, City may cancel this 
Agreement. 
 
  (4)  Waiver of Subrogation: All insurance coverage maintained or procured 
pursuant to this agreement shall be endorsed to waive subrogation against City, its elected or 
appointed officers, agents, officials, employees and volunteers or shall specifically allow 
Consultant or others providing insurance evidence in compliance with these specifications to 
waive their right of recovery prior to a loss. Consultant hereby waives its own right of recovery 
against City, and shall require similar written express waivers. 
 
  (5) Enforcement of Contract Provisions (non estoppel): Consultant 
acknowledges and agrees that any actual or alleged failure on the part of the City to inform 
Consultant of non-compliance with any requirement imposes no additional obligations on the 
CITY nor does it waive any rights hereunder. 
 
  (6) Requirements not Limiting:  Requirements of specific coverage features 
or limits contained in this Section are not intended as a limitation on coverage, limits or other 
requirements, or a waiver of any coverage normally provided by any insurance. Specific 
reference to a given coverage feature is for purposes of clarification only as it pertains to a 
given issue and is not intended by any party or insured to be all inclusive, or to the exclusion of 
other coverage, or a waiver of any type. If the Consultant maintains higher limits than the 
minimums shown above, the City requires and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits 
maintained by the Consultant. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified 
minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to the City. 
 
  (7) Prohibition of Undisclosed Coverage Limitations: None of the coverages 
required herein will be in compliance with these requirements if they include any limiting 
endorsement of any kind that has not been first submitted to City and approved of in writing. 
 
  (8) Separation of Insureds: A severability of interests provision must apply 
for all additional insureds ensuring that Consultant’s insurance shall apply separately to each 
insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the insurer’s 
limits of liability. The policy(ies) shall not contain any cross-liability exclusions. 
 



  (9) Pass through Clause: Consultant agrees to ensure that its subconsultants, 
subcontractors, and any other party involved with the project who is brought onto or involved 
in the project by Consultant provide the same minimum insurance coverage and endorsements 
required of Consultant. Consultant agrees to monitor and review all such coverage and assumes 
all responsibility for ensuring that such coverage is provided in conformity with the 
requirements of this section. Consultant agrees that upon request, all agreements with 
consultants, subcontractors, and others engaged in the project will be submitted to City for 
review. 
 
  (10) City’s Right to Revise Requirements: The City reserves the right at any 
time during the term of the contract to change the amounts and types of insurance required by 
giving the Consultant a ninety (90) day advance written notice of such change. If such change 
results in substantial additional cost to the Consultant, the City and Consultant may renegotiate 
Consultant’s compensation. 
 
  (11) Self-insured Retentions: Any self-insured retentions must be declared to 
and approved by City. City reserves the right to require that self-insured retentions be 
eliminated, lowered, or replaced by a deductible. Self-insurance will not be considered to 
comply with these specifications unless approved by City. 
 
  (12) Timely Notice of Claims: Consultant shall give City prompt and timely 
notice of claims made or suits instituted that arise out of or result from Consultant’s 
performance under this Agreement, and that involve or may involve coverage under any of the 
required liability policies. 
 
  (13) Additional Insurance: Consultant shall also procure and maintain, at its 
own cost and expense, any additional kinds of insurance, which in its own judgment may be 
necessary for its proper protection and prosecution of the Work.  
 
 
  Section 17. Assignment.  The expertise and experience of Consultant are 
material considerations for this Agreement.  City has an interest in the qualifications of and 
capability of the persons and entities who will fulfill the duties and obligations imposed upon 
Consultant under the Agreement.  In recognition of that interest, Consultant shall not assign or 
transfer this Agreement or any portion of this Agreement or the performance of any of 
Consultant's duties or obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of 
the City Council.  Any attempted assignment shall be ineffective, null and void, and shall 
constitute a material breach of this Agreement, entitling City to any and all remedies at law or 
in equity, including summary termination of this Agreement.  City acknowledges, however, that 
Consultant, in the performance of its duties pursuant to this Agreement, may utilize sub 
consultants. 
 
 
 



  Section 18. Termination of Agreement.   
 

 (a) City may terminate this Agreement, with or without cause, at any time by 
giving thirty (30) days' written notice of termination to Consultant.  In the event such 
notice is given, Consultant shall cease immediately all work in progress.   
 
 (b) Consultant may terminate this Agreement at any time upon thirty (30) 
days' written notice of termination to City.   

 
 (c) If either Consultant or City fail to perform any material obligation under 
this Agreement, then, in addition to any other remedies, either Consultant or City may 
terminate this Agreement immediately upon written notice.   

 
 (d) Upon termination of this Agreement by either Consultant or City, all 
property belonging exclusively to City which is in Consultant's possession shall be 
returned to City.  Consultant shall furnish to City a final invoice for work performed and 
expenses incurred by Consultant, prepared as set forth in Section 4 of this Agreement.  
This final invoice shall be reviewed and paid in the same manner as set forth in Section 4 
of this Agreement. 

 
  Section 19. Default.  In the event that Consultant is in default under the terms 
of this Agreement, the City shall not have any obligation or duty to continue compensating 
Consultant for any work performed after the date of default and may terminate this Agreement 
immediately by written notice to Consultant. 
 
  Section 20. Excusable Delays.  Consultant shall not be liable for damages, 
including liquidated damages, if any, caused by delay in performance or failure to perform due 
to causes beyond the control of Consultant.  Such causes include, but are not limited to, acts of 
God, acts of the public enemy, and acts of federal, state or local governments, acts of the City, 
court orders, fires, floods, epidemics, strikes, embargoes, and unusually severe weather.  The 
term and price of this Agreement shall be equitably adjusted for any delays due to such causes. 
 
  Section 21. Cooperation by City.  All public information, data, reports and 
maps as are existing and available to City as public records, and which are necessary for 
carrying out the work as outlined in Exhibit A, shall be furnished to Consultant in every 
reasonable way to facilitate, without undue delay, the work to be performed under this 
Agreement. 
 
  Section 22. Notices.  All notices required or permitted to be given under this 
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be personally delivered, or sent by telecopier or United 
States mail, postage prepaid, addressed as follows:  
 



  To City:  City Administrator 
     City of Guadalupe 
     918 Obispo Street 
     Guadalupe, CA    93434 
 
  To Consultant: Andrew Goodwin Designs 
     Attn: Andrew Goodwin 
     2050 Parker Street 
     San Luis Obispo, CA 93401 
 
Notice shall be deemed effective on the date personally delivered or transmitted by facsimile 
or, if mailed, three (3) days after deposit of the same in the custody of the United States Postal 
Service. 
 
  Section 23. Authority to Execute.  The person or persons executing this 
Agreement on behalf of the Consultant represents and warrants that they have the authority to 
so execute this Agreement and to bind Consultant to the performance of its obligations 
hereunder. 
 
  Section 24. Binding Effect.  This Agreement shall be binding upon the heirs, 
executors, administrators, successors and assigns of the parties. 
 
  Section 25. Modification of Agreement.  No amendment to or modification of 
this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and approved by the Consultant and by the 
City Council.  The parties agree that this requirement for written modifications cannot be 
waived and that any attempted waiver shall be void. 
 
  Section 26. Waiver.  Waiver by any party to this Agreement of any term, 
condition or covenant of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any other term, 
condition or covenant.  Waiver by any party of any breach of the provisions of this Agreement 
shall not constitute a waiver of any other provision, nor a waiver of any subsequent breach or 
violation of any provision of this Agreement.  Acceptance by City of any work or services by 
Consultant shall not constitute a waiver of any provisions of this Agreement. 
 
  Section 27. Law to Govern; Venue.  This Agreement shall be interpreted, 
construed and governed according to the laws of the State of California.  In the event of 
litigation between the parties, venue in state trial courts shall lie exclusively in the County of 
Santa Barbara.  In the event of litigation in a U.S. District Court, venue shall lie exclusively in the 
Central District of California, in Los Angeles. 
 
  Section 28. Attorney's Fees, Costs and Expenses.  In the event litigation or 
other proceeding is required to enforce or interpret any provision of this Agreement, the 
prevailing party in such litigation or other proceeding shall be entitled to any award of 



reasonable attorney's fees, costs and expenses, in addition to any other relief to which it may 
be entitled. 
 
  Section 29. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, including the attached 
exhibits, is the entire, complete, final and exclusive expression of the parties with respect to the 
matters addressed therein and supersedes all other agreements or understandings, whether 
oral or written, or entered into between Consultant and City prior to the execution of this 
Agreement.  No statements, representations or other agreements, whether oral or written, 
made by any party which are not embodied herein shall be valid and binding.  No amendment 
to this Agreement shall be valid and binding unless in writing duly executed by the parties or 
their authorized representatives. 
 
  Section 30. Severability.  If a term, condition or covenant of this Agreement is 
declared or determined by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or 
unenforceable, the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby, and 
the Agreement shall be read and construed without the invalid, void or unenforceable 
provision(s). 
 
  Section 31. Preparation of Agreement.  This Agreement is the product of 
negotiation and preparation by and among the parties and their respective attorneys.  The 
parties, therefore, expressly acknowledge and agree that this Agreement shall not be deemed 
prepared or drafted by one party or another, or any party's attorney, and will be construed 
accordingly. 
 
 
 
CITY:       CONSULTANT: 
 
CITY OF GUADALUPE     ANDREW GOODWIN DESIGNS 
 
 
By: ______________________________  by: ________________________________ 
    Ariston D. Julian, Mayor     Andrew C. Goodwin, AIA, LEED  
       
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
        
__________________________________   
Philip Sinco, City Attorney 

 
 

 
 
 



ATTACHMENT A – Scope of Services 

An Agreement for Design-Build services for the Remodel and Addition to the Royal Theater in 
Guadalupe, CA. (Architecture/Engineering Phase) 

SCOPE OF SERVICES – 

ARCHITECTURE and ENGINEERING 
The Design-Build team will work to complete the first phase of a two-phase project. The first 
phase is for the architecture and engineering to get the project shovel ready. AGD will take the 
Prime lead of the project until the project is ready for construction where the contractor, SCI, 
will take the Prime lead upon contract negotiations with the City of Guadalupe.  The 
Architecture and Engineering team will work through this project following these two phases of 
the contract. The First Phase includes: 

TASK 1. DESIGN DEVELOPMENT 
The design development stage will engage the architecture, historical preservation 
consultant, civil engineering, structural engineering, mechanical engineering, electrical 
engineering, audio-visual/acoustics consultant, and fire protection engineering groups. 
At this point our team will develop the chosen schematic design into a design package 
to include site plans, floor plans, elevations, sections, material studies, and 3D 
renderings.  

The team proposes to do a cost estimate at this stage to propose a rough order of 
magnitude cost estimate for the client and any stakeholder groups to review. The team 
can adjust the general design of the project before getting into construction documents 
in order to save time during the construction document phase. 

The documents include: 
Architecture Plans: 

• Site Plan

• Floor Plans

• Roof Plan

• Elevations with Material Specifications

• Sections

• 3D Views
Civil Engineering:

• Draft Grading Plans
Structural Engineering:

• Foundation Plan

• Framing Plan
Mechanical Engineering:

• HVAC Plans



• Plumbing Plans 
  Electrical Engineering: 

• Power and Lighting Plans 
  Fire Protection Engineering: 

• Fire Sprinkler Plans 
Soils Report: 

• Survey of Property and Existing Building 

• Hazardous Material Report   
Deliverables: 

• Two (2) Internal Design Team Reviews 

• Two (2) Milestone Deliverables to City of Guadalupe and Stakeholder 
Meetings: 

• Design Team Review/Coordination Meetings (Virtual) –Two (2)  

• Coordination Meetings with Client – Two Meetings (2) 

• Final DD Presentation  
 
PHASE 4. CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS AND COST ESTIMATING 

The full team will begin working on construction documents after the design 
development phase has been approved by the City of Guadalupe and Stakeholder. The 
team will prepare a 60% Construction Document Submittal for the staff and any 
stakeholders to comment. This will include:  

Architecture –architecture plans for permits 
Civil Engineering –civil engineering plans and stormwater documents (as 
necessary) 
Structural Engineering –structural engineering and calculations 
Mechanical Engineering – mechanical/plumbing plans  
Electrical Engineering - electrical plans  
Fire Protection –fire sprinkler and fire alarm plans 
Acoustical – Acoustical report  
Audio Visual – Audio Visual plans and details 
Historical – Historical consulting details. 

 
At the 60% Construction Document Submittal the cost estimation will be updated for 
review by stakeholders. 

 
Once the City and stakeholders have commented, the team will incorporate these 
comments into the drawings and produce a 90% set to be reviewed. The 90% 
Construction Document Submittal will incorporate finished details, schedules, and 
calculations to add to the previous 60% Construction Document Submittal. These 
additional supplemental documents will include: 

 
Architecture – Full architecture plans for permits 



Civil Engineering – Full civil engineering plans and stormwater documents (as 
necessary) 
Structural Engineering – Full structural engineering and calculations 
Mechanical Engineering – Full mechanical/plumbing plans and Title 24 Report 
Electrical Engineering - Full electrical plans and Title 24 Report 
Fire Protection – Full fire sprinkler and fire alarm plans 
Acoustical – Acoustical report and details 
Audio Visual – Audio Visual plans and details 
Historical – Historical consulting details and reports. 

 
At 90% Construction Document Submittal the City and stakeholders will have 
opportunity to comment. These will be incorporated into one final revision to the 
documents before our team finishes the final construction documents, reports, and 
paperwork for permit submission. 

 
PREPARE AND PROCESS PERMIT APPLICATIONS 

AGD will lead the team in the process of preparing and submitting permits to the local 
jurisdiction.  

 
ASSIST IN SECURING PERMITS 

AGD will lead the team in the process of securing the permit through plan check and 
plan submittal revisions. The client is expected to pay all permit fees.  

 
ARCHITECT: 
 
BY:  Andrew Goodwin, AIA, LEED AP  
 
TITLE:  Architect, Owner      
 

Andrew Goodwin Designs  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



ATTACHMENT B – Compensation 

Architectural  $72,000 

Civil Engineer  $16,800 

Audio Visual Engineer  $29,720 

Acoustics Engineer  $19,560 

Structural Engineer  $35,400 

Mechanical/plumbing Engineer $29,400 

Electrical Engineer $20,040 

Historical Consultant  $24,000 

Fire Protection  $24,480 

Consultants $17,850 

Total $286,870 



Page 1 of 2 

Agenda Item No. 6F 

REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GUADALUPE 
Agenda of July 13, 2021 

  
_______________________________ _________________________________ 
Prepared by:   Approved by:  
Shannon Sweeney Todd Bodem, City Administrator 
Public Works Director/City Engineer 

SUBJECT:  Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study Completion 

RECOMMENDATION:    

That City Council accept the finalized Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study. 

DISCUSSION: 

Since 2018, the Coastal Conservancy, with the consultant MIG, has coordinated with the City of 
Guadalupe, local residents, local community organizations, and public agencies involved in related 
planning efforts together to share information and preliminary ideas for assessing feasibility of creating 
a multiuse trail that would extend from Guadalupe to nearby beaches, allowing a non-motorized 
recreational route. The result is the finalized Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study. 

The purpose of this study is to identify potential alignment alternatives for a future shared-use Trail 
connection between the City of Guadalupe and the nearby beach/dune area. The study also includes 
planning and design guidelines for future implementation. The project is intended as an initial phase in 
trail planning, identifying top priority alignments to help focus future investment in more detailed 
technical analyses and comprehensive environmental documentation prior to implementation. Further, 
establishing a shared vision and delineating a community-based concept for a multi-use trail will better 
position the project to receive grant funding and build resources for future implementation. 

An update on the project status was provided to City Council on September 22, 2020. The draft report 
was distributed for public comment earlier this year. Conservancy staff presented a summary of the 
findings of the draft report to Council on January 26, 2021. The final report and its appendices are 
attached.  The document can also be found online at the website 
https://www.losamigosdeguadalupe.org/trail-to-the-ocean/. 

NEXT STEPS: 

Next potential steps include reaching out to individual stakeholders including affected landowners to 
gauge interest in engaging in conversations about any issues and in various alignments identified in the 
study. The Coastal Conservancy is willing to participate in this effort. An additional potential step is for 
the City or County to convene the Project Advisory Team for this project to gauge support as a group to 

Shannon Sweeney 

https://www.losamigosdeguadalupe.org/trail-to-the-ocean/


Page 2 of 2 

continue to share information and collaborate on funding opportunities, as well as look at other 
projects for opportunities to align intersecting efforts. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution No. 2021-53
2. Guadalupe to Beach Multiuse Trail Feasibility Study, March 2021
3. Guadalupe To Beach Multiuse Trail Feasibility Study Appendices, March 2021



Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO.  2021-53 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY GUADALUPE  
ADOPTING THE “GUADALUPE TO BEACH MULTIUSE TRAIL FEASIBILITY STUDY” 

WHEREAS, establishing a shared vision and delineating a community-based concept for a multi-use trail 
from Guadalupe to the beach will better position the project to receive grant funding and build resources 
for future implementation; and, 

WHEREAS, the Coastal Conservancy received grant funding to study potential alignment alternatives for 
a future shared-use trail between the City of Guadalupe and the nearby beach/dune area; and 

WHEREAS, the Coastal Conservancy worked with a consultant and coordinated with the City of 
Guadalupe, local residents, local community organizations, and public agencies to share information and 
discuss preliminary ideas to assess feasibility of creating a multiuse trail from the City of Guadalupe to 
nearby beaches, and providing a non-motorized recreational route; and 

WHEREAS, the Coastal Conservancy completed this document in March 2021 and is providing it to the 
City of Guadalupe for adoption. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Guadalupe as follows: 

1. The City Council hereby adopts the report entitled, “Guadalupe to Beach Multiuse Trail Feasibility
Study”

2. The City Clerk is hereby authorized to make minor changes herein to address clerical errors, so
long as substantial conformance of the intent of this document is maintained. In doing so, the
City Clerk shall consult with the City Administrator and City Attorney concerning any changes
deemed necessary.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting on the 13th day of July 2021 by the following 
vote:  

MOTION: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

I, Amelia M. Villegas, City Clerk of the City of Guadalupe DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing 
Resolution, being Resolution No. 2021-53, has been duly signed by the Mayor and attested by the City 
Clerk, all at a regular meeting of the City Council, held July 13, 2021, and that same was approved and 
adopted.   

Attachment 1



Page 2 of 2 

ATTEST: 

______________________________  ____________________________________ 
Amelia M. Villegas, City Clerk  Ariston Julian, Mayor 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

______________________________  
Philip Sinco, City Attorney 



Guadalupe to Beach

Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study

www.migcom.com

Prepared By:

M A R C H  2 0 2 1

Attachment 2



 

 

Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study 
 

Table of Contents 

Introduction ....................................................................................................... 1 

Study Purpose ................................................................................................................................................. 2 

Study Area ....................................................................................................................................................... 2 

Document Organization .................................................................................................................................. 2 

Chapter 1: Community Snapshot ..................................................................... 4 

Guadalupe Community ................................................................................................................................... 4 

Setting ............................................................................................................................................................. 4 

Nature and Culture .......................................................................................................................................... 5 

Transportation ................................................................................................................................................. 5 

Economy .......................................................................................................................................................... 5 

Opportunities and Constraints Highlights ....................................................................................................... 6 

Chapter 2: Community Engagement and Vision Framework ......................... 10 

Engagement Process ..................................................................................................................................... 10 

Engagement Themes ..................................................................................................................................... 11 

Community Vision ......................................................................................................................................... 13 

Chapter 3: Potential Trail Alignments ............................................................. 14 

Trail Alignment Criteria ................................................................................................................................. 15 

Top Trail Alignment Alternatives ................................................................................................................... 18 

Trail Typologies ............................................................................................................................................. 22 

Chapter 4: Implementation ............................................................................. 24 

Phasing Strategy ............................................................................................................................................ 24 

Planning and Design Guidelines .................................................................................................................... 24 

Preliminary Cost Estimate ............................................................................................................................. 26 

Appendices 

A – Opportunities and Constraints Memo 

B – Community Engagement Summaries 

C – National and State Design Standards 

 

 

 



1 Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study 

Introduction 
Located just northwest of Downtown Guadalupe, the Guadalupe-Nipomo Dunes complex is the second 
largest remaining dune system in California and a National Natural Landmark. Its towering 550-foot high 
dunes are the tallest on the west coast. The dunes and Santa Maria River Estuary are teeming with life, 
home to hundreds of species of rare plants and animals. From Rancho Guadalupe Dunes Preserve and Oso 
Flaco Lake Natural Area, visitors can hike for miles along the beach, explore the coastal areas of the 
Guadalupe-Nipomo Dunes National Wildlife Refuge, birdwatch, fish, surf, and enjoy nature. The area is also 
rich with history and culture. From the earliest Chumash Native American inhabitants to Cecil B. DeMille’s 
buried Egyptian movie set of the 1920s, and free-spirited “Dunites” of the 1930s and ‘40s, the dunes provide 
a fascinating connection to the past.  

While this remarkable place is close to the heart of Guadalupe, the five-mile route to the dunes is 
challenging without a vehicle, and therefore, inaccessible to many residents. The sole entry to Rancho 
Guadalupe Dunes Preserve and associated dune complex is along West Main Street, a narrow, sand-swept 
road through commercially farmed agricultural fields and the back dunes, which is difficult to navigate by 
foot or bicycle. Other beach access locations in the vicinity present similar conditions with narrow roads 
through farm fields trafficked by heavy trucks and farm equipment. Providing multi-use trail access between 
the City of Guadalupe and the beach has been a community aspiration for many years. Further, trail and 
street improvements have the potential to support additional General Plan and community-wide goals, such 
as: 

• Providing safer walking and bicycling connections to destinations within Guadalupe;
• Supporting health benefits through active transportation and recreation;
• Enhancing opportunities to learn about nature, culture, and history;
• Expanding opportunities for new linear parks and green infrastructure along the Santa Maria River;
• Connecting to regional bicycle routes; and
• Stimulating the local economy.

This Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study brings the community one step closer to realizing 
the vision for a multi-use trail in Guadalupe. 



 

2 
 
Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study 
 

Study Purpose 
The purpose of the Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study (abbreviated to “the Study” 
throughout this document) is to identify potential alignment alternatives for a future shared-use trail 
connection between the City of Guadalupe and the nearby beach/dune area. The Study also includes 
planning and design guidelines for future implementation. The project is intended as an initial phase in trail 
planning, identifying top priority alignments to help focus future investment in more detailed technical 
analyses and comprehensive environmental documentation prior to implementation. Further, establishing a 
shared vision and delineating a community-based concept for a multi-use trail will better position the 
project to receive grant funding and build resources for future implementation.  

Study Area  
The City of Guadalupe is located in northwest Santa Barbara County, approximately eight miles west of 
Santa Maria. The project Study Area boundary includes the City Guadalupe to the east and beach and dunes 
to the west (see Figure 1). At approximately 33 square miles, the Study Area stretches north into San Luis 
Obispo County and south into Santa Barbara County. It encompasses local beach access points, recreational 
areas, and numerous creek corridors. The Santa Maria River bisects the area just north of Guadalupe’s core. 
The former Guadalupe Oil Field is located roughly in the center of the Study Area between the beach and 
town, and is still in remediation from a 1995 101,000-gallon oil processing diluent spill. 

Document Organization 
This document is organized into the following chapters. 

• Chapter 1: Community Snapshot—Provides a snapshot of the community setting and highlights key 
opportunities and constraints. 

• Chapter 2: Community Engagement and Vision Framework—Describes the community engagement 
process and the resulting themes, vision, and goals for a future multi-use trail. 

• Chapter 3: Potential Trail Alignments—Details trail alignment evaluation criteria, identifies 
potential trail alignments, and illustrates trail typologies.   

• Chapter 4: Implementation—Recommends a phasing strategy, presents planning/design guidelines, 
and estimates preliminary order of magnitude costs. 

 



 

3 
 
Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study 
 

 

Figure 1. Multi-Use Trail Study Area  



 

4 
 
Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study 
 

Chapter 1: Community Snapshot 

Following is a snapshot of key existing conditions information relevant to the Study, drawing from a number 
of background documents such as the Guadalupe General Plan (2018), the Mobility and Revitalization Plan 
(2020), the Santa Barbara County Comprehensive Plan (updated 2016), the Guadalupe-Nipomo Dunes 
Restoration Plan (2001), the US Census Bureau data (2018), City and County transit plans, and stakeholder 
discussions.   

Guadalupe Community 
With a population just over 7,600, the City of Guadalupe is a “small” town, characterized by family-friendly 
neighborhoods, patchworks of farmland, some industrial uses, and a quaint historic Downtown Central 
Business District that could benefit from revitalization. There is a need for pedestrian/ADA upgrades 
Downtown, particularly to improve access for strollers and the elderly, and to create a more comfortable 
environment in general. The Dunes Center is an important community hub and natural history museum that 
offers guided dune tours and environmental education for area youth. Judy Baca Guadalupe murals brighten 
public spaces and reflect Guadalupe’s predominant Mexican cultural heritage. Over 85 percent of the 
population identifies as Hispanic or Latinx and the median age is approximately 27 years old. Many residents 
work in agriculture or construction. The median household income was estimated at $43,710 in 2015, 32 
percent less than median incomes for Santa Barbara County as a whole (US Census Bureau, 2018). Further, 
the City is recognized as a “Disadvantaged Community” by the regional definition (SBCAG RTP) and Cal 
Enviro Screen. Guadalupe has historically been home to an incredibly diverse mix of people, including Native 
Americans, Latinos, Japanese, Portuguese, Italians, Swiss, Chinese, Filipino, among others.  

Setting  
Although incorporated in 1946, the community was established in the early nineteenth century by 
descendants of original Spanish settlers. The land around Guadalupe was originally used for grazing and 
cattle ranching, but transitioned to agriculture by the late 1800s. Today, agriculture is Guadalupe’s largest 
industry and the area remains an important agricultural hub. Per the City’s General Plan, the Study Area’s 
agricultural area is planned for preservation, providing a scenic agricultural setting that will continue to 
benefit the community and visitors. The surrounding land reflects historic practices and is protected by the 
Williamson Act. As such, urban development is clustered around Guadalupe’s core. The Guadalupe General 
Plan Preferred Growth Scenario recommends concentrating development in five key growth areas, largely 
Downtown, to encourage continued open space conservation and enhancement of existing open space 
areas. 

Guadalupe is almost entirely surrounded by agricultural land that is in the County’s jurisdiction, and 
therefore not subject to Guadalupe’s governance. This vast agricultural land, along with expansive dune and 
wildlife refuge areas, make the City of Guadalupe somewhat of an island. These conditions make 
connections beyond these areas even more critical for Guadalupe residents. 

There are approximately 20.8 acres of public park space within the City of Guadalupe (Guadalupe General 
Plan, 2018). Two large public parks, Jack O’Connell Park and Leroy Park, sit at the western and northern 
gateways of the community, and smaller neighborhood parks are nested into residential areas. Outside the 
City, the Study Area includes three major recreation destinations and primary trailheads. From north to 
south, the Oceano Dunes SVRA’s Oso Flaco Lake Natural Area includes trails, parking, access to the beach, 
and lake activities. The Guadalupe-Nipomo Dunes National Wildlife Refuge is the second largest dune area in 



 

5 
 
Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study 
 

California and provides limited coastal access for hikers. The Rancho Guadalupe Dunes Preserve offers beach 
access and hiking, but lacks infrastructure and amenities needed to support increased visitation.  

Nature and Culture  
The community of Guadalupe is nestled against a serene dune landscape, characterized by dramatic views, 
diverse habitat, and an other-worldly ambiance. Guadalupe’s beach and dune environment is a unique place 
where nature and culture converge. There are abundant coastal plants and wildlife, including more than 100 
rare species. Popular activities are walking the beach, surfing, fishing, bird watching, and investigating the 
many tracks in the sand from insects, reptiles, mammals, amphibians, and birds. The beach also has a 
fascinating and broad-ranging cultural history with significant Native American middens, two-dozen old 
movies filmed in the area, movie sets, and rock art. Humans have been creative in this area for many years. 
A future multi-use trail provides an opportunity to share the beauty of this place with residents and visitors. 
The intent is to retain the natural elements and peaceful serenity, while adding some basic, and ideally 
artistic, amenities to improve comfort and access.  

Transportation  
The Study Area is regionally connected to Guadalupe and adjacent communities by two key corridors: 

• Highway 1 / Cabrillo Hwy / Guadalupe Street, the north-south state highway that runs through 
Downtown Guadalupe; and  

• West Main Street / Highway 166, an east-west connection between the City of Santa Maria and the 
dunes.  

The City is accessed via collector and local streets connecting to these highways. Surrounding the City, 
numerous dirt roads provide access to agricultural fields and irrigation and utility areas. Additionally, there 
are private roads granting access to the former Guadalupe Oil Field. 

The City has a Downtown AMTRAK station and neighborhood bus routes. While Guadalupe is among the 
smallest cities in North Santa Barbara County, transit ridership per capita is higher than in other North 
County communities. According to the City of Guadalupe Short Range Transit Plan 2015-2020, Guadalupe’s 
ridership per capita is 15.8 percent, compared with 2.8 for Santa Ynez Valley, 4.7 for Lompoc, and 9.8 for 
Santa Maria/Orcutt (2014). Santa Barbara's North County Transit Plan also shows that Guadalupe Valley has 
the largest proportion of public transportation use for commuting to work (2016). Taking transit, walking, 
and biking are popular modes of transportation for Guadalupe residents. 

Economy  
Opportunities for economic growth in Guadalupe are particularly crucial. Unemployment rates are high and 
incomes are low. The General Plan calls out the City’s intention to increase visitor serving potential through 
tourism infrastructure and amenities. The City of Guadalupe, described as the “Gateway to the Dunes,” 
holds promise as an attractive location for ecotourism.  

A multi-use trail connecting the greater region to the rich culture and history of Guadalupe and the 
landmark dunes has potential to drive business growth and increase revenue for the City and local 
businesses. In conjunction with a trail, community members have raised inspiring ideas for bolstering the 
local economy, such as: sales of locally produced goods and art, a farmers’ market, a brewery/distillery, wine 
tasting, additional eateries, camping, and places for cultural exchange and sharing stories. Guadalupe is an 
artistic community, which could contribute to branding for the area. A future trail is envisioned to include 
information signage featuring descriptions of nature/habitat, and the area’s signature agricultural industry 
and history of the valley’s fertile soils. 



6 Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study 

Figure 2. Biological Opportunities and Constraints 

Further, a multi-use trail, and possible related spin-off projects, could provide more vibrant public spaces for 
residents to enjoy. Strategic trail alignment could capitalize on Guadalupe’s assets and places of interest, 
such as Downtown, the Dunes Center, parks, community gathering spaces, historic and cultural resources, 
train station, and local businesses.  

Opportunities and Constraints Highlights
Following are highlights of opportunities and constraints related to major topic areas, including biological, 
physical/connectivity, hazards, and cultural considerations (see Figures 2-5). Further details are documented 
separately (see Appendix A: Opportunities and Constraints Memo and Appendix B:  Community 
Engagement Summaries). These opportunities and constraints will merit further consideration during the 
specific planning and design of a preferred trail alignment. 

Biological 

Opportunities 
A. Environmentally sensitive habitat education and continued preservation and restoration

opportunities
B. A variety of stream corridor-adjacent options for trail routes

Constraints 
C. Sensitive resource areas or environmentally sensitive habitat that may require extensive permitting

and construction
D. Wetland areas to be

avoided or mitigated 



 

7 
 
Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study 
 

Physical/Connectivity 

Opportunities 
A. County-owned beach access and existing “Dunes Trail” at Rancho Guadalupe Dunes Preserve 
B. Potential future beach access partnering opportunity at the Former Guadalupe Oil Field 
C. State-owned beach, lake, and trail access at Oceano Dunes SVRA’s Oso Flaco Lake Natural Area  
D. Federally-owned Guadalupe-Nipomo Dunes National Wildlife Refuge coastal access opportunity 
E. Established access to beach via West Main Street 
F. City-owned parks adjacent to social trails, bike routes, and West Main Street beach access 
G. Social trails along Santa Maria River imply desired recreational trail use 
H. Safe routes to schools 
I. Economic development  
J. Pavement preservation project (SHOPP ID 21709) on Highway 1  
K. Caltrans improved Highway 1 bridge crossing Santa Maria River  
L. Caltrans rehabilitation of Highway 1 within the city limits (Guadalupe Street) with ADA standards 

and other bicycle and pedestrian infrastructure improvements 
M. Tie into developing or 

redeveloping 
residential 
neighborhoods 

N. Regional connections 
to adjacent 
communities 

Constraints 
O. Private property 

navigation required  
P. ROW constraints on 

West Main Street west 
of Highway 1 to the 
dunes  

Q. Agricultural buffering  
R. Traffic on Highway 

1/Guadalupe Street 
impacts pedestrian and 
bicycle safety 

S. Railroad tracks 
crossings  

T. Commute patterns to 
Santa Maria along 
West Main Street 
(Highway 166) and 11th 
Street impacts 
pedestrian and bicycle 
safety  

Figure 3. Physical/Connectivity Opportunities and Constraints 



 

8 
 
Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study 
 

Hazards  

Opportunities 
A. Improve safety/reduce collisions on West Main Street east and west of the city 
B. Improve safety/reduce collisions with planned bridge improvements 

Constraints 
C. Coastal flooding and tidal inundation 
D. 101,000-gallon oil spill at the former Guadalupe Oil Field 
E. Area prone to wind-blow sand and temporary road closures 
F. Exiting roadway with steep grade and erosion issues 
G. Meandering river threat to roadway 
H. Agricultural use conflicts  
I. 100-year flood zone use and maintenance limitations 
J. Numerous vehicular collisions north on Highway 1. (Transportation Injury Mapping System, 

University of California, Berkeley, 2020).  
K. Heavy agriculture and freight volumes make roadways difficult to maintain (dirt and debris left 

behind)  

Figure 4. Hazards Opportunities and Constraints 



 

9 
 
Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study 
 

Cultural  

Opportunities 
A. Cultural connections with the landscape rivers/streams, dunes, and beach 
B. Recognize Spanish colonization of the area 
C. Recognize and preserve the Ten Commandments movie site  
D. Collaborate with Chumash people and celebrate local indigenous heritage 
E. Connect community destinations such as schools, parks and popular gathering spaces. 
F. Draw on community, culture, and agricultural heritage practices in the region 
G. Integrate Guadalupe culture and heritage into gateways  

Constraints 
H. Local identity impacted by beach and trail development  
I. Unidentified Chumash archeological sites in the Study Area  

Figure 5. Cultural Opportunities and Constraints 



 

10 
 
Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study 
 

Chapter 2: Community Engagement and 
Vision Framework 
Beginning in 2018, the California State Coastal Conservancy and consultants collaborated with the City of 
Guadalupe, residents, local community organizations, and public agencies involved in related planning 
efforts, to gather and share information and preliminary ideas for creating a future multi-use trail. 
Community insight highlighted the tremendous value of a multi-use trail to connect Guadalupe and the 
greater region to the nearby beach, and to expand awareness of the dunes’ natural and cultural treasures.  

Engagement Process  
The community engagement process involved stakeholder interviews and discussions, a series of Project 
Advisory Team meetings, a community workshop, and City Council updates. Drawing on local knowledge, 
the process resulted in a vision framework composed of: engagement themes, a vision, and goals. These 
elements, in combination with important trail planning priorities established during related past planning 
efforts, helped identify several possible trail routes and formed the basis for trail alignment evaluation 
criteria. Detailed community input from engagement activities is documented in separate summaries (see 
Appendix B: Community Engagement Summaries). 

Project Advisory Team Meetings 

A Project Advisory Team (PAT) provided diverse perspectives and strategic guidance during the planning 
process. The 20-member PAT was made up of representatives from the community, commissions, 
businesses, community organizations, and local, regional, and state agencies. During three PAT meetings (in-
person and via Zoom), participants discussed project direction, coordinated on concurrent planning efforts, 
and provided feedback on possible alignments, trail alignment criteria, and the draft Study.  

Community Workshop 

As part of a multi-day community event dedicated to Guadalupe multi-modal mobility and revitalization 
(April 22-25, 2019), community members participated in walking tours, visioning exercises, presentations, 
and break-out group discussions. During the tour, participants observed and discussed conditions for 
walking and bicycling, among other topics. A follow-up discussion, stimulated ideas about a long-term vision 
for Guadalupe, values, and opportunities for trail development and connections between Guadalupe, the 
beach, and the larger regional network. 

Stakeholder Interviews and Discussions  

One-on-one stakeholder interviews and phone calls with key community representatives provided detailed 
information about values, needs, and opportunities for a future multi-use trail. A project kick-off meeting in 
March 2019 initiated these conversations, which continued with calls covering coordination with related 
projects and input from agricultural landowners. Stakeholders conveyed ideas about Guadalupe’s unique 
character, priority connections, parks, recreation, nature, culture, history, public life, and other topics 
important to the future of a multi-use trail in Guadalupe. 

City Council 

The City Council weighed in at key junctures, reviewing project update materials and providing direction in 
advance of finalizing the Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study. 



11 Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study 

Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail 

Feasibility Study: Participants in 

the Process 
• Community Members and Organizations
• City of Guadalupe Staff
• Guadalupe-Nipomo Dunes Center
• Santa Barbara County Board of

Supervisors Office
• Santa Barbara County Planning and

Development Department
• Santa Barbara County Parks Department
• Santa Barbara County Public Works

Department
• Santa Barbara County Trails Council
• Santa Barbara County Association of

Governments
• San Luis Obispo County
• Guadalupe Cultural Arts and Education

Center and Chumash Representation
• Rural Community Development

Corporation of California
• California Coastal Conservancy
• Local Government Commission
• California Department of Transportation
• Early Childhood Education Advocates
• Local Business Owners
• Local Religious Leaders
• Local Nonprofit and Housing Leaders

Engagement Themes
Drawing from the community outreach process, several 
themes emerged as critical to guiding future trail 
planning. These themes informed development of 
evaluation criteria for the range of potential trail 
alignments discussed in Chapter 3: Potential Trail 
Alignments. 

Serve Guadalupe Community Needs 

• Prioritize trail decisions that enable
environmental justice and social equity in a
historically underserved, economically
disadvantaged, predominately Latinx
community.

• Balance local population needs and visitor
recreation access.

• Consider local worker and student commuting
needs.

• Provide access to the trail to eastern and
western neighborhoods, the developing
Pasadera area, and apartment buildings.

Establish Important Connections 

• Link to as many community destinations as
possible, including neighborhoods, schools,
parks, bus and train stops, shops, restaurants,
businesses, overnight accommodations and
workplaces.

• Connect to adjacent communities, most importantly Santa Maria.
• Establish or improve bridges for pedestrian use.
• Establish a “River Trail” experience.
• Develop bike infrastructure, a new bike path along Highway 1 (Note: this would not be a separate

Class I path in the Caltrans Right-of-Way).
• Align trail development with other planning efforts and Caltrans projects in area.
• Prioritize the primary corridor alignment, but also identify opportunities for trail spurs.

Address Safety Concerns 

• Provide adequate buffers when developing a trail adjacent to a road.
• Prioritize pedestrian safety in Guadalupe considering:

− Busy Downtown intersections,
− Street crossings,
− Parking,



 

12 
 
Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study 
 

Related Trail Planning Priorities 

The Draft Guadalupe General Plan (2018) and the 
Guadalupe Mobility and Revitalization Plan (2019) 
include important priorities related to future trail 
planning in Guadalupe. 

General Plan Goals (1.8) 
Circulation 
-A safe transportation system (2.1) 
-A well-connected transportation system (2.2) 
-A sustainable transportation system (2.3) 
-An affordable and accessible transportation system 
(2.4) 

Environmental Justice 
-A healthy community from physical activity, 
recreation, and active transportation (3.2) 
-Meaningful public engagement among city officials 
and residents (3.5) 

Conservation 
-Protected pristine habitats to ensure the longevity 
of native species as the built environment develops 
(5.1) 
-Enhanced regional and intergovernmental 
conservation efforts (5.4) 

Economic Development 
-A vibrant tourist destination (6.2) 

Open Space and Agriculture 
-Adequate parks and recreational facilities to meet 
community needs (7.2) 
-A scenic agricultural setting (7.3) 
-A pristine open space environment (7.4) 

Safety 
-Enhanced community safety and low crime rates 
(9.5) 

Community Design 
-A vibrant community (12.1) 
-A community with a sense of place (12.2) 
-A community that reflects cultural heritage (12.3) 
-A community with a small-town, historic feel (12.4) 
-An aesthetically pleasing community (12.5) 

Health 
-A safe and active transportation and recreation 
network for all users (13.3) 
-A safe community (13.4) 

Mobility Plan Priorities 
1. Cross-Town Connectivity 
2. Capitalizing on Tourism 
3. Sidewalks and Safe Routes to School 
4. Businesses and Services 
5. Decentralized Growth 
6. Community Identity 
 

− Lighting, and 
− Safe routes to schools. 

• Take extra safety measures when designing 
railroad crossings and crossings to schools. 

• Protect and respect the area’s agricultural uses by 
establishing adequate buffers and limiting 
conflicts.  

• Provide multi-modal accommodation on West 
Main Street west of Highway 1 to the dunes by 
considering: 

− Lighting, 
− Pullouts/passing lanes, and 
− Early morning traffic. 

• Provide multi-modal accommodation on Highway 
1 bridge over Santa Maria River with width for bike 
and pedestrian infrastructure (planned Caltrans 
project).  
 

Stimulate Local Economy 

• Connect to the retail and restaurants on Highway 
1/Guadalupe Street. 

• Establish wayfinding signage to help direct visitors 
to destinations in Guadalupe. 

• Establish LeRoy Park as a trailhead/community hub 
where the space can be programmed for 
community events, as it has been in the past. 

• Encourage low-cost overnight accommodations for 
visitors 

 

Weave in Cultural and Natural Resources 

• Make the trail an educational experience. 
• Establish a river trail portion to provide a natural 

experience when possible. 
• Respect and acknowledge the importance of the 

region’s agricultural practices. 
• Ensure that bike and pedestrian improvements 

translate across cultural boundaries. 
• Introduce artistic features along the corridor. 

  



13 Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study 

Related Trail Planning Priorities 

(Continued)

Santa Barbara County Land Use Element Polices 
Streams and Creeks 
- All permitted construction and grading within
stream corridors shall be carried out to minimize
impacts from increased runoff, sedimentation,
biochemical degradation, or thermal pollution
(5.1) 

Parks/Recreation 
- Bikeways shall be provided where appropriate
for recreational and commuting use (8.1) 
- Opportunities for hiking and equestrian trails
should be preserved, improved, and expanded
wherever compatible with surrounding uses (8.4)

Open Lands 
- Appropriate recreational uses will be of light
intensity with minimal environmental
degradation in open land areas (9.3) 

Guadalupe-Nipomo Dunes Restoration Plan 
Objectives 
1. Physical habitat restoration efforts
2. Education programs
3. Land acquisition
4. Physical improvements to existing structures
and services that serve general public and visitors
to the dunes. 

Community Vision
Community and stakeholder input informed the following 
vision and goals for a future multi-use trail connecting 
Guadalupe to the beach. 

Vision Statement 

Provide multi-modal beach access along one of the 
most unique stretches of land in the region. This 
scenic trail will be built to serve local transportation 
needs and attract visitors to enjoy the landscape, 
provide beach access, and stimulate the local 
economy. 

Trail Planning Goals 

Building on community and stakeholder input received 
during the Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility 
Study process and from prior planning efforts (see 
sidebar), a future trail should aim to achieve the following 
six planning goals. 

1. Support commuting and recreation needs
and link to associated health benefits

2. Attract a range of users including
residents and tourists to stimulate local
economy

3. Provide accessibility and safety for all trail users
4. Support best practices for maintenance and design
5. Provide memorable experience that reflects the area’s unique identity and

appeals to first-time users and recurring visitors
6. Protect the natural environment and preserve the cultural and agricultural

heritage of the area



 

14 
 
Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study 
 

Chapter 3: Potential Trail Alignments  
Through community input and an examination of opportunities and constraints, eight initial alignments 
emerged as alternatives for further study (see Figure 6). This chapter evaluates these alignments using trail 
alignment criteria to determine how well each route might achieve the community-based vision and trail 
planning goals. This information, in conjunction with feedback from the Project Advisory Team, helped 
narrow to several preferred alignments and trail typologies.   

 

  

Figure 6. Potential Trail Alignments 



15 Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study 

Trail Alignment Criteria 
The trail alignment criteria (see Table 1) draw on the community engagement themes, vision, and trail 
planning goals (described in Chapter 2: Community Engagement and Vision Framework). Each criterion is 
considered in relation to the eight potential routes* (see Figure 7), revealing priority alignments based on 
greatest adherence to the criteria. Routes that seem to adequately address a criterion receive a checkmark 
(Note: while this process is somewhat subjective, it provides a starting point for further discussion). The 
routes with the highest percentage of criteria achieved are illustrated in greater detail over the following 
pages.  

At a glance, the routes depicted in Figure 7 align with the color scale in Table 1. Green represents routes 
that achieve a high percentage of the criteria, yellow/orange indicates that about half of the criteria are 
met, and red depicts the lowest percentage of alignment with the criteria.  

Connecting the Guadalupe Community to the Beach 

In considering future alignments, a driving force behind locating a multi-use trail in the area is the need to 
connect residents and the heart of Guadalupe to the beach. A significant number of children from 
Guadalupe have not been to the nearby beach because the only access (on West Main Street) requires a 
vehicle, which many families do not own. For this reason, alignments close to Guadalupe’s core residential 
neighborhoods are preferred. Further, a route that passes through Downtown has the potential to stimulate 
business and economic development, important community priorities.  

Due to the narrow right-of-way along West Main Street, some private property easement or purchase may 
be necessary to accommodate an alignment along this route with a preferred trail width (approximately 14' 
minimum with 10' paved trail and 2' shoulders). West Main Street also functions as the community’s 
primary emergency evacuation route and community members have raised the point that a separate trail 
alignment, meeting the appropriate standards, could potentially serve the dual purpose of providing 
alternative emergency access. 

Given the primary intent of the multi-use trail to accommodate pedestrians and bicyclists, the trail is 
envisioned to be ADA compliant to the extent possible and therefore, generally paved. However, 
opportunities to incorporate sections that are wide enough for equestrian use and/or to connect to 
equestrian trails could provide additional benefits, expanding the range of users and recreational 
experiences. Equestrians are generally accommodated by unpaved trails of compacted dirt or decomposed 
granite to provide the proper footing for horses. A wider trail would be necessary to accommodate both 
people and horses, along with different surfacing. Future planning could examine where equestrian access 
could be feasible and compatible with bicycle and pedestrian access.   

*Note: improvements in the State right-of-way need to be consistent with the Highway Design Manual
(HDM) and the CA MUTCD (Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices).



 

16 
 
Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study 
 

Table 1. Trail Alignment Criteria 

 



 

17 
 
Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study 
 

Figure 7. Trail Alignment Assessment 

 



 

18 
 
Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study 
 

Top Trail Alignment Alternatives 
Based on the criteria assessment, the highest scoring alignments for a future trail connecting the Guadalupe 
community to the beach and dunes are Routes, 5, 6, and 7. These are illustrated in more detail on the 
following pages, along with trail typologies. For ease of reference, the top alternatives are titled as follows: 
Alternative A:  “River Trail” (Route 5) 
Alternative B:  “Walkaround Trail” (Route 6) 
Alternative C:  “West Main Trail” (Route 7) 

While this Study points to three top routes, the other five alignments are still possibilities to consider in the 
future, particularly with the right funding, property owner support, and opportunities that may arise 
through related projects in the vicinity.  

The idea of pursuing multiple routes and/or combining two or more alignments has been raised as a means 
of providing separate routes for pedestrians and bicyclists. However, a singular multi-use trail would likely 
have a better chance of being funded and constructed.   



 

19 
 
Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study 
 

Alignment Alternative A: “River Trail” (Route 5) 

The “River Trail” runs parallel to the Santa Maria River, connecting the City of Guadalupe to the Rancho 
Guadalupe Dunes Preserve and to the potential Santa Maria Levee Trail. East to west, the alignment 
transitions from a separated shared-use path to an on-street shared-use path at the city boundary along 
Peralta Street (see Figure 8). This segment connects to the planned bike lane and sidewalk improvements on 
11th Street, recommended in the Guadalupe Mobility and Revitalization Plan (2019). LeRoy Park provides a 
possible Downtown trailhead location with space for public gathering and parking. This location should be 
supported by visible, branded, directional signage on Hwy 1, along with possible overflow parking at nearby 
City-owned parking lots (such as the parking lots near the old Great Western Tavern building and Dunes 
Center). From LeRoy Park, the alignment traverses the city boundary heading southwest, primarily between 
residential and agricultural uses. Two small on-street segments, one on Pioneer Street and the other on 8th 

Street, will require extra 
attention to establish safe 
crossings. A portion of the 
separated shared-use 
segment is aligned to go 
through agricultural land 
that is not farmed due to 
the presence of wetlands. 
West of the city, the 
alignment follows the 
Santa Maria River and is 
positioned north of 
agricultural land to 
provide users with a “River 
Trail” experience (see 
Figure 9). The final 
segment ties into West 
Main Street as an on-
street facility leading users 
through the Rancho 
Guadalupe Dunes Preserve 
entrance, uphill over 
dunes, above a stretch of 
the lower Santa Maria 
River, and to the trail’s 
terminus at the Preserve’s 
parking area.  

Figure 8. River Trail: Guadalupe Segment 

Figure 9. River Trail: Dunes Segment 



 

20 
 
Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study 
 

Alignment Alternative B: “Walkaround Trail” (Route 6) 

The “Walkaround Trail” skirts around the northern boundary of Guadalupe, connecting the city to the 
Rancho Guadalupe Dunes Preserve and to the potential Santa Maria Levee Trail. East to west, the alignment 
transitions from a separated shared-use path to an on-street shared-use path at the city boundary along 
Peralta Street (see Figure 10). This segment connects to the planned bike lane and sidewalk improvements 
on 11th Street, recommended in the Guadalupe Mobility and Revitalization Plan (2019). From LeRoy Park, 
the alignment traverses the city boundary heading southwest, primarily between residential and agricultural 
uses. A portion of the separated shared-use segment is aligned to go through agricultural land that is not 
farmed due to the presence of wetlands. Improvements on 8th Street would be necessary to connect the 
trail to West Main Street at Community Park. West of the city, the alignment is within the West Main Street 
right-of-way and carefully buffered from the agricultural uses to the north and south. The final segment ties 
into West Main Street as an on-street facility leading users through the Rancho Guadalupe Dunes Preserve 

entrance, uphill over dunes, 
above a stretch of the 
lower Santa Maria River, 
and to the trail’s terminus 
at the Preserve’s parking 
area. (see Figure 11).  

Figure 10. Walkaround Trail: Guadalupe Segment 

Figure 11. Walkaround Trail: Dunes Segment 



21 Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study 

Figure 12. West Main Trail: Guadalupe Segment 

Figure 13. West Main Trail: Guadalupe Segment 

Alignment Alternative C: “West Main Trail” (Route 7)

The “West Main Trail” provides a direct connection from the City of Guadalupe to the Rancho Guadalupe 
Dunes Preserve. East to west, the alignment is an on-street facility beginning in south Guadalupe at West 
Main Street and Guadalupe Street (see Figure 12). The alignment ties directly into the planned multi-modal 
transportation improvements recommended in the Guadalupe Mobility and Revitalization Plan (2019). West 
of the city, the alignment is within the West Main Street right-of-way and carefully buffered from the 
agricultural uses to the north and south. The final segment ties into West Main Street as an on-street facility 
leading users through the Rancho Guadalupe Dunes Preserve entrance, uphill over dunes, above a stretch of 
the lower Santa Maria River, and to the trail’s terminus at the Preserve’s parking area. (see Figure 13). 



 

22 
 
Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study 
 

Trail Typologies 
The future trail connecting Guadalupe to the beach will pass through a variety of environments, and along 
the journey, trail design will need to shift to respond to immediate context. While detailed trail design will 
be part of a future planning phase, this Study provides high-level trail “typologies” to illustrate different 
potential design treatments for different segments of the trail. In each case, the trail design should seek to 
maximize connectivity, accessibility, safety, and enjoyment for all ages and abilities. 

Typologies presented in this section include: separated shared-use paths, on-street shared-use paths, and 
bike lanes. These are described with supporting information about specific standards (see Appendix C: State 
and National Standards).  

Although many trail users may prefer a shared-use path separated from motor vehicle traffic, this type of 
construction is not always feasible. As such, on-street facilities (trails that are built in the right-of-way, along 
the street) may provide access to destinations that cannot be reached by a shared-use path. These facilities 
also typically cost less money and can be constructed in less time than shared-use paths.  

Each of the three top trail alignment alternatives (presented in the previous section) is envisioned as a 
combination of segments representing these different typologies (see corresponding typology segments 
called out in Figures 14-16). 

Separated Shared-Use Path 

Separated shared-use paths (Class I Bikeways) are separated from the roadway and typically align with a 
natural corridor utility easement or rail corridor. This treatment accommodates a wide variety of trail users. 
Typically, these are hard-surface trails that are accessible to all abilities if they can maintain grades of 5 
percent or less. These trails are 8-12 feet wide to accommodate bicycles and pedestrians. A 2-foot shoulder 
should be provided on either or both sides of the trail to accommodate various users and allow for socially 
acceptable distances. Figure 14 provides a range of how this typology may look. 

Figure 14. Separated Shared-Use Path Typology (Class I Bikeway)  



 

23 
 
Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study 
 

On-Street Shared-Use Path 

On-Street shared-use paths (Class I Bikeways) are connected to the roadway and ideally separated with a 
physical buffer. This treatment accommodates a variety of trail users depending on traffic amounts and 
speeds. Typically, these are hard-surface trails that are accessible to all abilities if they can maintain grades 
of five percent or less. These trail types are at least 10 feet wide to accommodate 2-way traffic, bicyclists, 
and pedestrians. At least a 3-foot buffer should be provided between the trail and the street and may 
include plants for aesthetics or bollards for safety. An additional shoulder of buffer may be provided to 
separate the trail from adjacent parcels. Figure 15 provides a range of how this typology may look. 

Figure 15. On-Street Shared-Use Path Typology (Class I Bikeway) 

 

Bike Lanes 

Bike lanes (Class II Bikeways) designate a specific space for bicyclist on streets. This treatment 
accommodates bicyclists who are comfortable riding next to vehicles. These routes may be made more 
comfortable, especially for less experienced bicyclists when a minimum 3-foot buffer is striped between the 
bike lane and traffic. Bike lanes are between 4-7 feet wide to and are applied to both sides of the street in 
the direction of traffic. For the purpose of this study, bike lanes are paired with sidewalks on at least one 
side of the street ranging from 6 to 10 feet wide. Figure 16 provides a range of how this typology may look. 

Figure 16. Bike Lane Typology (Class II Bikeway) 

  



 

24 
 
Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study 
 

Chapter 4: Implementation  
The following recommends an approach to phasing trail development, relative planning and design 
guidelines, and a preliminary cost estimate. Combined, this provides a framework for decision makers to 
plan, design, and implement the Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail. 

Phasing Strategy  
The phasing strategy balances the need for short-term success and long-term realization of the Guadalupe 
Beach Trail. As such, two general themes are described below. 

Start in the Heart 

The Guadalupe community should be prioritized first when choosing trail segments to develop. Short-term 
improvements should be prioritized in Guadalupe by following the phased recommendations from the 
Guadalupe Mobility Revitalization Plan (GMRP). The roadways identified in the GMRP that overlap with 
recommendations in this Study may be improved as soon as possible with suggested re-striping and 
sidewalk maintenance, and later with the trail typology defined in this Study. Next, improvements in this 
Study that extend from improvements identified in the GMRP are suggested for trail development, 
improving local connectivity first. 

Shared-Use Path Development 

Shared-use path segments extending to the dunes and potentially connecting to the Santa Maria Levee Trail 
should be developed as project funding become available, property, and easement acquisition are possible, 
and when engineering and design is feasible. Shared-use path alignments (Class I Bikeways) should be 
prioritized based on their proximity to Guadalupe and recreation areas, property ownership, and minimal 
environmental impacts.  

Planning and Design Guidelines 
Planning and design best practices for detailed trail alignments and amenities are described as follows:  

Support a functional trail system 

• Meet State and Federal guidelines for trails with capacity for high daily usage and peak travel usage. 
Trail typologies also need to use the Highway Design Manual criteria for bike infrastructure if on the 
state highway system. 

• Align with or guide new trail users to destinations (public restrooms, retail, neighborhoods, points of 
interest, etc.). 

• Provide relatively direct alignments in support of commuting by limiting unnecessary meandering 
alignments unless they are secondary routes. 

• Link neighborhoods to recreational facilities, parks, employment, retail, businesses, entertainment, 
education, etc. 

• Align the trail to adjacent parks when feasible in order to maximize recreational potential. 
• Design trails with sufficient width to provide users with room to navigate away from other users for 

a more enjoyable and safe experience for everyone. 
 
Provide sustainable trails that incorporate best practices and limited maintenance  

• Provide safe access from adjacent streets, off-street parking, and alongside the trail where feasible 
to avoid informal paths being created. 

• Provide maintenance vehicles with through access or space for vehicle turn-arounds on separated 
trail facilities.  



 

25 
 
Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study 
 

• Research and utilize technologies that reduce waste, consume less energy, and/or present less 
environmental harm or risk (such as the use of recycled asphalt, aligning trails along existing 
maintenance roads, etc.). 

• Seek to develop trails in the most cost-efficient manner. Measure best practices against cost and 
weigh all factors. 

• Seek to install bridge undercrossings along creeks at no less than the 10-year flood level. 
• Avoid infrastructure that is difficult to repair or replace (such as concrete posts and rail fences). 
• Select plant materials that are drought-tolerant and spaced appropriately so they do not grow onto 

the trail or uplift the pavement. 
• Minimize the use of gates and bollards except where needed to allow maintenance access. 
• Incorporate fencing where necessary to control or limit off-trail access. 

 

Incorporate accessibility and safety features 

• Scale projects for high-use and visibility, supporting a greater sense of safety and personal security. 
• Maximize visibility from existing developments. 
• Maximize visibility of the trail from arterial roadways when possible.  
• Post signage with typical safety notices for potential challenges to an alignment and conflicts with 

other trail users. 
• Include an enforceable rules sign at all trailheads. 
• Provide features as a means to increase usage and discourage illegal behavior (examples include 

interpretive fencing, directional signage, fencing to limit trespassing, etc.). 
• Seek to maximize visibility along the trail for user comfort; avoid blind turns and hiding spaces. 
• Design trail to State and Federal standards to support multi-use and ability: people of all ages with 

varying abilities, including but not limited to youth, seniors, strollers, wheelchairs, and assisted 
walking. 

• Separate adjacent activities (exercise, running, cycling, and playing) from the active trail route to 
allow through traffic flow. 

• Establish adequate buffers to limit agricultural conflicts such as low-level fencing at the trail edge to 
limit human or animal access into the agricultural areas. 

• Provide ADA-compliant ramps at grade changes when possible. 
• Avoid creating “box canyons”- areas where the trail corridor is fully enclosed by dense vegetation, 

walls, backs of buildings, or other barriers. 
 

Attract a range of users with unique trail features 

• Support universal accessibility to the greatest extent possible.  
• Develop gateways and custom signage unique to the area.  
• Provides a range of experiences (from urban to suburban to rural; develop an interesting trail 

whether commuting or recreating). 
• Increase use of the trails by connecting, or signing to, residential areas. 
• While the focus is on providing bike/pedestrian access between Guadalupe and the beach, 

opportunities should also be explored to connect to equestrian trails, further expanding the range of 
users and recreational experiences.  



26 Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study 

• Include aesthetic design elements and wayfinding to destinations when a segment of the trail is less
than desirable feature (highway, industrial development, etc.).

• Provide access to a variety of natural and man-made sites to encourage recreation and a deeper
understanding of the surrounding area, if possible.

• Provide destinations and/or “stop and learn” interpretive moments (interpretive signage, signage to
points of interest, viewing areas, etc.) to draw more people to the trail.

• Incorporate public art at highly visible locations.
• Acknowledge our local and desirable California and Mediterranean climate landscape by selecting

native and drought-tolerant landscaping.

Preliminary Cost Estimate
Tables 2, 3 and 4 provide a summary of costs associated with the three high-level alignment alternatives. 
The breakdown for each alignment alternative is presented by trail type and includes a total quantity of 
linear feet, the per linear foot, and total cost for each trail type.  

The cost estimates for each trail type include allocations for site preparation and survey; removal of existing 
paving, landscaping, etc.; all hardscape and landscape materials; miscellaneous drainage improvements; and 
contractor mobilization, overhead and improvement, and contingency (at 35%). Cost estimates do not 
include provisions for property acquisition; trail maintenance; design costs; contingency for more 
complicated segments (where walls, curbs, drainage, and utilities need to be modified); signage; trailheads 
or access points; or intersection improvements. All cost estimates are in 2021 dollars and do not include 
provisions for inflation or escalations. 

Table 2: Alignment Alternative A: “River Trail” Cost Estimate 
Typology Linear Feet (LF) Cost per LF Total Cost 

Separated Shared-Use Path  13,500 $294 $3,963,000 
On-Street Shared-Use Path  24,100 $183 $4,409,000 

Buffered Bike Lane  1,900 $31 $59,000 
TOTALS  39,500 $8,431,000 

Table 3: Alignment Alternative B: “Walkaround Trail” Cost Estimate 
Typology Linear Feet (LF) Cost per LF Total Cost 

Separated Shared-Use Path  23,700 $294 $6,957,000 
On-Street Shared-Use Path  10,500 $183 $1,921,000 

Buffered Bike Lane  1,900 $31 $59,000 
TOTALS  36,100 $8,938,000 

Table 4: Alignment Alternative C: “West Main Trail” Cost Estimate 
Typology Linear Feet (LF) Cost per LF Total Cost 

Separated Shared-Use Path  27,300 $294 $8,014,00 
On-Street Shared-Use Path  2,400 $183 $439,000 

Buffered Bike Lane  7,600 $31 $236,000 
TOTALS  37,300 $8,689,000 



Guadalupe to Beach

Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study

Appendices

www.migcom.com

Prepared By:

M A R C H  2 0 2 1

Attachment 3



Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study 

Appendix A:
Opportunities and Constraints Memo



 

 

 

Date: 
Prepared For: 

Aug 24, 2020 
Rachel Couch 
State Coastal Conservancy 
 

Re: Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study –  
Opportunities and Constraints Memorandum 

 

Dear Ms. Couch: 

 
The following memorandum summarizes opportunities and constraints associated with 
development of the Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study. These opportunities 
and constraints have been identified through a comprehensive analysis of the existing site 
conditions, community engagement and project advisory team input conducted by MIG and 
our team. 
 

Executive Summary  

 
The successful development of the Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail will require careful 
attention to the existing conditions and the inherent opportunities and constraints of the site.  
 
To that end, this memorandum summarizes the site analysis activities that have been conducted 
by MIG to date, extracts and summarizes salient issues from the source data collected for the 
project, and identifies opportunities and constraints that should be considered during the 
planning and design of the trail.  
 
Resulting opportunities and constraints are grouped into four thematic categories, including 
Hazards, Biological, Physical & Connectivity, and Cultural, and are graphically represented on 
the attached figures. 
 

Site Analysis  

 
Existing site conditions at the study area have been documented and analyzed in the following 
sources: 
 

• 2040 Draft General Plan, City of Guadalupe, 2018 
• CalEnviroScreen 3.0 Cleanup Sites Map, California Office of Environmental Health 

Hazard Assessment, 2020 
• California Natural Diversity Database, California Department of Fish and Wildlife 

(CDFW), 2019 



State Coastal Conservancy 
Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study - Opportunities & Constraints Analysis 

MIG, Inc. 2 

• Community Engagement and Project Advisory Team Meetings, MIG, 2018/2019
• Environmentally Sensitive Habitat Area data, County of Santa Barbara, 2019
• Existing conditions field reconnaissance, MIG, 2018
• Flood Insurance Rate Map, Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), 2005
• General Plan, City of Guadalupe, 1986
• Google Earth satellite imagery, Google, 2019
• Guadalupe Mobility and Revitalization Plan, City of Guadalupe, 2020
• National Hydrography Dataset, U.S. Geological Survey (USGS), 2019
• National Wetlands Inventory, U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS), 2019
• Parcel and land use data, City of Guadalupe, County of Santa Barbara, and County

of San Luis Obispo, 2019
• Region 9 listed sites data, Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), 2019
• Sea level rise data, National Ocean and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA), 2018
• USGS Our Coast Our Future (OCOF), Flood Mapping Data, 2020
• Coastal Resilience, Santa Barbara County Project, 2018
• CalTrans District 5 Climate Vulnerability Assessment Map, 2020
• Sensitive Resource Area Combining Designation data, County of San Luis Obispo,

2019
• Transportation Injury Mapping System, University of California, Berkeley, 2020
• West Coast Littoral Cells, West Coast Ocean Data Network, 2015
• Draft SBCAG Regional Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan, 2015
• Guadalupe-Nipomo Dunes Restoration Plan, 2001
• Guadalupe-Nipomo Dunes National Wildlife Refuge Final Comprehensive

Conservation Plan and Environmental Assessment, 2016
• Guadalupe-Nipomo Dunes Restoration Plan, 2001
• 2015 Statewide Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan (SCORP), 2015
• Draft Northern Santa Barbara County Interim California Coastal Trail Alignment and

Improvement Study, underway
• Santa Barbara County Comprehensive Plan Conservation Element, 2010
• Caltrans Draft Summary Report District 5 Active Transportation Plan, 2021

As described in more detail below, further research should be conducted once a preferred trail 
alignment is selected. 

Opportunities and Constraints 

The following preliminary opportunities and constraints for the site have been extracted from 
the above referenced sources. These opportunities and constraints include issues related to 
Hazards, Biological, Physical/Connectivity, and Cultural, and will merit further consideration 
during the specific planning and design of the preferred trail alignment. 



State Coastal Conservancy 
Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study - Opportunities & Constraints Analysis 

MIG, Inc. 3 

Hazards 

1. Sea Level Rise:

As a result of the study area’s coastal setting it is at risk of increased hazards associated
with rising sea levels due to climate change. Some of these hazards include:

• Coastal erosion – Dune erosion (from Guadalupe-Nipomo Dunes Preserve north
to Oso Flaco Lake) is expected to increase from sea level rise and storm impacts
over the next 10 years. Additionally, the southernmost coastal stretch of the
study area (about 3 miles including Mussel Point) is expected to experience
significant cliff erosion over the next 10 years.

• Coastal flooding and tidal inundation – The study area’s coast (including dunes,
beach and cliffs), the mouth of the Santa Maria River, and Oso Flaco Lake are
expected to experience more severe and frequent flooding over the next 10
years with sea level rise.

• Wave impacts – Northern Santa Barbara County is noted as having numerous
reefs, beaches, and cliffs, therefore, is exposed to more direct wave energy. With
sea level rise waves are expected to come inland along flood areas and increase
in height more notably in the southern portion of the study area.

Future sea level rise will affect the design of proposed trail alignments. Alignments 
should avoid areas with major sea level rise hazards, while still maintaining public access 
to beaches and the coastline. This project may explore sea level resilient design.  
Furthermore, this project presents an opportunity to educate visitors on climate change 
and its impact on local coastlines.  

2. Flood Hazards:

Discrete storm events or seasonal flooding have the potential to impact the proposed 
trail and limit access. A 100-year storm event will have a major effect in the study area, 
inundating the Santa Maria River and Oso Flaco Creek and floodplains, thereby affecting 
the surrounding agricultural fields. Coastline flooding and dune and cliff erosion 
threatens the entire coast of the study area (see Hazards Map). Trail design should plan 
for potential flooding or avoid flood zones. 

3. Contaminated Sites:

While there are no Superfund sites near the study area, the EPA lists a number of other 
sites in and around Guadalupe. Remediation is still in progress from the 101,000-gallon 
oil diluent spill at the former Guadalupe Oil Field located on a 2,700-acre coastal 
property just north of the Santa Maria River. Trail planners can consult the Guadalupe-
Nipomo Dunes Restoration Plan for more information and California Department of Fish 
and Wildlife Office of Oil Spill and Response for status of the project which is estimated 
to be completed within the next decade.  Planning for a preferred trail alignment will 
likely avoid contaminated areas or consider remediation efforts. 



State Coastal Conservancy 
Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study - Opportunities & Constraints Analysis 

MIG, Inc. 4 

4. Agricultural Fields:

Much of the project area is comprised of agricultural fields, representing the rich 
agricultural heritage of the area. Trail proximity to these areas could potentially expose 
users to agriculture-related risks, such as pesticide drift and pesticide volatilization. The 
nature and extent of these risks should be further analyzed when a trail alignment is 
chosen, e.g. drift reduction technology. Furthermore, landowners in proximity to the 
study area are concerned about private property rights, trespassing, criminal behavior, 
etc. Thus, the continuation of and commitment to community engagement over time is 
important to this project’s success.  

5. Pedestrian and Bicycle Safety:

Improving the safety and operational efficiency of existing multi-modal transportation 
infrastructure and facilities could help improve connectivity within the study area. 
Guadalupe exhibited the fewest bicycle and pedestrian-involved injuries of cities the 
Santa Barbara County Association of Governments (SBCAG) region at 33 from 2008-2012 
(9,536 total in SBCAG region), yet 50% of the collisions involving a cyclist resulted in 
severe injuries. Opportunities to improve existing biking and pedestrian safety include:  

• Follow the U.S. Department of Transportation guidance for pedestrian crossing
features to improve the safety of railroad crossings, including fencing, gates,
special paving, and pedestrian-scale lighting and signage

• Opportunity to include safety measures on routes with heavy amounts of
automobile and truck traffic, such as appropriate trail width, separation by
barriers, buffers, lighting, distinctive trail materials, etc.

• Prioritize trail routes included in other plans (e.g. SBCAG Regional Bicycle and
Pedestrian Plan identifies a Class I bike facility south of Santa Maria River) that
are “low-stress” or routes that minimize conflicts with high-speed traffic

• Follow the Highway Design Manual and the California Manual of Uniform Traffic
Control Devices (MUTCD).

Documented pedestrian and cyclist safety issues must be factored into the proposed 
design in order to maximize trail user safety. The trail also represents an opportunity to 
improve regional pedestrian safety by offering new, well-defined, safer routes. 

Biological 

1. Wetlands and Waters:

The study area includes a number of streams and wetlands. If determined to be 
jurisdictional, wetlands and waters are regulated by several resource agencies, including 
the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), the Regional Water Quality Control Board 
(RWQCB), and CDFW. These features must either be avoided or, if impacts are 
proposed, they must be mitigated as a part of the project design.  



State Coastal Conservancy 
Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study - Opportunities & Constraints Analysis 

MIG, Inc. 5 

2. Sensitive Resource Areas/Environmentally Sensitive Habitat:

The County of Santa Barbara delineates Environmentally Sensitive Habitat Areas 
throughout the county. Similarly, the County of San Luis Obispo defines Sensitive 
Resource Areas. These zones may require additional permitting from their respective 
jurisdictions but also highlight regionally treasured natural resources. 

3. Special Status Species:

A California Natural Diversity Database (CNDDB) search revealed many special-status 
plant and wildlife occurrences in the project area. Once a trail alignment is selected, a 
full biological study could identify potential impacts to listed species and describe 
avoidance, minimization, and mitigation measures if impacts are expected. Due to 
restrictions on publicly sharing CNDDB data, the dataset is not depicted on the 
attached maps. 

The snowy plover (Charadrius nivosus), which nests in the dunes, is a species of 
particular concern in the study area as it is a designated endangered species. The trail 
should be planned in coordination with the USFWS, California Department of Parks and 
Recreation, Santa Barbara County Parks Department, and the Guadalupe-Nipomo 
Dunes Center (Dunes Center), all of whom are involved in snowy plover issues. A trail 
would offer opportunities for interpretive tools and conservation education. 

Physical and Connectivity 

1. Topography and Elevation Change

Constructing a trail through the dunes will be a challenge. While West Main Street 
currently accomplishes such a feat at Rancho Guadalupe Dunes Preserve, the road 
experiences major elevation changes as it climbs up and down the dunes. When 
approaching the beach, the area’s topography may limit trail use to those with the ability 
and endurance to hike or bike steep hills. Establishing longer trail approaches that 
meander with land contours, instead of against them, may be a preferred approach to 
accommodate more trail users. 

Additionally, the study area experiences major elevation/topography changes along the 
Santa Maria River. Specifically, the area just north of Guadalupe’s city boundary between 
farmland and wetland experiences a major drop in elevation towards the river. A trail 
alignment through this area, must navigate this sudden drop in elevation as it interfaces 
with a variety of land uses, including residential neighborhoods, agriculture land, open 
space, and the wastewater treatment plant. 

Highway 1 and other manmade or natural corridors north to Oso Flaco Lake are 
relatively flat, offering an ease of connectivity for various abilities.  



State Coastal Conservancy 
Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study - Opportunities & Constraints Analysis 

 

 
MIG, Inc.                     6 

 

2. Blowing Sand and Geotechnical Considerations: 
 

Blowing sand could impact potential trail development along the beach and dunes. 
Northwest winds off the coast constantly erodes the dunes in the study area. Blowing 
sand is distributed throughout the dunes and onto neighboring properties. This unique 
situation may be a problem for maintenance of adjacent trails, yet may result in an 
opportunity for a unique, everchanging trail if built in the dunes. The Great Sand Dunes 
National Park provides such a trail experience by allowing visitors to exploring the 30 
square mile park without designated trails. Landmarks, such as tall posts could guide the 
way with guidelines encouraging limited dune exploration.  
 
If building adjacent to the dunes, an analysis of littoral cell data or a geotechnical 
investigation could help determine measures required to avoid or minimize sand build 
up. A geotechnical study will also help to determine the load bearing capacity of site 
substrate to support the proposed improvements and to determine if any site-specific 
erosion control measures must be developed. 

 
3. Land Ownership, Rights-of-Way, and Easements 

 
Land ownership and availability poses a challenge for trail planning. Though some of the 
study area is public land, most is privately owned. All public lands, including city, county, 
special district, state, and federal ownership, were identified. Potential land availability 
will need to be assessed when a specific trail alignment is being considered. Private 
ownership of land does not rule out availability, but rather can open the door to new 
and creative community partnerships. In addition, rights-of-way and easements offer 
both an opportunity and a constraint for land availability. 

 
4. Existing Transportation Infrastructure and Regional Connections 

 
Existing transportation infrastructure should be considered and integrated into the trail 
planning process. Both existing challenges in these systems as well as possibilities for 
integration should be assessed. Existing transportation topics include roads, railways, 
sidewalks, bike paths and bikeways, levees, social trails, and planned projects. 
 
Existing roads could be utilized for trail alignments. West Main Street offers one such 
opportunity. The community is concerned about commute traffic problems in the area 
so traffic implications of the trail should be assessed in detail once a trail alignment is 
chosen. However, alternative transportation options have the opportunity to reduce 
traffic congestion in the area. California State Route 1, which runs through the city of 
Guadalupe, also offers an excellent regional connection. In addition, there is an 
AMTRAK passenger service connecting to Guadalupe Station downtown. 
 
A Union Pacific railway bisects the city and crosses four existing streets at grade (Main 
Street, 9th Street, 10th Street, and 11th Street).  An overpass on 9th Street provides a safer 
option to cross the railroad tracts. The rail parallels Highway 1 south of Guadalupe, while 
to the north it crosses over the highway and cuts through agricultural land. While rail 



State Coastal Conservancy 
Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study - Opportunities & Constraints Analysis 

MIG, Inc. 7 

crossings can be hazardous, the project presents an opportunity to create a safe route 
across the tracks for bikes and pedestrians, including the potential for an overpass.  

Once a trail alignment is selected, sidewalk availability and condition adjacent to the 
trail should be assessed. Sidewalks are critical for safety and accessibility. 

Several bike paths and bikeways are established in the region. Namely, the Pacific Coast 
Bike Route extends along Highway 1 throughout the study area with Class II facilities in 
Guadalupe and Class III facilities north and south of the city. In addition, Oso Flaco Lake 
Road is designated as a rural collector recreational route west of Highway 1. These 
existing bike routes connect to other bike routes north, east and west of the study area 
connecting to the neighboring communities of Santa Maria, Nipomo, and Arroyo 
Grande. Trail connections to established routes should be considered to expand the 
local and regional bike network.  

The Santa Maria River Levee Trail offers a unique connectivity opportunity. The trail, 
extending partway from Santa Maria to Guadalupe, is a cherished walking and biking 
route. There are plans to build a multi-use path (gravel) to connect the current western 
terminus of the levee trail to the City of Guadalupe. Connection to the levee trail should 
be considered, be it through a direct trail connection or indirect wayfinding tools. 
Connecting the two trails would expand regional alternative transportation options and 
recreation opportunities. Transitioning from the Levee Trail to the City of Guadalupe 
involves establishing a connection into the city, possibly along Peralta Street. Also, a 
new Highway 1 bridge across Santa Maria River is planned to include a fully separated 
path on the west side of the street to accommodate pedestrians and bicycles. Project 
planners/designers should continue collaborating with those working on the Levee Trail 
extension to identify more connectivity opportunities.  

Dozens of social trails exist in the project area and were mapped using satellite imagery, 
largely adjacent to Santa Maria River. Social trails, also called desire paths, are paths 
created by erosion from human or animal use and usually characterize the path of least 
resistance through a landscape. Assessing social trails, which either often stray from 
constructed counterparts or fill a need where infrastructure does not exist, can harness 
community ingenuity. Once a trail alignment is selected, the social trails dataset should 
be ground-truthed and expanded during a site reconnaissance. Planners should use the 
resulting data during the trail design process. 

Planned projects could also be incorporated into the design process. Caltrans is 
planning a number of improvements, including the Santa Maria River Bridge 
Replacement, West Main Street and Guadalupe Street Intersection Signalization, West 
Main Street Intersection Improvements, Guadalupe Street Pedestrian Improvements, 
and the District 5 Active Transportation Plan. Plus, Santa Barbara County Association of 
Governments is the lead agency on the signalization/improvements of State Route 1 and 
State Route 166 and plays a role in transportation planning and funding in Santa Barbara 
County.  The Guadalupe Mobility and Revitalization Plan, the City of Guadalupe General 
Plan are both current planning efforts involving transportation. In addition, a trail to 
connect Guadalupe to the Santa Maria River Levee Trail is being planned.  



State Coastal Conservancy 
Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study - Opportunities & Constraints Analysis 

 

 
MIG, Inc.                     8 

 

5. Recreation Needs and Use 
 

At a regional level, the entire Guadalupe-Nipomo Dunes complex attracts nearly 2 
million visitors annually, mostly from out of the area. Locally, recreation resources such 
as community parks should be integrated into the trail planning process. Opportunities 
include: 

• Tying into the LeRoy Park renovation project. The park is located in Guadalupe’s 
northwest corner and is the oldest park in Santa Barbara County. Historically, it 
functioned as the community’s town square, but has since lost this function. Now 
the goal is to make it a town square again. As such, this project presents a 
significant opportunity to establish LeRoy Park as the meeting place for trail(s). 
From the Park, connections can be made to city, the beach, and other regional 
destinations. 

• During the community outreach workshops, recreation was a top priority for city 
residents. Some residents pointed out lacking facilities at the Rancho Guadalupe 
Dunes County Park. Determining recreation and facility needs for trail users in 
the study area could be assessed in detail in future phases of the project. 

• The California SCORP identifies statewide actions to address resident’s park and 
recreation needs. One of the action items describes ways to increase park access 
for Californians including residents in underserved communities. In this category, 
creating new recreational trails and greenways were identified as a statewide 
need to provide active transportation corridors from neighborhoods to parks, 
schools, and workplaces. As such, this project will seek to increase access to 
parks and places for underserved communities. 

 

Cultural 

 
1. Prehistoric Resources: 

 
The study area is located squarely in Chumash land. The Chumash and their 
predecessors inhabited the area for nearly 10,000 years. According to the City of 
Guadalupe General Plan, a number of archeological sites exist in the Guadalupe-
Nipomo Dunes complex and across the region. While no sites have yet been identified 
within the City of Guadalupe, the area is culturally-sensitive and precautions should be 
taken when planning for construction.  
 
Once a trail alignment is chosen, a California Historical Resources Information System 
(CHRIS), Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) sacred lands database search, 
and a full cultural resources report should be conducted to ensure that cultural 
resources will not be impacted by the project. The Dunes Center archives could also 
serve as an excellent resource for identifying potential cultural impacts. 
 
While fourteen bands of Chumash Indians continue to live in the region, only one, the 
Santa Ynez Band of Chumash Mission Indians of the Santa Ynez Reservation, is federally 
recognized. Tribal consultation under Assembly Bill 52 (AB-52) will likely be required and 
should be planned for. The trail project presents an excellent opportunity to both 
collaborate with Chumash people and celebrate local indigenous heritage. As such, 



State Coastal Conservancy 
Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study - Opportunities & Constraints Analysis 

MIG, Inc. 9 

local Chumash individuals have been engaged through the Guadalupe Cultural Center 
and have participated in the planning process to date. There will be a continued effort 
to contact and engage the population through trail design. 

2. Historic Resources:

The study area also hosts an abundance of historic resources, including relics of Spanish 
colonization, ranching, the railroad, and the film industry. These resources could offer 
enriching educational opportunities. Depending on the trail alignment chosen, 
interpretive tools could be incorporated into the project. Impacts to these historical 
resources would also need to be avoided. A records search at the Office of Historic 
Preservation’s (OHP) Historic Properties Inventory, a CHRIS search, and the archives at 
the Dunes Center will help identify protected cultural resources for the selected trail 
alignment. 

3. Today’s Resources:

In addition to the region’s prehistoric and historic resources, the project area boasts a 
number of present-day cultural assets that are important to the cultural identity of the 
community and should be integrated into the trail planning process. The Guadalupe 
Mobility and Revitalization Plan identified a number of community assets, including 
community parks, schools, the library, the Boys and Girls Club, and the Dunes Center. 
Additionally, the downtown corridor, agricultural lands and open space are integral to 
the study area’s character. The City of Guadalupe, which is 86% Hispanic or Latino, is 
rich in culture, from small businesses to parades, open streets events, fiestas, and 
rodeos. Trail planning should be culturally appropriate and highlight the cultural wealth 
of the study area. 

Summary and Conclusion 

Taken together, the opportunities and constraints summarized in this memorandum reveal the 
complex nature of developing a successful Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail. However, with 
careful consideration of the ways in which opportunities can be harnessed and constraints can 
be avoided or addressed, along with the already popular attraction of millions to the unique 
Dunes environment, the trail stands to become a regional treasure.











Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study 

Appendix B:
Community Engagement Summaries



 

 1 

Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study 
Project Advisory Team (PAT) Meeting 

March 26, 2019 

 
PARTICIPANTS 
 
Gina Rubalcaba, City of Guadalupe Mayor 
Pro Tem 
Bob Perrault, City of Guadalupe Interim 
Administrator 
Steve Kahn, City of Guadalupe Public 
Works 
Larry Apple, SB County Contract Planning 
Doug Jenzen, Guadalupe Nipomo Dunes 
Center 
Erin Gardner, Dunes Center Educational 
and Public Programs Coordinator  
Jack Boyce, Rural Community Development 
Corporation of California (RCDC) 
Tom Brandeberry, Rural Community 
Development Corporation of California 
(RCDC) 
Josh Meyer, Local Government 
Commission 
Alma Hernandez, SB County Board of 
Supervisors, District Representative   

George Amoon, SB County Trails Council 
Mark Wilkinson, SB County Trails Council 
Paul Herning, SB County Trails Council 
David Lackie, SB County Planning and 
Development  
Matt Dobberteen, SB County Public Works 
Department  
Brian Bresolin, SB County Association of 
Governments (CAG) 
Ronnie Glick, CA State Parks and 
Recreation 
Michelle Kubran and Dianna Christianson, 
California Coastal Commission 
Rachel Couch, California Coastal 
Conservancy 
Mark Brandi, MIG, Inc. 
Laura Moran, MIG, Inc. 
Jill Eulate, MIG, Inc. 

 
PROJECT COMMENTS/SUGGESTIONS 
 
Bob Perrault, City of Guadalupe Interim Administrator 

• Accommodate Highway 1 cyclists. 
• Main Street is poorly designed; need changes from Hwy 1 to the west side of town to 

make it more multi-modal; plan to add bike lanes. 
• We’d like to formalize liaison between PAT and the City itself. Need a designated 

individual to represent City from policy point of view.  
• We’re in middle of draft General Plan. Maybe we should complete the trail feasibility 

process and then tweak the General Plan to reflect the trail plans before it the GP gets 
finalized.  

• Need to make sure community meetings are coordinated to maximize community time 
(late April meetings). 

• The project should still consider a path along levee/river, even though it needs to be 
reinforced. May it could be an informal trail. 

• There is wastewater treatment money available that we could possibly tap into through 
this project. Is the wastewater treatment plant on the IRWMP list?  



2 

• There is an application out to put a trail on the Santa Maria Levee (through ATP).

Doug Jenzen, Dunes Center 
• Members of the public came up with the trail idea in the 1990s. After the oil spill,

people said they wanted to see a trail. Half the kids from Guadalupe haven’t been to
the beach because you need a car to get there.

• On potential trail alignments, note that there’s no way for residents to get out of West
Guadalupe if there’s an emergency on Hwy 166. If we create a trail that can also serve
as emergency access, we may be able to get funding.

• Beyond, bikes, we need to have access for baby strollers on the trail.
• Make the trail educational. Consider ways to weave in cultural resources information.
• The project needs a community member from Guadalupe helping us. It’s important to

have a local liaison, handing out flyers, get messages on the marquis at movie theater,
and removing obstacles of local access.

Josh Meyer, Local Government Commission 
• Working on the Guadalupe Mobility and Revitalization Plan. Planning a week-long series

of events with a charrette to explore downtown connectivity, gateways, and more.
• The team will locate in Guadalupe for four or five days in an open studio environment

where community members can drop in. The opening event is planned for April 22.
There will be walks in downtown area in late afternoon and a listening session.
Participants will work around maps, look at trails options. The team will be available all
week and present some ideas for improvements on Thursday evening, April 25. Then,
the team will test ideas for a month or two and conduct a market feasibility analysis.
This could be connected with the resiliency project.

• Team includes: Opticos Design as lead, transportation/civil engineering team; Paul
Crabtree from Ventura; Michael Moule, formerly of Nelson Nygaard (multi-modal
expert); Lisa Wise Consulting from SLO doing stakeholder interviews with business
owners and learning about what’s going on in the downtown area (e.g., do business
owners want to grow? Is there enough parking? What’s working?).

Alma Hernandez, County Board of Supervisors, District Representative 
• Connect with local folks, e.g., School Districts, Lions Group, People’s Self Help Housing,

the  “Donut Group,” and others.
• Local elementary school did a presentation to City Council on how they want access to

the beach. Football and sports groups are looking for places to run and train. There is
demand for this trail.

Matt Dobberteen, SB County Public Works Department (joined by phone) 
• Instead of road “diet,” maybe we should call it a road buffet; in other words, expand

the menu of offerings.
• I’m seeking intel on feasible ways to get people off the Santa Maria Levee and into

Guadalupe.
• Consider services once you’re out at Guadalupe Dunes: there’s nothing out there, no

water. Think about basic resources people would need once they get out there,
particularly bike tourists. Need to upgrade basic facilities that don’t exist.



3 

• Resources: Tom Pharum knows about river characteristics, complicated land ownership
arrangements; Chris Sneddon, Deputy Director, Transportation Division Head can tell
us everything about road, past attempts to do what we’re doing; also talk to park
rangers—they have fascinating observations.

David Lackie, SB County Planning and Development Department 
• We can provide GIS shape files.
• Need to get landowner buy-in/need SLO County coordination w/landowners. Could

there be agreements where landowners around LeRoy Park allow parking in exchange
for other benefits?

Ronnie Glick, CA State Parks and Recreation (joined by phone): 
• Proposal underway to build a campground at Oso Flaco. Look at improvements to the

narrow farm road of Oso Flaco Road. Need widening and road buffet options if they
build the campground (10-years out). Could add bike lanes. Want to look at Oso Flaco
as well, not just Guadalupe.

• OceanoDunesPWP.com (see website)
• Don’t propose a vehicle staging area

George Amoon, Santa Barbara County Trails Council 
• Idea: Hwy 1 bridge over Santa Maria River will be reconstructed by CalTrans in 2021; it’s

falling apart and they’re planning on adding a walkway as part of the project. Currently,
the shoulder is very narrow. It’s sketchy to walk or bike along the road. Improvements
will make it a safer connection to Main Street.

• Note that Cal Trans has a process where, when approached by local groups, they can
introduce more artistic features.

• Another idea: School on south side of Main could consider road diet (Class I), cross over
and provide separate bikeway or walkway from Hwy 1 out to the City limits. Diet
narrows the road to slows traffic to provide safer access for bikes and pedestrians. See
Goleta road diet along south side of Hollister Avenue from the school. Also allows
multiple crossings across bike path. Synergy between bikes and peds but still maintains
through-put on roadways.

• Looking at trail spur out to Guadalupe Dunes: four spurs: Point Sal, Jalama, Ocean
Beach, and Guadalupe.

Mark Wilkinson, SB County Trails Council (based south) 
• There are currently three or four of related parallel projects taking place. Asking for

input on all these will create a big demand on community’s time. We need synergy
between the projects. Also, need to make sure local residents are involved with the
project.

• Big picture trail planning: consider the whole experience someone might have rather
than just a spur.

• We have a grant from the National Park Service for a wayfinding in Carpenteria. This
project is subset of this experience. Healthy people/healthy trails are critical. More
frequently, doctors are writing prescriptions for outdoor activity.



4 

Larry Apple, SB County Contract Planner 
• Recent Cal Poly work in updating the Guadalupe General Plan could help the project

even though it’s not final and there’s no EIR.
• Farmers have had issues with trails in the past.

Jack Boyce, Rural Community Development Corporation of California (RCDC) 
• Administering grant and resilience plan.
• Jack has developed a contact list.
• Many locals don’t have cell phones or computers; they need different types of

traditional outreach, e.g., mailers, flyers, and posters.
• In casual conversation, I sense distrust of outsiders from community members. Pay

attention to where people are gathering. We need genuine competence from locals.
This is their trail and their parks and recreation system.

• If we could get a shovel in ground for implementation of something, this would go a
long way to build trust.

Tom Brandeberry, Rural Community Development Corporation of California (RCDC) 
• Bring the community back to where it was. Leward/LeRoy park used to be a park where

community events happened. This part of the project is critical. Consider the park as
the start of the trail. There is some parking there and more could be added. It does get
used a lot by farm workers during the farm season, which could be a conflict.

• We’re working on a resilience planning process; need to stay coordinated with trail
efforts; don’t want to overtax the community by repeatedly asking for similar input.

Brian Bresolin, SB County Association of Governments (CAG) 
• City of Guadalupe unique in that its majority population of Spanish speaking

households. Consider signage in Spanish.
• Think about environmental justice/social equity. Include recognition of local population

and recreation access. Balance local versus outside access.
• Question: how can we measure/quantify economic benefits and targets in order to help

get funding?

Rachel Couch, California Coastal Conservancy 
• Project needs to reflect community input and consider economic benefits.
• Just north of the estuary is the Chevron spill area. The Coastal Conservancy has some

access in this area. Could be a potential opportunity for alignment. It’s currently being
beautifully restored because of the settlement.



Summary of Themes from April 2019 Community Workshop 
Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study 

 

1. Serving Community Needs 
a. Workers 
b. Students 
c. Latino community 
d. Pasadera area 
e. Apartment buildings 

2. Important Connections 
a. Schools 
b. Homes 
c. Parks (north and south connections desired) 
d. Santa Maria/166 
e. Bridge 
f. River Trail 
g. Bike infrastructure (new bike path along HWY?)  
h. Look into Caltrans projects in area 

3. Safety Concerns 
a. Pedestrian safety 

i.  Busy intersections downtown 
ii. Street crossings 

iii. Lighting 
b. 166 

i. Lighting 
ii. Pullouts/passing lanes 

iii. Early morning traffic 
c. Bridge 

i. Bike and pedestrian infrastructure desired 
ii. Should be wider 

iii. Important for connection housing north of the city 
4. Cultural Considerations 

a. Understand people’s movement to fields 
b. Does bike/ped translate across cultural boundaries 

5. Next Steps 
a. Look into future Caltrans projects 
b. Contact landowners to identify social trails 





 

 1 

Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study 
Project Advisory Team (PAT) Meeting 

May 10, 2019 

 
PARTICIPANTS 
 
Bob Perrault, City of Guadalupe Interim 
Administrator 
Steve Kahn, City of Guadalupe Public 
Works 
Alma Hernandez, Aide to SB County 3rd 
District Supervisor Joan Hartmann 
Karen Evangelista, Guadalupe Arts and 
Culture Center 
Joe Talaugon, Guadalupe Arts and Cultural 
Center 
George Amoon, SB County Trails Council 
Terri Persons and staff, Caltrans 

Jill Van Wei, SB County Parks 
David Lackie, SB County Planning and 
Development  
Ed Franz, SB Bike Coalition 
Deanna Christianson, California Coastal 
Commission 
Brian Bresolin, SB County Association of 
Governments (SBCAG) 
Matt Dobberteen, SB County Public Works  
Mark Brandi, MIG, Inc. 
Laura Moran, MIG, Inc. 
Rachel Couch, State Coastal Conservancy

 
INTRODUCTORY COMMENTS 
 
Steve 

• Community members could potentially use Highway 1 to go to dunes and through 
town 

 
George 

• Wayfinding would help direct visitors to restaurants in Guadalupe 
 
Joe 

• Putting trail adjacent to road poses a safety concern 
 
Caltrans 

• Type of trail is so far undetermined 
 
Mark 

• Spatial limitations and other conditions need to be considered 
• The project has received extensive community feedback 
• Could spur economic development through wayfinding 
• Connect to eastern neighborhoods 
• Safety of school crossings and railroad crossings are a concern 
• Include use and safety within town 
• Community was receptive to river trail idea 
• Natural experience preferable to on-street trail 



2 

• New destinations include West Main Street to the City park, the oil field site, the
Guadalupe-Nipomo Dunes National Wildlife Refuge, Oso Flaco Lake

Doug 
• Refuge was established during late 1990s (response to question from Steve)
• Only one road in and out
• Main Street is the evacuation route
• Consider including alternative emergency access, e.g. additional alignments

Steve 
• Would like to see Class II bike lanes from Highway 1 to O’Connell Park
• West of school to town, away from agriculture

OPPORTUNITIES & CONSTRAINTS DISCUSSION 

Rachel 
• Wildlife refuge was originally part of oil fields

Doug 
• There isn’t yet a plan to turn over oil field for new uses
• Suggests a Highway 1 connection on the levee
• Levee area is under long-term ownership of two families
• CRLF habitat on property could be a good opportunity for environmental education
• Could be open to access along edge of property that is unusable for agriculture

Rachel 
• West of Blosser Road, the levee is not USACE reinforced

Steve 
• Existing levees have varied histories and some are of higher quality than others

Rachel 
• A potential for an improved bike path exists on Main Street, but it is constrained by

ditches.
• Were other alternatives and opportunities looked at?

Brian 
• Will discuss opportunities and alternatives with staff

David 
• Levees are owned by SB County Flood Control or ROW



3 

ALIGNMENT #1 

Steve 
• Suggests extending road, wider ROW
• Highway 1 is an issue and there are no bike lanes
• Bikes currently use but it’s dangerous
• Accidents happen regularly
• Bikes prefer to stay on the coastline
• Route has trucks and other vehicles at high speeds

Doug 
• Bridge isn’t wide enough and would need to be repaved; new bridge expected 2021
• Highway 1 is a link in the CA coastal trail system
• No controlled crosswalk exists; consider Thornberry or Oso Flaco Lake Road

Steve 
• Check with Caltrans; crossing Highway 1 is difficult, but perhaps bikes could be kept on

west side

Rachel 
• Suggests getting on Caltrans radar now for bridge replacement
• Suggests connection to trilogy

ALIGNMENT #2 

Bob 
• Keep trail crossings in mind; getting UPRR approval could be difficult or impossible

Joe 
• New planned housing will likely increase traffic

Mark 
• Optimistic about traffic and pedestrian interface because peak hours for both are likely

different

ALIGNMENT #3 

Rachel 
• Limit expectations

Steve 
• Former hazardous waste was taken to landfill

Doug 
• Suggests bioremediation



4 

ALIGNMENT #4 

Joe 
• Parts of trail could impact cultural and tribal resources

Karen 
• Suggests tribal communities come together to assist in identifying cultural opportunities

and constraints

ALIGNMENT #5 

Bob 
• This alignment would be a good opportunity to bring individuals through the town

George 
• Suggests an out-and-back loop

Mark 
• Questions parking for trailhead

ALIGNMENT #6 

Rachel 
• Ditches are currently in ROW
• Suggests moving ditches onto private property to make more ROW available for trail

use

George 
• A new school is being planned for the area; get concept plan
• Suggests traffic signal or roundabout; Caltrans is studying

ALIGNMENT #7 

George 
• Could link to Brown Road

Rachel 
• Correlitos Ranch is supposed to include access to Paradise Beach; as access opens up,

feasibility increases



5 

DISCUSSION OF ALL PLANS 

Bob 
• Routes through town are supported
• Routes #5 and #6 are preferred

Karen 
• Suggests taking a closer look at art within city owned property, especially levee

Rachel 
• Is a river crossing feasible? Or an actual or figurative connection of #4 and #5?
• Concerned about truck traffic and industrial agriculture; buffered area could be

preferable
• Asked for stakeholder list circulation
• Noted that local Spanish only-speaking community, especially farmworkers, was not

present
• Suggests comprehensive outreach to local community
• Talk to Doug, Vanessa, Karen, and Joe
• Reach out to shippers’/growers’ association

ADDITIONAL FEEDBACK 

Mobility Plan Workshop 

• Critical feedback regarding Mobility Plan
• More community present; over all 60+ people
• Incentivize organic farming adjacent to river
• Incentivize non-polluting uses
• Incentivize non-grazing adjacent to river buffer

Guadalupe Oil Field Coordination Meeting 

• Chevron expressed concerns over potential oil field trail alignments because of
timeframe to complete remediation (though could still represent long-term trail
potential



State Coastal Conservancy, Central Coast   

MEETING SUMMARY MEMO 
 
Meeting: Project Advisory Team Meeting #3 

  Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study 
Date:  December 14, 2020 
Time:  1:30 – 3:00 pm 
Location:  Via Zoom  
Attendees: 
-Shannon Sweeney, City of Guadalupe 
Public Works Director 
-Alma Hernandez, Santa Barbara (SB) 
County Board of Supervisors District 
Representative  
-Terri Persons, CalTrans  
-Justin Borders, CalTrans 
-Audrey Ogden, CalTrans 
-David Lackie, SB County Planning 
and Development  
-Mark Friedlander, SB County Public 
Works Department (PWD) 

-Chris Sneddon, SB County PWD 
-Brittany Heaton, SB County PWD 
-Mark Wilkinson, SB County Trails 
Council 
-George Amoon, SB County Trails 
Council  
-Jeffrey Lindgren, SB County Parks  
-Brian Bresolin, SB County 
Association of Governments 
-Ronnie Glick, CA State Parks and 
Recreation 
-Jim Newland, CA State Parks and 
Recreation  

-Sonia Rios-Ventura, Rural Community 
Development Corporation of CA  
-Tom Brandeberry, Rural Development 
Community Corporation of CA 
-Josh Meyer, Local Government 
Commission  
-Rachel Couch, California Coastal 
Conservancy   
-MIG, Inc: Steve Lang, Jill Eulate, and  
Cole Gehler 
 
 

  

Meeting Purpose 
The third meeting of the Project Advisory Team (PAT) aimed to accomplish these objectives: review trail 
alignment alternatives and evaluation criteria, discuss and confirm preferred alternatives, and review 
next steps in the planning process.   

Meeting Format  
The meeting (held via Zoom) began with a welcome by Rachel Couch, California Coastal Conservancy. 
MIG, Inc. planning consultant Steve Lang provided a project overview and reviewed the planning 
process, vision, and goals. Cole Gehler (MIG, Inc.) stepped the group through the proposed trail 
alignment alternatives and evaluation criteria, while Jill Eulate (MIG, Inc.) recorded comments. 
Participants provided input and offered updates on related projects in the vicinity.     
 
This memo provides highlights of the meeting discussion organized into the following sections: 

• Comments and Ideas 
• Related Project Updates 
• Next Steps 

  



State Coastal Conservancy, Central Coast     2 

Comments and Ideas 
Participants provided the following suggestions in response to the proposed criteria and routes. 
Suggestions from the PAT Meeting, as well as follow-up comments provided via email, will be 
incorporated into an updated Draft Study document. 

• The City of Guadalupe wants to enhance economic development. 
• Also see Guadalupe Mobility Revitalization Plan (Chapter 3, pages 40-41) for potential 

improvements along West Main Street. Note that long-term potential is different than what we can 
achieve in the short term.  

• Adjust criteria and scoring related to level of opportunity around what’s publicly owned. 
• The right-of-way on West Main is very constrained, particularly along the western part of West Main 

Street in the County (see routes 5, 6, and 7). It looks like the route would need to be part of the 
regular roadway. Some of the swales are also part of the right-of-way. Widths of West Main vary in 
the City, but it gets narrower. 

• Consider that the access criteria are equally and heavily weighted with access to retail, restaurants, 
places of work, residential areas, and transit (see routes 5, 6, and 7). 

• Trailheads/starting points should consider benefits for residents accessing the Downtown area and 
also drawing visitors in to Guadalupe to support economic development. Also, consider regional 
access for recreational cyclists.  

• A multi-use trail alignment to the north (see routes 1 and 2) would enhance connections to Oso 
Flaco Lake and the Oso Flaco Trails and could provide more comfortable, level access. 

• The focus of the project is to improve ease of access for residents to be able to get to the ocean. 
• Leroy Park is being redeveloped so there’s space for parking. Leroy Park as a trailhead would get 

people to the park and center of Downtown. 
• The roadway is narrow from the north edge of Santa Maria Bridge and beyond to points north. 
• Explore if there could be a road-separated bike path along the alignment for routes 6/7. 
• The roadway is pretty constrained heading west along West Main Street and entering the County 

Preserve. Consider scoring the kiosk westward differently due to sand drift and user experience, 
e.g., steep pitches which are not accommodating.  

• Consider implementing multiple routes rather than just one. This could provide more alternatives to 
accommodate bike, pedestrians, and equestrians.  

• There are quite a few constraints along the river with land ownership. 
• With a Class II bike path on West Main, there would need to be space in both east and west 

directions for the travel lane. 
• Bike lanes would be difficult given the narrowness of the roadway just west of Highway 1. The City 

of Guadalupe has looked at it closely. Separation would also be difficult without acquiring land or 
removing parking. Plans for striping the roadway are underway. 

• Guadalupe Street could probably only accommodate a standard Class II bike lane, not a multi-modal 
trail, due to its width. It The Guadalupe Mobility Revitalization Plan proposed including bike lanes in 
both directions on the same side of the street. The ADA/pedestrian improvements are expected 
there. Another idea would be buffered bike lanes (bike lanes are already there) and closing gaps in 
the sidewalks. 

• The segment of West Main is a little wider and could possibly have bike lanes on both sides. Could 
possibly accommodate a buffered bike lane. 

• Class I bike lanes would probably require land and coordination with agricultural landowners. It 
would have to be outside of the ditch or undergrounded. Another option would be to do a 
separated two-way protected bike lane, which would require rebuilding the sidewalk on the north 



State Coastal Conservancy, Central Coast  3 

side of the road. Getting a bikeway would require thought and resources. A buffered bike lane on 
Guadalupe Street would work. It would help if improvements on West main were folded in. 

• There are a lot of jurisdictions and people involved, including CalTrans, the County, City, private
property owners, etc.

• The south side of West Main, west of Highway 1 is County land.

Related Project Updates 

• West Main Street improvements between Highway 1 and the City: replace waterline (underground
work near the school), re-asphalt, and striping

• ADA/pedestrian improvements on West Main
• Guadalupe Street (Hwy 1): ADA improvements, improved bike lanes, sidewalks, transit
• Bridge project on border of San Luis Obispo and Santa Barbara Counties in design phase, widening to

better accommodate cyclists
• Farther south on Hwy 1, widening shoulders out to Orcutt to the south to the intersection of Hwy 1

and Main Street
• Signal project at Hwy 1 and 166 to improve pedestrian crossing
• New low-income housing development on Escalante and 11th

• Santa Barbara County is getting ready to undertake a feasibility study for a levee trail from
Guadalupe to Santa Maria

• There could be potential grants to fund a Guadalupe multi-use through the State Parks Program (3
million for trails); would need joint powers agreements since this is multi-jurisdictional; proposal
could be considered with a priority route identified, design phase does not need to be complete

Next Steps 
The Draft Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study will be revised with feedback from the 
PAT Meeting over the coming week. Next, an updated Draft Study will be emailed to PAT Members for 
further comment through December 30, 2020. An updated draft of the Study, incorporating these 
additional comments, will be shared with the public and City Council for review in late January, 2021. 
The Final Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study will be delivered in February 2021. 



Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study 

Appendix C:
National and State Design Standards









1

Tr
ai

l D
es

ig
n 

P
ar

am
et

er
s

H
ik

er
/P

ed
es

tr
ia

n
 (F

S
H

 2
30

9.
18

, S
ec

tio
n 

23
.1

1,
 E

xh
ib

it 
01

)

D
es

ig
n 

P
ar

am
et

er
s 

ar
e 

te
ch

ni
ca

l g
ui

d
el

in
es

 fo
r 

th
e 

su
rv

ey
, d

es
ig

n,
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n,

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

, a
nd

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

of
 N

at
io

na
l F

or
es

t 
S

ys
te

m
 t

ra
ils

, 

b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

ei
r 

D
es

ig
ne

d
 U

se
 a

nd
 T

ra
il 

C
la

ss
 a

nd
 c

on
si

st
en

t 
w

ith
 t

he
ir 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

in
te

nt
.1

 L
oc

al
 d

ev
ia

tio
ns

 fr
om

 a
ny

 D
es

ig
n 

P
ar

am
et

er
 m

ay
 b

e

es
ta

b
lis

he
d

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
tr

ai
l-

sp
ec

ifi
c 

co
nd

iti
on

s,
 t

op
og

ra
p

hy
, o

r 
ot

he
r 

fa
ct

or
s,

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

d
ev

ia
tio

ns
 a

re
 c

on
si

st
en

t 
w

ith
 t

he
 g

en
er

al
 in

te
nt

 o
f 

th
e 

ap
p

lic
ab

le
 T

ra
il 

C
la

ss
.

D
es

ig
ne

d
 U

se
 

H
IK

E
R

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
Tr

ai
l C

la
ss

 1
Tr

ai
l C

la
ss

 2
Tr

ai
l C

la
ss

 3
2

Tr
ai

l C
la

ss
 4

2
Tr

ai
l C

la
ss

 5
2  

D
es

ig
n 

Tr
ea

d
 

W
id

th

W
ild

er
ne

ss
 

(S
in

gl
e 

La
ne

)
0″

 –
 1

2″
6″

 –
 1

8″
12
″ –

 2
4″

E
xc

ep
tio

n:
 m

ay
 b

e 
36
″ –

 4
8″

 a
t 

st
ee

p
 s

id
e 

sl
op

es

18
″ –

 2
4″

E
xc

ep
tio

n:
 m

ay
 b

e 
36
″ –

 4
8″

 a
t 

st
ee

p
 s

id
e 

sl
op

es

N
ot

 a
p

p
lic

ab
le

N
o

n-
W

ild
er

ne
ss

 
(S

in
gl

e 
La

ne
)

0″
 –

 1
2″

6″
 –

 1
8″

18
″ –

 3
6″

24
″ –

 6
0″

36
″ –

 7
2″

N
o

n-
W

ild
er

ne
ss

 
(D

ou
b

le
 L

an
e)

36
″

36
″

36
″ –

 6
0″

48
″ –

 7
2″

72
″ –

 1
20
″

S
tr

uc
tu

re
s 

(M
in

im
um

 W
id

th
)

18
″

18
″

18
″

36
″

36
″

D
es

ig
n 

S
ur

fa
ce

3
Ty

p
e

N
at

iv
e,

 u
ng

ra
d

ed

M
ay

 b
e 

co
nt

in
uo

us
ly

 r
ou

gh

N
at

iv
e,

 li
m

ite
d

 
gr

ad
in

g

M
ay

 b
e 

co
nt

in
uo

us
ly

 
ro

ug
h

N
at

iv
e,

 w
ith

 s
om

e 
on

si
te

 b
or

ro
w

 o
r 

im
p

or
te

d
 m

at
er

ia
l 

w
he

re
 n

ee
d

ed
 fo

r 
st

ab
ili

za
tio

n 
an

d
 

oc
ca

si
on

al
 g

ra
d

in
g

In
te

rm
itt

en
tly

 r
ou

gh
 

N
at

iv
e 

w
ith

 im
p

ro
ve

d
 

se
ct

io
ns

 o
f b

or
ro

w
 

or
 im

p
or

te
d

 m
at

er
ia

l, 
an

d
 r

ou
tin

e 
gr

ad
in

g

M
in

or
 r

ou
gh

ne
ss

Li
ke

ly
 im

p
or

te
d

 
m

at
er

ia
l, 

an
d

 r
ou

tin
e 

gr
ad

in
g

U
ni

fo
rm

, f
irm

, a
nd

 
st

ab
le

P
ro

tr
us

io
ns

≤ 
24
″

Li
ke

ly
 c

om
m

on
 a

nd
 

co
nt

in
uo

us

≤ 
6″

M
ay

 b
e 

co
m

m
on

 a
nd

 
co

nt
in

uo
us

≤ 
3″

M
ay

 b
e 

co
m

m
on

, n
ot

 
co

nt
in

uo
us

≤ 
3″

U
nc

om
m

on
, n

ot
 

co
nt

in
uo

us

N
o 

p
ro

tr
us

io
ns

O
b

st
ac

le
s 

(M
ax

im
um

 H
ei

gh
t)

24
″

14
″ 

10
″

8″
N

o 
ob

st
ac

le
s

D
es

ig
n 

G
ra

d
e3

Ta
rg

et
 G

ra
d

e
5%

 –
 2

5%
5%

 –
 1

8%
3%

 –
 1

2%
2%

 –
 1

0%
2%

 –
 5

%

S
ho

rt
 P

it
ch

 
M

ax
im

um
40

%
35

%
25

%
15

%
5%

FS
TA

G
: 5

%
 –

 1
2%

2  

M
ax

im
um

 P
it

ch
 

D
en

si
ty

20
%

 –
 4

0%
 o

f t
ra

il
20

%
 –

 3
0%

 o
f t

ra
il

10
%

 –
 2

0%
 o

f t
ra

il
5%

 –
 2

0%
 o

f t
ra

il
0%

 –
 5

%
 o

f t
ra

il

10
/1

6/
20

08



Trail Design Parameters Hiker/Pedestrian (FSH 2309.18, Section 23.11, Exhibit 01)

2

D
es

ig
ne

d
 U

se
 

H
IK

E
R

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
Tr

ai
l C

la
ss

 1
Tr

ai
l C

la
ss

 2
Tr

ai
l C

la
ss

 3
2

Tr
ai

l C
la

ss
 4

2
Tr

ai
l C

la
ss

 5
2  

D
es

ig
n 

C
ro

ss
 

S
lo

p
e

Ta
rg

et
 C

ro
ss

 S
lo

p
e

N
at

ur
al

 s
id

e 
sl

op
e

5%
 –

 2
0%

5%
 –

 1
0%

3%
 –

 7
%

2%
 –

 3
%

 
(o

r 
cr

ow
ne

d
)

M
ax

im
um

 C
ro

ss
 

S
lo

p
e

N
at

ur
al

 s
id

e 
sl

op
e

25
%

15
%

10
%

3%

D
es

ig
n 

C
le

ar
in

g
H

ei
g

ht
6′

6′
 –

 7
′

7′
 –

 8
′

8′
 –

 1
0′

8′
 –

 1
0′

W
id

th
≥ 

24
″

S
om

e 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n 

m
ay

 e
nc

ro
ac

h 
in

to
 

cl
ea

rin
g 

ar
ea

24
″ –

 4
8″

S
om

e 
lig

ht
 v

eg
et

at
io

n 
m

ay
 e

nc
ro

ac
h 

in
to

 
cl

ea
rin

g 
ar

ea

36
″ –

 6
0″

48
″ –

 7
2″

60
″ –

 7
2″

S
ho

ul
d

er
 C

le
ar

an
ce

3″
 –

 6
″

6″
 –

 1
2″

12
″ –

 1
8″

12
″ –

 1
8″

12
″ –

 2
4″

D
es

ig
n 

Tu
rn

R
ad

iu
s

N
o 

m
in

im
um

2 ′
 –

 3
′

3′
 –

 6
′

4′
 –

 8
′

6′
 –

 8
′

1 
Fo

r 
d

ef
in

iti
on

s 
of

 D
es

ig
n 

P
ar

am
et

er
 a

tt
rib

ut
es

 (f
or

 e
xa

m
p

le
, D

es
ig

n 
Tr

ea
d

 W
id

th
 a

nd
 S

ho
rt

 P
itc

h 
M

ax
im

um
) s

ee
 F

S
H

 2
30

9.
18

, S
ec

tio
n 

05
.

2 
 Tr

ai
l C

la
ss

es
 3

, 4
, a

nd
 5

, i
n 

p
ar

tic
ul

ar
, h

av
e 

th
e 

p
ot

en
tia

l t
o 

p
ro

vi
d

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 p
as

sa
ge

. I
f a

ss
es

si
ng

 o
r 

d
es

ig
ni

ng
 tr

ai
ls

 fo
r 

ac
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

, r
ef

er
 to

 th
e 

Fo
re

st
 S

er
vi

ce
 T

ra
il 

A
cc

es
si

b
ili

ty
 

G
ui

d
el

in
es

 (F
S

TA
G

) f
or

 m
or

e 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
te

ch
ni

ca
l p

ro
vi

si
on

s 
an

d
 to

le
ra

nc
es

 (F
S

M
 2

35
0)

.

3 
 T

he
 d

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 tr
ai

l-
sp

ec
ifi

c 
D

es
ig

n 
G

ra
d

e,
 D

es
ig

n 
S

ur
fa

ce
, a

nd
 o

th
er

 D
es

ig
n 

P
ar

am
et

er
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
b

as
ed

 u
p

on
 s

oi
ls

, h
yd

ro
lo

gi
ca

l c
on

d
iti

on
s,

 u
se

 le
ve

ls
, e

ro
si

on
 p

ot
en

tia
l, 

an
d

 
ot

he
r 

fa
ct

or
s 

co
nt

rib
ut

in
g 

to
 s

ur
fa

ce
 s

ta
b

ili
ty

 a
nd

 o
ve

ra
ll 

su
st

ai
na

b
ili

ty
 o

f t
he

 tr
ai

l.



3

Tr
ai

l D
es

ig
n 

P
ar

am
et

er
s

P
ac

k 
an

d
 S

ad
d

le
 (F

S
H

 2
30

9.
18

, S
ec

tio
n 

23
.1

2,
 E

xh
ib

it 
01

)

D
es

ig
n 

P
ar

am
et

er
s 

ar
e 

te
ch

ni
ca

l g
ui

d
el

in
es

 fo
r 

th
e 

su
rv

ey
, d

es
ig

n,
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n,

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

, a
nd

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

of
 N

at
io

na
l F

or
es

t 
S

ys
te

m
 t

ra
ils

, 

b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

ei
r 

D
es

ig
ne

d
 U

se
 a

nd
 T

ra
il 

C
la

ss
 a

nd
 c

on
si

st
en

t 
w

ith
 t

he
ir 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

in
te

nt
.1

 L
oc

al
 d

ev
ia

tio
ns

 fr
om

 a
ny

 D
es

ig
n 

P
ar

am
et

er
 m

ay
 b

e 

es
ta

b
lis

he
d

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
tr

ai
l-

sp
ec

ifi
c 

co
nd

iti
on

s,
 t

op
og

ra
p

hy
, o

r 
ot

he
r 

fa
ct

or
s,

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

d
ev

ia
tio

ns
 a

re
 c

on
si

st
en

t 
w

ith
 t

he
 g

en
er

al
 in

te
nt

 o
f 

th
e 

ap
p

lic
ab

le
 T

ra
il 

C
la

ss
.

D
es

ig
ne

d
 U

se
  

PA
C

K
 A

N
D

 S
A

D
D

LE
Tr

ai
l C

la
ss

 1
Tr

ai
l C

la
ss

 2
Tr

ai
l C

la
ss

 3
Tr

ai
l C

la
ss

 4
Tr

ai
l C

la
ss

 5
 

D
es

ig
n 

Tr
ea

d
 

W
id

th

W
ild

er
ne

ss
 

(S
in

gl
e 

La
ne

)
Ty

p
ic

al
ly

 n
o

t 
d

es
ig

ne
d

 o
r 

ac
tiv

el
y 

m
an

ag
ed

 
fo

r 
eq

ue
st

ri
an

s,
 

al
th

o
ug

h 
us

e 
m

ay
 

b
e 

al
lo

w
ed

12
″ –

 1
8″

M
ay

 b
e 

up
 t

o 
48
″ a

lo
ng

 
st

ee
p

 s
id

e 
sl

op
es

48
″ –

 6
0″

 o
r 

gr
ea

te
r 

al
on

g 
p

re
ci

p
ic

es

18
″ –

 2
4″

M
ay

 b
e 

up
 t

o 
48
″ a

lo
ng

 
st

ee
p

 s
id

e 
sl

op
es

48
″ –

 6
0″

 o
r 

gr
ea

te
r 

al
on

g 
p

re
ci

p
ic

es

24
″

M
ay

 b
e 

up
 t

o 
48
″ a

lo
ng

 
st

ee
p

 s
id

e 
sl

op
es

48
″ –

 6
0″

 o
r 

gr
ea

te
r 

al
on

g 
p

re
ci

p
ic

es

Ty
p

ic
al

ly
 n

o
t 

d
es

ig
ne

d
 o

r 
ac

tiv
el

y 
m

an
ag

ed
 

fo
r 

eq
ue

st
ri

an
s,

 
al

th
o

ug
h 

us
e 

m
ay

 
b

e 
al

lo
w

ed
N

o
n-

W
ild

er
ne

ss
(S

in
gl

e 
La

ne
)

12
″ –

 2
4″

M
ay

 b
e 

up
 t

o 
48
″ a

lo
ng

 
st

ee
p

 s
id

e 
sl

op
es

48
″ –

 6
0″

 o
r 

gr
ea

te
r 

al
on

g 
p

re
ci

p
ic

es

18
″ –

 4
8″

48
″ –

 6
0″

 o
r 

gr
ea

te
r 

al
on

g 
p

re
ci

p
ic

es

24
″ –

 9
6″

48
″ –

 6
0″

 o
r 

gr
ea

te
r 

al
on

g 
p

re
ci

p
ic

es

N
o

n-
W

ild
er

ne
ss

 
(D

ou
b

le
 L

an
e)

60
″

60
″ –

 8
4″

84
″ –

 1
20
″

S
tr

uc
tu

re
s 

(M
in

im
um

 W
id

th
)

O
th

er
 t

ha
n 

b
rid

ge
s:

 3
6″

B
rid

ge
s 

w
ith

ou
t 

ha
nd

ra
ils

: 6
0″

B
rid

ge
s 

w
ith

 h
an

d
ra

ils
: 

84
″ c

le
ar

 w
id

th

O
th

er
 t

ha
n 

b
rid

ge
s:

 3
6″

B
rid

ge
s 

w
ith

ou
t 

ha
nd

ra
ils

: 6
0″

B
rid

ge
s 

w
ith

 h
an

d
ra

ils
: 

84
″ c

le
ar

 w
id

th

O
th

er
 t

ha
n 

b
rid

ge
s:

 3
6 ″

B
rid

ge
s 

w
ith

ou
t 

ha
nd

ra
ils

: 6
0″

B
rid

ge
s 

w
ith

 h
an

d
ra

ils
: 

84
″ c

le
ar

 w
id

th

D
es

ig
n 

S
ur

fa
ce

2
Ty

p
e

N
at

iv
e,

 w
ith

 li
m

ite
d

 
gr

ad
in

g

M
ay

 b
e 

fr
eq

ue
nt

ly
 

ro
ug

h

N
at

iv
e,

 w
ith

 s
om

e 
on

si
te

 
b

or
ro

w
 o

r 
im

p
or

te
d

 
m

at
er

ia
l w

he
re

 n
ee

d
ed

 
fo

r 
st

ab
ili

za
tio

n 
an

d
 

oc
ca

si
on

al
 g

ra
d

in
g

In
te

rm
itt

en
tly

 r
ou

gh

N
at

iv
e,

 w
ith

 im
p

ro
ve

d
 

se
ct

io
ns

 o
f b

or
ro

w
 o

r 
im

p
or

te
d

 m
at

er
ia

l a
nd

 
ro

ut
in

e 
gr

ad
in

g

M
in

or
 r

ou
gh

ne
ss

P
ro

tr
us

io
ns

≤ 
6″

M
ay

 b
e 

co
m

m
on

 a
nd

 
co

nt
in

uo
us

≤ 
3″

M
ay

 b
e 

co
m

m
on

, n
ot

 
co

nt
in

uo
us

≤ 
3″

U
nc

om
m

on
, n

ot
 

co
nt

in
uo

us

O
b

st
ac

le
s 

(M
ax

im
um

 H
ei

gh
t)

12
″

6″
3″

10
/1

6/
20

08



Trail Design Parameters Pack and Saddle (FSH 2309.18, Section 23.12, Exhibit 01)

4

D
es

ig
ne

d
 U

se
  

PA
C

K
 A

N
D

 S
A

D
D

LE
Tr

ai
l C

la
ss

 1
Tr

ai
l C

la
ss

 2
Tr

ai
l C

la
ss

 3
Tr

ai
l C

la
ss

 4
Tr

ai
l C

la
ss

 5
 

D
es

ig
n 

G
ra

d
e2

Ta
rg

et
 G

ra
d

e
Ty

p
ic

al
ly

 n
o

t 
d

es
ig

ne
d

 o
r 

ac
tiv

el
y 

m
an

ag
ed

 
fo

r 
eq

ue
st

ri
an

s,
 

al
th

o
ug

h 
us

e 
m

ay
 

b
e 

al
lo

w
ed

5%
 –

 2
0%

3%
 –

 1
2%

2%
 –

 1
0%

Ty
p

ic
al

ly
 n

o
t 

d
es

ig
ne

d
 o

r 
ac

tiv
el

y 
m

an
ag

ed
 

fo
r 

eq
ue

st
ri

an
s,

 
al

th
o

ug
h 

us
e 

m
ay

 
b

e 
al

lo
w

ed

S
ho

rt
 P

it
ch

 
M

ax
im

um
30

%
20

%
15

%

M
ax

im
um

 P
it

ch
 

D
en

si
ty

15
%

 –
 2

0%
 o

f t
ra

il
5%

 –
 1

5%
 o

f t
ra

il
5%

 –
 1

0%
 o

f t
ra

il

D
es

ig
n 

C
ro

ss
 

S
lo

p
e

Ta
rg

et
 C

ro
ss

 
S

lo
p

e
5%

 –
 1

0%
3%

 –
 5

%
0%

 –
 5

%

M
ax

im
um

 C
ro

ss
 

S
lo

p
e

10
%

8%
5%

D
es

ig
n 

C
le

ar
in

g
H

ei
g

ht
8′

 –
 1

0′
10
′

10
′ –

 1
2′

W
id

th
72
″

S
om

e 
lig

ht
 v

eg
et

at
io

n 
m

ay
 e

nc
ro

ac
h 

in
to

 
cl

ea
rin

g 
ar

ea

72
″ –

 9
6″

 
96
″ 

S
ho

ul
d

er
 

C
le

ar
an

ce
6″

 –
 1

2″
P

ac
k 

cl
ea

ra
nc

e:
 

36
″ x

 3
6″

12
″ –

 1
8″

P
ac

k 
cl

ea
ra

nc
e:

 
36
″ x

 3
6″

12
″ –

 1
8″

P
ac

k 
cl

ea
ra

nc
e:

 
36
″ x

 3
6″

D
es

ig
n 

Tu
rn

R
ad

iu
s

4′
 –

 5
′

5′
 –

 8
′

6′
 –

 1
0′

1 
Fo

r 
d

ef
in

iti
on

s 
of

 D
es

ig
n 

P
ar

am
et

er
 a

tt
rib

ut
es

 (f
or

 e
xa

m
p

le
, D

es
ig

n 
Tr

ea
d

 W
id

th
 a

nd
 S

ho
rt

 P
itc

h 
M

ax
im

um
) s

ee
 F

S
H

 2
30

9.
18

, S
ec

tio
n 

05
.

2 
Th

e 
d

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 tr
ai

l-
sp

ec
ifi

c 
D

es
ig

n 
G

ra
d

e,
 D

es
ig

n 
S

ur
fa

ce
, a

nd
 o

th
er

 D
es

ig
n 

P
ar

am
et

er
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
b

as
ed

 u
p

on
 s

oi
ls

, h
yd

ro
lo

gi
ca

l c
on

d
iti

on
s,

 u
se

 le
ve

ls
, e

ro
si

on
 p

ot
en

tia
l, 

an
d

 
ot

he
r 

fa
ct

or
s 

co
nt

rib
ut

in
g 

to
 s

ur
fa

ce
 s

ta
b

ili
ty

 a
nd

 o
ve

ra
ll 

su
st

ai
na

b
ili

ty
 o

f t
he

 tr
ai

l.



5

Tr
ai

l D
es

ig
n 

P
ar

am
et

er
s

B
ic

yc
le

 (F
S

H
 2

30
9.

18
, S

ec
tio

n 
23

.1
3,

 E
xh

ib
it 

01
)

D
es

ig
n 

P
ar

am
et

er
s 

ar
e 

te
ch

ni
ca

l g
ui

d
el

in
es

 fo
r 

th
e 

su
rv

ey
, d

es
ig

n,
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n,

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

, a
nd

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

of
 N

at
io

na
l F

or
es

t 
S

ys
te

m
 t

ra
ils

, 

b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

ei
r 

D
es

ig
ne

d
 U

se
 a

nd
 T

ra
il 

C
la

ss
 a

nd
 c

on
si

st
en

t 
w

ith
 t

he
ir 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

in
te

nt
.1

 L
oc

al
 d

ev
ia

tio
ns

 fr
om

 a
ny

 D
es

ig
n 

P
ar

am
et

er
 m

ay
 b

e 

es
ta

b
lis

he
d

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
tr

ai
l-

sp
ec

ifi
c 

co
nd

iti
on

s,
 t

op
og

ra
p

hy
, o

r 
ot

he
r 

fa
ct

or
s,

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

d
ev

ia
tio

ns
 a

re
 c

on
si

st
en

t 
w

ith
 t

he
 g

en
er

al
 in

te
nt

 o
f 

th
e 

ap
p

lic
ab

le
 T

ra
il 

C
la

ss
.

D
es

ig
ne

d
 U

se
 

B
IC

Y
C

LE
Tr

ai
l C

la
ss

 1
Tr

ai
l C

la
ss

 2
Tr

ai
l C

la
ss

 3
Tr

ai
l C

la
ss

 4
Tr

ai
l C

la
ss

 5
 

D
es

ig
n 

Tr
ea

d
 

W
id

th

S
in

g
le

 L
an

e
6″

 –
 1

2″
 

12
″ –

 2
4″

18
″ –

 3
6″

24
″ –

 4
8″

36
″ –

 6
0″

D
o

ub
le

 L
an

e
36
″ –

 4
8″

 
36
″ –

 4
8″

36
″ –

 4
8″

48
″ –

 8
4″

72
″ –

 1
20
″

S
tr

uc
tu

re
s 

(M
in

im
um

 W
id

th
)

18
″

18
″

36
″

48
″

60
″

D
es

ig
n 

S
ur

fa
ce

2
Ty

p
e

N
at

iv
e,

 u
ng

ra
d

ed

M
ay

 b
e 

co
nt

in
uo

us
ly

 r
ou

gh

S
ec

tio
ns

 o
f s

of
t 

or
 

un
st

ab
le

 t
re

ad
 o

n 
gr

ad
es

 <
 5

%
 m

ay
 

b
e 

co
m

m
on

 a
nd

 
co

nt
in

uo
us

N
at

iv
e,

 w
ith

 li
m

ite
d

 
gr

ad
in

g

M
ay

 b
e 

co
nt

in
uo

us
ly

 
ro

ug
h

S
ec

tio
ns

 o
f s

of
t 

or
 

un
st

ab
le

 t
re

ad
 o

n 
gr

ad
es

 <
 5

%
 m

ay
 b

e 
co

m
m

on

N
at

iv
e,

 w
ith

 s
om

e 
on

si
te

 
b

or
ro

w
 o

r 
im

p
or

te
d

 
m

at
er

ia
l w

he
re

 n
ee

d
ed

 
fo

r 
st

ab
ili

za
tio

n 
an

d
 

oc
ca

si
on

al
 g

ra
d

in
g

In
te

rm
itt

en
tly

 r
ou

gh

S
ec

tio
ns

 o
f s

of
t o

r 
un

st
ab

le
 tr

ea
d

 o
n 

gr
ad

es
 

<
 5

%
 m

ay
 b

e 
p

re
se

nt
, 

b
ut

 n
ot

 c
om

m
on

N
at

iv
e,

 w
ith

 im
p

ro
ve

d
 

se
ct

io
ns

 o
f b

or
ro

w
 o

r 
im

p
or

te
d

 m
at

er
ia

ls
 a

nd
 

ro
ut

in
e 

gr
ad

in
g

S
ta

b
le

, w
ith

 m
in

or
 

ro
ug

hn
es

s

Li
ke

ly
 im

p
or

te
d

 
m

at
er

ia
l a

nd
 

ro
ut

in
e 

gr
ad

in
g

U
ni

fo
rm

, f
irm

, a
nd

 
st

ab
le

P
ro

tr
us

io
ns

≤ 
24
″

Li
ke

ly
 c

om
m

on
 a

nd
 

co
nt

in
uo

us

≤ 
6″

M
ay

 b
e 

co
m

m
on

 a
nd

 
co

nt
in

uo
us

≤ 
3″

M
ay

 b
e 

co
m

m
on

, b
ut

 
no

t 
co

nt
in

uo
us

≤ 
3″

U
nc

om
m

on
 a

nd
 n

ot
 

co
nt

in
uo

us

N
o 

p
ro

tr
us

io
ns

O
b

st
ac

le
s 

(M
ax

im
um

 H
ei

gh
t)

24
″ 

12
″

10
″

8″
N

o 
ob

st
ac

le
s

D
es

ig
n 

G
ra

d
e2

Ta
rg

et
 G

ra
d

e
5%

 –
 2

0%
5%

 –
 1

2%
3%

 –
 1

0%
2%

 –
 8

%
2%

 –
 5

%

S
ho

rt
 P

it
ch

 
M

ax
im

um
30

%

50
%

 o
n 

d
ow

nh
ill

 
se

gm
en

ts
 o

nl
y

25
%

35
%

 o
n 

d
ow

nh
ill

 
se

gm
en

ts
 o

nl
y

15
%

10
%

8%

M
ax

im
um

 P
it

ch
 

D
en

si
ty

20
%

 –
 3

0%
 o

f t
ra

il
10

%
 –

 3
0%

 o
f t

ra
il

10
%

 –
 2

0%
 o

f t
ra

il
5%

 –
 1

0%
 o

f t
ra

il
0%

 –
 5

%
 o

f t
ra

il

D
es

ig
n 

C
ro

ss
 

S
lo

p
e

Ta
rg

et
 C

ro
ss

 
S

lo
p

e
5%

 –
 1

0%
5%

 –
 8

%
3%

 –
 8

%
3%

 –
 5

%
2%

 –
 3

%

M
ax

im
um

 C
ro

ss
 

S
lo

p
e

10
%

10
%

8%
5%

5%

10
/1

6/
20

08



Trail Design Parameters Bicycle (FSH 2309.18, Section 23.13, Exhibit 01)

6

D
es

ig
ne

d
 U

se
 

B
IC

Y
C

LE
Tr

ai
l C

la
ss

 1
Tr

ai
l C

la
ss

 2
Tr

ai
l C

la
ss

 3
Tr

ai
l C

la
ss

 4
Tr

ai
l C

la
ss

 5
 

D
es

ig
n 

C
le

ar
in

g
H

ei
g

ht
6′

6′
 –

 8
′

8′
8′

 –
 9
′

8′
 –

 9
′

W
id

th
24
″ –

 3
6″

S
om

e 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n 

m
ay

 e
nc

ro
ac

h 
in

to
 

cl
ea

rin
g 

ar
ea

36
″ –

 4
8″

S
om

e 
lig

ht
 v

eg
et

at
io

n 
m

ay
 e

nc
ro

ac
h 

in
to

 
cl

ea
rin

g 
ar

ea

60
″ –

 7
2″

 
72
″ –

 9
6″

72
″ –

 9
6″

 

S
ho

ul
d

er
 

C
le

ar
an

ce
0″

 –
 1

2″
6″

 –
 1

2″
6″

 –
 1

2″
6″

 –
 1

8″
12
″ –

 1
8″

D
es

ig
n 

Tu
rn

R
ad

iu
s

2′
 –

 3
′

3′
 –

 6
′

4′
 –

 8
′

8′
 –

 1
0′

8′
 –

 1
2′

1 
Fo

r 
d

ef
in

iti
on

s 
of

 D
es

ig
n 

P
ar

am
et

er
 a

tt
rib

ut
es

 (f
or

 e
xa

m
p

le
, D

es
ig

n 
Tr

ea
d

 W
id

th
 a

nd
 S

ho
rt

 P
itc

h 
M

ax
im

um
) s

ee
 F

S
H

 2
30

9.
18

, S
ec

tio
n 

05
.

2 
Th

e 
d

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 tr
ai

l-
sp

ec
ifi

c 
D

es
ig

n 
G

ra
d

e,
 D

es
ig

n 
S

ur
fa

ce
, a

nd
 o

th
er

 D
es

ig
n 

P
ar

am
et

er
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
b

as
ed

 u
p

on
 s

oi
ls

, h
yd

ro
lo

gi
ca

l c
on

d
iti

on
s,

 u
se

 le
ve

ls
, e

ro
si

on
 p

ot
en

tia
l, 

an
d

 
ot

he
r 

fa
ct

or
s 

co
nt

rib
ut

in
g 

to
 s

ur
fa

ce
 s

ta
b

ili
ty

 a
nd

 o
ve

ra
ll 

su
st

ai
na

b
ili

ty
 o

f t
he

 tr
ai

l.



2

2

2

3

3

3

3

4

4
4

5

5

5

5
5

8

t

6

6

6
6

6

8

8
7

7

77
7

1

1

1

1

t

t

G U A D A L U P E

Potential
Santa Maria
Levee Trail

Santa M
aria

 R
iver

Santa Maria River

O
so Flaco C

reek

Oso Flaco Lake

Our Lady of Guadalupe Church
and Mary Buren SchoolRetail and

Restaurants

Guadalupe
Amtrak Station

Kermit McKenzie School

Community Park

Leroy Park and
Dunes Center

Point Sal Trail

Rancho Guadalupe 
Dunes Preserve Trails

Oso Flaco Lake Trails

Neighborhood Parks

Rancho Guadalupe
Dunes Preserve
(County Owned)

Mussel
Point

Former Guadalupe Oil Field
(Privately Owned)

Agricultural Land

Agricultural Land

Pacific Ocean

Oceano Dunes SVRA 
(State Owned)

Guadalupe-Nipomo Dunes
National Wildlife Refuge

(Federally Owned)

Agricultural Land

Brown Road

S
im

a
s
 R

o
a
d

West Main Street

Division Street

Tho
rn

be
rry

 R
oa

d

11th Street

Oso Flaco Lake Road

O
b

is
p

o
 S

tr
e
e
t

G
u
a
d

a
lu

p
e
 S

tr
e
e
t

H
ig

h
w

a
y
 1

H
ig

h
w

a
y
 1

H
ig

h
w

a
y 1

West Main Street

SAN LUIS 

OBISPO COUNTY

SANTA BARBARA

COUNTY

LEGEND
Study Area

0 0.5 1 1.5 20.25
Miles

County Boundary

Guadalupe Boundary

Roadway

Railway

Planned Multi-Modal Trail**

Waterway or Lake

Guadalupe Destinations

Existing Trailhead

Potential Trail Alignment

Trail Alignment Label*

*Potential trail alignments are labeled and relate 
to the criteria assessment matrix (see Table 1)
**Multi-modal improvements from the Guadalupe 
Mobility Revitalization Plan

5

t

Alignment Assessment
% of criteria achieved*

66%

54%
61%

67%

50%

39%

71%
5

4

6

2

8

7

1

3



Page 1 of 2 

Agenda Item No. 6G 

REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GUADALUPE 
Agenda of July 13, 2021 

 
_______________________________ _________________________________ 
Prepared by:   Approved by:  
Shannon Sweeney, Todd Bodem, City Administrator 
Public Works Director / City Engineer 

SUBJECT: Wastewater Effluent Irrigation Pump Station Rehabilitation Project and Inspection 
Services Notices of Award 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2021-54 authorizing the Mayor to execute a construction 
contract with W.M. Lyles Company for the Wastewater Effluent Irrigation Pump Station Rehabilitation 
Project on behalf of the City, and authorizes the City to enter into a contract with Wallace Group for 
inspection services on this project. 

DISCUSSION: 

In 2014, the Wastewater Master Plan identified project number EWWCIP – 15 as replacement of pumps 
and controls, and installation of electrical building, effluent filters, fencing, and a new alarm system with 
telemetry in the wastewater treatment plant effluent pump station. The pump station was past design 
life and in need of repairs and rehabilitation in 2014. 

On May 21, 2021, the City solicited formal proposals for the 2021 Wastewater Effluent Irrigation Pump 

Station Rehabilitation Project. The request for proposals (RFP) was sent to a list of potential bidders, made 
available on the City’s website and advertised in the Santa Maria Times.  

The deadline to receive proposals was 2:00 p.m., June 29, 2021.  The City received one proposal, with a 
bid of $477,800.00. This proposal, from W. M. Lyles Company, was found to meet the City’s needs. 

Staff recommends awarding the contract to W. M. Lyles Company for a total of $477,800.00.  It is also 
recommended to authorize the City Administrator to approve contract change orders during construction up to 
15% over the contract amount if deemed necessary. 

In addition, the City issued an informal request for proposals for inspection services for the project on 
May 21.  The RFP was sent to a list of potential bidders, made available on the City’s website and 
advertised in the Santa Maria Times.  Bid opening was June 29, 2021. Two proposals were received, 
ranging from $28,380 to $44,980. The low bid, from Wallace Group in the amount of $28,380 was found 
to meet the City’s needs.  

Shannon Sweeney 



Page 2 of 2 

Staff recommends awarding the inspection services contract to Wallace Group for a total of $28,380.00.  It is also 
recommended to authorize the City Administrator to approve contract change orders for this contract during the 
project up to 15% over the contract amount if deemed necessary. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The amount of $522,821 was budgeted in the FY 2021 – 22 budget for this project.  The base bid for 
construction and inspection services, totaling $506,180, is below the budgeted amount. The cost of the 
project if the full contingency is exercised is $582,821.00, which is more than the budgeted amount.   

As of May 31, 2021, the wastewater capital fund cash balance was $2,937,625.40. The 2021 Trunk Main 
Improvement Project, which was awarded June 22, 2021, is approved for $1,783,592.04 if full 
contingency is exercised.   Remaining cash balance would be $1,154,033.36 if the full cost of the trunk 
main project is expended immediately and cash balance remains unchanged.  

Subtracting the pump station project with full contingency exercised would leave the cash balance of 
$571,212.36, well below the desired reserves of $1.5 million. However, cash balance in wastewater is 
currently increasing by approximately $60,000 per month, and both the Trunk Main Project and Pump 
Station Project will take an estimated 6 months to complete. Therefore, while there may be a temporary 
drop in desired reserves as these projects progress, by the time both are expected to be completed and 
grant funds of $302,821.00 are reimbursed, reserves should be restored close to desired levels. 

It is important that both the Trunk Main and Effluent Pump Station Projects proceed at this time, despite 
the potential temporary drop in desired reserves. The Trunk Main project will address system capacity 
issues that contribute to overflows during large rainstorms, such as the one that occurred on January 28, 
2021.  The Effluent Pump Project needs to proceed to remain eligible for grant funding. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution No. 2021-54
2. Bid Results
3. W.M. Lyles Company Agreement, Construction
4. Wallace Group Agreement, Inspection Services



Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO.  2021-54 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY GUADALUPE  
APPROVING AN AGREEMENT WITH W. M. LYLES COMPANY FOR THE EFFLUENT IRRIGATION PUMP 
STATION REHABILITATION PROJECT AND AN AGREEMENT WITH WALLACE GROUP FOR INSPECTION 

SERVICES ON THIS PROJECT 

WHEREAS, the City of Guadalupe published a Notice Inviting Bids for the Effluent Pump Station 
Improvement Project on May 21, 2021, in compliance with Guadalupe Municipal Code section 4.04.070; 
and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Guadalupe received one bid (from W. M. Lyles Company) for the construction of 
the Effluent Pump Station Improvement Project, which was opened on June 29, 2021 at 2:00 PM; and, 

WHEREAS, W. M. Lyles Company meets the qualifications for the construction of the project; and, 

WHEREAS, Staff recommends the award of the construction contract to W. M. Lyles Company; and, 

WHEREAS, Staff solicited informal proposals to provide contract inspection services for this construction 
project and received two proposals for these services; and 

WHEREAS, Wallace Group submitted the lowest proposal and meets the qualifications required for the 
inspection services. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Guadalupe as follows: 

SECTION 1. The City is authorized to enter into an agreement with W. M. Lyles Company for the 
Effluent Pump Station Improvement Project in the amount of $477,800.00, and also, that 
the Mayor is authorized to sign this agreement on behalf of the City, a copy of which is 
attached to the staff report for item; and, 

SECTION 2. The City is authorized to enter into an agreement with Wallace Group for $28,380.00 for 
contract inspection services for the Effluent Pump Station Improvement Project, a copy 
of which is attached to the staff report for this item.  

SECTION 3. The City Administrator is authorized to approve change orders to these contracts during 
construction up to 15% of the bid prices, if deemed necessary. 

SECTION 4. The City Clerk is hereby authorized to make minor changes herein to address clerical 
errors, so long as substantial conformance of the intent of this document is maintained. 
In doing so, the City Clerk shall consult with the City Administrator and City Attorney 
concerning any changes deemed necessary. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting on the 13th day of July, 2021 by the following 
vote:  

Attachment 1



Page 2 of 2 

MOTION: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

I, Amelia M. Villegas, City Clerk of the City of Guadalupe DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing 
Resolution, being Resolution No. 2021-54, has been duly signed by the Mayor and attested by the City 
Clerk, all at a regular meeting of the City Council, held July 13, 2021, and that same was approved and 
adopted.   

ATTEST: 

______________________________  ____________________________________ 
Amelia M. Villegas, City Clerk  Ariston Julian, Mayor 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

______________________________  
Philip Sinco, City Attorney 



Bid Results - WWTP Effluent Pump Station Improvement Project

Attachment 2



RFP Results - Effluent Pump Station Improvement Project - Inspection Services



Attachment 3

























The undersigned as Bidder declares that he/she has carefully examined the location of the proposed work above 
described, read and examined the Contract Documents, and Addendum/Addenda (List Addenda Received: _L_, 
-2,._, ______, __ ) therefore, read the Notice to Contractors, the Proposal Requirements, Including the Caltrans 
Standard Specifications, and hereby proposes and agrees, if this Proposal is accepted by the City, to furnish all 
materials and services required to do all the work required to complete the said construction in accordance with the 
Contract Documents In the time stated herein, for the unit prices given below: 

BID SCHEDULE 

� 

ESTIMATED UNIT OF UNIT PRICE ITEM PRICE 
. ITEM QUANTITY MEASURE (JN FIGURES) (IN FIGURES) 

�&JU .....,, 
I 

io,qo0 -z.o /loo 1 Mobilization/Demobilization 1 LS 

2 Install submersible pumps, piping,
1 LS I 53,'iSOO ,s-�,<(;00 and appurtenances 

J 3 
t_ 

Concrete repair 1 LS t-1,ooo tt,ooo 

� 4 
Electrical Improvements· (MCC/Pump 

1 LS -Z,$(o I 400 z_.5Ct,, 4 00� - Control Panel/Lighting) ··-

� 5 

Flow Meter, Precast Concrete Vault 1 LS tlZ., 1<XJ · '-Ii. 100: -... ... 

and appurtenances 

� '171, '$00� � ·x-:i--. -:;-=r •. :::· .. --· 

TOTAL BID IN WORDS: 

TOTAL BID (Items 1 through 5): 

r,-JOU.Jt �� = .. 

fou(L Pu�� w� s�E:,j __ ,_"11\ot,>� _ ��t-rr tU���\) DoU,M,S
Total Base Bid Amount shall be shown in both words and figures. 

The award of the contract, if awarded, will be to the lowest responsible bidder whose proposal complies with all the 
requirements prescribed. Bids will be compared by the Total Mathematical Bid as determined by the Engineer. 
The Total Mathematical Bid is the summation of all required bid Items, excluding bid alternates. Bid Items are 
calculated by multiplying the Engineer's Estimate quantities by the unit bid prices. In the case of a discrepancy 
between the Total Mathematical Bid and the total bid written above, the Total Mathematical Bid shall govern. 

The bidder to whom the contract Is awarded agrees to enter into a contract with the City of Guadalupe, within fifteen 
(15) days after the date of Notice of Award, and to commence work within ten {10) working days, after the date of
the Notice To Proceed, and to diligently prosecute the work to completion within the Time of Contract shown on the
cover of the Project Manual.

The undersigned understands and agrees that the City of Guadalupe will not be responsible for any errors or 
omissions on the part of the undersigned in preparing and submitting this Proposal. 

City of Guadalupe 

Sr. Vice Pre_si_d_e}!�,.----- or;,/2.�Q.L../�----='---
Title Date 

Page4 EFFLUENT PUMP STATION IMPR. PROJECT 

Exhibit A



AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 

BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF GUADALUPE 

AND 

WALLACE GROUP 

THIS AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES (the "Agreement") is 

made and entered into this 13  day of July, 2021, by and between the CITY OF GUADALUPE, a 

municipal corporation ("City") and  Wallace Group, a California cororation ("Consultant"). 

In consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions set forth herein, the 

parties agree as follows: 

Section 1. Term of Agreement.  Subject to the provisions of Section 19 

(Termination of Agreement) of this Agreement, the term of this Agreement shall be for a period 

of one (1) year from the date of execution of this Agreement, as first shown above.  Such term 

may be extended upon written agreement of both parties to this Agreement. 

Section 2. Scope of Services.  Consultant agrees to perform the services set 

forth in Exhibit A (Scope of Services) and made a part of this Agreement.  

Section 3. Additional Services.  Consultant shall not be compensated for any 

services rendered in connection with its performance of this Agreement which are in addition to 

or outside of those set forth in this Agreement or listed in Exhibit A, unless such additional 

services are authorized in advance and in writing by the City Council or City Administrator of 

City.  Consultant shall be compensated for any such additional services in the amounts and in the 

manner agreed to by the City Council or City Administrator. 

Section 4. Compensation and Method of Payment.  

(a) Subject to any limitations set forth in this Agreement, City agrees to pay

Consultant the amounts specified in Exhibit B (Compensation) and made a part of this 

Agreement.   

(b) Each month Consultant shall furnish to City an original invoice for all

work performed and expenses incurred during the preceding month.  The invoice shall 

detail charges by the following categories: labor (by subcategory), travel, materials, 

equipment, supplies, sub-consultant contracts and miscellaneous expenses.  City shall 

independently review each invoice submitted by Consultant to determine whether the 

work performed and expenses incurred are in compliance with the provisions of this 

Agreement and Scope of Services.  In the event that no charges or expenses are disputed, 

the invoice shall be approved and paid according to the terms set forth in subsection (c).  

In the event City disputes any charges or expenses, City shall return the original invoice 

to Consultant with specific items in dispute identified for correction and re-submission. 

Attachment 4



All undisputed charges shall be paid in accordance with this Agreement and Scope of 

Services. 

(c) Except as to any charges for work performed or expenses incurred by

Consultant, which are disputed by City, City will cause Consultant to be paid within 

forty-five (45) days of receipt of Consultant's invoice. 

(d) Payment to Consultant for work performed pursuant to this Agreement

shall not be deemed to waive any defects in work performed by Consultant. 

(e) Consultant shall have the right to suspend services if not paid in

accordance with this Agreement. 

Section 5. Inspection and Final Acceptance.  City may inspect and accept or 

reject any of Consultant's work under this Agreement, either during performance or when 

completed, if the work is found to be defective or not in compliance with the defined Scope of 

Services.  Acceptance of any of the Consultant's work by City shall not constitute a waiver of 

any of the provisions of this Agreement, including but not limited to, Sections 15 and 16, 

pertaining to indemnification and insurance, respectively.  Consultant agrees to cooperate in any 

such inspection.   

Section 6. Ownership of Documents.  All original maps, models, designs, 

drawings, photographs, studies, surveys, reports, data, notes, computer files, files and other 

documents prepared, developed or discovered by Consultant in the course of providing any 

services pursuant to this Agreement shall become the sole property of City and may be used, 

reused or otherwise disposed of by City without the permission of the Consultant.  Reuse of any 

materials outside the scope of this Agreement shall be at the sole risk of the City. 

Section 7. Consultant's Books and Records.  

(a) Consultant shall maintain any and all documents and records

demonstrating or relating to Consultant's performance of services pursuant to this 

Agreement.  Consultant shall maintain any and all ledgers, books of account, invoices, 

vouchers, canceled checks, or other documents or records evidencing or relating to work, 

services, expenditures and disbursements charged to City pursuant to this Agreement.  

Any and all such documents or records shall be maintained in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles and shall be sufficiently completed and detailed so as to 

permit an accurate evaluation of the services provided by Consultant pursuant to this 

Agreement.  Any and all such documents or records shall be maintained for three (3) 

years from the date of execution of this Agreement and to the extent required by laws 

relating to the audits of public agencies and their expenditures. 

(b) Any and all records or documents required to be maintained pursuant to

this section shall be made available for inspection, audit and copying, upon reasonable 

notice during regular business hours, upon written request by City or its designated 

representative.  Copies of such documents or records shall be provided directly to the 



City for inspection, audit and copying when it is practical to do so; otherwise, unless an 

alternative is mutually agreed upon, such documents and records shall be made available 

at Consultant's address indicated for receipt of notices in this Agreement.  The City shall 

compensate the Consultant for all costs associated with providing these materials to the 

City. 

(c) Where City has reason to believe that any of the documents or records

required to be maintained pursuant to this section may be lost or destroyed due to 

dissolution or termination of Consultant's business, City may, by written request, require 

that custody of such documents or records be given to the requesting party and that such 

documents and records be maintained by the requesting party.  Access to such documents 

and records shall be granted to City, as well as to its successors-in-interest and authorized 

representatives. 

Section 8. Status of Consultant.  

(a) Consultant is and shall at all times during the terms of this Agreement

remain a wholly independent Consultant and not an officer, employee or agent of City.  

Consultant shall have no authority to bind City in any manner, nor to incur any 

obligation, debt or liability of any kind on behalf of or against City, whether by contract 

or otherwise, unless such authority is expressly conferred under this Agreement or is 

otherwise expressly conferred in writing by City. 

(b) The personnel performing the services under this Agreement on behalf of

Consultant shall at all times be under Consultant's exclusive direction and control.  

Neither City nor any elected or appointed boards, officers, officials, employees or agents 

of City, shall have control over the conduct of Consultant or any of Consultant's officers, 

employees or agents, except as set forth in this Agreement.  Consultant shall not at any 

time or in any manner represent that Consultant or any of Consultant's officers, 

employees or agents are in any manner officials, employees or agents of City. 

(c) Neither Consultant nor any of Consultant's officers, employees or agents

shall obtain any rights to retirement, health care or any other benefits which may 

otherwise accrue to City's employees.  Consultant expressly waives any claim Consultant 

may have to any such rights. 

Section 9. Standard of Performance.  Consultant represents and warrants that 

it has the qualifications, experience and facilities necessary to properly perform the services 

required under this Agreement in a thorough, competent and professional manner.  Consultant 

shall at all times faithfully, competently and to the best of its ability, experience and talent, 

perform all services described herein.  In meeting its obligations under this Agreement, 

Consultant shall employ, at a minimum, generally accepted standards and practices utilized by 

persons engaged in providing services similar to those required of Consultant under this 

Agreement. 



  Section 10. Compliance With Applicable Laws, Permits and Licenses.  

Consultant shall keep itself informed of and comply with all applicable federal, state and local 

laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, regulations and rules in effect during the term of this 

Agreement applicable to Consultant.  Consultant shall obtain any and all licenses, permits and 

authorizations necessary to perform the services set forth in this Agreement.  Neither City, nor 

any elected or appointed boards, officers, officials, employees or agents of City, shall be liable at 

law or in equity as a result of any failure of Consultant to comply with this section. 

 

  Section 11. Nondiscrimination.  Consultant shall not discriminate, in any way, 

against any person on the basis of race, color, religious creed, national origin, ancestry, sex, age, 

disability, marital status or sexual orientation in connection with or related to the performance of 

this Agreement. 

 

  Section 12. Unauthorized Aliens.  Consultant hereby promises and agrees to 

comply with all of the provisions of the Federal Immigration and Nationality Act, 8 U.S.C.A. 

sections 1101, et seq., as amended, and in connection therewith, shall not employ unauthorized 

aliens for the performance of work and/or services covered by this Agreement, and should any 

liability or sanctions be imposed against City for such use of unauthorized aliens, Consultant 

hereby agrees to and shall reimburse City for the cost of all such liabilities or sanctions imposed, 

together with any and all costs, including attorney's fees, incurred by City. 

 

  Section 13. Conflicts of Interest.  Consultant agrees to at all times avoid 

conflicts of interest with the interests of the City in the performance of this Agreement. 

 

  Section 14. Confidential Information; Release of Information.   

 

 (a) All information gained or work product produced by Consultant in 

performance of this Agreement shall be considered confidential, unless such information 

is in the public domain or already known to Consultant.  Consultant shall not release or 

disclose any such information or work product to persons or entities other than City 

without prior written authorization from the City Administrator, except as may be 

required by law.   

 

 (b) Consultant, its officers, employees, agents or subconsultants, shall not, 

without prior written authorization from the City Administrator or unless requested by the 

City Attorney of City, voluntarily provide declarations, letters of support, testimony at 

depositions, responses to interrogatories or other information concerning the work 

performed under this Agreement.  A response to a subpoena or court order shall not be 

considered "voluntary" provided Consultant gives City notice of such court order or 

subpoena. 

 

 (c) If Consultant, or any officer, employee, agent or subconsultant of 

Consultant, provides any information or work product in violation of this section, then 

City shall have the right to reimbursement and indemnity from Consultant for any 

damages, costs and fees, including attorney's fees, caused by or incurred as a result of 

Consultant's conduct. 



 

 (d) Consultant shall promptly notify City should Consultant, its officers, 

employees, agents or sub consultants be served with any summons, complaint, subpoena, 

notice of deposition, request for documents, interrogatories, request for admissions or 

other discovery request, court order or subpoena from any party regarding this 

Agreement and the work performed thereunder.  City retains the right, but has no 

obligation, to represent Consultant or be present at any deposition, hearing or similar 

proceeding.  Consultant agrees to cooperate fully with City and to provide City with the 

opportunity to review any response to discovery requests provided by Consultant.  

However, this right to review any such response does not imply or mean the right by City 

to control, direct, or rewrite said response.  Consultant shall be compensated for all costs 

associated with complying with this section. 

 

  Section 15. Indemnification.   

 

 (a) To the fullest extent permitted by law, City and its respective elected and 

appointed boards, officials, officers, agents, employees and volunteers (individually and 

collectively, "Indemnitees") shall have no liability to Consultant or any other person for, 

and Consultant shall indemnify, defend, protect and hold harmless Indemnitees from and 

against, any and all liabilities, claims, actions, causes of action, proceedings, suits, 

damages, judgments, liens, levies, costs and expenses of whatever nature, including 

reasonable attorney's fees and disbursements (collectively, "Claims") which Indemnitees 

may suffer or incur or to which Indemnitees may become subject by reason of or arising 

out of any injury to or death of any person(s), damage to property, loss of use of property, 

economic loss or otherwise occurring as a result of or allegedly caused by Consultant's 

performance of or failure to perform any services under this Agreement or by the 

negligent or willfully wrongful acts or omissions of Consultant, its agents, officers, 

directors, sub consultants or employees, committed in performing any of the services 

under this Agreement. 

 

 (b) If any action or proceeding is brought against Indemnitees by reason of 

any of the matters against which Consultant has agreed to indemnify Indemnitees as 

provided above, Consultant, upon notice from City, shall defend Indemnitees at 

Consultant's expense by counsel acceptable to City, such acceptance not to be 

unreasonably withheld.  Indemnitees need not have first paid for any of the matters to 

which Indemnitees are entitled to indemnification in order to be so indemnified.  The 

insurance required to be maintained by Consultant under Section 16 shall ensure 

Consultant's obligations under this section, but the limits of such insurance shall not limit 

the liability of Consultant hereunder.  The provisions of this section shall survive the 

expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement. 

 

 (c) The provisions of this section do not apply to Claims occurring as a result 

of the City's sole negligence or willfully wrongful acts or omissions. 

 

 (d) City agrees to indemnify Consultant for any such neglect or willfully 

wrongful acts committed by City or its officers, agents or employees. 



 

  Section 16. Insurance.  Consultant agrees to obtain and maintain in full force 

and effect during the term of this Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or 

damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work 

provided by Consultant, its agents, representatives or employees in performance of this 

Agreement.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less 

than A-:VII.  All insurance policies shall be subject to approval by City as to form and content.  

These requirements are subject to amendment or waiver, if so approved in writing by City 

Administrator.  Consultant agrees to provide City with copies of required policies upon request.   

Prior to the beginning of and throughout the duration of the Work, Consultant and its 

subconsultants shall maintain insurance in conformance with the requirements set forth below. 

Consultant will use existing coverage to comply with these requirements. If that existing 

coverage does not meet the requirements set forth herein, Consultant agrees to amend, 

supplement or endorse the existing coverage to do so. Consultant acknowledges that the 

insurance coverage and policy limits set forth in this section constitute the minimum amount of 

coverage required. Any insurance proceeds available to Consultant or its subconsultants in 

excess of the limits and coverage identified in this Agreement and which is applicable to a given 

loss, claim or demand, will be equally available to CITY. 

 

  Consultant shall provide the following types and amounts of insurance. Without 

limiting Consultant indemnification of CITY, and prior to commencement of Work, Consultant 

shall obtain, provide and maintain at its own expense during the term of this Agreement, policies 

of insurance of the type and amounts described below and in a form satisfactory to CITY: 

 

 A. Minimum Scope of Insurance:  Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 

 

  (1) Insurance Services Office Form Commercial General Liability coverage 

(Occurrence Form CG 0001). 

 

  (2) Insurance Services Office Form No. CA 0001 covering Automobile 

Liability, including code 1"any auto" and endorsement CA 0025, or equivalent forms subject to 

written approval of City. 

 

  (3) Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the Labor Code of the 

State of California and Employers' Liability insurance and covering all persons providing 

services on behalf of the Consultant and all risks to such persons under this Agreement, along 

with a waiver of subrogation endorsement. 

 

  (4) Errors and omission liability insurance appropriate to the Consultant’s 

profession. 

 

 B. Minimum Limits of Insurance:  Consultant shall maintain limits of insurance no 

less than: 

 

  (1) General Liability Insurance:  Consultant shall maintain commercial 

general liability insurance with coverage at least as broad as Insurance Services Office form CG 



00 01, in an amount not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate, for 

bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage, and a $2,000,000 completed operations 

aggregate. The policy shall provide or be endorsed to provide that CITY and its officers, 

officials, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be additional insureds under such policies. This 

provision shall also apply to any excess/umbrella liability policies. The policy must include 

contractual liability that has not been amended. Any endorsement restricting standard ISO 

“insured contract” language will not be accepted. This insurance and any umbrella or excess 

liability insurance shall be maintained for a minimum of three years or as long as there is a 

statutory exposure to completed operations claims, with the City and its officers, officials, 

employees, and agents continued as additional insured. 

 

  (2) Automobile Liability:  Consultant shall maintain automobile insurance at 

least as broad as Insurance Services Office form CA 00 01 covering bodily injury and property 

damage for all activities of the Consultant arising out of or in connection with Work to be 

performed under this Agreement, including coverage for any owned, hired, non-owned or rented 

vehicles, in an amount not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit for each accident. 

 

  (3) Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability: Consultant shall 

maintain Workers’ Compensation Insurance (Statutory Limits) and Employer’s Liability 

Insurance (with limits of at least $1,000,000) for Consultant’s employees in accordance with the 

laws of the State of California, Section 3700 of the Labor Code. In addition, Consultant shall 

require each subconsultants to similarly maintain Workers’ Compensation Insurance and 

Employer’s Liability Insurance in accordance with the laws of the State of California, Section 

3700 for all of the subconsultants’ employees. Consultant shall submit to CITY. 

 

  (4) Errors and Omissions Liability:  $1,000,000 per claim as appropriate for 

the profession. 

 

  (5) Umbrella or excess liability insurance (if needed):  Consultant shall obtain 

and maintain an umbrella or excess liability insurance that will provide bodily injury, personal 

injury and property damage liability coverage at least as broad as the primary coverages set forth 

above, including commercial general liability, automobile liability, and employer’s liability. 

Such policy or policies shall include the following terms and conditions:  

 

   • A drop-down feature requiring the policy to respond in the event 

that any primary insurance that would otherwise have applied proves to be uncollectable in 

whole or in part for any reason;  

   • Pay on behalf of wording as opposed to reimbursement;   

   • Concurrency of effective dates with primary policies;  

   • Policies shall “follow form” to the underlying primary policies; 

and  

   • Insureds under primary policies shall also be insureds under the 

umbrella or excess policies. 

 

  (6) Pollution liability insurance.  Environmental Impairment Liability 

Insurance shall be written on a Consultant’s Pollution Liability form or other form acceptable to 



CITY providing coverage for liability arising out of sudden, accidental and gradual pollution and 

remediation. The policy limit shall be no less than $1,000,000 dollars per claim and in the 

aggregate. All activities contemplated in this Agreement shall be specifically scheduled on the 

policy as “covered operations.” The policy shall provide coverage for the hauling of waste from 

the project site to the final disposal location, including non-owned disposal sites. 

 

 

 C. Other Provisions:  Insurance policies required by this Agreement shall contain the 

following provisions: 

 

  (1) Notice of Cancellation:  Each insurance policy required by this Agreement 

shall be endorsed and state the coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled by the insurer 

or other party to this Agreement, reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days' 

prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested has been given to City. 

 

  (2) Primary/noncontributing: Coverage provided by Consultant shall be 

primary and any insurance or self-insurance procured or maintained by CITY shall not be 

required to contribute with it. The limits of insurance required herein may be satisfied by a 

combination of primary and umbrella or excess insurance. Any umbrella or excess insurance 

shall contain or be endorsed to contain a provision that such coverage shall also apply on a 

primary and non-contributory basis for the benefit of CITY before the CITY’s own insurance or 

self-insurance shall be called upon to protect it as a named insured. 

 

  (3) City’s Rights of Enforcement: In the event any policy of insurance 

required under this Agreement does not comply with these requirements or is canceled and not 

replaced, CITY has the right but not the duty to obtain the insurance it deems necessary and any 

premium paid by CITY will be promptly reimbursed by Consultant or CITY will withhold 

amounts sufficient to pay premium from Consultant payments. In the alternative, CITY may 

cancel this Agreement. 

 

  (4)  Waiver of Subrogation: All insurance coverage maintained or procured 

pursuant to this agreement shall be endorsed to waive subrogation against CITY, its elected or 

appointed officers, agents, officials, employees and volunteers or shall specifically allow 

Consultant or others providing insurance evidence in compliance with these specifications to 

waive their right of recovery prior to a loss. Consultant hereby waives its own right of recovery 

against CITY, and shall require similar written express waivers. 

 

  (5) Enforcement of Contract Provisions (non estoppel): Consultant 

acknowledges and agrees that any actual or alleged failure on the part of the CITY to inform 

Consultant of non-compliance with any requirement imposes no additional obligations on the 

CITY nor does it waive any rights hereunder. 

 

  (6) Requirements not Limiting: Requirements of specific coverage features or 

limits contained in this Section are not intended as a limitation on coverage, limits or other 

requirements, or a waiver of any coverage normally provided by any insurance. Specific 

reference to a given coverage feature is for purposes of clarification only as it pertains to a given 



issue and is not intended by any party or insured to be all inclusive, or to the exclusion of other 

coverage, or a waiver of any type. If the Consultant maintains higher limits than the minimums 

shown above, the CITY requires and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits 

maintained by the Consultant. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified 

minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to the CITY. 

 

  (7) Prohibition of Undisclosed Coverage Limitations: None of the coverages 

required herein will be in compliance with these requirements if they include any limiting 

endorsement of any kind that has not been first submitted to CITY and approved of in writing. 

 

  (8) Separation of Insureds: A severability of interests provision must apply for 

all additional insureds ensuring that Consultant’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured 

against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the insurer’s limits of 

liability. The policy(ies) shall not contain any cross-liability exclusions. 

 

  (9) Pass through Clause: Consultant agrees to ensure that its subconsultants, 

subconsultants, and any other party involved with the project who is brought onto or involved in 

the project by Consultant, provide the same minimum insurance coverage and endorsements 

required of Consultant. Consultant agrees to monitor and review all such coverage and assumes 

all responsibility for ensuring that such coverage is provided in conformity with the requirements 

of this section. Consultant agrees that upon request, all agreements with consultants, 

subconsultants, and others engaged in the project will be submitted to CITY for review. 

 

  (10) City’s Right to Revise Requirements: The CITY reserves the right at any 

time during the term of the contract to change the amounts and types of insurance required by 

giving the Consultant a ninety (90) day advance written notice of such change. If such change 

results in substantial additional cost to the Consultant, the CITY and Consultant may renegotiate 

Consultant’s compensation. 

 

  (11) Self-insured Retentions: Any self-insured retentions must be declared to 

and approved by CITY. CITY reserves the right to require that self-insured retentions be 

eliminated, lowered, or replaced by a deductible. Self-insurance will not be considered to comply 

with these specifications unless approved by CITY. 

 

  (12) Timely Notice of Claims: Consultant shall give CITY prompt and timely 

notice of claims made or suits instituted that arise out of or result from Consultant’s performance 

under this Agreement, and that involve or may involve coverage under any of the required 

liability policies. 

 

  (13) Additional Insurance: Consultant shall also procure and maintain, at its 

own cost and expense, any additional kinds of insurance, which in its own judgment may be 

necessary for its proper protection and prosecution of the Work.  

 

  Section 17. Assignment.  The expertise and experience of Consultant are 

material considerations for this Agreement.  City has an interest in the qualifications of and 

capability of the persons and entities who will fulfill the duties and obligations imposed upon 



Consultant under the Agreement.  In recognition of that interest, Consultant shall not assign or 

transfer this Agreement or any portion of this Agreement or the performance of any of 

Consultant's duties or obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the 

City Council.  Any attempted assignment shall be ineffective, null and void, and shall constitute 

a material breach of this Agreement, entitling City to any and all remedies at law or in equity, 

including summary termination of this Agreement.  City acknowledges, however, that 

Consultant, in the performance of its duties pursuant to this Agreement, may utilize sub 

consultants. 

 

  Section 18. Continuity of Personnel.  Consultant shall make every reasonable 

effort to maintain the stability and continuity of Consultant's staff assigned to perform the 

services required under this Agreement.  Consultant shall notify City of any changes in 

Consultant's staff assigned to perform the services required under this Agreement, prior to any 

such performance. 

 

  Section 19. Termination of Agreement.   

 

 (a) City may terminate this Agreement, with or without cause, at any time by 

giving thirty (30) days' written notice of termination to Consultant.  In the event such 

notice is given, Consultant shall cease immediately all work in progress.   

 

 (b) Consultant may terminate this Agreement at any time upon thirty (30) 

days' written notice of termination to City.   

 

 (c) If either Consultant or City fail to perform any material obligation under 

this Agreement, then, in addition to any other remedies, either Consultant or City may 

terminate this Agreement immediately upon written notice.   

 

 (d) Upon termination of this Agreement by either Consultant or City, all 

property belonging exclusively to City which is in Consultant's possession shall be 

returned to City.  Consultant shall furnish to City a final invoice for work performed and 

expenses incurred by Consultant, prepared as set forth in Section 4 of this Agreement.  

This final invoice shall be reviewed and paid in the same manner as set forth in Section 4 

of this Agreement. 

 

  Section 20. Default.  In the event that Consultant is in default under the terms 

of this Agreement, the City shall not have any obligation or duty to continue compensating 

Consultant for any work performed after the date of default and may terminate this Agreement 

immediately by written notice to Consultant. 

 

  Section 21. Excusable Delays.  Consultant shall not be liable for damages, 

including liquidated damages, if any, caused by delay in performance or failure to perform due to 

causes beyond the control of Consultant.  Such causes include, but are not limited to, acts of 

God, acts of the public enemy, acts of federal, state or local governments, acts of the City, court 

orders, fires, floods, epidemics, strikes, embargoes, and unusually severe weather.  The term and 

price of this Agreement shall be equitably adjusted for any delays due to such causes. 



 

  Section 22. Cooperation by City.  All public information, data, reports and 

maps as are existing and available to City as public records, and which are necessary for carrying 

out the work as outlined in Exhibit A, shall be furnished to Consultant in every reasonable way 

to facilitate, without undue delay, the work to be performed under this Agreement. 

 

  Section 23. Notices.  All notices required or permitted to be given under this 

Agreement shall be in writing and shall be personally delivered, or sent by telecopier or United 

States mail, postage prepaid, addressed as follows:  

 

  To City:  City Administrator 

     City of Guadalupe 

     918 Obispo Street 

     Guadalupe, CA    93434 

 

  To Consultant:  Wallace Group 

     612 Clarion Court. 

     San Luis Obispo, CA 93401 

 

 

Notice shall be deemed effective on the date personally delivered or transmitted by facsimile or, 

if mailed, three (3) days after deposit of the same in the custody of the United States Postal 

Service. 

 

  Section 24. Authority to Execute.  The person or persons executing this 

Agreement on behalf of the Consultant represents and warrants that they have the authority to so 

execute this Agreement and to bind Consultant to the performance of its obligations hereunder. 

 

  Section 25. Binding Effect.  This Agreement shall be binding upon the heirs, 

executors, administrators, successors and assigns of the parties. 

 

  Section 26. Modification of Agreement.  No amendment to or modification of 

this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and approved by the Consultant and by the 

City Council.  The parties agree that this requirement for written modifications cannot be waived 

and that any attempted waiver shall be void. 

 

  Section 27. Waiver.  Waiver by any party to this Agreement of any term, 

condition or covenant of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any other term, 

condition or covenant.  Waiver by any party of any breach of the provisions of this Agreement 

shall not constitute a waiver of any other provision, nor a waiver of any subsequent breach or 

violation of any provision of this Agreement.  Acceptance by City of any work or services by 

Consultant shall not constitute a waiver of any provisions of this Agreement. 

 

  Section 28. Law to Govern; Venue.  This Agreement shall be interpreted, 

construed and governed according to the laws of the State of California.  In the event of litigation 

between the parties, venue in state trial courts shall lie exclusively in the County of Santa 



Barbara.  In the event of litigation in a U.S. District Court, venue shall lie exclusively in the 

Central District of California, in Los Angeles. 

 

  Section 29. Attorney's Fees, Costs and Expenses.  In the event litigation or 

other proceeding is required to enforce or interpret any provision of this Agreement, the 

prevailing party in such litigation or other proceeding shall be entitled to any award of 

reasonable attorney's fees, costs and expenses, in addition to any other relief to which it may be 

entitled. 

 

  Section 30. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, including the attached 

exhibits, is the entire, complete, final and exclusive expression of the parties with respect to the 

matters addressed therein and supersedes all other agreements or understandings, whether oral or 

written, or entered into between Consultant and City prior to the execution of this Agreement.  

No statements, representations or other agreements, whether oral or written, made by any party 

which are not embodied herein shall be valid and binding.  No amendment to this Agreement 

shall be valid and binding unless in writing duly executed by the parties or their authorized 

representatives. 

 

  Section 31. Severability.  If a term, condition or covenant of this Agreement is 

declared or determined by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or 

unenforceable, the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby, and the 

Agreement shall be read and construed without the invalid, void or unenforceable provision(s). 

 

  Section 32. Preparation of Agreement.  This Agreement is the product of 

negotiation and preparation by and among the parties and their respective attorneys.  The parties, 

therefore, expressly acknowledge and agree that this Agreement shall not be deemed prepared or 

drafted by one party or another, or any party's attorney, and will be construed accordingly. 

 

 

 
 

 

CITY:       CONSULTANT: 

 

CITY OF GUADALUPE     

 

 

By:______________________________  By:_________________________________ 

    Ariston Julian, Mayor 

       Title:_______________________________ 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:  

       By:_________________________________ 

 

__________________________________  Title:_______________________________ 

Phillip Sinco, City Attorney 
 

MichaelB
Stamp

MichaelB
Text Box
Michael Brennan,Director of Construction Management



CIVIL AND  
TRANSPORTATION
ENGINEERING 

CONSTRUCTION 
MANAGEMENT 

LANDSCAPE 
ARCHITECTURE 

MECHANICAL 
ENGINEERING 

PLANNING

PUBLIC WORKS  
ADMINISTRATION 

WATER RESOURCES 

T 805 544‐4011 

F 805 544‐4294 

www.wallacegroup.us 

WALLACE GROUP
A California Corporation 

612 CLARION CT

SAN LUIS OBISPO 

CALIFORNIA 93401

SURVEYING / 
GIS SOLUTIONS 

 

TRANSMITTAL 
  
 

Date:  June 29, 2021 Project Number: _PP21-7294-915 

To: 
 
Shannon Sweeney  
City of Guadalupe  

 VIA: Email 

918 Obispo Street   

Guadalupe, California 93434 Phone:  

 Fax:  
 Email: ssweeney@ci.guadalupe.ca.us 

From:  
Michael Brennan 

  

Director of Construction Management    

WALLACE GROUP  Phone: 805 544-4011 

612 Clarion Court Fax: 805 544-4294 
San Luis Obispo, CA  93401 Email: michaelb@wallacegroup.us 

Subject: Inspection Services for Effluent Pump Station Improvement Project No. 2020-04 

 
 
Please find attached one (1) digital (PDF) copy of our proposal for the above named project.  
 
Please feel free to call me if you have any questions at 805 544-4011. Thank you for your 
consideration. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT 
PP21-7294 
 
 



Getting it Right

Proposal Prepared for: 

City of Guadalupe
Inspection Services Effluent Pump Project
No. 2020-04 

Submitted by:

612 CLARION COURT 
SAN LUIS OBISPO 
CALIFORNIA 93401 
T 805 544-4011 
F 805 544-4294 

www.wallacegroup.us



 
June 29, 2021 
 
Shannon Sweeney  
City of Guadalupe   
918 Obispo Street  
Guadalupe, California 93434  
 
R e :  Inspection Services Effluent Pump Station Improvement Project No. 2020-04 

Dear Ms. Sweeney: 

The unsung heroes of any town, municipality, or City are the personnel who keep the water 
flowing, the sewers operating, and the roads maintained. City staff and the public works team 
provide the day to day services to create a livable, safe and healthy community. The City of 
Guadalupe has dedicated time, expense and effort to make this project an exceptional upgrade 
to the sewer infrastructure. We fully understand this project needs to run as smoothly as 
possible, issues anticipated, schedules maintained and sensitivity towards those stakeholders 
whose businesses and residences depend upon efficient construction. 
 
We believe the team we have assembled brings value to the City of Guadalupe for the following 
reasons: 
 

 Proven Wallace Group Experience –Michael Brennan, our Director of Construction 
Management will lead.  He brings more than 18 years of Construction Management 
experience and coordination of high-profile, multi-disciplinary projects, his knowledge of 
construction timelines, schedules and cost management are invaluable in keeping the work 
on track and construction costs down. Louis Lefebre will provide inspection and oversight 
for this project.  Louis has extensive experience with the design, install and operation of 
pumps and control systems.  His experience with commissioning and startup of these 
systems will ensure a successful project.     
 

 Innovative Approach and Leadership – The Wallace Group team prides itself on the 
ability to quickly assess a problem, develop a solution, inform the client, and administer the 
solution in the shortest amount of time. We understand the importance and sensitivity 
surrounding this project. At the same time this project requires a high degree of technical 
oversight and problem solving to execute. Managing this project requires the ability to lead 
with a high degree of emotional intelligence. Maintaining relationships and communication 
is the key to success on this project. 
 

Thank you for your time and consideration of our proposal. We are available to discuss any 
questions that may arise as you review our Proposal, please email us at tomz@wallacegroup.us 
or michaelb@wallacegroup.us. As Principal and CFO, the undersigned is authorized to 
negotiate the contract on behalf of the contact team.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
WALLACE GROUP, A California Corporation 
 
 
 
 
       Thomas Zehnder, PE C72702             Michael Brennan, MBA 

       Principal     Director, Construction Management 
Resident Engineer     Project Manager 

 
THIS PROPOSAL IS VALID FOR 90 DAYS FROM THE DATE OF THIS DOCUMENT. 



City of Guadalupe  |   Inspection Services Effluent Pump Station Project No.2020-04

1
612 Clarion Court     San Luis Obispo, CA 93401     (805) 544-4011     www.wallacegroup.us   

S C O P E  O F  S E R V I C E S 

Project Understanding

This project includes the 
replacement and installation 
of pumps, piping, and 
appurtenances at the 
City’s Effluent Pump 
Station.  The work 
includes the demolition 
of the existing MCC 
and VFD enclosures.  
3 new pumps will be 
installed and connected 
to the existing discharge 
piping.  A new discharge 
flow meter and vault will 
be installed on the existing 
12” forced main.  A new MCC 
and Pump Control Panel will be 
installed on the existing concrete 
pads. 

The two most important elements of this project 
will be material procurement and utility scheduling.  
Wallace Group is currently working on similar 
projects.  We have found that procurement of the 
pumps and control panels have been challenging 
and include longer than normal lead times.  The 
contractor is also responsible to submit the Switch 
Gear Submittal with load calculations to PGE 
for engineering and service connection.  Proper 
scheduling and coordination of the utilities will be 
important.   

Project Management 

Leadership, communication and problem solving 
are very important aspects of effective project              
management. Our team takes pride in leveraging 
our skills and tools in these areas to deliver a 
successful project.

Leadership - Managing this project requires the 
ability to lead with a high degree of emotional 
intelligence. Maintaining relationships and 
communication is the key to success on this project. 
Our staff will manage all aspects of this project. 
We will facilitate communication between the 
contractor, City of Guadalupe, residents, business’ 
and service providers.

Communication - The Wallace Group team 
takes pride in the quality and efficiency of our 
work. Effective communication is key to successful 

projects. One of our primary tools is Procore 
construction management software. 

This tool acts as a management 
multiplier that increases our 

efficiency and workflow 
management. We will be 

using Procore to manage 
all documentation for 
this project. Procore 
allows for the effective 
communication and 
management of all 
aspects of the project, 
available in real time to 
the entire team.

Problem Solving - Our 
Project Management team 

prides itself on the ability to 
identify and eliminate variables 

and unknowns. We then assess the 
problem, develop a solution, inform 

the client, and administer the solution in 
the shortest amount of time. We understand the 
importance of schedule, budget and quality on 
this project. At the same time this project requires 
a high degree of technical oversight and quality 
assurance to execute. 

P R O J E C T  S C O P E 

Task 1: Pre-Construction Phase Services 

Preconstruction Conference
• Attend Preconstruction Conference
• Thoroughly review plans and specifications
• Review existing conditions and site constraints
• Work with contractor and city to develop

phasing and sequencing plan for procurement,
PGE connection, and construction of
improvements

Task 2: Construction Phase 

Project Communication and Coordination
• Facilitate project communication and

coordination with City of Guadalupe, the design
engineer, emergency services, utilities, local
business, property owners and residents and
contractor

EXHIBIT A - SCOPE OF WORK



2612 Clarion Court     San Luis Obispo, CA 93401     (805) 544-4011     www.wallacegroup.us   

City of Guadalupe  |   Inspection Services Effluent Pump Station Project No.2020-04

• Attend Weekly Progress meetings with
contractor, City of Guadalupe staff and
other involved entities

• Communicate with PGE and other relevant
utilities to schedule proper inspections

Project Schedule
• Monitor project schedule
• Keep stakeholders informed of construction

schedule
• Work with contractor to establish and

maintain three week look ahead schedule

Submittal and Request for Information (RFI) 
Management
• Utilize Procore to track status of and

distribute all submittals
• Ensure all submittals are processed in a

timely manner and available to all necessary
project stakeholders

• Maintain electronic copies within Procore
and hard copied as needed

Change Order Management
• Review and qualify any contractor requested

change orders
• Investigate proposed change orders, ensure

City of Guadalupe approval prior to work taking
place

• Establish and maintain files and documentation
for use in change negotiations or potential
claims

Quantity Calculations and Progress Estimates
• Maintain quantity calculations throughout the

project
• Coordinate daily reports and quantities with

Contractor’s foreman, identify and record
potential disputes for future reference

• Review monthly Request for Payment, sign and
recommend approval for payment to City of
Guadalupe

• Collect daily truck and materials tickets as
needed

Construction Observation/Inspection
• Provide daily on sight inspections and oversight
• Prepare daily reports, including labor and

equipment
• Ensure compliance with design documents
• Record and report design modifications as

needed

Site Documentation
• Maintain photos and documentation throughout

the project
• All photos and documentation will be

maintained in Procore and available to the
entire team at all times

Safety
• Contractor has sole responsibility for

compliance with safety requirements
• Monitor contractor’s safety practices for

compliance with safety program
• Utilize the following documents during field

safety monitoring program:
» CAL-OSHA Construction safety orders
» Contractor safety plan

• Work with contractor to maintain and resolve
any safety concerns on site

• Advise City of any observed or unresolved
deficiencies

Startup and Commissioning
• Review commissioning and startup procedures
• Work with contractor to ensure proper start,

testing and calibration of system
• Ensure MCC and Pump Control Panel operate

per sequence of operations



3612 Clarion Court     San Luis Obispo, CA 93401     (805) 544-4011     www.wallacegroup.us   

City of Guadalupe  |   Inspection Services Effluent Pump Station Project No.2020-04

Task 3.0: Post-Construction Phase Services 

Final Inspection and Punch List
• Inspect complete and near complete work for deficiencies
• Establish and maintain punch list and track items to resolution
• Recommend and approve final payment to contractor
• Assist with the preparation and signing of the Acknowledgement of Construction Closeout and Release of

Claims form

As-Built Drawings
• Review as-built drawings with contractor throughout the project
• Assist City and Design Engineer in review and completion of certified record drawings

Project Closeout
• Assemble and deliver all records, reports, certificates, pictures upon project completion.



4612 Clarion Court     San Luis Obispo, CA 93401     (805) 544-4011     www.wallacegroup.us   

City of Guadalupe  |   Inspection Services Effluent Pump Station Project No.2020-04

P R O J E C T  T E A M 

Firm Background 

Wallace Group is a certified California Small 
Business, multi-disciplinary engineering and 
planning firm. As a firm, we have a primary focus 
on working with cities and other public agencies. 
We fill a variety of roles for local agencies such 
as Project Engineers, Surveyors, GIS Specialists, 
Landscape Architects, Construction Managers,
District Engineers to Regulatory Compliance 
Specialists, FOG Inspectors, and City Engineers. 
As a result, we have 
the insights into the 
budgeting, planning, 
funding, regulation, design, 
construction and operation 
of public facilities. This 
understanding makes 
us very conscious of the 
importance of being 
efficient and prudent when 
using public funds.

The company includes 
departments in Civil 
and Transportation 
Engineering, Water 
Resources, Construction 
Management, 
Landscape Architecture, 
Mechanical Engineering, 
Planning, Public Works 
Administration, and Surveying/GIS Solutions. 
Wallace Group’s services include design work for 
public works projects, master planned communities, 
mixed use developments, wineries, and the energy 
industry.

Wallace Group employs more than 65 staff in 
California, with a focus on serving the greater 
Central Coast region and surrounding areas. 
We know the success of this company starts with 
its people sharing a common belief in honesty, 
integrity, and a commitment to quality. Wallace 
Group is a cohesive team of professionals that 
works diligently to deliver quality services and 
first-rate projects. Our company has built its 
reputation on the values of honesty, integrity, 
fairness, and reliability. Our objective has always 

been, and always will be, to establish exceptional 
working relationships with our Clients, agencies, 
administrators, and contractors. 

Experience 

The Wallace Group team has provided construction 
management services for a myriad of public works 
projects ranging from small storm drain installations 
to pavement maintenance projects to new roadway 
construction to water system installations and 
many other types of general Public Works projects. 
Our inspectors have worked within the Caltrans 
Right of Way and utilize the Caltrans Construction 

Manual. We are familiar with 
administering projects that 
utilize Caltrans Standard 
Specifications, but also Public 
Works projects that utilize the 
City’s standard front-ends and 
general conditions. We are 
also well versed using EJCDC 
General Conditions and the 
APWA Greenbook. Regardless 
of the specific Standard 
Specifications used, the success 
of a construction project is based 
on the quality of the resident 
engineer and field inspectors 
to administer the construction 
contract in a professional 
manner.

Our Construction Management 
group’s core services include: daily inspection 
reports, weekly statements of working days, 
monthly progress payment review and preparation, 
construction progress meetings, change order 
evaluation and processing, review and processing 
contractor RFIs and submittals, labor compliance, 
quantity calculations, final reports and record 
drawings.  Our team uses Procore to keep track 
of all project documents and transmittals, and 
provide document control. Our team is capable 
and experienced in the notice of potential claim 
and formal claim process. Our standard Wallace 
Group documentation and forms for our core 
services are modeled after those used by Caltrans. 
We understand the specific requirements that 
come with federal funding and have participated in 
successful FHWA audits.



5612 Clarion Court     San Luis Obispo, CA 93401     (805) 544-4011     www.wallacegroup.us   

City of Guadalupe  |   Inspection Services Effluent Pump Station Project No.2020-04

Proactive Thinking 

Project Management can at times be very challenging.  Our job as construction manager is to ensure that all 
elements of the project are completed correctly.  Project Management requires a constant balance between cost, 
schedule and quality.  We strive to ensure that all of these elements are met.  In order to ensure this happens 
we provide a project team that is dedicated, detail oriented and highly involved.  Effective project management 
can not happen from behind a computer. Boots on the ground are required to fully understand and effectively 
manage projects. 
 
Our construction management team works hard to ensure the projects we manage are completed correctly 
and safely. Every project will have challenges that must be overcome to keep the project moving forward. Being 
proactive can identify potential challenges before they can affect progress on the project, it is also important to 
be able to resolve problems as they arise.  

Three elements that we implement to effectively manage project are project knowledge, forecasting and 
problem solving. 

• Project knowledge – our team takes the time to fully understand the plans and specifications of the project. 
This knowledge includes understanding the intent of the design and standards that the city expects to be 
met. 

• Forecasting – we work with the contractor to maintain a schedule and understand their means and methods.  
By understanding the contractors schedule and plan, we can look ahead and review the future phases of 
work.  Based on the schedule and our understanding of the contractors plan we can identify potential 
conflicts or gaps in the design.  We work to resolve these issues before they become a problem. 

• Problem Solving – no project goes exactly as planned or designed.  There will be unknowns and problems 
that arise during the project.  In order to resolve problems effectively you must identify the problem, 
determine possible solutions, evaluate the solutions and execute the solution.  The experience and 
knowledge of out team is key in our ability to resolve problems effectively.  We facilitate this process by 
effective communication with the contractor, design team, city staff and any other relevant stakeholders.



6612 Clarion Court     San Luis Obispo, CA 93401     (805) 544-4011     www.wallacegroup.us   

City of Guadalupe  |   Inspection Services Effluent Pump Station Project No.2020-04

Key Personnel  

Michael Brennan, Director of Construction Management- Project Manager 
Michael Brennan, will act as Project Manager for this project. Michael has 18 years of experience 

in management of engineering and construction projects. This includes 8 years as a Project 
Manager and Associate Director in Facilities Planning & Capital Projects at Cal Poly and 
2 years as the Director of Design & Construction at SUNY New Paltz. He has extensive 
experience administering public construction contracts and managing construction in 

the public sector. He believes the key to a successful project is teamwork, cooperation and 
communication. 

Louis Lefebvre, PE - ARE/ Construction Inspector 
Louis Lefebvre, will provide daily construction observation and inspections. Louis has over 
7 years of experience in wastewater engineering, construction, and operations. He has 
extensive experience with construction, commissioning, and integration of wastewater 
facilities.  His experience emphasizes the nexus of design, construction and operations 
phases giving him the vista needed to deliver a successful project with long, economical 
service life.   

Anthony Lehman, EIT – Assistant Resident Engineer/ Construction Inspector 
Anthony Lehman, is the designated alternate ARE for this project. Anthony’s background 

includes inspections, construction management and design work in the field during 
construction. His experience includes inspecting public works transportation projects, 
including but not limited to roadways, water resources, retaining walls and structures. 
Anthony was involved with the Montecito Mudslide Disaster while working at the County of 

Santa Barbara, helping with cleanup efforts and restoring infrastructure. 

Shannon Sweeney 
Public Works Director/ City Engineer

City of Guadalupe

 
Anthony Leham, EIT

A R E /  C O N S T R U C T I O N 
I N S P E C T O R 

Louis Lefebvre, PE

A R E /  C O N S T R U C T I O N 
I N S P E C T O R

Tom Zehnder, PE

P R I N C I P A L  I N  C H A R G E

Michael Brennan

P R O J E C T  M A N A G E R

Organization Chart



7612 Clarion Court     San Luis Obispo, CA 93401     (805) 544-4011     www.wallacegroup.us   

City of Guadalupe  |   Inspection Services Effluent Pump Station Project No.2020-04

MICHAEL BRENNAN 
Director  of  Construct ion Management 

Michael is the Director of Construction Management at Wallace 
Group. Michael has 18 years of construction, facilities 
management and operations experience. Michael’s experience 
includes managing a broad range of projects including horizontal 
and vertical construction, mechanical, infrastructure, 
information technology and program management. He excels at 
planning and coordinating projects in active campus or city core 
locations.  

RELEVANT PROJECTS 

Cal Poly Plant Science Complex and Greenhouse 
Collaborative Design Build for new Plant Science complex.  
Project includes greenhouse, classroom building, processing 
facility, farm store, master site plan and utility upgrades.  
Ensure conformance with University standards.  Responsible for 
coordination and submissions to campus and CSU Chancellor’s 
office. 

Atascadero F14 Paving 2020 – Supplemental Inspections 
Wallace Group is providing inspections services for current 
paving rehabilitation project. 

Pacific Grove – Sewer and Stormwater Systems Improvement 
Project Management of two projects consisting of replacement 
of over 7000’ of gravity and forced main sewer lines, over 1000’ 
of storm drains, all associated manholes and lift stations, 
sidewalk, curb gutter, and pavement repairs. 

Southbound Offramp and Betteravia Road Improvements 
Construction Management services for offramp and intersection 
improvements in the City of Santa Maria. Project includes work in 
the Caltrans Right of Way. 

BU Houses Forced Sewer Main 
Project Management of 600’ of 8” HDPE forced main. 

Union Road Improvements, City of Paso Robles, CA 
Project Management of improvement to include underground 
utilities, curb gutter sidewalk and paving 

Cal Poly, San Luis Obispo 
 Fremont Dorm Landslide Remediation
 Via Carta High Pressure Gas Main Replacement
 Utilidor Hot Water branch line replacements
 Utilidor double block and blead valve replacements
 Computer Science Chiller Replacement
 Graphic Arts Sewer Replacement
 Sierra Madre / Yosemite Hot Water Re-pipe and Utilidor

Connection

EDUCATION 
Master’s of Business Administration, 
State University of New York, New 
Paltz   

B.S. Industrial Technology, 
California Polytechnic State 
University, San Luis Obispo, CA 

REGISTRATION 
State of California General Building 
Contractor License (Inactive) 

TRAINING 
OSHA Action Level Lead 

AHERA Asbestos 
Contractor/Supervisor 

NFPA 70E / Arc Flash Electrical 
Safety 

ATSSA Traffic Control Technician 

Excavation Safety for Competent 
Person 

Building Performance Institute – 
Building Analyst 

AFFILIATION 
American Public Works Association 

Association of Physical Plant 
Administrators 



8612 Clarion Court     San Luis Obispo, CA 93401     (805) 544-4011     www.wallacegroup.us   

City of Guadalupe  |   Inspection Services Effluent Pump Station Project No.2020-04

Louis Lefebvre, PE 
Civ i l  Engineer  /  Ass i s tant  Resident  Engineer 

Louis has over 7 years of experience in water and wastewater 
engineering, operations, and construction. His experience 
emphasizes the nexus of design, construction and operations 
phases giving him the vista needed to deliver a successful 
project with long, economical service life.   

City of Pacific Grove, Urban Diversion 
Served as ARE & Engineering Inspector for construction of wet 
well and pump station.  Provided oversight for startup and 
commissioning of the system.  Responsible for the integration 
and automation of the system, to include connections to 
Monterey One Water SCADA system. 

Pan American Seed Company, Lompoc 
Responsible for design and sequence of operations for 375 gpm 
lift station. Provided bid and construction phase support 
including submittals review, and RFI’s. 

PRIOR TO JOINING WALLACE GROUP 

Munz-Mendenhall Juvenile Detention Facility MBR, Lake 
Hughes, CA 
Project manager for the retrofit of a 25,000 gallon per day 
municipal MBR. The project included rehabilitation of and 
upgrades to the facility’s main sewer lift station including 
SCADA integration and control systems. Performed start-up, 
commissioning, and contractor installation QAQC.  

Paradise Ranch Mobile Home Park MBR, Castaic, CA 
Project engineer for the replacement of a failed WWTP and 
upgrades to a grinder lift station. Provided ongoing operations, 
engineering support and controls integration. Performed start-
up, commissioning, and contractor installation QAQC. 

Mayacamas Warehousing MBR, Sonoma, CA 
Project Manager for the construction, commissioning and 
operation of a 25,000 gallon per day direct industrial reuse 
system which included several pumping stations. Provided 
ongoing operations and engineering support. 

San Antonio Winery MBR, Paso Robles, CA 
Project Manager for the construction, commissioning, and 
operation of a 12,000 gallon per day winery wastewater 
treatment and sludge dewatering facility. Lead the integration 
and automation efforts for the stormwater collection, 
wastewater, and irrigation facilities at the site. Provided 
ongoing standby operations and engineering support.  

Indiana Dunes State Park WWTP, Chesterton, IN 
Project manager for ongoing engineering, construction, and 
operations services at the Park’s WWTP. Provided standby 
process analysis and maintenance engineering services.  

Summit Lake State Park WWTP, New Castle, IN 
Project engineer for upgrading an existing oxidation ditch and 
augmenting a lift station and headworks. Provided stand by 
operations and engineering support.  

EDUCATION 
BS, Civil and Environmental 
Engineering – California Polytechnic 
State University, San Luis Obispo, CA 

MS, Civil and Environmental 
Engineering – California Polytechnic 
State University, San Luis Obispo, CA 

REGISTRATION 
California – PE # 91614 
Idaho – PE # 18605 
Kentucky – PE # 33894 
Oregon – PE # 92994 
Washington – PE #56542 
Texas – PE # 133402 

CERTIFICATION 
CA State Certified Wastewater 
Operator ll 

AFFIL IATION 
CWEA - WEF 
ASCE 



9612 Clarion Court     San Luis Obispo, CA 93401     (805) 544-4011     www.wallacegroup.us   

City of Guadalupe  |   Inspection Services Effluent Pump Station Project No.2020-04

ANTHONY LEHMAN, EIT 
Ass istant  Res ident  Engineer 

Anthony Lehman’s experience includes inspection of public 
works transportation projects, including but not limited to 
roadways, water resources, retaining walls, and structures. He 
recently joined Wallace Group, leaving the County of Santa 
Barbara. At the County Anthony gained significant assistant 
resident engineer experience.  

REPRESENTATIVE PROJECTS 

2020 F-14 Pavement Rehab, City of Atascadero, CA 
Construction Management and Inspection services for the 
restoration of the public roadways in Atascadero. Work included 
grinding of existing asphalt pavement and cement treatment of 
existing subgrade. 

Russell Park Improvements, City of Santa Maria, CA 
Construction Management and Inspection services for the 
renovation of a community park in the City of Santa Maria. Work 
included hardscape improvements, new utility lines, installation of 
a new restroom, and landscaping. 

Paul Nelson Aquatic Center Improvements, City of Santa Maria, 
CA 
Construction Management and Inspection services for the 
restoration of the athletic swimming pool in the City of Santa 
Maria. 

Union Road Along Barney Schwartz Improvements, City of Paso 
Robles, CA  
Provided Inspection services for the hardscape improvements along 
Union Road in the City of Paso Robles. 

San Luis Obispo RTA Transit Center Improvements, City of San 
Luis Obispo, CA  
Provided Inspection services for hardscape improvements in the 
City of San Luis Obispo. 

EDUCATION 
B.S. Civil Engineering, California 
State University, Northridge  

CERTIFICATION 
Engineer-In-Training, Board for 
Professional Engineers, Land 
Surveyors, and Geologists 
(California) 

AFFIL IATION 
American Society of Engineers 

First Solar Roadway Improvements, Cal Flats, CA 
Construction Management and Inspection services to improve the 
drainage of the roadway up to the O&M facilities in Cal Flats. 
Work included roadway excavation and grading. 



10612 Clarion Court     San Luis Obispo, CA 93401     (805) 544-4011     www.wallacegroup.us   

City of Guadalupe  |   Inspection Services Effluent Pump Station Project No.2020-04

R E F E R E N C E S
1 .  City of Pacific Grove CIPs
Wallace Group is currently providing complete 
CMI&T services 
for two projects for 
the City of Pacific 
Grove. These projects 
include sewer main 
upsizing, manhole 
rehabilitation, 
and manhole 
replacements, 
sidewalk upgrades, 
ADA improvements, 
and road repairs 
throughout the 
project.  

These projects include 
open cut and pipe 
bursting operations for the replacement of over 
7000’ of gravity and forced main sewer lines, as 
well as over 1000’ of storm drains. Additionally the 
project includes rehabilitation or replacement of 41 
manholes and all associated lift stations, sidewalks, 
curb gutter and pavement repairs.

These projects are extremely challenging because 
all the work takes place in downtown and 
residential neighborhoods. Careful coordination 
with residents, businesses, city staff and essential 
services must be constantly managed. All project 
work and excavations take place in environmental 
and culturally sensitive areas. This requires careful 
coordination of contractor schedules as well as 
environmental and tribal monitor teams.

Contact Information: 
Daniel Gho 
2100 Sunset Drive 
Pacific, California 
93950 
dgho@
cityofpacificgrove.org 
831 648-5722

Contract Amount: 
$742,000 

Services Provided: 
Construction 
Management,  
Surveying, Water 
Resources, Inspections 

2. Oak Shores Sanitary Sewer Force Main
This project is part of a land development effort for
a private landowner. The project included planning,
design, and construction management. Wallace
Group designed the expansion of the wastewater
treatment plant, two lift
stations, additional spray
field and over 7000’ of SSFM.
Construction Management
included bid support,
contract negotiations,
project management, and
inspections.

Contact Information:  
Laura Holder 
Public Works- Main Office 
San Luis Obispo, California 
93408 
lholder@co.slo.ca.us 

Contract Amount: $275,000 

Services Provided:     
Construction Management, Surveying, Civil 
Engineering, Water Resources, Inspections 

3. Sunnyside Estates Sewer Lift Station, KB Homes,
City of Hollister, CA
Provide design and construction observation for a new
250-gpm submersible sewage lift
station. The lift station includes features such as a
permanent standby generator,
submersible pumps with guide rail and quick-
connections to connect pumps to discharge
piping and simplify lifting/removal of pumps,
permanent odor control provisions,
emergency bypass connections, lined wet well, and raw
sewage storage to assist with
response time to O&M staff.

Contact Information:  
Charlie Hazelbaker 
5000 Executive Parkway, Suite 125 
San Ramon, California 94583
chazelbaker@kbhome.com 
(209) 345-6836

Contract Amount: $95,000 

Services Provided: Water Re-
sources, Mechanical Engineering, 
Construction Observations    



11612 Clarion Court     San Luis Obispo, CA 93401     (805) 544-4011     www.wallacegroup.us   

City of Guadalupe  |   Inspection Services Effluent Pump Station Project No.2020-04

C O S T  P R O P O S A L 
As stated in the RFP this project is scheduled for 60 working days, from August to November 2021.  The bulk 
of that time will be spent on procurement and utility coordination. As noted in the plans on  page C103 Note 
#1, the construction duration is expected to be approximately 3 weeks.  We have budgeted time for both pre-
con and post-con services.  For construction services we have budgeted full time inspections and support for a 
3-week construction duration.

Task Staff Weeks
Working 

Days
Hours/
Period

Total 
Hours 

Pre-Construction Project Manager 4

ARE/ Inspector 20

Construction Project Manager 3 2/wk 6

*ARE/Inspector (PW) 3 15 8/day 120

Post-Construction Project Manager 2

ARE/ Inspector 16

*Assume an average of 8 hours per day for construction, this may include shorter or longer days as required
by the project schedule.

Fees 

EXHIBIT B



CIVIL AND 
TRANSPORTATION 
ENGINEERING 

CONSTRUCTION 
MANAGEMENT 

LANDSCAPE 
ARCHITECTURE 

MECHANICAL 
ENGINEERING 

PLANNING 

PUBLIC WORKS  
ADMINISTRATION 

WATER RESOURCES 

T 805 544‐4011 
F 805 544‐4294 

www.wallacegroup.us 

WALLACE GROUP
A California Corporation 

612 CLARION CT

SAN LUIS OBISPO 

CALIFORNIA 93401

SURVEYING / 
GIS SOLUTIONS 

Docum ent reviewed by Kathy Redden, W allace Group  
Project Num ber: PP21-7282 

CLIENT CONTRACT and INSURANCE REVIEW MEMORANDUM 

Date: June 17, 2021 

Client: City of Guadalupe 

Project Name: Inspection Services Effluent Pump Project 

We respectfully request the following modifications to the Agreement for Consultant Services.  

Red = delete language 
Blue = new language 

Section 9. Standard of Performance. Consultant represents and warrants that it has the 
qualifications, experience and facilities necessary to properly perform the services required under 
this Agreement in a thorough, competent and professional manner. Consultant shall at all times 
faithfully, competently and to the best of its ability, experience and talent, perform all services 
described herein. In meeting its obligations under this Agreement, Consultant shall employ, at a 
minimum, generally accepted standards and practices utilized by persons engaged in providing 
services similar in the same or similar locality to those required of Consultant under this 
Agreement. 

Section 15. Indemnification 

(new) (a). Indemnification and Defense for Professional Services: To the fullest extent 
permitted by law, Consultant shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless City and its respective 
elected and appointed boards, officials, officers, agents, employees and volunteers (individually 
and collectively, "Indemnitees")  from and against any and all claims, losses, liabilities, damages, 
costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees and costs, to the extent they arise out of, 
pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of the Consultant. 
Consultant's duty to defend shall consist of reimbursement of defense costs incurred by City in 
direct proportion to the Consultant's proportionate percentage of fault. Consultant's percentage 
of fault shall be determined, as applicable, by a court of law, jury or arbitrator. In the event any 
loss, liability or damage is incurred by way of settlement or resolution without a court, jury or 
arbitrator having made a determination of the Consultant's percentage of fault, the parties agree 
to mediation with a third party neutral to determine the Consultant's proportionate percentage 
of fault for purposes of determining the amount of indemnity and defense cost reimbursement 
owed to the City. 

(b a) For All Other Liabilities: City and its respective elected and appointed boards, 
officials, officers, agents, employees and volunteers (individually and collectively, "Indemnitees") 
shall have no liability to Consultant or any other person for, and Consultant shall indemnify, 



June 17, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 

defend, protect and hold harmless Indemnitees from and against, any and all liabilities, claims, 
actions, causes of action, proceedings, suits, damages, judgments, liens, levies, costs and 
expenses of whatever nature, including reasonable attorney's fees and disbursements 
(collectively, "Claims") which Indemnitees may suffer or incur or to which Indemnitees may 
become subject by reason of or arising out of any injury to or death of any person(s), damage to 
property, loss of use of property, economic loss or otherwise occurring as a result of or allegedly 
caused by Consultant's performance of or failure to perform any services under this Agreement or 
by the negligent or willfully wrongful acts or omissions of Consultant, its agents, officers, 
directors, sub consultants or employees, committed in performing any of the services under this 
Agreement. 

Note: existing clauses (b), (c), and (d) would be re-numbered, respectively, based upon the above 
modifications.   



Page 1 of 3 

Agenda Item No. 6H 

REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GUADALUPE 
Agenda of July 13, 2021 

  
_______________________________ _________________________________ 
Prepared by:   Approved by:  
Philip F. Sinco, City Attorney Todd Bodem, City Administrator 

SUBJECT: Notice of Completion for Phase 4.B. of Tract 29027 (Point Sal Dunes) and release of 
Security 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2021-55 acknowledging completion of all 
conditions required by the Subdivision Improvement Agreement for Phase 4.b of the Point Sal Dunes 
development and release all securities provided by Carriage Homes, Inc. to secure its performance of 
these requirements.   

BACKGROUND: 

Carriage Homes, Inc. (Carriage Homes), a currently defunct construction company owned by Wayne 
Vaughn, Jr., purchased the right to complete the development of the Point Sal Dunes Phases 4.b. through 
5.c. on or about February 1, 1999.  On March 22, 1999, the City Council approved a resolution (Resolution
No. 99-09) regarding the partial release of certain security for construction of public improvements
related to Phase 4.a. of the Point Sal Dunes development and accepting substituted security.  A copy of
this resolution is attached hereto as Attachment 1.  Resolution No. 99-09 provides that construction of
the required public improvements for Phase 4.a. of the Point Sal Dunes development had been
completed, except for the following items:

A. Filling of the borrow pit1 created on an adjacent property owned by the Guadalupe
Community Redevelopment Agency.

B. Crushing and spreading in accordance with standard engineering practices of the concrete
pipe, which has been dumped into the borrow pit.

C. Grading at a 2:1 slope or installation of an adequate retaining wall return north from the
Main Street retaining wall along the southerly boundary of the Tract.

D. Repair of existing damage to the pavement on West Main Street.
E. Installation of the required survey monuments.
F. Installation of the West Main Street transition markers.

1 The “borrow pit” was apparently started by the original developer, America West Redevelopment Group, as a location to 
obtain fill dirt for Phases 1 though 4.a., but by the time America West Redevelopment Group defaulted on its obligations, 
the pit had been used to dump construction debris.   

Philip F. Sinco 



Page 2 of 3 

On May 10, 1999, the City Council approved a Subdivision Improvement Agreement (SIA) between the 
City of Guadalupe and Carriage Homes for Phase 4.b. of the Point Sal Dunes Subdivision.  A copy of the 
executed SIA is attached hereto as Attachment 2.  The SIA included some “special provisions” in addition 
to the normal requirements set forth in a typical subdivision improvement agreement (see Exhibit A of 
the SIA) which provisions included items A. through E. listed above from Resolution No. 99-09 (including 
filling in the borrow pit).2  The City Council adopted Resolution No. 99-12 approving the SIA and also, the 
final map for Phase 4.b. for Tract 29027.  A copy of Resolution No. 99-12 is attached hereto as 
Attachment 3.  In one of the “whereas” clauses of this resolution, it was stated that Carriage Homes had 
provided adequate security for the performance of its obligations under the SIA, although the exact 
nature of this security was not identified in the resolution or in the SIA. 

According to Wayne Vaughn, Jr., the “adequate security” acknowledged in Resolution No. 99-12 included 
a $25,000 cash security the City required Carriage Homes to post to secure its obligation to fill in the 
borrow pit.  Unfortunately, after a review of available City documents, staff has not been able to confirm 
Mr. Vaughn’s claim that the City required Carriage Homes to post this $25,000 in cash to secure 
performance of the obligation to fill in the borrow pit.  On the other hand, staff has not discovered any 
documents that contradict this claim. 

In a City Council staff report for the meeting of March 12, 2002, concerning acceptance of the public 
improvements for Phases 4.c. and 5.a. of the Point Sal Dunes development, a copy of which is attached 
hereto as Attachment 4, then City Administrator Frank Usher wrote: 

The Point Sal Dunes Subdivision has been under construction since June 7, 1999 til [sic] 
present.  The project consisted of four phases; 4.b., 4.c., 5.a., and 5.b. where public 
improvements needed to be added for the completion of Tract 29027. 

A portion of public improvements of Phase 4.b. has not been complete due to the borrow 
pit and current litigations.  Phase 4.c. was declared complete February 27, 2001 by the 
City’s Engineer, Valenzuela Engineering.  Phase 5.a. was declared complete by the City’s 
engineer and the Public Works Director February 26, 2002, and a portion of Phase 5.b. is 
still pending. 

The only additional information staff has been able to obtain concerning the filling in of the borrow pit 
comes from documents sent to the City by Mr. Vaughn in 2007 and 2008 (which he has provided to staff). 
In one of these documents, a letter to the former City Fire Chief Carmon Johnson dated March 1, 2007 
(a copy of which is attached hereto as Attachment 5), Mr. Vaughn states that the borrow pit had become 
filled with standing water which Carriage Homes attempted to drain in 1999, but which activity resulted 
in an Administrative Order from the Environmental Protection Agency to cease and desist because the 
area might be a defined wetland and/or water of the United States.3   

2 Item F. regarding installing of the West Main Street transition markers was apparently completed by this point in time as it 
was not included.   
3 Presumably, this “cease and desist” order was at least part of what Mr. Usher meant by “current litigations” in his March

12, 2002, staff report. 



Page 3 of 3 

Mr. Vaughn states further in this letter that the federal Order was lifted about five years later, but that  
the Army Corps of Engineers did not determine for another year and a half later that the borrow pit was 
not a water of the United States, and it took another year after that for the Department of Fish and 
Wildlife Services to accept that the site was not habitat for the California red-legged frog.  (See 
Attachment 5). 

In any case, the City of Guadalupe issued a limited grading permit in 2007 to permit Carriage Homes to 
fill in the “borrow pit” (see letter dated February 8, 2007, to Carriage Homes from RM Associates, 
Guadalupe contract City Engineer at this time), a copy of which is attached hereto as Attachment 6).   

Although there is no documentary record that filling in of the borrow pit and satisfaction of the other 
provisions of the SIA were completed, the last home constructed on Avocet Circle was issued a Certificate 
of Occupancy on November 6, 2015, and therefore, based on the fact that the City would not have issued 
any certificates of occupancy unless all of the required conditions and obligations (including filling in of 
the borrow pit) were completed by this date, staff has determined that all conditions of the SIA have 
been met.  This has also confirmed by the Public Works Director/City Engineer, Shannon Sweeney. 

DISCUSSION: 

Mr. Vaughn claims that the $25,000 cash security required by the City was initially deposited with Upland 
Bank but has since become unclaimed property held by the State of California.  Mr. Vaughn has 
requested that the City issue a Notice of Completion concerning the filling in of the borrow pit so that 
he can make a claim to recover the $25,000 cash security from the state.   

Although the City has not been able to confirm that Carriage Homes deposited $25,000 with Upland 
Bank as a cash security to secure Carriage Homes’ obligation to fill in the borrow pit (and presumably, to 
ensure compliance with the other special provisions of the SIA for Phase 4.b.), or that the City required 
this deposit, there is evidence in the documentary record to support Mr. Vaughn’s claims about it, and 
nothing to contradict it.   

Given that it is not necessary for the City to confirm that it required Carriage Homes to provide a $25,000 
cash security in order for the Council to accept that all of the conditions required by the SIA have been 
met and satisfied, staff is recommending that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2021-55 
(Attachment 7) to acknowledge this, which will allow Mr. Vaughn to pursue recovery of the $25,000 cash 
security he claims he deposited.   

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution No. 99-09.
2. Subdivision Improvement Agreement (Phase 4.b.)
3. Resolution No. 99-12.
4. City Council staff report, dated March 12, 2002.
5. Letter to the former City Fire Chief Carmon Johnson dated March 1, 2007.
6. Letter to Carriage Homes from RM Associates, dated February 8, 2007.
7. Resolution No. 2021-55





Attachment 1









Attachment 2





































Attachment 3





Attachment 4

























Attachment 5





Attachment 6





Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO.  2021-55 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY GUADALUPE  
ACCEPTING AS COMPLETE THE WORK PERFORMED FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS AND REQUIRED 

MITIGATION FOR PHASE 4.b. IN THE POINT SAL DUNES SUBDIVISION, TRACT NO. 29027 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Guadalupe approved a Subdivision Improvement Agreement 
(SIA) between the City of Guadalupe and Carriage Homes, a California corporation, for Phase 4.b. of the 
Point Sal Dunes Subdivision, Tract 29027, on May 10, 1999; and 

WHEREAS, the SIA included some special provisions (attached as Exhibit A to the SIA) which included 
filling in a “borrow pit” located in the area of Avocet Circle within the subdivision; and 

WHEREAS, according to Wayne Vaughn, Jr., the former owner of the currently defunct Carriage Homes 
corporation, the “borrow pit” had been created by the original developer of the Point Sal Dunes 
development (America West Redevelopment Group) and was dug to collect fill dirt for earlier phases of 
the development (through Phase 4.a.), but had become a dumping area for construction debris and old 
irrigation pipe by the time Carriage Homes acquired the development rights for Point Sal Dunes in early 
1999; and 

WHEREAS, also according to Wayne Vaughn, Jr., this “borrow pit” had also become filled with standing 
water which Carriage Homes attempted to drain in 1999, which activity resulted in an Administrative 
Order from the Environmental Protection Agency to cease and desist because the area might be a 
defined wetland and/or water of the United States, which Order was lifted about five years later; and 

WHEREAS, also according to Wayne Vaughn, Jr., the Army Corps of Engineers thereafter determined 
another year and a half later that the “borrow pit” was not a water of the United States, and another 
year after that, the Department of Fish and Wildlife Services accepted that the site was not habitat for 
the California red-legged frog; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Guadalupe issued a limited grading permit in 2007 to permit Carriage Homes to 
fill in the “borrow pit” which grading was completed also according to Wayne Vaughn, Jr., sometime that 
year; and 

WHEREAS, Carriage Homes thereafter also completed construction of the remainder of the homes in 
Phases 4.b through 5.c., and although the City accepted all of the related public improvements for these 
phases; and 

WHEREAS, Wayne Vaughn, Jr. has requested that the City of Guadalupe official acknowledge that the 
“borrow pit” has been filled in and fully mitigated as required and to issue a Notice of Completion. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Guadalupe as follows: 

Attachment 7



Page 2 of 2 
 

1.  The City of Guadalupe acknowledges as accepts that the filling in and mitigation of the borrow 
pit in the location now known as Avocet Circle has been accomplished by Carriage Homes/Wayne 
Vaughn, Jr. as was required by the Subdivision Improvement Agreement between the City of 
Guadalupe and Carriage Homes entered into on May 10, 1999. 
 

2. The City of Guadalupe hereby releases any and all security that was provided to secure 
performance of the requirements and special conditions of the Subdivision Improvement 
Agreement between the City of Guadalupe and Carriage Homes entered into on May 10, 1999, 
including the filling in said borrow pit. 

 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting on the 13th day of July 2021 by the following 
vote:  
 
MOTION:   
 
AYES:        
NOES: 
ABSENT:        
ABSTAIN:  
 
 
I, Amelia M. Villegas, City Clerk of the City of Guadalupe DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing 
Resolution, being Resolution No. 2021-55, has been duly signed by the Mayor and attested by the City 
Clerk, all at a regular meeting of the City Council, held July 13, 2021, and that same was approved and 
adopted.   
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
Amelia M. Villegas, City Clerk   Ariston Julian, Mayor 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
______________________________  
Philip Sinco, City Attorney 
 



Planning Department:     

Tel (805) 356.3903 Fax (805) 343.6905  918 Obispo Street P.O. Box 908, Guadalupe CA 93434 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

City of Guadalupe 
918 Obispo Street 
P.O. Box 908 
Guadalupe, CA  93434 
Tel (805) 356-3903 

To: Mr. Mayor and City Councilmembers 
From: Larry Appel, Contract Planning Director 
Date: July 1, 2021 Planning Report Covering June 2021 

MINISTERIAL PROJECTS 

Zoning Clearances Approved    20 

Zoning Clearances Denied  0 

Zoning Clearances Appealed    0 

Business Licenses Approved   0 

Business Licenses Denied  0 

DISCRETIONARY PROJECTS 

The following projects are in for Planning Department review and have been worked on during 
August: 

➢ DJ Farms South – Staff brought map to Council on 6-8-21 at which time it was approved.
➢ Pasadera Lot 9 Final Map – FM approved 9.
➢ Sign Ordinance – Comments from GBA being reviewed by City Attorney who will provide

comments and edits to the draft ordinance prior to redistribution to GBA and public.
➢ General Plan Update – Special Council Meeting to be held on August 26th to present the

draft General Plan (which will be available to the public the first week of August.
➢ General Plan and Rezone of various sites within the City – folding this work into what has

been already prepared by EMC

If any Councilmember is interested in a particular project or would like to know its status, please let 
me know and I would be happy to provide the information. 

Agenda Item No. 6 I (1)



Ministerial Permit Report– June 2021 
(Reported 7-1-2021) 

 
 

Zoning Clearances Approvals 
 
2021-009-ZC   Pasadera  4360 Guerrero Drive 
2021-010-ZC    Pasadera   4426 Guerrero Drive  
2021-011-ZC    Pasadera   4450 Guerrero Drive 
2021-012-ZC    Pasadera   4366 Guerrero Drive  
2021-013-ZC    Pasadera   4396 Guerrero Drive  
2021-014-ZC    Pasadera   4418 Guerrero Drive 
2021-015-ZC      Pasadera   360 Promesa Drive 
2021-016-ZC    Pasadera   4390 Guerrero Drive 
 
2021-017-ZC    Pasadera   4444 Guerrero Drive 
2021-018-ZC    Pasadera   4378 Guerrero Drive  
2021-019-ZC    Pasadera   
2021-020-ZC     Pasadera   4350 Guerrero Drive  
2021-021-ZC     Pasadera   4384 Guerrero Drive 
2021-022-ZC     Pasadera   4356 Guerrero Drive 
2021-023-ZC     Pasadera   4372 Guerrero Drive  
2021-024-ZC     Pasadera   4408 Guerrero Drive  
2021-025-ZC     Pasadera   4420 Guerrero Drive 
2021-026-ZC     Pasadera   4438 Guerrero Drive 
 

   2021-045-ZC  Adame front paving 4461 Second Street 
2021-046-ZC  Serrano rear paving 4382 Hacienda Dr 
 

Zoning Clearances Denied 
 
None 
 

Business License Approvals 
 
None 
 

Business License Denials 
 

None 
 



Guadalupe City Planning Department 
Planning Processing Summary for June 2021 

(7-1-2021 update) 
 
 Case No. 

Name Submittal 
Date 

Comp. 
Date 

Status OK for Bldg. 
Permit Issuance 

      

2017-130-TPM 
$$ 

DJ Farms South 
Master TPM 
 

10-12-17 Complete-
09-27-19 

Master TPM for property south of RxR 
was approved on 6-8-21.  Next step is to 
record the FM. 

NO 

2020-101-LLA Almaguer 
LLA/GPZ 

Oct 2020 t GPZ initiation and preliminary approval of 
LLA both approved at April 27th Council 
meeting. GPZ to Council in July. 

NO 

2019-067-VTTM 
$$ 

Pasadera Lot 9   Final Map was recorded in early June.  
Eighteen Zoning Clearances approved 
shortly thereafter. 

NO 

2018-135-GPZ 
No$ 

General Plan 
amendment and 
Rezone of several 
areas of the City 

08/29/18 N/A Calculations completed for increasing 
density in Gularte Tract. Land Use 
changes are being incorporated in the 
Updated General Plan 

N/A 

N/A 
$$ thru SB2 grant 

General Plan 
Update 

2019 City 
Council 
authorization 

N/A Staff met for an all-day site visit and 
strategy session, reviewing staff 
comments on the Admin Draft GP 

N/A 

N/A Snowy Plover 6-21-21 N/A Council initiated the project on 3-23.  
Meeting with staff on 6-21 and Pre-Ap 
scheduled for 7-2-21. 

N/A 

2018-133-OA 
No$ 

Round 3 Zoning 
Ordinance Updates 

8/12/19 N/A Preparing new zoning ordinance Chapter 
55 for Home Occupations and Cottage 
Food Industries (ongoing) 

N/A 

2018 -133 OA 
No$ 

Sign Ordinance 2/24/20 N/A City Attorney reviewing comments and 
suggested edits by GBA before releasing 
the latest version to the public.    

N/A 

 
No$ = unreimbursed planning work 
$     = projects where a fixed fee has been paid 
$$   = projects where a variable fee / deposit is made and the applicant is billed for time beyond the initial deposit //   
 
 
 
7/1/2021 



Agenda Item No. 6 I (2)





















Public Works/Engineering Report 

July 2021 

Development 

Escalante Meadows 

Staff worked with the Housing Authority of Santa Barbara County on the submittal of an 

Affordable Housing and Sustainable Communities (AHSC) grant application on June 8. Grant 

award announcements are expected in October. The grant includes several Public Works projects 

including a multipurpose path on 11th St., some crosswalk and curb ramp improvements on 

Obispo Street, Class II bikeways on Obispo Street from 9th Street to Main Street, some 

contribution to the Highway 1 bridge replacement (CalTrans project), and one year of funding for 

enhanced public transit bus operations. 

General Plan Update 

Staff coordinated the transportation for a tour of City facilities on June 24 to assist City staff and 

the consultant on the development of the General Plan update. 

Encroachment Permits 

In June, staff reviewed five encroachment permit applications. 

Facilities 

On June 7, two trees on north side of City Hall that were falling over were removed. 

Fleet 

The 1998 Ford Taurus was sold at auction.  $684.25 was wired to the City June 11.  The car was 

removed from the vehicle insurance schedule on June 15 and the vehicle was picked up by its 

new owner on June 24. 

The 1991 Ford patch truck had been available for sale at auction for over a year. Since it had not 

sold at auction, the vehicle was sold for demolition on June 29 for $750. 

Agenda Item No. 6 I (3)



General 

 

Air Pollution Control District 

The City sent a letter to the Air Pollution Control District (APCD) in support of a grant to study 

particulate matter emissions from vehicles and other sources in the Santa Maria Valley, including 

in Guadalupe. Santa Barbara County does not meet the state standard for particulate matter less 

than 10 microns in diameter. This grant would allow APCD to gain a stronger understanding of 

the nature of particulate matter pollution in the Santa Maria Valley and to enhance community 

awareness about the health effects of particulate matter. 

 

Special projects 

Public Works staff worked on several special projects in the month of June including: Coordinated 

play structure safety inspection at Tognazzini and Paco Parks on June 2, fixed two tree grates on 

Highway 1 to remove tripping hazards (purchased electric band saw to complete this work) on 

June 7-8, replaced basketball hoops on June 10, fixed City Hall administration window on June 

16.   Purchased and installed commercial refrigerator and removed old one in City Hall auditorium 

kitchen on June 18.  Rented scissor lift and installed bright LED lights at Amtrak station on June 

21 to discourage vandalism and improve surveillance, coordinated the pickup of the 1998 Ford 

Taurus by its new owner on June 24, and coordinated the removal of the 1991 Ford patch truck 

from City inventory. 

 

IRWMP 

Staff continues to coordinate with the County of Santa Barbara for the $302,000 IRWMP 

implementation grant for partial payment of the effluent pump station rehabilitation project. 

Several pre-reimbursement materials were due to the County by July 7, including a no legal 

challenges letter to CEQA, a monitoring plan, and submittal of our final plans and specifications. 

These were submitted to the County on June 21 – 22.  

 

In June, the consultant began work on the Water Master Plan. The City sent information to the 

consultant including water production and consumption numbers for last 5 years, water atlas 

map edits reflecting distribution system changes since the last plan update in 2014, and recent 

fire flow tests.  In addition, the City has responded to questions such as expected new 

development, historical commercial water usage, and status of State Water. 

 

Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 

The County of Santa Barbara conducted a greenhouse gas emissions inventory for the City of 

Guadalupe and presented the results on June 30. A one-page summary of the 2018 greenhouse 

gas emissions inventory for the City of Guadalupe is attached to this monthly report. 

 

 



Water and Wastewater Rate Study 

Staff met with the consultant on June 28 to finalize the financial data and discuss the schedule 

for City Council meetings, Proposition 218 process, and public hearings necessary to discuss 

water and wastewater rates for the upcoming 5 years.  The draft report is planned for the first 

City Council meeting in August, with the Proposition 218 mailing soon thereafter. 

 

Benefit Districts 

City staff prepared the engineering reports for the Guadalupe Lighting District and Guadalupe 

Benefit District #1 and coordinated the completion of the Pasadera Lighting and Landscaping 

District engineering report with the consultant. In addition, all vacant parcels in the City were 

confirmed for the water standby charge. 

 

Parks 

 

LeRoy Park Community Center 

City staff met with the contractor, inspector, and consultant for weekly coordination site 

meetings on June 9, 16, and 30.  The water line was tested for leaks on Friday, June 4 and 

disinfected over the weekend. 

 

Playground Equipment Inspection 

Playground inspection for Paco and Tognazzini Parks was completed on June 2.   Final reports 

were submitted to the City on June 24. Recommendations for meeting play structure standards 

include new groundcover and signage. 

 

Solid waste 
 
Waste Management held a free community drop-off event for Guadalupe residents on Saturday, 
June 12 at the HSS recycling center at 1850 West Betteravia Road in Santa Maria.  
 
Staff participated in an edible food recovery group comprising jurisdictions in Santa Barbara 
County on June 7.  Quantifying edible food recovery within our jurisdiction is a requirement of 
SB 1383, California’s Short-lived Climate Pollutant Reduction.    
 
Streets 
 
Street Rehabilitation 
On June 25, staff met with the design consultant discuss the 60% design review and finalize 
project details.  The project scope was adjusted to keep within the budgeted amount for this 
project.  Final design is expected in July. The project will go out to bid at that time, for anticipated 
construction in fall. 
 
 
 



 
Transit 
 
Staff submitted a grant application for the National Regional Transit Assistance Program (NRTAP) 
in advance of the May 10 deadline in the amount of $100,000 for bus stop improvements.  The 
original announcement of awards was scheduled for June 18.  This announcement date has been 
changed to July 23. 
 
On June 16, staff submitted the data necessary to provide the City’s public transit information on 
Internet mapping programs. This program is called General Transit Feed System (GTFS).  The data 
is currently being reviewed for compliance with Internet rules and is expected to be live by August 
1. Once the GTFS data is live, the public will be able to map out trips using transit that will include 
the City’s transit offerings.  
 
Water 
 
Chlorine shortage 
On June 23, staff was informed of a chlorine shortage in California due to failures at multiple 
manufacturing facilities. It could take up to 20 days for supplies to return to normal levels. City 
staff has lowered the chlorine residual from its typical 1.8 mg/L to 1.0 mg/L in order to stretch 
out supplies during the shortage. During this time, distribution system chlorine residual levels 
will be monitored closely to make sure that they do not fall below 0.5 mg/L.  While this is still 
within drinking water regulations, the City staff prefers a higher margin of safety. In addition, 
staff has reached out to other chlorine suppliers to discuss chemical availability. Once supplies 
are back to normal levels, chlorine residuals will be restored to typical levels. 
 
Regulations 
On June 18, the State Water Resources Control Board sent a letter to all public water systems 
informing them that the Revised Total Coliform Rule takes effect on July 1. This new regulation 
changes how distribution system water sampling is conducted for bacteriological contamination 
and adjusts the response to positive results. Staff has verified that our existing bacteriological 
sample siting plan still meets this revised regulation, so no changes to our monitoring program 
will be made at this time. 
 
Tognazzini Well Evaluation  
Staff issued a scope of work to four vendors to evaluate the source of sanding from Tognazzini 
Well.  Two vendors responded by the due date with quotes ranging from $5,350 to $8,200.  The 
project was awarded to the low bidder, All American Drilling. The well was videoed on May 19, 
and on May 25 the City received a report with conditions and recommendations. To restore flow 
from this well is estimated to cost approximately $115,000. This is not cost effective for the small 
size of this well.  A request for quotes was written on June 29 to abandon this well. 
 
Annual Water Quality Report 

The annual water quality report was completed June 2. The report was mailed to all residents 

and businesses and posted to the City website June 4. 

 



Obispo Booster Station 

One of those small booster pumps at the Obispo Booster Station failed on June 7. The pump was 

assessed by Perry motors and repaired. 

 

West Main Street Waterline Upgrade Project 

Although this project is now ready to go out to bid for construction, constructing it at this time 

will create conflicts with the sewer trunk main project and cause considerable traffic issues. 

Therefore, it will be bid after the sewer trunk main project is nearly complete. 

 

Elevated Tank 

The City received the final report for the elevated tank inspection on June 29. The report 

recommends that the ladder be isolated until it can be repaired due to safety concerns, and 

recommends replacement of the ladder, balcony railings, overflow screen, roof hatch, and 

balcony deck. Also, small spot repairs to the main body of the tank are recommended. The 

coating on this tank is very difficult to maintain against the elements due to difficult to access 

areas, small-diameter rods, and tank edges that are difficult to prepare and coat. As a result, the 

coating system for this tank has an extremely short design life. Funding was included in the fiscal 

year 21 – 22 budget to address repairs to the coating system. 

 

Supplemental Water Purchase 

the City received confirmation that Mojave Water Agency approved the supplemental water 

purchase at their June 24 meeting. The City is purchasing 10 acre-feet of supplemental water at 

a cost of $10,000. 

 

Wastewater 

 

Process 

No violations occurred at the wastewater treatment plant during the month of June. Staff 

removed grit from the Biolac system on June 9, and June 28 to complete much overdue 

maintenance.  Measurement of the depth of grit in the Biolac basin indicated that the grit 

removal process is successful. However, two more days of grit removal are needed to fully clean 

the basin.  The process includes rental of irrigation piping, purchase of 3-inch hoses, and 

assistance from Clays to complete. Even with five days of cleaning and associated costs, this 

methodology is less expensive than bringing in a contractor to empty the basin and remove the 

grit conventionally. 

 

Two aluminum boats were ordered to build a maintenance biobarge for the treatment facility. 

When the two boats are welded together with a structure in between them, wastewater staff 

will be able to pull up process diffusers and repair or replace them without tipping over the boat. 

This is a far more efficient and cost-effective means for performing maintenance on the Biolac 

system than bringing in a contractor to complete this work. In addition, it allows staff to address 

malfunctioning diffusers more quickly. Malfunctioning diffusers cause poor treatment 

performance and higher electrical costs due to poor distribution of oxygen to the system. 



Delivery of the boats and welding is scheduled for July, with the diffuser replacement scheduled 

for August. 

 

Collections system  

No system overflows occurred in the month of June. 

2021 Trunk Main Improvement Project 
Bids for the 2021 Trunk Main Improvement Project was advertised for construction and 

inspection services were opened on June 9.  The project was awarded on June 22. This project 

involves upsizing 3,000 feet of sewer main and is vital for meeting current and future capacity 

issues, fixing broken pipe, and moving sewer trunk main from private property into the public 

right-of-way where practicable.  The project is anticipated to start in July 2021 and take 100 

working days to complete.  This project will impact Snowy Plover, Mahoney, Carlin, Lindy, Wong, 

5th, Campodonico, and 6th streets, as well as Paco Park. 

 

Effluent Pump Station 

Bids were opened on June 29 for the wastewater effluent irrigation pump system rehabilitation 

project. The notice of award is scheduled to go to City Council on July 13. This project is partially 

funded with an IRWMP grant. 

 

 

  



 

 

 

Ju
n

e
 2

0
2

1

P
ro

je
ct

 

N
u

m
b

e
rs

20
20

-2
1 

TO
TA

L
U

p
d

at
e

10
0

B
u

ild
in

gs

08
9-

10
1

P
u

b
li

c 
W

o
rk

s 
C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o

n
 Y

ar
d

 B
u

il
d

in
g

30
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
O

n
 h

o
ld

.

08
9-

10
4

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 A

cc
o

u
n

ti
n

g 
So

ft
w

ar
e

15
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
In

st
al

la
ti

o
n

 in
 p

ro
gr

e
ss

.

08
9-

10
5

G
e

n
e

ra
l P

la
n

 U
p

d
at

e
16

4,
22

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

A
w

ar
d

e
d

 in
 A

u
gu

st
. K

ic
ko

ff
 m

e
e

ti
n

g 
in

 O
ct

o
b

e
r.

 C
it

y 
to

u
r 

in
 J

u
n

e

20
0

P
ar

ks

08
9-

20
1

Le
ro

y 
P

ar
k 

(C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
e

n
te

r 
an

d
 S

it
e

)
3,

85
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 u

n
d

e
rw

ay
.

08
9-

20
2

O
'C

o
n

n
e

ll
 P

ar
k 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
t

20
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
A

ct
u

al
 a

va
il

ab
le

 $
17

7,
00

0.
Fu

n
d

in
g 

b
e

in
g 

tr
an

sf
e

rr
e

d
 t

o
 L

e
ro

y 
P

ar
k

30
0

St
re

e
ts

, S
id

e
w

al
ks

, B
ic

yc
le

 F
ac

ili
ti

e
s

08
9-

30
2

St
re

e
t 

M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 F

Y 
20

/2
1

41
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
d

 N
o

ve
m

b
e

r 
30

.

08
9-

30
4

St
re

e
t 

R
e

h
ab

il
it

at
io

n
 F

Y 
20

/2
1

90
2,

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
60

%
 d

e
si

gn
 r

e
vi

e
w

 c
o

m
p

le
te

.

08
9-

30
6

G
u

ad
al

u
p

e
 a

n
d

 O
b

is
p

o
 S

tr
e

e
ts

 P
e

d
e

st
ri

an
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

ts
40

6,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

. G
ra

n
t 

re
im

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
t 

co
m

p
le

te
.

08
9-

30
7

La
 G

u
ar

d
ia

 a
n

d
 G

u
la

rt
e

 L
an

e
s 

P
e

d
e

st
ri

an
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

ts
17

9,
53

7
$ 

   
   

   
 

Ex
p

lo
ri

n
g 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e

s

40
0

W
at

e
r

08
9-

40
1

R
e

co
at

 E
le

va
te

d
 T

an
k 

(D
e

si
gn

 a
n

d
 C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
)

49
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
In

sp
e

ct
io

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 M
ay

 2
8.

08
9-

40
3

W
e

ll
 A

b
an

d
o

n
m

e
n

t 
(9

th
 S

t.
, 5

th
 S

t.
, O

b
is

p
o

)
10

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

5t
h

 S
t 

w
e

ll
 a

b
an

d
o

n
e

d
 in

 A
p

ri
l.

  9
th

 a
n

d
 O

b
is

p
o

 W
e

ll
s 

o
n

 h
o

ld
 u

n
ti

l a
ft

e
r 

W
at

e
r 

M
as

te
r 

P
la

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

08
9-

40
5

O
b

is
p

o
 a

n
d

 W
e

st
 M

ai
n

 W
at

e
rl

in
e

s
1,

00
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
O

b
is

p
o

  S
tr

e
e

t 
w

at
e

rl
in

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
. W

e
st

 M
ai

n
 C

al
tr

an
s 

p
e

rm
it

 o
b

ta
in

e
d

 in
 A

p
ri

l.

50
0

W
as

te
w

at
e

r

08
9-

50
3

Ef
fl

u
e

n
t 

Ir
ri

ga
ti

o
n

 P
u

m
p

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 R

e
h

ab
il

it
at

io
n

 (
C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
)

52
2,

82
1

$ 
   

   
   

 
N

o
ti

ce
 o

f 
A

w
ar

d
 s

ch
e

d
u

le
d

 f
o

r 
Ju

ly
 1

3.

08
9-

50
4

H
w

y 
1 

Li
ft

 S
ta

ti
o

n
1,

00
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
D

e
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 F

Y 
22

-2
3

08
9-

50
5

Se
w

e
r 

M
ai

n
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

ts
1,

40
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
A

w
ar

d
e

d
.

08
9-

50
6

C
o

ll
e

ct
io

n
 S

ys
te

m
 C

le
an

in
g

 $
   

   
   

   
 6

0,
00

0 
C

la
y'

s 
le

as
e

 a
gr

e
e

m
e

n
t

08
9-

50
7

A
e

ra
ti

o
n

 B
as

in
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

ts
15

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

A
e

ra
ti

o
n

 b
as

in
s 

o
n

li
n

e
 M

ar
ch

08
9-

50
8

W
W

TP
 S

it
e

 Im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
ts

10
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 e
ff

lu
e

n
t 

sp
ra

y 
fi

e
ld

 p
ip

e
 =

 $
10

,2
62

.7
4,

 n
o

zz
le

s 
= 

$2
,8

64
.8

1

Tr
an

sf
e

r 
to

 C
IP

 f
u

n
d

 0
89

:
11

,3
98

,4
78

$ 
   

 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
.

C
it

y 
o

f 
G

u
ad

al
u

p
e

C
ap

it
al

 Im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

je
ct

s 
B

u
d

ge
t 

- 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
e

ar
 2

0
-2

1

P
R

O
JE

C
T 

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

S



Where do Guadalupe's
emissions come from?

0 25 50 75

Residential 

Commercial 

Over 62% of
Guadalupe's
emissions
come from
energy use

% NATURAL GAS
VS. ELECTRICITY

ABOUT THE INVENTORY

2018 TOTAL
EMISSIONS

The City of Guadalupe’s 2018 Greenhouse Gas Inventory is provided through collaboration with the County of Santa
Barbara Sustainability Division, the Santa Barbara County Regional Climate Collaborative and the Association of
Monterey Bay Area Governments (AMBAG). This inventory is a part of a regional effort to advance climate action at the
regional level by providing local jurisdictions with standardized community-wide emissions data.

10%54%

28%8%

Residential Energy

Commercial Energy

Transportation

Solid Waste

Wastewater

4,330

2,630

2,450

1,354

58

TOTAL 10,822

 
2.3 wind turbines

running for one year
would be needed to
offset Guadalupe's
carbon emissions!

All of the activities in our community have an
impact on the environment. Breaking down
the impact from each activity is helpful for us
to create ways to reduce our carbon footprint!

40%
0.5%

24.3%

12.5%

22.6%

Energy data was provided by Pacific Gas & Electric Company (PG&E) and the Southern California Gas Company (SoCalGas).
The transportation sector analysis includes emissions from all vehicle use on local roads within Guadalupe's jurisdictional
boundaries. Solid waste data was provided by the California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery
(CalRecycle). Wastewater data includes facility specific treatment and disposal details paired with population-based
calculations.

(metric tons
of CO2e)

*Percentages are rounded



1 

M E M O R A N D U M 
City of Guadalupe 

DATE: June 18, 2021 

TO: City Council, City of Guadalupe 

FROM: Michael Cash, Director of Public Safety 

SUBJECT: Summary and Recommendations - Guadalupe Police Department Response to 

Individuals in Crisis due to Mental Health Issues 

Background: 

Each year, 1 in 5 adults in the U.S. experience a mental health crisis condition.  The Guadalupe 

Police Department partners with the Santa Barbara County Mobile Crisis Team to respond out in 

the field with the intent to de-escalate persons in crisis, divert them from the criminal justice 

system, connect them directly with care and provide follow up after the crisis has subsided.  

Mental illness itself is not a crime, and it is our job to ensure, to the best of our ability, that 

persons in mental health crisis are safe and get the support and services they need. 

Police Statistics: 

The Guadalupe Police Department statistics for a fourteen (14) month period, April 2020 to May 

2021, regarding Citizens Calls for Police Services for Family and/or Mental Health Crisis, 

• Check the Welfare calls 117. 

• Safety Check of Family calls 83 

• Suicide calls 20 

• Gunshot Wound calls 1. 

• Mental Crisis calls 3. 

Total Family and/or Mental Health Crisis calls for service. 224 

Total Calls for Police Services - April 2020 to May 2021 4,663 

During the fourteen-month period, the department received and responded to 4,663 calls for 

service.  224 or 4.8% of the calls for service involve some type of family and/or mental crisis. 

Authority: 

Pursuant to Welfare and Institution Code § 5150 when any person, as a result of mental disorder, 

is a danger to others, or to himself or herself, or gravely disabled, a peace officer, or other 

individual authorized by statute may, upon probable cause, take, or cause to be taken, the person 

into custody and place him or her in a facility designated by the county and approved by the 

State Department of Mental Health as a facility for 72-hour treatment and evaluation. 

Agenda Item No. 8 
(information only)



2 
 

Such facility shall require an application in writing stating the circumstances under which the 

person’s condition was called to the attention of the officer, or other individual authorized by 

statute has probable cause to believe that the person is, as a result of mental disorder, a danger to 

others, or to himself or herself, or gravely disabled. If the probable cause is based on the 

statement of a person other than the officer, or other individual authorized by statute, such person 

shall be informed that they may be liable in a civil action for intentionally giving a statement 

which he or she knows to be false. 

 

Officer Considerations and Responsibilities: 

Any officer responding to or handling a call involving a suspected mentally disabled individual 

or an involuntary mental illness commitment should consider utilizing the following as time and 

circumstances reasonably permit: 

 

a. Any available information that might assist in determining the cause and nature of the 

mental illness or developmental disability. 

b. Conflict resolution and de-escalation techniques. 

c. Language that is appropriate for interacting with a mentally disabled person. 

d. If circumstances permit, alternatives to deadly force.  

e. Any available community resources that can assist in dealing with a mental disabled 

individual. 

 

Psychiatric Emergency Team: 

A Mobile Crisis Team is available around the clock to assist officers in evaluating mental health 

cases in the field, particularly if a 72-hour hold seems appropriate.  If the Team is out of service 

at the time or the individual has an overriding medical problem, or if it is necessary to expedite 

the commitment, the officer may take the individual directly to Marian Hospital Emergency and 

the Team will respond as soon as possible.  After evaluation, the Mobile Crisis Team will do the 

following: 

 

a. Write a §5150 WIC petition and initiate appropriate subsequent procedures thus 

permitting the officer to return to the field; or 

b. Arrange for an alternative disposition when an appropriate diversion program is 

available; or 

c. Conclude that the individual is not a candidate within §5150 WIC and so advise the 

officer.  If the officer disagrees with this finding, he/she may request the duty Watch 

Commander to initiate a telephone call to appeal to a Mobile Crisis Team supervisor. 

 

People under the age of 20 should be referred to Safe Alternative for Treating Youth (S.A.F.T.Y) 

 

Recommendations: 

The Guadalupe Police Department’s policy, procedures, and practices regarding mental health 

crisis responses are updated and an effective model for service to the community.  The 

established county-wide partnerships assist in providing services to our residents. 

The city lacks a Santa Barbara County Social Services facility for residents to visit for assistance.  

The nearest location is in the city of Santa Maria.  A Community Service / Resource Coordinator 



3 
 

housed locally could address Guadalupe residents and assist police in a more timely and efficient 

manner.   

Senior, youth, mental crisis, homelessness, food, housing, domestic violence, and other 

information services could be provided on the local level.  This position would not conduct or 

manage programs but provide information and guidance to the Guadalupe community.  This 

would provide police officers additional options and resources to not only de-escalate potentially 

dangerous situations but provide better customer service.      

 

 

 

Michael Cash 

Chief of Police 



1 

M E M O R A N D U M 
City of Guadalupe 

DATE: June 18, 2021 

TO: City Council, City of Guadalupe 

FROM: Michael Cash, Director of Public Safety 

SUBJECT: Summary and Recommendations – Contracted Supplemental Law Enforcement 

Services between the City of Guadalupe and the Santa Maria Public Airport 

District 

Background: 

On September 1, 2017, the City of Guadalupe and the Santa Maria Public Airport District 

entered into an “Agreement” whereas, the City of Guadalupe would provide police services to 

the airport.  The terms of the Agreement shall be for five (5) years commencing on September 1, 

2017, and expire August 31, 2022.  After the initial five (5) year term, the Agreement shall 

automatically renew for an additional five (5) year period unless amended by mutual agreement 

of all parties. 

Summary: 

The Agreement states the following terms; 

Term: 

• September 1, 2017 to August 31, 2022.  After five (5) years, automatic renewal for

another five (5) years.  This will continue with mutual agreement of parties.

Cost & Scope of Work: 

• The Airport District pays the City of Guadalupe the agreed upon formula as follows;

Personnel Expenses +Benefit Expense + Operating Expense + Administrative Expense.

a. The Airport District will reimburse the complete expenses for a full-time

police officer, benefits, and operating cost.  The Airport District will also pay

the City of Guadalupe 37% of all expenses.

• Annual meeting to review and discuss actual annual cost.

• Chief of Police render to District, a summarized monthly invoice.

• The cost for supplemental law enforcement services are developed by City of Guadalupe

to reflect the City’s actual cost of services.

City Responsibilities: 

• Provide law enforcement officers to airport district unless it notifies at least twenty-four

(24) hours prior unable to do so.

• Renegotiate the Cost and Scope of Work, if air carrier departure schedule changes or

increases, so that more officers or expanded hours are required.

Agenda Item No. 8
(information only)



2 
 

• Provide the number of sworn, armed, trained and uniformed law enforcement officers at 

the airport checkpoints as required by TSA at least 30 minutes prior to schedule departure 

time of each carrier. 

• Provide the required number of law enforcement officers, seven days per week. 

• Provide law enforcement services up to an average of twelve (12) hours per day. 

• Assign two (2) full time officers to the airport to provide services.  If unable to assign full 

time officers due to staffing shortages, City may assign limited service provisional police 

officers until such time that staffing levels allow City to re-assign full time officers to the 

airport. 

• Provide City of Guadalupe police officers or other sworn law enforcement officers in the 

State of California that the City may contract with to fulfill its Agreement obligations.  

Officers must meet TSA training requirements. (40-hour training course in Los Angeles) 

 

District Responsibilities: 

• Fund any necessary training mandated by FAA and/or TSA.  This will include personnel 

cost, tuition, travel, meals, lodging and mileage. 

• Fund the operation and maintenance cost of one City owned marked police vehicle 

assigned exclusively to the airport. 

• Be responsible for any changes to laws, regulations or other requirements that affect the 

cost of providing supplemental law enforcement services from the City. 

• Acknowledge that the officer on patrol may not be able to cover the first flight out if an 

emergency occurs in the City near a scheduled departure time.  If no law enforcement 

officer is present, flights will need to be rescheduled until such time as a law enforcement 

officer is available. 

 

Default, Termination, and Notice: 

• Each party may terminate the Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) day advance 

written notice to the other party. 

 

Fiscal Impact: 

City Airport Overtime Expense: 

Approximate monthly overtime cost - January 1, 2021, to May 31, 2021.   

• January 2021  $1,936 

• February 2021  $1,174 

• March 2021  $794 

• April 2021  $1,100 

• May 2021  $1,750 

Total   $6,754 

 

City Airport Expenses: 

The Agreement states that the Airport will pay all law enforcement expenses.  

• Monthly City Personnel Expenses Average   $12,000 

• Monthly City Personnel Benefit Expenses Average  $3,300 

• Monthly City Operational Expenses Average  $110 

Total Monthly City Contract Expenses Average  $15,410 



3 
 

City Airport Revenue: 

• Monthly City Revenue Average (37% of Expenses)  $5,702 

• Yearly City Revenue Average (37% of Expenses)   $68,424 

 

The current matrix shows one (1) officer on duty.  The addition of United Airlines to the airport 

in October 2021, and additional flights scheduled, an additional officer will be needed on duty. 

 

• Monthly City Revenue Average (37% of Expenses)  $11,404 (two officers) 

• Yearly City Revenue Average (37% of Expenses)  $136,848 (two officers) 

 

Recommendations: 

The Contracted Supplemental Law Enforcement Services contract between the City of 

Guadalupe and the Santa Maria Public Airport District is an economically viable program. 

 

All expenses relating to the added employees, benefits, retirement costs, equipment and overtime 

is recoverable through the contract.  In addition, all administrative fees such as management 

time, supervision, records management, evidence processing other tasks necessary to maintain 

the program are reimbursed.  The net to the City of Guadalupe is to split a portion of the existing 

financial obligation with the airport increasing our general fund revenue.  That shared support 

system with the airport in the form of administrative overhead creates the economy of scale and 

assists the City of Guadalupe increasing revenues. 

 

Provisions in the operating contract are beneficial to the City of Guadalupe in several ways.  

Aside from the creation of a cost formula including administrative costs, other expenses 

involving vehicles, transportation and maintenance reduce our exposure to increasing expenses.  

In addition, the Santa Maria Public Airport District is responsible for the purchase and 

maintenance of a high limit liability insurance policy for staff assigned to the program. 

 

The current contract expires August 31, 2022.  The program will be reevaluated for continuation 

and a follow up report provided to City Council for review.   

 

 

 

Michael Cash 

Chief of Police 



Page 1 of 2 

Agenda Item No. 9 

REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GUADALUPE 
Agenda of July 13, 2021 

_______________________________ _________________________________ 
Prepared by:   Approved by:  
Shannon Sweeney, Todd Bodem, City Administrator 
Public Works Director / City Engineer 

SUBJECT: Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District (FY 2021-22) – Public Hearing 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council conduct a public hearing to provide all present with the 
opportunity to speak regarding the assessments for the Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District and 
that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2021-56 confirming the Engineer’s Report, Assessment 
Diagram, and assessments related thereto for Fiscal Year 2021/2022. 

DISCUSSION: 

At the October 10, 2017, City Council Meeting, the City Council formed the Pasadera Landscaping and 
Lighting District (“District”) pursuant to the provisions of the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 after 
conducting a protest ballot proceeding regarding the assessments for the District pursuant to the 
requirements of the California Constitution Article XIIID. The District was formed to establish a dedicated 
revenue source to fund the expenses related to the special benefit to properties in the District for the 
ongoing maintenance, operation and servicing of the local parks, landscaping, and street lighting 
improvements established in connection with development of those properties (planned commercial 
and residential developments) identified in the DJ Farms Specific Plan and commonly referred to as the 
Pasadera development, which is generally located on the south side of Main Street near Obispo Street 
and Flower Avenue. 

At build-out, it is anticipated that this District will incorporate approximately eight hundred and two 
(802) single-family residential home sites; twenty-one (21.49) acres of non-residential development
(commercial service and commercial neighborhood); a fourteen (14.37) acre school site; and various
associated public areas, easements, and rights-of-way.

The proposed annual assessments to be levied and collected on the County Tax Roll for Fiscal Year 
2021/2022 are presented and more fully described in the attached Engineer’s Report and these 
assessments will provide funding for the net special benefit costs and expenses that are estimated to be 
necessary to service and maintain the local parks, landscaping, and lighting improvements associated 
with and resulting from the development of properties within the District for Fiscal Year 2021/2022. At 
the June 22, 2021, Council Meeting, the City Council’s adoption of the Resolution of Intention and 

Shannon Sweeney 



Page 2 of 2 

preliminary approval of the Engineer’s Report for Fiscal Year 2021/2022, and set July 13, 2021, as the 
public hearing regarding the annual levy of assessments for Fiscal Year 2021/2022.  

Tonight, staff recommends that the City Council: 

(1) Open the public hearing to accept public testimony and any written protests regarding the District,
the Engineer’s Report, and proposed annual assessments described therein for Fiscal Year 2021/2022.

(2) Upon conclusion of the public testimony, the Mayor will close the public hearing and the City Council
may adopt the Resolution which approves the annual Engineer’s Report and orders the levy and
collection of assessments on the County tax rolls for fiscal year 2021/2022 as described in the Engineer’s
Report.

The deadline for submission of the assessment to be included on the County tax rolls is August 10, 2021. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Engineer’s Report entitled “City of Guadalupe, Engineer’s Report, Pasadera Landscaping and 
Lighting District, Engineer’s Annual Report, Fiscal Year 2021/2022”.

2. Resolution No. 2021-56, confirming the Engineer’s Report, the Assessment Diagram and 
Assessments related thereto for the Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District, Overruling 
all Protests concerning the Assessments, and Approving the Levy and collection of the 
Assessments for Fiscal Year 2021/2022.



CITY OF GUADALUPE 

Engineer’s Report 

Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District 

Engineer’s Annual Report 

Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

Intent Meeting:  June 22, 2021 
Public Hearing: July 13, 2021 

CITY OF GUADALUPE 

918 OBISPO STREET 

GUADALUPE, CA 93434 

JUNE 2021 

PREPARED BY 

WILLDAN FINANCIAL SERVICES 

27368 Via Industria, Suite 200 

Temecula, California 92590 

T. 951.587.3500   800.755.6864

F. 951.587.3510   888.326.6864

www.willdan.com/financial 

Attachment 1

https://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http://guadalupe.dreamhosters.com/wp-content/uploads/2015/05/city_logo-235x300.jpg&imgrefurl=http://ci.guadalupe.ca.us/&docid=mWbZ0Xkjvh2GiM&tbnid=vlgCbC6peNDrTM:&vet=1&w=235&h=300&bih=740&biw=1299&ved=0ahUKEwimvNzdj-PTAhXBTLwKHRIzBicQMwhnKDgwOA&iact=c&ictx=1




Table of Contents 

 

Introduction ............................................................................................... 1 

Report Content and Annual Proceedings ................................................................ 1 

Part I — Plans and Specifications ........................................................... 5 

Description of the District ......................................................................................... 5 

Zones of Benefit ........................................................................................................ 5 

Description of the District Improvements ............................................................. 10 

Part II — Method of Apportionment ....................................................... 16 

Legislative Authority and Provisions..................................................................... 16 

Benefit Analysis ....................................................................................................... 17 

Assessment Methodology ...................................................................................... 21 

Part III – Estimate of Costs ..................................................................... 28 

Calculation of Assessments ................................................................................... 28 

Zone Budgets and Assessments ........................................................................... 29 

Assessment Range Formula .................................................................................. 31 

Part IV — Assessment Roll .................................................................... 32 

Part V — District Diagrams .................................................................... 33 



Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District 
Engineer’s Report 

Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

 

 
 Page 1 
 

Introduction 

On October 10, 2017 the City Council of the City of Guadalupe, County of Santa Barbara, State 
of California (the “City”), under the provisions of the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972, Part 
2 of Division 15 of the California Streets and Highways Code (the “1972 Act”) and the provisions 
of the California Constitution Article XIII D (the “Constitution”), formed the City’s maintenance 
assessment district designated as: 

Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District 

(hereafter referred to as the “District”), and established the maximum assessments determined to 
be necessary to support and maintain various landscaping and lighting improvements that will 
provide special benefits to properties within the District which includes all lots and parcels of land 
within the planned non-residential and residential development area identified in the DJ Farms 
Specific Plan and commonly referred to as the Pasadera development (hereafter referred to as 
the “Pasadera Development”) located on the south side of Main Street near Obispo Street and 
Flower Avenue. 

Report Content and Annual Proceedings 
This Engineer’s Annual Report (the “Report”) has been prepared pursuant to Chapter 1, Article 4 
and Chapter 3 of the 1972 Act, and presented to the City Council for their consideration and 
approval of the proposed improvements and services to be provided within the District and the 
levy and collection of annual assessments related thereto for fiscal year 2021/2022.  

This Report outlines the District structure, the improvements, and the proposed assessments to 
be levied in connection with the special benefits the properties will receive from the maintenance 
and servicing of the District improvements for fiscal year 2021/2022. The annual assessments to 
be levied on properties within the District will provide funding for the continued operation and 
maintenance of the local parks, landscaping and lighting improvements within the District and 
zones of benefit (“Zones”) established herein, which provide special benefits to the properties 
within the District and each respective Zone.  

To adequately provide and fund the parks, landscaping and lighting improvements constructed 
and installed in connection with the development of properties within the District for fiscal year 
2021/2022, the City Council has determined that it is appropriate and in the public’s best interest 
to levy annual assessments on the County tax rolls for the benefit of properties therein to fund the 
estimated special benefit improvement costs that are considered necessary to maintain and 
service the improvements. Furthermore, the improvements to be provided and funded in whole 
or in part by the District assessments are consistent with the development plans and 
specifications for the Pasadera Development and the overall improvements outlined in the DJ 
Farms Specific Plan which are on file in the Office of Public Works of the City of Guadalupe and 
by reference these plans, and specifications are made part of this Report.  

Each Zone (incorporating the sub-zones therein) outlined in this Report is a reflection of the 
various improvements and the types of improvements and services to be provided by the District 
for the properties that are directly associated with and benefit from those improvements. The net 
annual cost to provide the improvements in each Zone is based on the various improvements and 
the types of improvements and services to be provided by the District for the properties that are 
directly associated with and benefit from those improvements and the net cost of providing those 
improvements and services are allocated to the benefiting properties within the Zones using a 
weighted method of apportionment (refer to Assessment Methodology in Section II, Method of 



Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District 
Engineer’s Report 

Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

Page 2 

Apportionment) that calculates the proportional special benefit and assessment for each parcel 
as compared to other properties that benefit from the District improvements and services. The 
improvements to be provided by the District and the assessments described herein are made 
pursuant to the 1972 Act and the provisions of the California Constitution and the District shall 
incorporate each parcel that will receive special benefits from those improvements. 

The estimated cost of the improvements and the proposed annual assessments budgeted and 
assessed against properties within the District and each respective Zone may include, but are not 
limited to the estimated expenditures for regular annual maintenance and repairs; incidental 
expenditures related to the operation and administration of the District; the collection of funds for 
operational reserves or for periodic maintenance and improvement rehabilitation projects; deficits 
or surpluses from prior fiscal years; and revenues from other sources as authorized by the 1972 
Act. Each parcel is to be assessed proportionately for only those improvements, services and 
expenses for which the parcel will receive special benefit. Each fiscal year, the City shall establish 
the District’s assessments based on an estimate of the costs to maintain, operate and service the 
improvements for that fiscal year and available revenues including fund balances, general benefit 
contributions, any additional contributions from other revenue sources, and the assessment limits 
established for the District and Zones. 

The word “parcel,” for the purposes of this Report, refers to an individual property assigned its 
own Assessor’s Parcel Number (“APN”) by the Santa Barbara County Assessor’s Office. The 
Santa Barbara County Auditor/Controller uses Assessor’s Parcel Numbers and specific Fund 
Numbers to identify properties to be assessed on the tax roll for the District assessments. 

At a noticed annual Public Hearing, the City Council will accept all public comments and written 
protests regarding the District and the annual levy of assessments. Based on those public 
comments and written protests, the City Council may order amendments to the Report or confirm 
the Report as submitted. Following final approval of the Report and confirmation of the 
assessments the Council will, by Resolution, order the improvements to be made and confirm the 
levy and collection of assessments for fiscal year 2021/2022 pursuant to the 1972 Act. The 
assessments as approved will be submitted to the Santa Barbara Auditor/Controller to be included 
on the property tax roll for each parcel. 

As required by the 1972 Act, this Engineer’s Report describes the improvements to be provided, 
maintained and serviced by the District, an estimated budget for the District improvements, and 
the proposed assessments to be levied upon each assessable lot or parcel within the District for 
fiscal year 2021/2022. 

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, portion, zone, or subzone of this Report is, 
for any reason, held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any court of competent 
jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions of the Report 
and each section, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, portion, zone, or subzone 
thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses, 
phrases, portions, zones, or subzones might subsequently be declared invalid or unconstitutional. 



Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District 
Engineer’s Report 

Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

 

 
 Page 3 
 

This Report consists of five (5) parts: 

Part I — Plans and Specifications: 
This section provides a general description of the District and the improvements for which parcels 
are assessed. The assessments outlined in this Report are based on the improvements and 
appurtenant facilities that provide special benefits to the properties within the District and 
generally consist of local parks, various landscaping improvements, street lighting, and related 
appurtenant facilities and operational expenses authorized pursuant to the 1972 Act. The plans 
and specifications contained in this Report generally describe the nature and extent of the 
improvements to be provided at build-out of the District, and specifically those improvements that 
have been installed and may be accepted and maintained for fiscal year 2021/2022. In 
conjunction with these general descriptions of the improvements, visual depictions of the 
landscaping and lighting improvements that have been installed and may be accepted for 
maintenance for fiscal year 2021/2022 as well as the overall improvements anticipated at build-
out are provided in “Part V- Assessment Diagrams” of this Report. More detailed information 
regarding the specific plans and specifications associated with these improvements are on file in 
the Office of Public Works of the City of Guadalupe and by reference are made part of this Report. 

Part II — Method of Apportionment 
This section includes a discussion of the general and special benefits associated with the various 
improvements to be provided within the District (Benefit Analysis), which includes a discussion of 
the proportional costs of the special benefits and a separation of costs considered to be of general 
benefit (and therefore not assessed). This section of the Report also outlines the method of 
calculating each property’s proportional special benefit and resulting calculated annual 
assessment amount. This method of apportionment is consistent with the adopted method of 
apportionment for the District at the time the District was formed and approved by the property 
owners of record in a protest ballot proceeding conducted pursuant to the provisions of the 
California Constitution Article XIIID. 

Part III — Estimate of Costs 
This section establishes an estimate of the fiscal year 2021/2022 costs to operate, maintain, and 
service the local parks, landscaping, lighting, and appurtenant facilities that have been installed 
and may be accepted and maintained for the special benefit of properties within the District. The 
budget for the District and each Zone therein (including the various sub-zones) incorporates an 
estimate of the maintenance costs and incidental expenses including, but not limited to: labor, 
materials, utilities, equipment, and administration expenses as well as the collection of other 
appropriate funding authorized by the 1972 Act and deemed necessary to fully support the 
improvements. Those improvements and/or costs determined to be of general benefit shall be 
funded by a City contribution and are excluded from the amount to be assessed as special benefit. 
The resulting assessment rates (the “Assessment Per EBU”) identified in the budget for each 
Zone establishes the proposed assessments to be levied and collected for fiscal year 2021/2022. 

Part IV — Assessment Roll 
The assessment amounts to be levied and collected in fiscal year 2021/2022 for each parcel is 
based on the parcel’s calculated proportional special benefit as outlined in "Part II - Method of 
Apportionment" and the annual assessment rates established by the estimated budgets in "Part 
III - Estimate of Costs" of this Report. Due to the number of parcels within the District, the 



Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District 
Engineer’s Report 

Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

 

 
 Page 4 
 

Assessment Roll for fiscal year 2021/2022 has been filed electronically with the City Clerk rather 
than displayed in this Report. The parcels and assessment amounts contained the electronic 
Assessment Roll filed with the City Clerk represents the parcels an assessment amounts to be 
filed with the Santa Barbara County Auditor/Controller and collected on the County Tax Rolls for 
fiscal year 2021/2022 and by reference the listing of the Assessor’s Parcel Numbers and the 
corresponding assessment amounts are made part of this Report.  

Part V — District Diagrams 
This section of the Report contains various diagram(s) that identify the parcels and improvements 
within the District including: 

District Diagram – Boundary and Zones, Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

District Diagram –Development and Improvements, Planned at Buildout 

District Diagram – Development and Improvements, Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

The lines and dimensions of each lot, parcel, and subdivision of land contained in the “District 
Diagram – Boundary and Zones, Fiscal Year 2021/2022” is inclusive of all parcels identified in 
“Part IV – Assessment Roll” of this Report and the corresponding County Assessor’s Parcel Maps 
for said parcels as they existed at the time this Report was prepared and shall include all 
subsequent subdivisions, lot-line adjustments, or parcel changes therein. Reference is hereby 
made to the Santa Barbara County Assessor’s maps for a detailed description of the lines and 
dimensions of each lot and parcel of land within the District.  

 



Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District 
Engineer’s Report 

Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

 

 
 Page 5 
 

Part I — Plans and Specifications 

Description of the District 
The territory within the District consists of the lots or parcels of land within the planned non-
residential and residential development area identified in the DJ Farms Specific Plan and 
commonly referred to as the “Pasadera Development” which is located within the City of 
Guadalupe on the south side of Main Street near Obispo Street and Flower Avenue. According 
to the DJ Farms Specific Plan, at build-out, the District is anticipated to incorporate eight hundred 
and three (803) single-family residential home sites; approximately twenty-one (21.49) acres of 
non-residential development; a fourteen (14.37) acre school site; and various associated public 
areas, easements, and rights-of-way that are either part of the District improvements or otherwise 
considered to receive no special benefit from the improvements being provide. At the time this 
Report was prepared, the lots and parcels of land within the District are inclusive of the following 
parcels identified on the Santa Barbara County Assessor’s Parcel Maps as:  

Book 113, Page 01, Parcels 25 and 37;   

Book 113, Page 08, Parcel 18;  

Book 113, Page 45, Parcels 01 through 03, and 06 through 10;  

Book 113, Page 46, Parcels 01 through 57;  

Book 113, Page 47, Parcels 01 through 61;  

Book 113, Page 48, Parcels 01 through 41; and, 

Book 113, Page 49, Parcels 01 through 224. 

 

The Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District is located along the southern boundary of the 
City, and the properties immediately west, south, and east of these District parcels (excluding any 
streets or other rights-of-way) are currently outside City boundaries.  

Zones of Benefit 
The 1972 Act permits the establishment of assessment districts by agencies for the purpose of 
providing various landscaping and lighting improvements, including the acquisition, construction, 
installation, maintenance, and servicing of those improvements and related facilities. In addition, 
to ensure an appropriate allocation of the estimated costs to provide various improvements based 
on proportional special benefits, landscaping and lighting districts often times include benefit 
zones (“Zones”) as authorized pursuant to Chapter 1 Article 4, Section 22574 of the 1972 Act: 

“The diagram and assessment may classify various areas within an assessment district into 
different zones where, by reason of variations in the nature, location, and extent of the 
improvements, the various areas will receive differing degrees of benefit from the improvements. 
A zone shall consist of all territory which will receive substantially the same degree of benefit from 
the improvements.” 

While the California Constitution requires that “The proportionate special benefit derived by each 
identified parcel shall be determined in relationship to the entirety of the capital cost of a public 
improvement or the maintenance and operation expenses of a public improvement…”; it is 
reasonable to conclude that certain landscaping and/or lighting improvements may benefit the 
majority of the parcels within a district if not all properties, while other improvements may only 



Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District 
Engineer’s Report 

Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

 

 
 Page 6 
 

provide special benefits to specific parcels, developments or portions of the district (particularly in 
larger districts). In addition, some improvements within a district and/or the costs associated with 
various public improvements are identified as providing some measure of general benefit and 
because these general benefit costs cannot be assessed, the overall cost of those improvements 
may be proportionately allocated as both special benefits and general benefit.  

In accordance with the 1972 Act, it has been determined that it is appropriate and necessary to 
establish two overall benefit zones (Zones) within this District to be designated as Zone A and 
Zone B and sub-zones within Zone B (currently Sub-Zones B1, B2, and B3). The boundaries of 
each Zone and Sub-Zone is established based on the location, extent and types of improvements 
or similarities in the types of improvements being maintained through the District assessments as 
well as the particular and distinct benefits the various developments and properties derive from 
those improvements based on proximity to those specific improvements and the nexus between 
the development of the properties that required or facilitated the installation of those 
improvements. While some improvements may be specifically associated with specific 
development areas or parcels within the District, many improvements may reasonably be 
considered shared improvements because the overall development of the properties in the area 
required or necessitated those improvements. In such cases, the special benefits and cost of 
providing such improvements are proportionately shared by parcels in each Zone.  

The net annual cost to provide the improvements for each Zone and/or Sub-Zone are allocated 
to the benefiting properties within that Zone using a weighted method of apportionment (refer to 
Assessment Methodology in Section II, Method of Apportionment) that calculates the proportional 
special benefit and assessment for each parcel as compared to other properties that benefit from 
the District improvements and services. The following is a brief description and summary of the 
Zones and improvements associated within each Zone. A visual depiction of the location and 
extent of the improvements and Zone boundaries are provided in the District Diagrams provided 
in Part V of this Report.  

Zone A Parcels and Improvements 

Zone A Parcels 

Zone A comprises that portion of the parcels within District located on the south side of Main 
Street and north of Buena Vista Road. The properties in this Zone are primarily identified as non-
residential properties, but also incorporates a drainage basin in the northeast corner of the District 
for which the landscaping will be maintained by the District and proportionately shared by parcels 
in both Zone A and Zone B. Refer to the “District Diagram – Boundary and Zones, Fiscal Year 
2021/2022” in Part V — District Diagrams of this Report for a visual depiction of the properties 
within Zone A. In that same section, the “District Diagram –Development and Improvements, 
Planned at Buildout” provides a visual depiction of the drainage basin location within Zone A. 

Zone A Improvements 

The parcels within Zone A will ultimately receive special benefits and will be proportionately 
assessed in whole or in part for improvements that include, but are not limited to the following: 

➢ Shared Improvements (Improvements at buildout that may be proportionately shared by 
parcels in Zone A and Zone B) 

o street lights on Flower Avenue between Main Street and Buena Vista Road; 

o street lights on Buena Vista Road adjacent to both Zone A and Zone B; 

o street lights on Obispo Street between Main Street and Buena Vista Road; and  



Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District 
Engineer’s Report 

Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

 

 
 Page 7 
 

o landscaping improvements associated with the drainage basin site located at the 
northeast corner of the District. 

➢ Zone Specific Improvements (Improvements at buildout that may be proportionately 
shared by parcels in Zone A only) 

o street lights on the south side of Main Street adjacent to Zone A; 

Zone B Parcels and Improvements 

Zone B Parcels 

Zone B comprises that portion of the parcels within District located south of Buena Vista Road. 
The properties in this Zone are primarily identified as residential properties (single family 
residential parcels and planned residential developments), but also includes a future public-school 
site, various park and recreational areas, and various landscape improvements to be maintained 
by the District. Refer to the “District Diagram – Boundary and Zones, Fiscal Year 2021/2022” in 
Part V — District Diagrams of this Report for a visual depiction of the properties within Zone B. In 
that same section, the “District Diagram –Development and Improvements, Planned at Buildout” 
provides an overall visual depiction of the planned landscaping and lighting improvements 
throughout the District and Zone B. 

Zone B Improvements  

The parcels within Zone B will ultimately receive special benefits and will be proportionately 
assessed in whole or in part for improvements that include, but are not limited to the following: 

➢ Shared Improvements (Improvements at buildout that may be proportionately shared by 
parcels in Zone A and Zone B) 

o street lights on Flower Avenue between Main Street and Buena Vista Road; 

o street lights on Buena Vista Road located between Zone A and Zone B; 

o street lights on Obispo Street between Main Street and Buena Vista Road; and  

o landscaping improvements associated with the drainage basin site located at the 
northeast corner of the District. 

➢ Zone Specific Improvements (Improvements at buildout that may be proportionately 
shared by parcels in Zone B only) 

o street lights on Obispo Street between Buena Vista Road and “C” Street, which is the end 
of Obispo street, (proportionately shared by parcels in Zone B only); and  

o the remaining street lights (194 street lights not identified above) within the planned 
residential developments; 

o landscaping improvements on both sides of Obispo Street between Buena Vista Road 
and "C" Street; 

o landscaping improvements on both sides of Del Mar Drive between Obispo Street and 
Fuente Drive; 

o landscaping improvements on the west side of Arroyo Seco Road between Buena Vista 
Road and Manzanita Street; 

o landscaping improvements on the west side of Arroyo Seco Road between the park site 
and the end of Arroyo Seco Road (cul-de-sac);  



Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District 
Engineer’s Report 

Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

 

 
 Page 8 
 

o landscaping and trail improvements on the east side of Arroyo Seco Road between Buena 
Vista Road and the end of Arroyo Seco Road (cul-de-sac); 

o landscaping improvements on the north side of "B" Street between “C” Street and “F10” 
Street; 

o landscaping and trail improvements on the south side of "B" Street between "C" Street 
and "F10" Street; 

o landscaping and trail improvements on the east side of "F10" Street from "B" Street up to 
the end of the cu-de-sac on "F10" Street; 

o landscaping improvements on the east side of "C" Street between Obispo Street and "B" 
Street; and 

o landscaping and trail improvements on the west side of "C" Street between "B" Street and 
"D5" Street; 

o the paseo (pathway and landscaping) located between the homes on the southwest side 
of the intersection of "E2" Street and "E3" Street, connecting these streets with the park 
site near the northeast side of the railroad right-of-way adjacent to the park site; 

o the landscape buffer/trail on the northeast/east side of the railroad right-of-way extending 
from Buena Vista Road south to Obispo Street; 

o the landscape buffer/trail on the southwest side of the railroad right-of-way between 
Obispo Street and the designated well-site located at the northern end of "D1" Street and 
the paseo (pathway and landscaping) connecting "D1" Street with the landscape 
buffer/trail area; 

o the landscape buffer/trail on the southwest side of the railroad right-of-way between 
Obispo Street and “F10” Street and the paseo (pathway and landscaping) connecting "F1" 
Street and "F2" Street with the landscape buffer/trail area; 

o the Habitat Area on the south/southeast side of Obispo Street between the railroad rights-
of-way and "A" Street and between "A" Street and "C" Street; 

o the natural/minimal-maintenance landscaping improvements at the water tank site located 
north of the cul-de-sac on "D1" Street, between the railroad rights-of-way and the western 
boundary of the District; 

o the park/recreational area improvements located within sixteen planned parks and 
recreational areas located throughout the residential developments within the District 
boundaries. 

Zone B Sub-Zones 

Only a portion of the properties within the District have been fully subdivided and/or developed, 
and only a portion of the improvements have been installed. Therefore, for administrative 
purposes and to ensure an equitable apportionment of the annual maintenance and operation 
expenses, the residential development areas within the District identified as Zone B have been 
established and grouped into Sub-Zones to reflect the current and anticipated development of the 
properties and the installation of improvements within Zone B. The three Sub-zones which are 



Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District 
Engineer’s Report 

Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

 

 
 Page 9 
 

illustrated on the “District Diagram – Boundary and Zones, Fiscal Year 2021/2022” in Part V — 
District Diagrams of this Report are generally described in the following:  

➢ Sub-Zone B1 incorporates the residential developments that have already been subdivided 
into Single Family Residential lots and are in proximity and associated with local parks, 
landscaping and/or street lighting improvements that are anticipated to be installed and 
maintained by the District for fiscal year 2021/2022. Based on available Santa Barbara County 
Assessor’s data and development within the District, for fiscal year 2021/2022, this Sub-Zone 
will incorporate three hundred sixty-nine Single Family Residential parcels and the parks and 
proposed improvement areas within Tract 26,061 and Tract 26,062. These parcels are 
identified on the Assessor’ Parcel Maps, Book 113, Pages 46, 47, 48 and 49. 

➢ Sub-Zone B2 incorporates the planned development area generally located south of Buena 
Vista Road and Manzanita Street, west of Arroyo Seco Road, east of Obispo Street, and 
northeast of the railroad right-of-way which are not identified as Zone B1. The properties 
included in this Sub-Zone are currently identified by the County Assessor’s Office as Vacant 
property which has not been fully subdivided and/or developed. The parcels within this Sub-
Zone are currently identified as Assessor’ Parcel Maps, Book 113, Page 45, Parcels 06 
through 09. 

➢ Sub-Zone B3 incorporates the planned residential development area within the District 
located southwest of the railroad right-of-way. The properties included in this Sub-Zone are 
currently identified by the County Assessor’s Office as Vacant property which has not been 
fully subdivided or developed. The parcels within this Sub-Zone are currently identified 
Assessor’ Parcel Maps, Book 113, Page 01, Parcels 25 and 37; and Book 113, Page 08, 
Parcel 18. 

Application of Sub-Zones in Zone B 

By utilizing a Zone and Sub-Zone structure, similar properties with similar types of improvements 
will be assessed a proportional amount for the total annual expenses related to the maintenance, 
operation and servicing of the improvements provided by the District and for which the properties 
receive special benefits. The use of Sub-Zones allows for each development and the parcels 
therein to be assessed for the improvements provided as development occurs and/or 
improvements are installed.  

For purposes of establishing the annual assessments for Zone B, the parcels are assigned a 
proportional benefit and land use designation that reflects the current development of each 
property and relationship (proximity) to the improvements to be provided and maintained. For 
calculating the fiscal year 2021/2022 annual assessments:  

➢ Parcels in Sub-Zone B1 are identified as fully subdivided Single Family Residential parcels 
(with and without structures) and some parcels identified as Exempt Properties within Tracts 
26,061 and 26,062 for which the District anticipates maintaining all or a portion of the 
improvements installed in connection with these two subdivisions. (The parcels that comprise 
Tract 26,062 were not subdivided when the District was formed and were included in Sub-
Zone B2. In fiscal year 2019/2020 Tract 26,062 became fully subdivided residential lots and 
the sub-zone designation for this area was changed from Sub-Zone B2 to Sub-Zone B1). 



Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District 
Engineer’s Report 

Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

 

 
 Page 10 
 

➢ Parcels in Sub-Zone B2 and Sub-Zone B3 are identified as either Vacant Undeveloped 
Property, Undeveloped Residential Property, or Exempt Property and assessed in 
accordance with the method of apportionment described in “Part II — Method of 
Apportionment” of this Report. However, in future fiscal years as these parcels are subdivided 
or developed, and/or as additional improvements for Zone B are accepted for maintenance, 
at the discretion of the Assessment Engineer and/or City Engineer, the land use designation 
or Sub-Zone designation for the affected properties may be reclassified  

Description of the District Improvements 
As authorized by the 1972 Act, the improvements to be provided by the District and associated 
with each Zone therein incorporate local street lighting, parks, and various landscaping 
improvements that are to be maintained and serviced for the benefit of real property within the 
District. The various improvements to be maintained by the District have been or will be installed 
in direct connection with the development of properties for the benefit of those properties and are 
considered necessary for the development of those properties to their full and best use. The work 
to be performed within the District may include, but is not limited to (as applicable), the personnel; 
materials; equipment; electricity; water; contract services; repair and rehabilitation of the 
improvements; and incidental expenses required to operate the District and provide the 
improvements and services. The annual assessments to be levied on properties within the District 
provide a source of funding to support the continued operation and maintenance of these 
improvements that provide a particular and distinct benefit (special benefit) to those properties. 
Each parcel shall be assessed proportionately for only those improvements, services, and 
expenses for which the parcel receives a special benefit. The improvement plans and 
specifications for the District are on file in the Office of Public Works of the City of Guadalupe and 
by reference these plans, and specifications are made part of this Report. The District 
improvements anticipated to be installed and constructed at build-out generally include but are 
not limited to: 

Proposed Improvements at Build-out 

Landscape Improvements 

The landscape improvements to be funded by the District assessments may include, but are not 
limited to, turf, ground cover, shrubs and plants; areas of natural vegetation; trees; irrigation and 
drainage systems; masonry walls, retaining walls, or other fencing; monuments; hardscapes; 
concrete or decomposed granite trail/pathways; and other related appurtenant facilities within the 
District that will be dedicated to the City for maintenance or which the City has an easement to 
maintain such improvements including but are not limited to: 

➢ designated parkway side-panels adjacent to the streets and properties within the District, 
including parkways, entryways, and trails;  

➢ various non-street landscaping and/or vegetation management areas including a drainage 
basin, dedicated Habitat/Open Space areas, a water tank site, and buffer/greenbelt/trail areas 
along the railroad right-of way; and  

➢ the planned local park sites and/or recreational areas within the District. 

The following provides a summary description of the landscape improvements anticipated to be 
constructed as part of the development of properties within the District and ultimately maintained 
through the District at build-out. For reference purposes, in conjunction with these descriptions of 
the improvements a visual depiction of the landscape improvement areas is provided on the 



Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District 
Engineer’s Report 

Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

 

 
 Page 11 
 

diagrams contained in Part V of this Report. At build-out, it is anticipated that the District’s 
landscape improvements will generally include, but is not limited to approximately: 

➢ Obispo Street 
o 41,785 square feet of irrigated landscape improvements located on both sides of Obispo 

Street between Buena Vista Road and the railroad rights-of-way. 

o 20,463 square feet of irrigated landscape improvements located on both sides of Obispo 
Street between the railroad rights-of-way and "C" Street. 

➢ Del Mar Drive 
o 5,192 square feet of irrigated landscape improvements located on both sides of Del Mar 

Drive between Obispo Street and Fuente Drive. 

➢ Arroyo Seco Road 
o 4,720 square feet of irrigated landscape improvements located on the west side of Arroyo 

Seco Road between Buena Vista Road and Manzanita Street; 

o 3,196 square feet of irrigated landscape improvements located on the west side of Arroyo 
Seco Road between the southern end of the park site (just north of "E1" Street) and the 
end of Arroyo Seco Road (cul-de-sac); and 

o 68,660 square feet of maintained improvements located on the east side of Arroyo Seco 
Road between Buena Vista Road and the end of Arroyo Seco Road (cul-de-sac). These 
maintained improvements incorporate 45,702 square feet of irrigated landscaping and 
22,958 square feet of trail/pathway improvements. 

➢ "B" Street 
o 33,627 square feet of irrigated landscape improvements located on the north side of "B" 

Street between “C” Street and “F10” Street; and 

o 60,494 square feet of maintained improvements located on the south side of "B" Street 
between "C" Street and "F10" Street. These maintained improvements incorporate 40,342 
square feet of irrigated landscaping and 20,152 square feet of trail/pathway improvements. 

➢ "F10" Street 
o 6,813 square feet of maintained improvements located on the east side of "F10" Street 

from "B" Street up to the end of the cu-de-sac on "F10" Street. These maintained 
improvements incorporate 4,830 square feet of irrigated landscaping and 1,983 square 
feet of trail/pathway improvements. 

➢ "C" Street 
o 8,045 square feet of irrigated landscape improvements located on the east side of "C" 

Street between Obispo Street and "B" Street; and 

o 33,353 square feet of maintained improvements located on the west side of "C" Street 
between "B" Street and "D5" Street. These maintained improvements incorporate 24,932 
square feet of irrigated landscaping and 8,421 square feet of trail/pathway improvements. 

➢ Non-Streetscape Areas 
o 2,277 square feet of non-streetscape trail/pathway improvements located between the 

homes on the southwest side of the intersection of "E2" Street and "E3" Street, connecting 
these streets with the park site near the northeast side of the railroad right-of-way adjacent 
to the park; 



Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District 
Engineer’s Report 

Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

 

 
 Page 12 
 

o 22,850 square feet of improvement area (landscape buffer/trail) located on the 
northeast/east side of the railroad right-of-way behind the homes on the west and 
southwest side of Las Flores Drive extending from Buena Vista Road south to Obispo 
Street. It is anticipated that much of this improvement area will be irrigated landscaping, 
but all or a portion of the area may ultimately be installed with minimal/modified irrigation 
or no irrigation; 

o 15,778 square feet of improvement area (landscape buffer/trail) located on the southwest 
side of the railroad right-of-way behind the homes on the northeast side of "D1" Street 
between Obispo Street and the designated well-site located at the northern end of "D1" 
Street. This square footage includes the estimated 2,147 square feet of paseo (pathway) 
connecting "D1" Street with the landscape buffer/trail area. It is anticipated that much of 
this improvement area will be irrigated landscaping, but all or a portion of the area may 
ultimately be installed with minimal/modified irrigation or no irrigation; 

o 39,437 square feet of improvement area (landscape buffer/trail) located on the southwest 
side of the railroad right-of-way behind the homes on the northeast side of "F1" Street and 
at the cul-de-sacs of "F9" Street and "F10" Street, between Obispo Street and "F10" 
Street. This square footage includes the estimated 2,205 square feet of paseo (pathway) 
connecting "F1" Street and "F2" Street with this landscape buffer/trail area. It is anticipated 
that much of this improvement area will be irrigated landscaping, but all or a portion of the 
area may ultimately be installed with minimal/modified irrigation or no irrigation; 

o 280,770 square feet of natural/minimal-maintenance landscape improvements (Habitat 
Area) located on the south/southeast side of Obispo Street between the railroad rights-of-
way and "A" Street and between "A" Street and "C" Street; 

o 37,244 square feet of natural/minimal-maintenance landscape improvements (open space 
water tank site) located north of the cul-de-sac on "D1" Street, between the railroad rights-
of-way and the western boundary of the District; and 

o 67,388 square feet of maintained improvements (open space drainage basin site) located 
at the northeast corner of the Zone, east of Flower Avenue between Main Street and 
Buena Vista Road. These maintained improvements incorporate 30,842 square feet of 
irrigated landscaping and 36,546 square feet of non-irrigated natural/minimal-
maintenance landscaped area. 

➢ Parks 
o 659,633 square feet of park and recreational area improvements located within sixteen 

planned park sites or recreational areas located throughout the residential development 
area within the District boundaries. While it is anticipated that much of this improvement 
area will be irrigated landscaping (mostly turf), this overall square footage also 
incorporates the non-landscaped areas within the parks including play areas, sports 
courts, sidewalks and other hardscape areas, but does not include any parking areas 
associated with these park/recreational areas. 

Park Facilities 

In addition to the landscape improvements within the park/recreational areas, the improvements 
and facilities to be funded may include, but are not limited to maintenance and servicing of the 
sports courts and fields; playground equipment and structures; sidewalks, ornamental or safety 
lighting; benches, trash receptacles; drinking fountains, picnic facilities and any other equipment, 
structures or facilities related to the foregoing.  



Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District 
Engineer’s Report 

Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

 

 
 Page 13 
 

Lighting Improvements 

Lighting improvements to be funded by the District assessments may include, but are not limited 
to, electrical energy, lighting fixtures, poles, meters, conduits, electrical cable and appurtenant 
facilities associated with the street lights, traffic signals, and lighting within public areas within the 
District. Maintenance, operation, and servicing of these lighting improvements may include, but 
is not limited to the furnishing of electric current or other illuminating agent; as needed 
maintenance, repair, and replacement of worn out electrical components and light fixtures, 
including bulbs, ballasts, photoelectric cells, meters, electrical cables; repair or replacement of 
damaged poles, ground wires, and conduits caused by accidents, vandalism, time, and weather; 
and monitoring of the Underground Service Alert (USA) network to prevent damage by 
excavation. At build-out, it is anticipated that the District’s lighting improvements will generally 
include, but is not limited to: 

➢ Thirteen (13) street lights located on the south side of Main Street adjacent to the proposed 
non-residential development area within the District; 

➢ Two (2) street lights on Flower Avenue between Main Street and Buena Vista Road; 

➢ Fourteen (14) street lights on the north side of Buena Vista Road which is between the 
proposed residential developments and the proposed non-residential development area; 

➢ Twenty (20) street lights on Obispo Street; 

o Five (5) street lights located between Main Street and Buena Vista Road; 

o Ten (10) street lights located between Buena Vista Road and the railroad right-of-way; 

o Five (5) street lights located between the railroad right-of-way and “C” Street; 

➢ One hundred ninety-four (194) street lights within the planned residential developments; 

➢ The safety/security lights, recreational lights (fields and courts) and/or ornamental lighting 
associated with the park/recreational areas; and 

➢ Any other public lighting facilities including future traffic signals that may be deemed 
necessary or desired for the safe ingress or egress to the properties within the District. 

Excluded Improvements 

Improvements that are not a part of the District improvements include, privately owned street 
lights and landscaping improvements located on private property and/or areas designated as 
Homeowner Association or Business Association properties or easements. Such improvements 
and facilities including street trees shall be provided and maintained by the individual property 
owners, property management group or association established in connection with the 
development of properties within the District. 



Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District 
Engineer’s Report 

Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

 

 
 Page 14 
 

Fiscal Year 2021/2022 Improvements 
The following improvement are currently maintained or anticipated to be accepted by the City for 
maintenance during fiscal year 2021/2022 and will be funded in whole or in part by the annual 
assessments: 

Improvements Allocated to All Benefiting Properties 

The following improvement provide special benefits and are proportionately shared and allocated 
to all properties within the District: 

➢ Five (5) street lights on Obispo Street between Main Street and Buena Vista Road. 

Improvements Allocated to All Properties in Zone B Only 

The following improvement provide special benefits and are proportionately shared and allocated 
to all properties within Zone B (Sub-Zones B1, B2, and B3): 

➢ Approximately 31,339 square feet of irrigated landscape improvements located on both sides 
of Obispo Street between Buena Vista Road and Manzanita Street. This is approximately 75% 
of the 41,785 square feet of planned irrigated landscape improvements located on both sides 
of Obispo Street between Buena Vista Road and the railroad rights-of-way; and  

➢ Six (6) street lights on Obispo Street between Buena Vista Road and Manzanita Street. 

Improvements Allocated to Properties in Zone A and Sub-Zone B1 

The following improvement provide special benefits and are proportionately shared and allocated 
to all properties within Zone B1 and the properties within Zone A located west of Obispo Street: 

➢ Fourteen (14) street lights on Buena Vista Road which situated between the residential 
developments of Zone B1 and the planned non-residential development properties in Zone A. 

o Five (5) street lights on Buena Vista Road, west of Obispo Street (between Obispo Street 
and Las Flores Drive); 

o Nine (9) street lights on Buena Vista Road, east of Obispo Street (between Obispo Street 
and Arroyo Seco Road); 

Improvements Allocated to Properties in Sub-Zone B1 Only 

The following improvement provide special benefits and are proportionately shared and allocated 
to all the residential properties within Zone B1only: 

➢ Approximately 5,192 square feet of irrigated landscape improvements located on both sides 
of Del Mar Drive between Obispo Street and Fuente Drive (Entryway to Tract 29,061). 

➢ Approximately 20,598 square feet of landscaping improvements located on the east side of 
Arroyo Seco Road between Buena Vista Road and Manzanita Street (13,711 square feet of 
irrigated landscaping and 6,887 square feet of trail/pathway improvements). These 20,598 
square feet of improvements represent approximately 30% of the 68,660 square feet of 
planned improvements for the east side of Arroyo Seco Road between Buena Vista Road and 
the end of Arroyo Seco Road (cul-de-sac). 

➢ Approximately 4,720 square feet of irrigated landscaping improvements located on the west 
side of Arroyo Seco Road between Buena Vista Road and Manzanita Street.  



Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District 
Engineer’s Report 

Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

 

 
 Page 15 
 

➢ Approximately 46,906 square feet of park and recreational area improvements located within 
the two park sites and recreational areas located within Tract 29,061. The majority of the park 
site improvements incorporate irrigated landscaping (mostly turf), but this overall square 
footage also includes some non-landscaped areas including play areas, sports courts, 
sidewalks and other hardscape areas. 

➢ Approximately 74,968 square feet of park and recreational area improvements located within 
the park sites or recreational areas located within Tract 26,062 The majority of the park site 
improvements incorporate irrigated landscaping (mostly turf), but this overall square footage 
also includes some non-landscaped areas including play areas, sports courts, sidewalks and 
other hardscape areas.  

➢ Seventy-three (73) street lights within the Zone B1 residential development areas including: 

o Seven (7) street lights located on Arroyo Seco Road adjacent to Tract 26,062. 

o One (1) of the seven planned street lights located on Manzanita Street between Tract 
26,062 and the future school site. 

o Twenty-five (25) street lights within Tract 26,061 located on Fuente Drives, Castillo Drive, 
Las Flores Drive, Del Mar Drive, Esperanza Drive, and Gusto Court. 

o Forty (40) of street lights within Tract 26,062 including lights located on Ninos Drive, 
Hacienda Drive, La Joya Drive, Jalama Drive, Ladera Drive, and Lazo Drive.  



Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District 
Engineer’s Report 

Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

 

 
 Page 16 
 

Part II — Method of Apportionment 

Legislative Authority and Provisions 

1972 Act 
The 1972 Act permits the establishment of assessment districts by agencies for the purpose of 
providing certain public improvements, including the acquisition, construction, installation and 
servicing of landscaping and lighting improvements and related facilities. The 1972 Act requires 
that the cost of these improvements be levied according to benefit rather than assessed value: 

Section 22573 defines the net amount to be assessed as follows: 

“The net amount to be assessed upon lands within an assessment district may be apportioned by 
any formula or method which fairly distributes the net amount among all assessable lots or parcels 
in proportion to the estimated benefits to be received by each such lot or parcel from the 
improvements.” 

Section 22574 provides for zones as follows: 

“The diagram and assessment may classify various areas within an assessment district into 
different zones where, by reason of variations in the nature, location, and extent of the 
improvements, the various areas will receive differing degrees of benefit from the improvements. 
A zone shall consist of all territory which will receive substantially the same degree of benefit from 
the improvements.” 

The formulas used for calculating assessments and the designation of Zones and Sub-Zones as 
established herein reflect the composition of parcels within the District and the improvements and 
activities to be provided, and have been designed to fairly apportion the cost of providing those 
improvements based on a determination of the proportional special benefits to each parcel, 
consistent with the requirements of the 1972 Act and the provisions of Article XIII D of the 
California Constitution (Proposition 218). 

California Constitution 
The costs to operate and maintain the District improvements are identified and allocated to 
properties within each Zone and/or Sub-Zone within the District based on special benefit. The 
improvements provided and for which properties are to be assessed are identified as local 
landscaping and lighting improvements and related amenities that were installed in connection 
with the development of the properties and/or would otherwise be required for the development 
of properties within each respective Zone and/or Sub-Zone. The District assessments and method 
of apportionment is based on the premise that these improvements would otherwise not have 
been required without the development or planned development of those parcels. 

Article XIII D Section 2d defines District as follows: 

“District means an area determined by an agency to contain all parcels which will receive a special 
benefit from a proposed public improvement or property-related service”;  

Article XIII D Section 2i defines Special Benefit as follows: 

“Special benefit” means a particular and distinct benefit over and above general benefits conferred 
on real property located in the district or to the public at large. General enhancement of property 
value does not constitute “special benefit.” 



Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District 
Engineer’s Report 

Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

 

 
 Page 17 
 

Article XIII D Section 4a defines proportional special benefit assessments as follows: 

“An agency which proposes to levy an assessment shall identify all parcels which will have a 
special benefit conferred upon them and upon which an assessment will be imposed. The 
proportionate special benefit derived by each identified parcel shall be determined in relationship 
to the entirety of the capital cost of a public improvement, the maintenance and operation 
expenses of a public improvement, or the cost of the property related service being provided. No 
assessment shall be imposed on any parcel which exceeds the reasonable cost of the 
proportional special benefit conferred on that parcel.”  

Benefit Analysis 
The improvements provided by this District and for which properties will be assessed have been 
identified as necessary, desired and/or required for the orderly development of the properties 
within the District to their full potential, consistent with the development plans and applicable 
portions of the City’s General Plan.  

Special Benefits 
The ongoing maintenance of landscaped areas within the District will provide aesthetic benefits 
to the properties within the District and each respective Zone and/or Sub-Zone therein and are 
intended to provide a more pleasant environment to walk, drive, live, and work. The primary 
function of these improvements and related amenities is to serve as an aesthetically pleasing 
enhancement and green space for the benefit of the immediately surrounding properties and 
developments for which the improvements are constructed and installed and/or are facilitated by 
the development or potential development of properties within the District. These improvements 
are an integral part of the physical environment associated with the parcels in the District and 
while some of these improvements may in part be visible to properties outside the District and/or 
the respective Zones and Sub-Zones, collectively if these improvements are not properly 
maintained, it is the parcels within the District and/or the respective Zones and Sub-Zones that 
would be aesthetically burdened. Additionally, the many of the landscape improvements include 
parks, green spaces, and trails that provide visually pleasing open space areas that serve as an 
extension of the physical attributes of the parcels assessed, such as their front or rear yards and 
may also provide a greater opportunity for recreation as well as serving as a physical buffer and/or 
sound reduction buffer between the roadways and the properties in the District. Thus, the 
maintenance of these landscaped improvements provides particular and distinct benefits to the 
properties and developments associated with those improvements.  

Likewise, street lighting in the District is primarily useful for illuminating the streets that provide 
access to the properties in the District as well as the sidewalks and parking lanes associated with 
those properties. While it is recognized that street lights and traffic signals serve in part to enhance 
traffic safety, installation and construction of these improvements are for the most part, required 
by the development of properties within the district and these improvements provide three main 
special benefits to those properties: (i) property security benefit, (ii) pedestrian safety benefit, and 
(iii) parkway/roadway access benefit. Furthermore, because traffic circulation in the City is largely 
the result of local traffic to and from these properties by the property owners and guests, it is 
reasonable to assume that these properties derive a particular and distinct benefit from the 
streetlighting that support the safe access to the properties and essentially all pedestrians and 
parking vehicles in the lit areas will, after dark, be directly associated with the assessed properties. 
As a result, the maintenance of these lighting improvements is a particular and distinct benefit to 
the properties and developments within the District and the Zones and Sub-Zones therein. 



Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District 
Engineer’s Report 

Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

 

 
 Page 18 
 

Collectively these landscaping and lighting improvements and related assessments enhance the 
security, overall use, presentation and marketability of the properties, and ensure the long-term 
cost-efficiency of services that is obtained through the City provided maintenance (economy of 
scale), and the regulatory restrictions on future cost increases. 

General Benefit 
Landscaping General Benefit 

In reviewing the location and extent of the specific landscaped areas and improvements to be 
funded by District assessments and the proximity and relationship to properties to be assessed, 
it is evident these improvements have been or will be installed as part of the development of 
properties within the District or are improvements that would otherwise be shared by and required 
for development of those properties. Although the District improvements are located on public 
streets or public areas that are typically visible and/or accessible to the general public, it is evident 
that the ongoing maintenance of these improvements are only necessary for the appearance and 
advantage of the properties within the District that are directly associated with those 
improvements and these improvements (particularly the level of maintenance and servicing) are 
not required nor necessarily desired by any properties outside the District and/or the respective 
Zones and/or Sub-Zones associated with those various improvements. It is also evident that the 
maintenance these improvements and the level of maintenance provided has a direct and 
particular impact (special benefit) only on those properties in proximity to those improvements 
and such maintenance beyond that which is required to ensure the safety and protection of the 
general public and property in general, has limited (if any) indirect or incidental benefit to the 
public at large or properties outside each respective Zone. 

In the absence of a special funding Zone, the City’s maintenance of these improvements would 
for the most part, be limited to tree management, weed abatement, rodent control, and erosion 
control services for the various landscape areas. This basic or baseline level of service would 
typically provide for periodic servicing of these areas on an as-needed basis. This baseline level 
of service would provide for public safety and essential property protection to avoid negative 
impacts on adjacent roadways and vehicles traveling on those roadways and potential property 
damage, but results in a far less visually pleasing environment than is created with the enhanced 
levels of services associated with the regular landscape maintenance that can be provided 
through the District assessments.  

On average, the cost to provide this baseline level of service for the District’ planned landscape 
areas is estimated to be approximately $0.012626 per square foot (approximately $550 per acre) 
which includes a five percent (5%) cost factor for City overhead and administration. This baseline 
service cost per square foot represents approximately five percent (5%) of the overall cost per 
square foot for the annual operation and maintenance of the landscape areas.  

Other Landscaping General Benefits 

In addition to the general benefit identified above, it is recognized that there are indirect or 
incidental general benefits to properties within the District as well as the general public that are 
associated with regular landscape maintenance services, including: 

➢ Minimization of dust and debris; and 

➢ Decreased potential water runoff from both properties and the landscaped areas. 

Although these types of benefits might best be characterized as indirect consequences of the 
special benefit of the landscape maintenance provided to parcels served by the District, for the 
purposes of calculating proportional benefits, we assume these types of benefits to be general 



Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District 
Engineer’s Report 

Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

 

 
 Page 19 
 

benefits, albeit general benefits that are extremely difficult to quantify. We estimate that the costs 
associated with these indirect benefits do not exceed one percent (1%) of the annual maintenance 
expenditures for the landscaping improvements.  

The baseline general benefit costs and the indirect/incidental general benefit costs identified 
above shall be excluded from the special benefit assessment funding and not assessed to the 
parcels within the District. The total calculated general benefit cost for the landscaping 
improvements associated with each Zone and/or Sub-Zone is summarized in the table at the end 
of this section and is also identified in the budgets contained in Part III of this Report.  

Lighting General Benefit 

In reviewing the location and extent of the specific lighting improvements to be funded by District 
assessments and the proximity and relationship to properties to be assessed, like the landscaping 
improvements it is evident these improvements are being installed as a direct result of the 
development of the properties within the District or are lighting improvements that would otherwise 
be shared by and required for the development of those properties. It is also evident that the 
maintenance and servicing of these improvements has a direct and particular impact (special 
benefit) on those properties in proximity to those street lighting improvements and these street 
lighting improvements are for the most part, lighting improvements that exceed what would 
otherwise be required for traffic circulation or to ensure the safety and protection of the general 
public and property in general. 

Because these District lighting improvements are directly associated with the development or 
anticipated development of the properties within each respective District Zone and clearly provide 
a special benefit to those properties that is not shared by all properties in the City, it is certainly 
reasonable to conclude that the maintenance and operation of these improvements is largely if 
not entirely a special benefit to those properties to be assessed. Based on the special benefits 
previously identified for street lights, it is apparent that within residential developments (Zone B 
which is comprised initially as Sub-Zones B1, B2, and B3), the internal residential development 
street lights are installed solely for the use and benefit those residential properties and there is no 
quantifiable general benefit to other properties or to the public at large.  

In addition to the internal residential street lights within the various developments in Zone B, the 
properties in Zone B (both the residential parcels and the school site) are accessed from and/or 
are adjacent to Obispo Street and/or Flower Avenue and Buena Vista Road and the street lights 
on these secondary/collector streets are collectively and proportionately shared by the properties 
in Zone B as well as the non-residential properties in Zone A which are adjacent to these streets 
and associated street lights. Collectively, these secondary/collector street lights represent 
approximately 15% of the total street lights to be installed within the District. While these 
secondary/collector lights are clearly the result of the development of properties within the District, 
it is also reasonable to conclude that these types of streets are often accessed by the general-
public (possibly in route to the school or parks) and to some extent the street lighting on these 
streets may also enhance general nighttime traffic safety and circulation for other properties and 
the public at large. Based on various traffic circulation studies related data, it is estimated that 
less than forty percent (40%) of these secondary/collector street lights would be required for 
similar streets in less concentrated development areas. Therefore, it has been determined that 
the general benefit related to the overall operation and maintenance of these shared street lights 
is no more than six percent (6 %) of the street light operating costs for these particular street 
lights. However, to ensure that no parcel is assessed for more than its proportional special benefit 
for these shared street lights, the City will contribute for general benefit an amount equal to ten 
percent (10%) of the budgeted regular annual maintenance expenditures (maintenance and 



Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District 
Engineer’s Report 

Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

 

 
 Page 20 
 

energy costs). These general benefit costs shall be excluded from the special benefit assessment 
funding and not assessed to the parcels within the District. 

In addition to the internal residential street lights and secondary/collector street lights discussed 
above, the non-residential properties within Zone A will directly benefit from the street lights to be 
installed on Main Street (a primary/arterial street) adjacent to those properties. Similar to the lights 
on secondary/collector streets, it is certainly reasonable to recognize that the street lights on this 
primary/arterial street provides a measure of general benefit to the public and to properties in 
general resulting from nighttime traffic safety and circulation. The American National Standard 
Practice for Roadway Lighting and various related traffic and street lighting studies suggest that 
over ninety percent (90%) of the street lights installed on primary/arterial streets in urban areas 
are directly the result of property development (both residential and non-residential development). 
In turn these developments increase traffic circulation and ultimately dictate the type of lighting, 
spacing and number of lights required and without such development, both the need and quantity 
of those lights would be dramatically reduced, which is reflected by the very limited lighting that 
currently exists in this area on Main Street. Therefore, like the secondary/collector street lights 
associated with this District, it has been determined that the general benefit related to the 
operation and maintenance of the street lights on Main Street is ten percent (10%) of the regular 
annual maintenance expenditures (maintenance and energy costs). These general benefit costs 
shall be excluded from the special benefit assessment funding and not assessed to the parcels 
within Zone A of the District. 

The total calculated general benefit cost for the street lighting improvements associated with each 
Zone and/or Sub-Zone is summarized in the table below and is also identified in the budgets 
contained in Part III of this Report.  

Utilizing the general benefit service costs outlined above and the improvements proposed at build-
out, the following table summarizes the estimated general benefit costs calculated for each Zone 
and Sub-Zone within District: 

Estimated General Benefit for Street Lighting, Landscaping, and Parks 

 

 (1) As with most maintenance costs, the General Benefit Costs shown above will be impacted by inflation 
and in subsequent fiscal years the General Benefit Cost contributions will be adjusted for inflation. 

 

Zone A ($19) $0 ($19)

Sub-Zone B1 ($577) ($2,385) ($2,962)

Sub-Zone B2 ($10) ($33) ($43)

Sub-Zone B3 ($3) ($10) ($12)

Zone B Zone B Total ($590) ($2,427) ($3,017)

Total General Benefit ($609) ($2,427) ($3,036)

Zone Street Lighting 

Landscaping 

and Parks Total 
(1)

General Benefit General Benefit General Benefit

Sub-Zone



Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District 
Engineer’s Report 

Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

 

 
 Page 21 
 

Assessment Methodology 

To calculate and identify the proportional special benefit received by each parcel and ultimately 
each parcel’s proportionate share of the improvement costs it is necessary to consider not only 
the improvements and services to be provided, but the relationship each parcel has to those 
improvements as compared to other parcels in the District 

Article XIIID Section 4a reads in part: 

 “…The proportionate special benefit derived by each identified parcel shall be determined in 
relationship to the entirety of the capital cost of a public improvement or the maintenance and 
operation expenses of a public improvement or for the cost of the property related service being 
provided. No assessment shall be imposed on any parcel which exceeds the reasonable cost of 
the proportional special benefit conferred on that parcel.”  

Landscaping and lighting improvements like most public improvements, provide varying degrees 
of benefit (whether they be general or special) based largely on the extent of such improvements, 
the location of the improvements in relationship to properties associated with those 
improvements. To establish the proportional special benefit and ultimately the assessment 
obligation for each parcel, these factors need to be addressed and formulated in the method of 
apportionment by the use of benefit zones that reflect the extent and location of the improvements 
in relationship to the properties, as well as the specific use of the property and characteristics that 
reflects each parcel’s proportional special benefit as compared to other properties that benefit 
from those same improvements.  

The method of apportionment (method of assessment) developed for this District is based on the 
premise that each of the property to be assessed receives a particular and distinct benefit (special 
benefit) from the improvements, services and facilities to be financed by the District assessments 
and to assess benefits equitably it is necessary to calculate each property’s relative share of the 
special benefits conferred by the funded improvements and service. The Equivalent Benefit Unit 
(EBU) method of assessment apportionment is utilized in this District and establishes a basic unit 
of benefit (base value) and then calculates the benefit derived by each assessed parcel as a 
multiple (or a fraction) of that basic unit. This EBU method of apportioning special benefits is 
typically seen as the most appropriate and equitable assessment methodology for districts formed 
under the 1972 Act, as the benefit to each parcel from the improvements are apportioned as a 
function of comparable property characteristics The base value and assessment formula utilized 
in each Zone may be different, but is established for each Zone to reflect the improvements and 
properties that benefit from those improvements utilizing property characteristics that may include 
but is not limited to the type of development (property land use), property’s development status, 
and size of the property (acreage or units). 

For the purposes of this Engineer's Report, an EBU is the quantum of benefit derived from the 
various Zone improvements by a single family residential parcel. The single family residential 
parcel has been selected as the basic vale for calculation of assessments since at build-out this 
land use will represent over 98% of the parcels in the District and over 70 % of the total acreage 
developed. Thus, the "benchmark" property (the single family residential parcel) derives one EBU 
of benefit and is assigned 1.00 Equivalent Benefit Unit. 

The following outlines the land use classifications that are associated with or may be associated 
with the parcels in the District and the proportional Equivalent Benefit Units established for those 
land use classifications.  



Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District 
Engineer’s Report 

Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

 

 
 Page 22 
 

Land Use Classifications 

Single-Family Residential -- This land use classification is defined as a fully subdivided 
residential home site with or without a structure. This land use may include, but is not limited to 
subdivided residential tract lots, condominiums, or other individual residential units or subdivided 
lots assigned an Assessor’s Parcel Number. As previously noted, the single family residential 
parcel has been selected as the basic value for calculation of assessments and each is assigned 
1.00 Equivalent Benefit Unit.  

Multi-Family Residential -- This land use classification is defined as properties that are primarily 
used for residential purposes, but contain more than a single residential unit on the parcel (parcels 
with more than one dwelling) including apartments, duplexes, or other multi-unit structures. Due 
in part to the development and population densities associated with these types of dwelling units 
(reduced unit size compared to the typical density and size of single-family properties), studies 
have consistently shown that the average apartment unit impacts infrastructure approximately 
80% as much as a single-family residence. (Sources: Institute of Transportation Engineers 
Informational Report Trip Generation, Fifth Edition, 1991; Metcalf and Eddy, Wastewater 
Engineering Treatment, Disposal, Reuse, Third Edition, 1991). Therefore, it is reasonable to 
conclude that the proportional special benefit these properties receive from the public 
improvements funded by the District assessments has a similar proportionality and these parcels 
shall be assigned a weighted proportional special benefit of 0.80 EBU per unit. 

Developed Non-Residential -- This land use is defined as a parcel and/or development (group 
of parcels) that has been developed primarily with a non-residential use including, but not limited 
to (both publicly owned and privately owned) commercial retail or service, office or professional 
service, hotel or motel, manufacturing, warehousing, parking lot, and/or institutional facilities 
including hospitals or other medical facilities, private schools or education centers, churches or 
other non-profit organizations. Based on the planned residential development within this District, 
it has been determined that these planned single-family residential developments will yield 
approximately five dwelling units per acre of land. The actual residential development density is 
5.43 units per acre. Therefore, since the single family residential parcel (the base value for 
calculation of assessments) is assigned 1.0 Equivalent Benefit Unit it is reasonable and 
appropriate to assign the developed non-residential properties a weighted special benefit that 
reflects a similar and proportional development density. Therefore, the EBU assigned to each 
developed non-residential property is established by multiplying the parcel’s applied acreage by 
5.0 EBU per acre (e.g. a developed non-residential parcel of 4.25-acres would be assigned 21.25 
EBU, 4.25 acres x 5.0 EBU/acre = 21.25 EBU).  



Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District 
Engineer’s Report 

Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

 

 
 Page 23 
 

Public School Property -- This classification includes the parcel currently identified specifically 
as public school site. On average, approximately 1/3rd (33.33%) of the total school site acreage 
is developed with structures and parking facilities, which is similar to what is commonly associated 
with non-residential developments. The remaining parcel acreage (approximately 66.67%) is 
generally playground areas and/or sports fields which is similar to the District’s park 
improvements. Recognizing the overall development of this parcel as compared to other 
properties in the District and the improvements in proximity to this property, it has been 
determined that proportional special benefit EBU calculated for this parcel is accurately reflected 
by treating that portion of the parcel with structures and parking facilities (1/3rd of the parcel’s 
acreage) similar to the EBU calculated for Developed Non-Residential properties (33.33% of 
acreage x 5.0 EBU/acre), with the remaining 2/3rd of the parcel’s acreage being excluded (treated 
similar the District’ park facility, although this area is not part of the improvements being 
maintained by the District). Therefore, this 14.37 acre school site parcel shall be assigned 11.98 
EBU for balloting purposes to establish the property’s maximum assessment and proportional 
special benefit ([14.37 acres x 33.33% = 4.79 applied acre]; x 5.00 EBU/acre = 11.98 EBU). 

However, for calculation of the annual assessments each fiscal year, the Assessment Engineer 
shall apply to this parcel an EBU that best reflects the property’s development status and 
proportional special benefit from the exiting improvements and/or new improvements to be 
installed and accepted during the fiscal year. The Assessment Engineer may treat the parcel as 
a Vacant Undeveloped Property (assigned 1.00 EBU per acre or 4.79 EBU) or any proportional 
EBU up to the parcel’s maximum EBU described above (11.98 EBU).  

Based on the current development of this property and the location and timing of the 
improvements to be accepted by the City for maintenance during fiscal year 2021/2022, this 
parcel shall be assigned a weighted special benefit per applied acre applicable to Vacant 
Undeveloped Property. 

Planned Residential Development -- This land use classification is defined as a parcel or group 
of parcels that may currently be identified as vacant undeveloped property or undeveloped 
residential property, zoned for residential use, and the number of residential units to be developed 
on the property has been determined or identified as part of a Tentative Development Plan, 
Tentative Tract Map or Specific Plan.  

For balloting purposes to establish each property’s maximum assessment and proportional 
special benefit, these parcels were assigned an EBU that reflected the total EBU’s planned for 
that parcel at build-out (1.00 EBU per single-family residential lot and 0.80 per multi-family 
residential unit).  

However, for calculation of the annual assessments each fiscal year, the Assessment Engineer 
shall apply to such parcels an EBU that best reflects that parcel’s proportional special benefit from 
the improvements and services provided as compared to other properties in the District, Zone 
and Sub-Zone based on the type and location of the improvements to be maintained, the proximity 
of the property to those improvements, and the development status of the property. Because 
these factors can vary from year to year and from parcel to parcel, the calculated EBU for each 
parcel originally balloted as Planned Residential Development parcel may be different utilizing 
either the acreage of the parcel or number of planned units. The Assessment Engineer may 
identify the parcel and treat the parcel as a Vacant Undeveloped Property (assigned 1.00 EBU 
per applied acre up to a maximum of 5.0 EBU; as an Undeveloped Residential Property (assigned 
1.00 EBU per acre for the parcel’s total acreage); or may temporarily identify the parcels as a 
Special Case Parcel (refer to this land use classification below) assigning the parcel any 
proportional EBU up to the maximum EBU for which the property was ballot (1.0 EBU per single-
family residential lot and 0.80 per multi-family residential unit). 



Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District 
Engineer’s Report 

Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

 

 
 Page 24 
 

Based on the development of properties within the District (specifically in Zone B) and the location 
and timing of the improvements to be accepted by the City for maintenance during fiscal year 
2021/2022, the parcels initially identified as Planned Residential Development properties have 
each be assigned a weighted special benefit per acre applicable to either Vacant Undeveloped 
Property or Undeveloped Residential Property.  

Planned Non-Residential Development -- This land use classification is defined as a parcel or 
group of parcels that may currently be identified as vacant undeveloped property or undeveloped 
non-residential property, zoned for a non-residential use including proposed commercial retail or 
service, office or professional service, hotel or motel, manufacturing, warehousing, parking lot, 
and/or institutional facilities including hospitals or other medical facilities, private schools or 
education centers, churches or other non-profit organizations based on a Tentative Development 
Plan, Tentative Tract Map or Specific Plan.  

For balloting purposes to establish each property’s maximum assessment and proportional 
special benefit, these parcels were assigned an EBU that reflected the total EBU’s planned for 
that parcel at build-out (5.00 EBU per applied acre as applicable to Developed Non-Residential 
properties).  

However, for calculation of the annual assessments each fiscal year, the Assessment Engineer 
shall apply to such parcels an EBU that best reflects that parcel’s proportional special benefit from 
the improvements and services provided as compared to other properties in the District and Zone 
based on the type and location of the improvements to be maintained, the proximity of the property 
to those improvements, and the development status of the property. Because these factors can 
vary from year to year and from parcel to parcel, the calculated EBU for each parcel originally 
balloted as Planned Non-Residential Development may be different. The Assessment Engineer 
may identify the parcel and treat the parcel as a Vacant Undeveloped Property (assigned 1.00 
EBU per applied acre up to a maximum of 5.0 EBU); as an Undeveloped Non-Residential Property 
(assigned 1.00 EBU per acre for the parcel’s total acreage); or may temporarily identify the parcel 
as a Special Case Parcel (refer to this land use classification below) assigning the parcel any 
proportional EBU up to the maximum EBU for which the property was ballot (5.00 EBU per applied 
acre as applicable to Developed Non-Residential properties). 

Based on the anticipated development of properties within the District (specifically in Zone A) and 
the location and timing of the improvements to be accepted by the City for maintenance during 
fiscal year 2021/2022, the parcels initially identified as Planned Non-Residential Development 
properties have each be assigned a weighted special benefit per acre applicable to either Vacant 
Undeveloped Property or Undeveloped Non-Residential Property.  

Vacant Undeveloped Property -- This land use classification includes undeveloped properties 
that are identified as parcels with no development including residential and non-residential 
properties, undeveloped school sites, and parcels that may currently be used for agricultural 
purposes. Although it is recognized that most of the improvements within the various Zones and 
Sub-Zones of the District will be constructed and accepted for maintenance in large part as 
properties are developed and these developments will clearly receive a particular and distinct 
benefit (direct special benefit) from those improvements, it is also recognized that most of the 
various improvements proposed within the District are considered shared improvements that 
collectively support the overall development of properties within the District and Zones to their full 
and best use, including the vacant undeveloped properties. However, it is also recognized that 
the planned parks, internal (neighborhood) street lights and some of the non-streetscape 
improvements within the District are in large part specifically related to the residential parcels that 
have an immediate utilization of those improvements and the special benefit costs associated 
with these parks, neighborhood street lights and landscape areas should be assessed primarily if 



Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District 
Engineer’s Report 

Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

 

 
 Page 25 
 

not entirely to the properties which are developed or actively being developed. Likewise, most of 
the remaining landscaping and lighting improvements within the District will likely be installed and 
accepted for maintenance as properties are developed and those developing parcels clearly 
receive a proportionately greater benefit from those improvements than do the undeveloped 
properties. Therefore, it has been determined that parcels identified as Vacant Undeveloped 
Property shall be assigned a proportional EBU that is 20% of that assigned to developed 
properties, which is 1.0 EBU per applied acre (20% of the 5.0 EBU per acre assigned to 
Developed Non-Residential properties), up to a maximum of 5 acres per parcel or 5.0 EBU per 
parcel. (e.g. a Vacant Undeveloped Property which is 7.00-acres would be assigned 5.00 EBU 
[5.0 acre maximum x 1.0 EBU/acre]). 

Undeveloped Residential Property -- This land use classification includes undeveloped 
properties that were originally identified as Planned Residential Development parcels, but have 
not yet been developed or subdivided, but are either adjacent to or in close proximity to 
improvements that will be maintained for the current fiscal year, and/or the property is actively 
being developed. While many of the improvements within the District will be constructed and 
accepted for maintenance in large part as properties are being subdivided or developed and those 
properties will clearly receive a particular and distinct benefit (direct special benefits) from those 
improvements, it is also recognized that certain improvements within the District are installed in 
advance of property development that are considered shared improvements that collectively 
support the overall development of properties within the District and Zones to their full and best 
use, including the vacant undeveloped properties. However, it is also recognized that some of 
these shared improvements within the District have a more direct and particular benefit to those 
undeveloped properties directly adjacent to the improvements or in close proximity to those 
improvements than do the vacant undeveloped properties that are not actively being developed 
or are further from those shared improvements. Therefore, it has been determined that parcels 
identified as Undeveloped Residential Property shall be assigned a proportional EBU that is 20% 
of that assigned to developed properties, which is 1.0 EBU per applied acre (20% of the 5.0 EBU 
per acre assigned to Developed Non-Residential property), but unlike parcels designated as 
Vacant Undeveloped Property, there is no acreage cap for the parcel. (e.g. an Undeveloped 
Residential Property which is 7.00-acres would be assigned 7.00 EBU [7.0 acres x 1.0 
EBU/acre]). 

Undeveloped Non-Residential Property -- This land use classification includes undeveloped 
properties that were originally identified as Planned Non-Residential Development parcels, but 
have not yet been developed or subdivided, but are either adjacent to or in close proximity to 
improvements that will be maintained for the current fiscal year, and/or the property is actively 
being developed. While many of the improvements within the District will generally be constructed 
and accepted for maintenance in large part as properties are being subdivided or developed and 
those properties will clearly receive a particular and distinct benefit (direct special benefits) from 
those improvements, it is also recognized that certain improvements within the District are 
installed in advance of property development that are considered shared improvements that 
collectively support the overall development of properties within the District and Zones to their full 
and best use, including the vacant undeveloped properties. However, it is also recognized that 
some of these shared improvements within the District have a more direct and particular benefit 
to those undeveloped properties directly adjacent to the improvements or in close proximity to 
those improvements than do the vacant undeveloped properties that are not actively being 
developed or are further from those shared improvements. Therefore, it has been determined that 
parcels identified as Undeveloped Non-Residential Property shall be assigned a proportional EBU 
that is 20% of that assigned to developed properties, which is 1.0 EBU per applied acre (20% of 
the 5.0 EBU per acre assigned to Developed Non-Residential property), but unlike parcels 



Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District 
Engineer’s Report 

Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

 

 
 Page 26 
 

designated as Vacant Undeveloped Property, there is no acreage cap for the parcel. (e.g. an 
Undeveloped Residential Property which is 7.00-acres would be assigned 7.00 EBU [7.0 acres x 
1.0 EBU/acre]). 

Special Case Parcels -- In many landscaping and lighting districts (particularly districts that have 
a wide range of land uses, phased developments, and/or diversity in the location and type of 
improvements) there may be one or more parcels to be assessed that the standard land use 
classifications and proportionality identified above do not accurately identify the use and special 
benefit received from the improvements. Properties that are typically classified as Special Case 
Parcels usually involve partial or mixed use development of the property or development 
restrictions whether those restrictions are temporary or permanent and affect the properties 
proportional special benefit. Examples of such restrictions may include situations where only a 
portion of the parcel’s total acreage is or can be developed. In such a case, the net acreage of 
the parcel that is utilized rather than the gross acreage of the parcel may be applied to calculate 
the parcel’s proportional special benefit similar to how the Public School site parcel is treated. 
Each such parcel shall be addressed on a case-by-case basis by the Assessment Engineer and 
the EBU assigned to such parcels shall be based on the specific issues related to that parcel and 
its proportional special benefit compared to other properties that receive special benefits from the 
improvements. 

Exempt Properties -- Within most districts, there are lots or parcels of land that do not receive a 
special benefit from the improvements provided (exempt from assessment), which may include, 
but is not limited to public streets and other roadways (typically not assigned an APN by the 
County); dedicated public easements, public rights-of-way, or utility rights-of-way; common areas, 
bifurcated lots; sliver parcels or any other parcel that has little or no assessed value and cannot 
be developed independently; parcels that are part of the improvements being maintained by the 
District or that the City has determined that the parcel cannot be developed. These types of 
parcels are considered to receive no special benefit from the improvements and are therefore 
exempted from assessment and are assigned 0.00 EBU. 

A summary of the applied Equivalent Benefit Units (EBUs) for the various land use classifications 
within the District is shown in the following table:  

 

 Assessment Land Use 

Single Family Residential 1.00     EBU per Unit/Parcel

Multi-Family  Residential 0.80     EBU per Unit

Developed Non-Residential 5.00     EBU per Acre

Public School Property 5.00     EBU per Adjusted Acreage

Planned Residential Development 0.50     EBU per Unit

Planned Non-Residential Development 2.50     EBU per Acre

Vacant Undeveloped Property 1.00     EBU per Acre (Maximum of 5 Acres)

Approved Residential Development 1.00     EBU per Unit

Approved Non-Residential 5.00     EBU per Acre

Approved Multi-Residential 0.80     EBU per Unit

Approved Condominium Property 1.00     EBU per Unit

Undeveloped Residential Property 1.00     EBU per Acre

Undeveloped Non-Residential 1.00     EBU per Acre

Planned Multi-Family Residential 0.80     EBU per Unit

Exempt -      EBU per Acre

Special Case 1.00     EBU per Acre

Equivalent Benefit Unit Formula



Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District 
Engineer’s Report 

Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

 

 
 Page 27 
 

Equivalent Benefit Unit Summary 

The following is a summary of the Equivalent Benefit Units applicable to the various land use 
classifications identified in each District Zone or Sub-Zone: 

Zone A 

 

 

Sub-Zone B1 

 
 

Sub-Zone B2 

 
 

Sub-Zone B3 

 
 

Assessment Land Use 

 Total 

Parcels 

 Residential 

Units/Lots 

 Applied 

Acreage 

 Equivalent Benefit 

Units (EBU) 

Vacant Undeveloped Property 1             -                   4.64         4.64                        

Undeveloped Non-Residential 2             -                   16.85       16.85                      

Exempt 1             -                   1.77         -                          

Totals 4             -                   23.26       21.49                      

Assessment Land Use 

 Total 

Parcels 

 Residential 

Units/Lots 

 Applied 

Acreage 

 Equivalent Benefit 

Units (EBU) 

Single Family Residential 369         369               -          369.00                    

Exempt 14           -                   3.16         -                          

Totals 383         369               3.16         369.00                    

Assessment Land Use 

 Total 

Parcels 

 Residential 

Units/Lots 

 Applied 

Acreage 

 Equivalent Benefit 

Units (EBU) 

Vacant Undeveloped Property 1             -                   4.79         4.79                        

Undeveloped Residential Property 1             -                   12.63       12.63                      

Exempt 2             -                   12.91       -                          

Totals 4             -                   30.33       17.42                      

Assessment Land Use 

 Total 

Parcels 

 Residential 

Units/Lots 

 Applied 

Acreage 

 Equivalent Benefit 

Units (EBU) 

Vacant Undeveloped Property 1             -                   5.00         5.00                        

Exempt 2             -                   9.58         -                          

Totals 3             -                   14.58       5.00                        



Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District 
Engineer’s Report 

Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

 

 
 Page 28 
 

Part III – Estimate of Costs 

Calculation of Assessments 
An assessment amount per Equivalent Benefit Unit (Assessment per EBU) is calculated by: 

Taking the “Total Annual Expenses” (Total budgeted costs) and subtracting the “Total General 
Benefit Expenses” (Landscaping General Benefit Expenses and/or Lighting General Benefit 
Expenses), to establish the “Total Special Benefit Expenses”;  

Total Annual Expenses– General Benefit Expenses = Special Benefit Expenses 

To the resulting “Special Benefit Expenses”, various “Funding Adjustments” may be applied that 
may include, but are not limited to: 

➢ “Reserve Fund Transfer/Deduction”, represents an amount of available existing funds from 
the “Operational Reserve Fund Balances” being applied to pay a portion of the Special Benefit 
Expenses for the fiscal year. 

➢ “Additional City Funding”, represents an adjustment that is typically used to addresses any 
funding gap between the amount budgeted to provide the improvements and services 
(“Special Benefit Expenses”); and the amount that will be collected through the assessments. 
This funding may be addressed by an additional City contribution or loan from the City which 
is intended to be recovered in future fiscal years. 

These adjustments to the Special Benefit Expenses result in the net special benefit amount to be 
assessed “Balance to Levy”;  

Special Benefit Expenses - Funding Adjustments =Balance to Levy  

The amount identified as the “Balance to Levy” is divided by the total number of EBUs of parcels 
that receive special benefit to establish the Assessment Rate (“Assessment Per EBU”). This 
Assessment Rate is then applied back to each parcel’s individual EBU to calculate the parcel’s 
proportionate special benefit and assessment amount for the improvements.  

Balance to Levy / Total EBU = Assessment Per EBU (Assessment Rate) 

Assessment Per EBU x Parcel EBU = Parcel Assessment Amount 

Note: The maximum assessments and proposed assessments for fiscal year 2021/2022 outlined 
in this Report are intended to fully support the expenses identified as “Special Benefit Expenses”. 
Consequently, there are no “Funding Adjustments” reflected in the budgets the “Balance to Levy” 
is equal to the total “Special Benefit Expenses”. 



Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District 
Engineer’s Report 

Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

 

 
 Page 29 
 

Zone Budgets and Assessments 
The zone budgets and assessments outlined on the following page for the District are based on 
the City’s estimate of the expenses and related funding necessary for the operation, maintenance 
and servicing of the District improvements identified in Part I of this Report for Zone A and Zone 
B for fiscal year 2021/2022.  

The Maximum Assessment per EBU (Maximum Assessment Rates) for Zone A and Zone B (Sub-
Zones B1, B2, and B3) represents the calculated authorized maximum assessment rates for fiscal 
year 2021/2022 based on the assessment rates presented to the property owners of record within 
the District as part of the Ballot Proceeding in fiscal year 2017/2018 adjusted by the authorized 
Assessment Range Formula of 3.5% per year. Reference is hereby made to the Assessment 
Range Formula described after the budget.  

Refer to the Assessment Roll included herein as Part IV for the individual assessment amounts 
proposed to be levied and collected for each parcel in fiscal year 2021/2022.  

 

 



Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District 
Engineer’s Report 

Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

 

 
 Page 30 
 

Zone Budgets & Assessments, Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

 
 
Note: Assessment rates (Assessment per EBU) are unchanged from fiscal year 2020/2021. 
 

Zone A Zone B Zone B Zone B TOTAL BUDGET

Sub-Zone B1 Sub-Zone B2 Sub-Zone B3 Assessment

Fiscal Year 

2021/2022

ANNUAL OPERATION & MAINTENANCE EXPENSES

 Annual Lighting Operation & Maintenance Expenses 200$        17,195$            100$               29$                17,525$                

 Annual Landscaping Operation & Maintenance Expenses -                40,210              511                 148                40,868                  

TOTAL ANNUAL OPERATION & MAINTENANCE EXPENSES 200$      57,406$        611$           176$           58,393$            

REHABILITATION/RENOVATION FUNDING & CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Lighting Rehabilitation/Renovation Funding 18$           1,548$              9$                   3$                  1,577$                  

Landscape Improvement Rehabilitation/Renovation Funding -                7,359                119                 36                  7,514                    

Planned Capital Expenditures (For Fiscal Year) -$              -$                       -$                    -$                   -$                          

TOTAL REHABILITATION/RENOVATION FUNDING & CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 18$        8,907$          128$           39$             9,091$              

INCIDENTAL EXPENSES

Operational Reserves (Collection) 33$           3,277$              113$               33$                3,456$                  

District Administration Expenses 98$                31,060$                    342$                      100$                     31,600$                         

County Administration Fee 3                    923                           10                          3                           939                                

Annual Administration Expenses 101           31,983              352                 103                32,539                  

TOTAL INCIDENTAL EXPENSES 133$      35,260$        466$           135$           35,995$            

TOTAL ANNUAL EXPENSES 352$      101,573$      1,204$        350$           103,479$          

GENERAL BENEFIT EXPENSES

Lighting General Benefit — City Funded (20)$         (613)$                (10)$                (3)$                 (646)$                    

Landscaping General Benefit — City Funded -                (2,685)               (34)                  (10)                 (2,728)                   

TOTAL GENERAL BENEFIT EXPENSES (20)$       (3,298)$         (44)$            (13)$            (3,375)$            

TOTAL SPECIAL BENEFIT EXPENSES 331$      98,275$        1,160$        338$           100,104$          

FUNDING ADJUSTMENTS

Reserve Fund Transfer/Deduction -$              -$                       -$                    -$                   -$                          

Additional City Funding -                -                         -                      -                      -                             

TOTAL FUNDING ADJUSTMENTS / CONTRIBUTIONS -$              -$                       -$                    -$                   -$                          

BALANCE TO LEVY 331$    98,275$      1,160$      338$        100,104$       

DISTRICT STATISTICS      

Total Parcels 4               383                   4                     3                     394                       

Assessed Parcels 3               369                   2                     1                     375                       

Equivalent Benefit Units (EBU) 21.49     369.00          17.42          5.00            412.91              

Assessment Per EBU $15.44 $266.34 $66.60 $67.56

Maximum Assessment Rate Per EBU $44.75 $682.78 $682.78 $682.78

FUND BALANCE

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance 1,232$     221,215$          9,618$           3,801$           235,867$             

Operational Reserve & Rehabilitation Funding Collected 51             12,184              241                 71                  12,547                  

Estimated Ending Fund Balance 1,283$     233,399$          9,859$           3,872$           248,414$             

BUDGET ITEMS



Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District 
Engineer’s Report 

Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

 

 
 Page 31 
 

Assessment Range Formula 
Any new or increased assessment requires certain noticing and meeting requirements by law. 
The Brown Act defines the terms "new or increased assessment" to exclude certain conditions. 
These certain conditions included "any assessment that does not exceed an assessment formula 
or range of assessments previously adopted by the agency or approved by the voters in the area 
where the assessment is imposed."  

Recognizing that the cost of maintaining the improvements will increase over time due to inflation, 
the maximum assessments (initial maximum assessment amounts and maximum assessment 
rates established in fiscal year 2017/2018) for Zone A and Zone B, include a fixed 3.5% annual 
inflationary adjustment (Assessment Range Formula). This 3.5% annual adjustment provides for 
reasonable increases and inflationary adjustment to the initial maximum assessment rates 
approved by the property owners as part of the protest ballot proceeding conducted in connection 
with the formation of the District.  

The adoption of the maximum assessment rates and the Assessment Range Formula described 
herein does not mean that the annual assessments will necessarily increase each fiscal year, nor 
does it absolutely restrict the assessments to the adjustment maximum assessment amount. 
Although the maximum assessment rates that may be levied shall be adjusted (inflated) by 3.5% 
each year, the actual amount to be assessed will be based on the Balance to Levy for that fiscal 
year. If the calculated assessment is less than the adjusted maximum assessment, then the 
calculated assessment may be approved by the City Council for collection. If the calculated 
assessment (based on the proposed budget) is greater than the adjusted maximum assessment 
for that fiscal year, then the assessment would be considered an increased assessment and 
would require property owner approval through a protest ballot proceeding before imposing such 
an increase. Otherwise, it would be necessary to reduce the budget or provide a contribution from 
the City to reduce the Balance to Levy (amount to be assessed) to an amount that can be 
supported by an assessment rate less than or equal to the maximum assessment rate authorized 
for that fiscal year. 

The Assessment Range Formula (3.5% annual adjustment) shall be applied to the maximum 
assessment rates for Zone A and Zone B identified in the District Budgets Establishing Maximum 
Assessments as presented in this Report, commencing in fiscal year 2018/2019 and all 
subsequent fiscal years unless the City Council formally suspends its application. 



Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District 
Engineer’s Report 

Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

 

 
 Page 32 
 

Part IV — Assessment Roll 

Due to the number of parcels in the District, the Assessment Roll for fiscal year 2021/2022 (a 
listing of the parcels to be assessed within this District along with the assessment amounts) has 
been filed with the City Clerk in an electronic format and is, by reference, made part of this Report. 
The proposed Assessment Roll shall be available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s Office 
during normal office hours. 

The Assessment Roll reflects all properties currently identified within the District and their 
assessment amount(s) for fiscal year 2021/2022. Each parcel listed on the Assessment Roll is 
currently shown and illustrated on the County Assessor's Roll and the County Assessor’s Parcel 
Number Maps (APN maps). These records are, by reference, made part of this Report and shall 
govern for all details concerning the description of the lots or parcels. All assessments presented 
on the assessment roll are subject to change as a result of parcel changes made by the County 
including parcel splits, parcel merges or development changes that occur prior to the County 
Assessor's Office securing the final roll and generating tax bills for fiscal year 2021/2022. 

 



Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District 
Engineer’s Report 

Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

 

 
 Page 33 
 

Part V — District Diagrams 

The lots and parcels of land within the Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District consist of the lots 
and parcels within the planned non-residential and residential development areas identified in the DJ 
Farms Specific Plan and commonly referred to as the Pasadera development located on the south 
side of Main Street near Obispo Street and Flower Avenue. 

The District Diagrams provided on the following pages provide a visual depiction of the boundaries 
of the District and the Zones and Sub-Zones applicable for fiscal year 2021/2022. These diagrams 
also provide a visual depiction of the location and extent of the improvements to be maintained 
within the District at build-out. The combination of these Diagrams and the Assessment Roll 
contained in Part IV of this Report constitutes the Assessment Diagram for this District and 
encompasses all the lots, parcels and subdivisions of land that receive or will receive a special 
benefit from the improvements to be provided in the District at the time this Report was prepared.  

The lines and dimensions of each lot, parcel, and subdivision of land contained in these diagrams 
are inclusive of the parcels listed in “Part IV – Assessment Roll” of this Report as they existed at 
the time this Report was prepared and shall include all subsequent subdivisions, lot-line 
adjustments, or parcel changes therein.  

Reference is hereby made to the Santa Barbara County Assessor’s Parcel Maps for a detailed 
description of the lines and dimensions of each parcel within the Pasadera Landscaping and 
Lighting District including all subsequent subdivisions, lot-line adjustments, or parcel changes 
therein.  

 

 



Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District 
Engineer’s Report 

Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

 

 Page 34 
 

District Diagram – Boundary and Zones, Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

 
 



Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District 
Engineer’s Report 

Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

 

 Page 35 
 

District Diagram –Development and Improvements, Planned at Buildout 

 
 



Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District 
Engineer’s Report 

Fiscal Year 2021/2022 

Page 36 

District Diagram – Development and Improvements, Fiscal Year 2021/2022 





District Name: Guadalupe City Pasadera Landscape/Lighting

Description: Fund 0643, Landscape/Lighting

Tax Year: 2021-22

Contact Person: City Administrator, (805) 356-3891

Total # of Assessments: 375

Total Assessment Amount: $100,109.23

1



FundNumber ParcelNumber  Amount 

0643 113-080-018 337.80$       

0643 113-450-001 106.84$       

0643 113-450-002 153.32$       

0643 113-450-003 71.64$         

0643 113-450-007 319.01$       

0643 113-450-009 841.16$       

0643 113-460-001 266.34$       

0643 113-460-002 266.34$       

0643 113-460-003 266.34$       

0643 113-460-004 266.34$       

0643 113-460-005 266.34$       

0643 113-460-006 266.34$       

0643 113-460-007 266.34$       

0643 113-460-008 266.34$       

0643 113-460-009 266.34$       

0643 113-460-010 266.34$       

0643 113-460-011 266.34$       

0643 113-460-012 266.34$       

0643 113-460-013 266.34$       

0643 113-460-014 266.34$       

0643 113-460-015 266.34$       

0643 113-460-016 266.34$       

0643 113-460-017 266.34$       

0643 113-460-018 266.34$       

0643 113-460-019 266.34$       

0643 113-460-020 266.34$       

0643 113-460-021 266.34$       

0643 113-460-022 266.34$       

0643 113-460-023 266.34$       

0643 113-460-024 266.34$       

0643 113-460-025 266.34$       

0643 113-460-026 266.34$       

0643 113-460-027 266.34$       

0643 113-460-028 266.34$       

0643 113-460-029 266.34$       

0643 113-460-030 266.34$       

0643 113-460-031 266.34$       

0643 113-460-032 266.34$       

0643 113-460-033 266.34$       

0643 113-460-034 266.34$       

0643 113-460-035 266.34$       

0643 113-460-036 266.34$       

0643 113-460-037 266.34$       

0643 113-460-038 266.34$       

0643 113-460-039 266.34$       

0643 113-460-040 266.34$       

0643 113-460-041 266.34$       

0643 113-460-042 266.34$       

0643 113-460-043 266.34$       

0643 113-460-044 266.34$       

0643 113-460-045 266.34$       

0643 113-460-046 266.34$       

2



0643 113-460-047 266.34$           

0643 113-460-048 266.34$           

0643 113-460-049 266.34$           

0643 113-460-050 266.34$           

0643 113-460-051 266.34$           

0643 113-460-052 266.34$           

0643 113-460-053 266.34$           

0643 113-460-054 266.34$           

0643 113-460-055 266.34$           

0643 113-470-001 266.34$           

0643 113-470-002 266.34$           

0643 113-470-003 266.34$           

0643 113-470-004 266.34$           

0643 113-470-005 266.34$           

0643 113-470-006 266.34$           

0643 113-470-007 266.34$           

0643 113-470-008 266.34$           

0643 113-470-009 266.34$           

0643 113-470-010 266.34$           

0643 113-470-011 266.34$           

0643 113-470-012 266.34$           

0643 113-470-013 266.34$           

0643 113-470-014 266.34$           

0643 113-470-015 266.34$           

0643 113-470-016 266.34$           

0643 113-470-017 266.34$           

0643 113-470-018 266.34$           

0643 113-470-019 266.34$           

0643 113-470-020 266.34$           

0643 113-470-021 266.34$           

0643 113-470-024 266.34$           

0643 113-470-025 266.34$           

0643 113-470-026 266.34$           

0643 113-470-027 266.34$           

0643 113-470-028 266.34$           

0643 113-470-029 266.34$           

0643 113-470-030 266.34$           

0643 113-470-031 266.34$           

0643 113-470-032 266.34$           

0643 113-470-033 266.34$           

0643 113-470-034 266.34$           

0643 113-470-035 266.34$           

0643 113-470-036 266.34$           

0643 113-470-037 266.34$           

0643 113-470-038 266.34$           

0643 113-470-039 266.34$           

0643 113-470-040 266.34$           

0643 113-470-041 266.34$           

0643 113-470-042 266.34$           

0643 113-470-043 266.34$           

0643 113-470-044 266.34$           

0643 113-470-045 266.34$           

0643 113-470-046 266.34$           

0643 113-470-047 266.34$           

0643 113-470-048 266.34$           

3



0643 113-470-049 266.34$           

0643 113-470-050 266.34$           

0643 113-470-051 266.34$           

0643 113-470-052 266.34$           

0643 113-470-053 266.34$           

0643 113-470-054 266.34$           

0643 113-470-055 266.34$           

0643 113-470-056 266.34$           

0643 113-470-057 266.34$           

0643 113-470-058 266.34$           

0643 113-470-059 266.34$           

0643 113-480-001 266.34$           

0643 113-480-002 266.34$           

0643 113-480-003 266.34$           

0643 113-480-004 266.34$           

0643 113-480-005 266.34$           

0643 113-480-006 266.34$           

0643 113-480-007 266.34$           

0643 113-480-008 266.34$           

0643 113-480-009 266.34$           

0643 113-480-010 266.34$           

0643 113-480-011 266.34$           

0643 113-480-012 266.34$           

0643 113-480-013 266.34$           

0643 113-480-014 266.34$           

0643 113-480-015 266.34$           

0643 113-480-016 266.34$           

0643 113-480-017 266.34$           

0643 113-480-018 266.34$           

0643 113-480-019 266.34$           

0643 113-480-020 266.34$           

0643 113-480-021 266.34$           

0643 113-480-022 266.34$           

0643 113-480-023 266.34$           

0643 113-480-024 266.34$           

0643 113-480-025 266.34$           

0643 113-480-026 266.34$           

0643 113-480-027 266.34$           

0643 113-480-028 266.34$           

0643 113-480-029 266.34$           

0643 113-480-030 266.34$           

0643 113-480-031 266.34$           

0643 113-480-032 266.34$           

0643 113-480-033 266.34$           

0643 113-480-034 266.34$           

0643 113-480-035 266.34$           

0643 113-480-036 266.34$           

0643 113-480-037 266.34$           

0643 113-480-038 266.34$           

0643 113-480-039 266.34$           

0643 113-480-040 266.34$           

0643 113-490-001 266.34$           

0643 113-490-002 266.34$           

0643 113-490-003 266.34$           

0643 113-490-004 266.34$           

4



0643 113-490-005 266.34$           

0643 113-490-006 266.34$           

0643 113-490-007 266.34$           

0643 113-490-008 266.34$           

0643 113-490-009 266.34$           

0643 113-490-010 266.34$           

0643 113-490-011 266.34$           

0643 113-490-012 266.34$           

0643 113-490-013 266.34$           

0643 113-490-014 266.34$           

0643 113-490-015 266.34$           

0643 113-490-016 266.34$           

0643 113-490-017 266.34$           

0643 113-490-018 266.34$           

0643 113-490-019 266.34$           

0643 113-490-020 266.34$           

0643 113-490-021 266.34$           

0643 113-490-022 266.34$           

0643 113-490-023 266.34$           

0643 113-490-024 266.34$           

0643 113-490-025 266.34$           

0643 113-490-026 266.34$           

0643 113-490-027 266.34$           

0643 113-490-028 266.34$           

0643 113-490-029 266.34$           

0643 113-490-030 266.34$           

0643 113-490-031 266.34$           

0643 113-490-032 266.34$           

0643 113-490-033 266.34$           

0643 113-490-034 266.34$           

0643 113-490-035 266.34$           

0643 113-490-036 266.34$           

0643 113-490-037 266.34$           

0643 113-490-038 266.34$           

0643 113-490-039 266.34$           

0643 113-490-040 266.34$           

0643 113-490-041 266.34$           

0643 113-490-042 266.34$           

0643 113-490-043 266.34$           

0643 113-490-044 266.34$           

0643 113-490-045 266.34$           

0643 113-490-046 266.34$           

0643 113-490-047 266.34$           

0643 113-490-048 266.34$           

0643 113-490-049 266.34$           

0643 113-490-050 266.34$           

0643 113-490-051 266.34$           

0643 113-490-052 266.34$           

0643 113-490-053 266.34$           

0643 113-490-054 266.34$           

0643 113-490-055 266.34$           

0643 113-490-056 266.34$           

0643 113-490-057 266.34$           

0643 113-490-058 266.34$           

0643 113-490-059 266.34$           

5



0643 113-490-060 266.34$           

0643 113-490-061 266.34$           

0643 113-490-062 266.34$           

0643 113-490-063 266.34$           

0643 113-490-064 266.34$           

0643 113-490-065 266.34$           

0643 113-490-066 266.34$           

0643 113-490-067 266.34$           

0643 113-490-068 266.34$           

0643 113-490-069 266.34$           

0643 113-490-070 266.34$           

0643 113-490-071 266.34$           

0643 113-490-072 266.34$           

0643 113-490-073 266.34$           

0643 113-490-074 266.34$           

0643 113-490-075 266.34$           

0643 113-490-076 266.34$           

0643 113-490-077 266.34$           

0643 113-490-078 266.34$           

0643 113-490-079 266.34$           

0643 113-490-080 266.34$           

0643 113-490-081 266.34$           

0643 113-490-082 266.34$           

0643 113-490-083 266.34$           

0643 113-490-084 266.34$           

0643 113-490-085 266.34$           

0643 113-490-086 266.34$           

0643 113-490-087 266.34$           

0643 113-490-088 266.34$           

0643 113-490-089 266.34$           

0643 113-490-090 266.34$           

0643 113-490-091 266.34$           

0643 113-490-092 266.34$           

0643 113-490-093 266.34$           

0643 113-490-094 266.34$           

0643 113-490-095 266.34$           

0643 113-490-096 266.34$           

0643 113-490-097 266.34$           

0643 113-490-098 266.34$           

0643 113-490-099 266.34$           

0643 113-490-100 266.34$           

0643 113-490-101 266.34$           

0643 113-490-102 266.34$           

0643 113-490-103 266.34$           

0643 113-490-104 266.34$           

0643 113-490-105 266.34$           

0643 113-490-106 266.34$           

0643 113-490-107 266.34$           

0643 113-490-108 266.34$           

0643 113-490-109 266.34$           

0643 113-490-110 266.34$           

0643 113-490-111 266.34$           

0643 113-490-112 266.34$           

0643 113-490-113 266.34$           

0643 113-490-114 266.34$           

6



0643 113-490-115 266.34$           

0643 113-490-116 266.34$           

0643 113-490-117 266.34$           

0643 113-490-118 266.34$           

0643 113-490-119 266.34$           

0643 113-490-120 266.34$           

0643 113-490-121 266.34$           

0643 113-490-122 266.34$           

0643 113-490-123 266.34$           

0643 113-490-124 266.34$           

0643 113-490-125 266.34$           

0643 113-490-126 266.34$           

0643 113-490-127 266.34$           

0643 113-490-128 266.34$           

0643 113-490-129 266.34$           

0643 113-490-130 266.34$           

0643 113-490-131 266.34$           

0643 113-490-132 266.34$           

0643 113-490-133 266.34$           

0643 113-490-134 266.34$           

0643 113-490-135 266.34$           

0643 113-490-136 266.34$           

0643 113-490-137 266.34$           

0643 113-490-138 266.34$           

0643 113-490-139 266.34$           

0643 113-490-140 266.34$           

0643 113-490-141 266.34$           

0643 113-490-142 266.34$           

0643 113-490-143 266.34$           

0643 113-490-144 266.34$           

0643 113-490-145 266.34$           

0643 113-490-146 266.34$           

0643 113-490-147 266.34$           

0643 113-490-148 266.34$           

0643 113-490-149 266.34$           

0643 113-490-150 266.34$           

0643 113-490-151 266.34$           

0643 113-490-152 266.34$           

0643 113-490-153 266.34$           

0643 113-490-154 266.34$           

0643 113-490-155 266.34$           

0643 113-490-156 266.34$           

0643 113-490-157 266.34$           

0643 113-490-158 266.34$           

0643 113-490-159 266.34$           

0643 113-490-160 266.34$           

0643 113-490-161 266.34$           

0643 113-490-162 266.34$           

0643 113-490-163 266.34$           

0643 113-490-164 266.34$           

0643 113-490-165 266.34$           

0643 113-490-166 266.34$           

0643 113-490-167 266.34$           

0643 113-490-168 266.34$           

0643 113-490-169 266.34$           

7



0643 113-490-170 266.34$       

0643 113-490-171 266.34$       

0643 113-490-172 266.34$       

0643 113-490-173 266.34$       

0643 113-490-174 266.34$       

0643 113-490-175 266.34$       

0643 113-490-176 266.34$       

0643 113-490-177 266.34$       

0643 113-490-178 266.34$       

0643 113-490-179 266.34$       

0643 113-490-180 266.34$       

0643 113-490-181 266.34$       

0643 113-490-182 266.34$       

0643 113-490-183 266.34$       

0643 113-490-184 266.34$       

0643 113-490-185 266.34$       

0643 113-490-186 266.34$       

0643 113-490-187 266.34$       

0643 113-490-188 266.34$       

0643 113-490-189 266.34$       

0643 113-490-190 266.34$       

0643 113-490-191 266.34$       

0643 113-490-192 266.34$       

0643 113-490-193 266.34$       

0643 113-490-194 266.34$       

0643 113-490-195 266.34$       

0643 113-490-196 266.34$       

0643 113-490-197 266.34$       

0643 113-490-198 266.34$       

0643 113-490-199 266.34$       

0643 113-490-200 266.34$       

0643 113-490-201 266.34$       

0643 113-490-202 266.34$       

0643 113-490-203 266.34$       

0643 113-490-204 266.34$       

0643 113-490-205 266.34$       

0643 113-490-206 266.34$       

0643 113-490-207 266.34$       

0643 113-490-208 266.34$       

0643 113-490-209 266.34$       

0643 113-490-210 266.34$       

0643 113-490-211 266.34$       

0643 113-490-212 266.34$       

0643 113-490-213 266.34$       

0643 113-490-214 266.34$       

0643 113-490-215 266.34$       

0643 113-490-216 266.34$       

0643 113-490-217 266.34$       

8



Page 1 of 4 

RESOLUTION NO.  2021-56 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY GUADALUPE, COUNTY OF SANTA BARBARA, STATE 
OF CALIFORNIA, CONFIRMING THE ENGINEER’S REPORT, THE ASSESSMENT DIAGRAM AND 

ASSESSMENTS RELATED THERETO FOR THE PASADERA LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING DISTRICT, 
OVERRULING ALL PROTESTS CONCERNING THE ASSESSMENTS, AND APPROVING THE LEVY AND 

COLLECTION OF ASSESSMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021/2022 

The City Council of the City of Guadalupe, California does resolve as follows: 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972, Part 2 of Division 15 of 
the California Streets and Highways Code (hereafter referred to as the “1972 Act”), the City Council, did by 
previous resolution order the Engineer, Willdan Financial Services, to prepare and file a report in accordance 
with Article 4 of Chapter 1 of the 1972 Act, in connection with the proposed annual levy and collection of 
special benefit assessments for the Pasadera Landscaping and Lighting District (hereafter referred to as the 
“District”) for the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2021, and ending June 30, 2022; and, 

WHEREAS, the Engineer has prepared and filed with the City Clerk of the City of Guadalupe and the City Clerk 
has presented to the City Council such report entitled “City of Guadalupe, Engineer’s Report, Pasadera 
Landscaping and Lighting District, Engineer’s Annual Report, Fiscal Year 2021/2022” (hereafter referred to as 
the “Report”); and,  

WHEREAS, after fully considering the Report presented, the City Council by resolution at its June 22, 2021, 
Council Meeting, preliminarily approved said Report and declared its intention to levy and collect the fiscal 
year 2021/2022 assessments (annual assessments) for the District as set forth in the Report, and set the 
public hearing to be noticed pursuant to applicable law for July 13, 2021 at 6:00 p.m.; and, 

WHEREAS, on July 13, 2021, the City Council held the duly noticed public hearing to consider all oral 
statements and written protests, objections, and communication made or filed by any interested person 
regarding the District and the proposed levy of special benefit assessments for the fiscal year commencing 
July 1, 2021.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED, AND ORDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF GUADALUPE, CALIFORNIA FOR THE PASADERA LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING DISTRICT, PURSUANT 
TO CHAPTER 4, ARTICLE 1 AND ARICLE 2 OF THE 1972 ACT, AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. That the foregoing recitals are true and correct. 

SECTION 2.  Following notice duly given, the City Council has held a full and fair public hearing regarding 
the levy and collection of the proposed assessment within the District for fiscal year 2021/2022 to pay for 
the costs and expenses of the improvements described in Section 4 below and the Engineer's Report 
prepared in connection therewith. All interested persons were afforded the opportunity to hear and be 
heard. The City Council has considered all oral and written statements, protests and communications made 
or filed by interested persons. 

SECTION 3.  Based upon its review of the Engineer's Report and other documents, and information 
presented at the public hearing, the City Council hereby finds and determines that (i) the land within the 

Attachment 2



Page 2 of 4 
 

District will be benefited by the improvements described in the Engineer's Report; (ii) the District includes all 
of the lands so benefited; (iii) the net amount to be assessed upon the lands within the District for the 
2021/2022 fiscal year, in accordance with the Engineer's Report, is apportioned by a formula and method 
which fairly distributes the net amount among all assessable lots or parcels in proportion to the estimated 
benefits to be received by each such lots and parcels from the improvements; (iv) only special benefits are 
assessed and no assessment is imposed on any parcel which exceeds the reasonable cost of the proportional 
special benefit conferred on that parcel; and (v) the District and Zone assessment rates for fiscal year 
2021/2022 are less than or equal to the allowable adjusted maximum assessment rates per Equivalent 
Benefit Unit approved by the property owners of record at the time the District was established pursuant to 
the California Constitution Article XIIID. These adjusted maximum assessment rates are based on an 
assessment range formula that includes an annual inflationary adjustment of (3.5%) to the previous fiscal 
year’s maximum assessment rates. This inflation adjusted is applied to the maximum assessment rates each 
fiscal year whether the annual assessments levied are increased or not.  
 
SECTION 4.  The City Council hereby orders the proposed improvements to be made, which improvements 
may include any improvements, expenses and services authorized pursuant to the 1972 Act including, but 
not limited to, the maintenance, operation and servicing of local street lighting, parks, and various 
landscaping improvements established in connection with development of the properties within the District, 
and which shall be maintained for the special benefit of those properties. The maintenance and servicing of 
the improvements generally include, but are not limited to, the materials, equipment, utilities, labor, and 
incidental expenses, including administrative expenses, required for annual operation, as well as the 
performance of periodic repairs and replacement activities as needed to provide for the growth, health, and 
beauty of the parks and landscaping within specified public areas, rights-of-way and/or dedicated easements, 
the proper operation and functioning of related amenities including, irrigation and drainage systems, 
specified fencing, hardscapes; sports courts and fields; playground equipment and structures; sidewalks, 
ornamental or safety lighting; benches, trash receptacles; drinking fountains, picnic facilities and any other 
equipment, structures or facilities related to the parks and/or landscape areas; and the proper operation of 
the public street lights and street lighting system within the public rights-of-way which may include, but is 
not limited to the furnishing of electric current or other illuminating agent; as needed maintenance, repair, 
and replacement of worn out electrical components and light fixtures, including bulbs, ballasts, photoelectric 
cells, meters, electrical cables; repair or replacement of damaged poles, ground wires, and conduits caused 
by accidents, vandalism, time, and weather; and monitoring of the Underground Service Alert (USA) network 
to prevent damage by excavation. The Engineer’s Report filed with the City Clerk and presented to the City 
Council more fully describes the improvements proposed for Fiscal Year 2021/2022. 
 
SECTION 5.  The City Council hereby confirms the diagram and assessments, with respect to the parcels in 
the District, as presented in the Engineer's Report or as amended herein by direction of the City Council. 
 
SECTION 6.  The City Council hereby confirms that the assessments as described in the Engineer’s Report 
are in compliance with the provisions of the 1972 Act and Article XIIID of the California Constitution and are 
levied without regard to property valuation and such assessments are levied for the purpose of paying the 
costs and expenses of the improvements described in SECTION 4 above for the fiscal year commencing on 
July 1, 2020 and ending on June 30, 2020, and the City Council hereby overrules all protests and objections 
to the levy and collection of the proposed assessment for the fiscal year 2021/2022. 
 
SECTION 7.  The adoption of this resolution constitutes the levy of assessments for the fiscal year 
commencing July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022. 



Page 3 of 4 
 

 
SECTION 8.  The City Council hereby orders the District improvements to be made as outlined by the 
Engineer’s Report and by these proceedings; and, 
 
SECTION 9.  Pursuant to applicable law, City staff or their designee is hereby authorized and directed to 
file as may be required the annual levy of the District assessments for fiscal year 2021/2022 as approved 
herein with the Santa Barbara County Auditor/Controller along with a certified copy of this resolution; and/or 
other resolutions and documents as may be required by the County Auditor/Controller, including copies of 
the Engineer’s Report and/or Assessment Diagram confirmed by this resolution. 
 
SECTION 10.  The County Auditor of Santa Barbara County shall enter on the County Assessment Roll 
opposite each lot or parcel of land the amount of the assessment, and such assessments shall then be 
collected at the same time and in the same manner as the County taxes are collected. After collection by the 
County, the net amount of the assessments shall be paid to the City Treasurer. 
 
SECTION 11.  The City Treasurer shall deposit all moneys representing assessments collected by the County 
to the credit of a special fund for the District and such moneys shall be expended only for the improvements 
described in SECTION 4 above. 
 
SECTION 12.  The City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this resolution, and the minutes of 
this meeting shall so reflect the City Council’s approval and confirmation of the Engineer’s Report and 
Assessment Diagram prepared in connection with the District assessments for fiscal year 2021/2022 so 
authorized. 
 

SECTION 13. The City Clerk is hereby authorized to make minor changes herein to address clerical 
errors, so long as substantial conformance of the intent of this document is maintained. In doing so, the 
City Clerk shall consult with the City Administrator and City Attorney concerning any changes deemed 
necessary. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting on the 13th day of July 2021 by the following 
vote:  
 
MOTION: 
   
AYES:        
NOES: 
ABSENT:        
ABSTAIN:  
 
I, Amelia M. Villegas, City Clerk of the City of Guadalupe DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing 
Resolution, being Resolution No. 2021-56, has been duly signed by the Mayor and attested by the City 
Clerk, all at a regular meeting of the City Council, held July 13, 2021, and that same was approved and 
adopted.   
 
 
 



Page 4 of 4 
 

 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________   ____________________________________ 
Amelia M. Villegas, City Clerk    Ariston Julian, Mayor 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
______________________________  
Philip Sinco, City Attorney 



Page 1 of 1 

Agenda Item No. 10 

REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GUADALUPE 
Agenda of July 13, 2021 

  
_______________________________ _________________________________ 
Prepared by:   Approved by:  
Shannon Sweeney, Todd Bodem, City Administrator 
Public Works Director / City Engineer 

SUBJECT: Guadalupe Benefit Assessment District No. 1 (FY 2021-22) – Public Hearing 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council conduct the public hearing to provide all present with an 
opportunity to speak regarding the assessments for the Guadalupe Benefit Lighting District No. 1 and 
that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2021-57 setting the proposed assessments. 

DISCUSSION: 

City Council is responsible for levying assessments based upon prior year costs and estimated future 
costs for lighting and landscaping in the Point Sal Dunes and Riverview subdivisions of the Guadalupe 
Benefit Assessment District No. 1.  Benefit assessments are established to cover the estimated annual 
costs for Fiscal Year 2021-2022.  In compliance with Section 6066 of the Government Code, benefit 
assessments require a public hearing. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

The Guadalupe Benefit Assessment District No. 1 Fixed Charges Report for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 has 
been prepared to detail the estimated FY 2021-22 annual costs for the Guadalupe Benefit Assessment 
District No. 1.  (See Exhibit “A.”)  The anticipated FY 2021-22 costs are $17,727.34 for Point Sal Dunes 
and $6,019.90 for Riverview.  The proposed costs per parcel are as follows (does not include County 
Administrative fee of $1.00 per parcel). 

Riverview (50 parcels)  Per Parcel Assessment: $120.40 
Point Sal Dunes (254 parcels) Per Parcel Assessment: $  69.79 

The proposed assessments for Point Sal Dunes and Riverview are unchanged from last year. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution No. 2021-57
2. Exhibit A
3. Property Tax Roll 21-22 Fund 0641

Shannon Sweeney 



RESOLUTION NO.  2021-57 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY GUADALUPE CONFIRMING LIGHTING AND 
LANDSCAPING CHARGES FOR THE GUADALUPE BENEFIT ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 1 

AND AUTHORIZING THE SANTA BARBARA COUNTY AUDITOR’S OFFICE 
TO COLLECT SAID BENEFIT ASSESSMENTS FOR THE 2021-2022 TAX YEAR 

WHEREAS, Guadalupe Benefit Assessment District No. 1 (“District”) was established by City Council 
Resolution No. 91-945 on February 11, 1991; and 

WHEREAS, boundaries of said District were expanded by Resolution Nos. 91-978, 92-09, and 94-31; 
and 

WHEREAS, said District was established for the purposes of providing street lighting, landscape 
maintenance, drainage maintenance, and other purposes within the District; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code §54716, a written report containing a description of the 
parcels in the Guadalupe Benefit Assessment District No. 1 and the amount of the assessments based 
on the estimated benefit for such parcels has been prepared and was filed with the City Clerk of the 
City of Guadalupe; and 

WHEREAS, the Council designated Tuesday, July 13, 2021, at the hour of 6:00 p.m. in the Council 
Chambers, 918 Obispo Street, Guadalupe, California as the time and place for the hearing of protests 
and objections in relation to said assessments; and  

WHEREAS, notice of said hearing was duly posted and published, and affidavits of said posting and 
publication have been duly filed; and 

WHEREAS, Government Code §54716(d) provides that at said hearing the City Council shall hear and 
consider all protests and at the conclusion of the hearing the City Council may adopt, revise, change, 
or modify any assessment and shall make its determination by Resolution upon each proposed 
assessment described in the said report; and 

WHEREAS, the Auditor of Santa Barbara County requires that each year a resolution be passed which 
identifies the amount to be charged as an annual assessment; and 

WHEREAS, the Finance Department of the City of Guadalupe has determined that the estimated 
lighting and landscaping costs with administration for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 will be Six Thousand 
Nineteen Dollars and Ninety Cents ($6,019.90) for the Riverview Subdivision and Seventeen Thousand 
Seven Hundred Twenty Seven Dollars and Thirty-Four Cents ($17,727.34) for Point Sal Dunes 
Subdivision. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Guadalupe does hereby: 

SECTION 1.  Allocate the Six Thousand Nineteen Dollars and Ninety Cents ($6,019.90)  for the Riverview 
Subdivision among fifty (50) parcels at the assessment rate of One Hundred Twenty Dollars and Forty 
Cents ($120.40) per parcel and the Seventeen Thousand Seven Hundred Twenty Seven Dollars and 

Attachment 1



Thirty-Four Cents ($17,727.34) for Point Sal Dunes Subdivision among two hundred fifty-four (254) 
parcels at the assessment rate of Sixty-Nine Dollars and Seventy-Nine Cents ($69.79) as outlined in the 
2020-2021 Guadalupe City Assessment District No. 1 Fixed Charges Report (attached hereto as Exhibit 
“A”); and 

SECTION 2.  Direct the Santa Barbara County Auditor Controller’s office to collect said benefit 
assessments for the 2021-2022 tax year at the same time and in the same manner as the general tax 
levy for the County of Santa Barbara as set forth in Government Code §54716. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting on the 13th day of July 2021 by the following 
vote:  

MOTION: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
RECUSED: 

I, Amelia M. Villegas, City Clerk of the City of Guadalupe DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing 
Resolution, being C.C. Resolution No. 2021-57, has been duly signed by the Mayor and attested by the 
City Clerk, all at a regular meeting of the City Council, held July 13, 2021, and that same was approved 
and adopted.   

ATTEST: 

______________________________  ____________________________________ 
Amelia M. Villegas, City Clerk  Ariston Julian, Mayor 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

______________________________  
Philip Sinco, City Attorney 



EXHIBIT “A” 

City of Guadalupe 

Benefit Assessment District No. 1 
Fixed Charges Report 

FY 2021-22 

Attachment 2



City of Guadalupe 

Benefit Assessment District No. 1 
FY 2021-22 

RIVERVIEW 
(Phase I) 

Estimated Lighting and Landscaping 
Operation, Maintenance, and Replacement Costs 

July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022 

This report provides the estimated annual costs for benefit assessment district 
administration, landscape maintenance, and street lighting for Riverview (Phase I) for 
FY 2020-21.  PG&E street lighting costs are based on Rate Schedule LS-1. 

There are 50 parcels within Riverview (Phase I).  Each is assessed equally. 



RIVERVIEW 
(Phase I) 

Estimated Costs 
July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022 

Overhead Costs: 
Overhead costs include Administration, Public Works, and Finance Department oversight, monthly 
payment of invoices, preparation of the annual cost study, presentation of cost study to City Council at a 
properly noticed Public Hearing, interaction with the Santa Barbara County Auditor-Controller’s office, and 
review and sign-off on the annual cost study per State law.  Also included is an allowance for street light 
replacement and a pro-rated cost of liability insurance for the district. 

543.00

Allowance for Street Light Replacement 300.00

City Engineer 550.00

Liability Insurance 142.00

Overhead Costs 1,535.00$     

Admininstration/Finance per Cost Allocation Study

Landscape Maintenance Costs: 
The City currently contracts with a landscaping firm to maintain the district’s street landscaping.  The 
landscaping uses an irrigation system.  Periodically, plants, trees, and shrubs need to be replaced. 

Item Total

Landscaping contract with landscaping firm for maintenance of street landscaping 960.00

Irrigation water and electricity (per City records) 366.00

Allowance for replacement of plants, trees, and shrubs 788.00

2,114.00$    Annual Landscape Costs:

Street Lighting Costs: 
Estimated annual costs for street lighting based on PG&E Rate Schedule LS-1. 

Number of 
Street Lights Rate/Year Total 

Riverview 15 $158.06 $2,370.90 

TOTAL ESTIMATED ANNUAL COST: $6,019.90 

COST PER PARCEL ($6,019.90 / 50 Parcels) $120.40 



City of Guadalupe 

Benefit Assessment District No. 1 
FY 2021-22 

POINT SAL DUNES 
(Phases I, II, III, IVa, IVb, IVc, Va, and Vb) 

Estimated Lighting and Landscaping 
Operation, Maintenance and Replacement Costs 

July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022 

This report provides the estimated annual costs for Benefit Assessment District 
administration, landscape maintenance, and street lighting for Point Sal Dunes (Phases 
I, II, III, IVa, IVb, IVc, Va, and Vb) for 2020-21.  PG&E street lighting costs are based on 
Rate Schedule LS-1. 

There are 254 parcels within Point Sal Dunes (Phases I, II, III, IVa, IVb, IVc, Va, and 
Vb).  Each is assessed equally. 



POINT SAL DUNES 
(Phases I, II, III, IVa, IVb, IVc, Va, and Vb) 

Estimated Costs 
July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022 

Overhead Costs: 
Overhead costs include Administration, Public Works, and Finance Department oversight, monthly 
payment of invoices, preparation of the annual cost study, presentation of cost study to City Council at a 
properly noticed Public Hearing, interaction with the Santa Barbara County Auditor-Controller’s office, and 
review and sign-off on the annual cost study per State law.  Also included is an allowance for street light 
replacement and a pro-rated cost of liability insurance for the district. 

1628.00

Allowance for Street Light Replacement 800.00

City Engineer 950.00

Liability Insurance 428.00

Admin/Finance/Public Works/Water staffing costs 3,806.00$     

Admininstration/Finance per Cost Allocation Study

Landscape Maintenance Costs: 
The City currently contracts with a landscaping firm to maintain the district’s street landscaping.  The 
landscaping uses an irrigation system.  Periodically, plants, trees, and shrubs need to be replaced. 

Item Total

Landscaping contract with landscaping firm for maintenance of street landscaping 3900.00

Irrigation water and electricity (per City records) 1099.00

Allowance for replacement of plants, trees, and shrubs 2758.00

7,757.00$    Estimated Annual Landscape Costs:

Street Light Electrical Costs: 
Estimated annual costs for street lighting based on PG&E Rate Schedule LS-1. 

Number of 
Street Lights Rate/Year Total 

Pt. Sal Dunes (all 8 Phases) 39 $158.06 $6,164.34 

TOTAL ESTIMATED ANNUAL COST: $17,727.34 

COST PER PARCEL ($17.727.34 / 254 Parcels)     = $69.79 



District Name: Guadalupe Benefit Assessment District #1

Description: Fund 0641, Lighting and Landscaping

Tax Year: 2021-22

Contact Person: City Administrator, (805) 356-3891

Total # of Assessments: 304

Total Assessment Amount: $23,746.66

1

Attachment 3



FundNumber ParcelNumber Amount
0641 113-380-001 69.79

0641 113-380-002 69.79

0641 113-380-003 69.79

0641 113-380-004 69.79

0641 113-380-005 69.79

0641 113-380-006 69.79

0641 113-380-007 69.79

0641 113-380-008 69.79

0641 113-380-009 69.79

0641 113-380-010 69.79

0641 113-380-011 69.79

0641 113-380-012 69.79

0641 113-380-013 69.79

0641 113-380-014 69.79

0641 113-380-015 69.79

0641 113-380-016 69.79

0641 113-380-017 69.79

0641 113-380-018 69.79

0641 113-380-019 69.79

0641 113-380-020 69.79

0641 113-380-021 69.79

0641 113-380-022 69.79

0641 113-380-023 69.79

0641 113-380-024 69.79

0641 113-380-025 69.79

0641 113-380-026 69.79

0641 113-380-027 69.79

0641 113-380-028 69.79

0641 113-380-029 69.79

0641 113-380-030 69.79

0641 113-380-031 69.79

0641 113-380-032 69.79

0641 113-380-033 69.79

0641 113-380-034 69.79

0641 113-380-035 69.79

0641 113-380-036 69.79

0641 113-380-037 69.79

0641 113-380-038 69.79

0641 113-380-039 69.79

0641 113-380-040 69.79

0641 113-380-041 69.79

0641 113-380-042 69.79

0641 113-380-043 69.79

0641 113-380-044 69.79

0641 113-380-045 69.79

0641 113-380-046 69.79

2



0641 113-380-047 69.79

0641 113-380-048 69.79

0641 113-380-049 69.79

0641 113-380-050 69.79

0641 113-380-051 69.79

0641 113-380-052 69.79

0641 113-380-053 69.79

0641 113-380-054 69.79

0641 113-380-055 69.79

0641 113-380-056 69.79

0641 113-380-057 69.79

0641 113-380-058 69.79

0641 113-380-059 69.79

0641 113-380-060 69.79

0641 113-380-061 69.79

0641 113-380-062 69.79

0641 113-380-063 69.79

0641 113-380-064 69.79

0641 113-380-065 69.79

0641 113-380-066 69.79

0641 113-380-067 69.79

0641 113-380-068 69.79

0641 113-380-069 69.79

0641 113-380-070 69.79

0641 113-380-071 69.79

0641 113-390-001 69.79

0641 113-390-002 69.79

0641 113-390-003 69.79

0641 113-390-004 69.79

0641 113-390-005 69.79

0641 113-390-006 69.79

0641 113-390-007 69.79

0641 113-390-008 69.79

0641 113-390-009 69.79

0641 113-390-010 69.79

0641 113-390-011 69.79

0641 113-390-012 69.79

0641 113-390-013 69.79

0641 113-390-014 69.79

0641 113-390-015 69.79

0641 113-390-016 69.79

0641 113-390-017 69.79

0641 113-390-018 69.79

0641 113-390-019 69.79

0641 113-390-020 69.79

0641 113-390-021 69.79

0641 113-390-022 69.79

3



0641 113-390-023 69.79

0641 113-390-024 69.79

0641 113-390-025 69.79

0641 113-390-026 69.79

0641 113-390-027 69.79

0641 113-390-028 69.79

0641 113-390-029 69.79

0641 113-390-030 69.79

0641 113-390-031 69.79

0641 113-390-032 69.79

0641 113-390-033 69.79

0641 113-390-034 69.79

0641 113-390-035 69.79

0641 113-390-036 69.79

0641 113-390-037 69.79

0641 113-390-038 69.79

0641 113-390-039 69.79

0641 113-390-040 69.79

0641 113-390-041 69.79

0641 113-390-042 69.79

0641 113-390-043 69.79

0641 113-390-044 69.79

0641 113-390-045 69.79

0641 113-390-046 69.79

0641 113-390-047 69.79

0641 113-390-048 69.79

0641 113-390-049 69.79

0641 113-390-050 69.79

0641 113-390-051 69.79

0641 113-390-052 69.79

0641 113-390-053 69.79

0641 113-390-054 69.79

0641 113-390-055 69.79

0641 113-390-056 69.79

0641 113-390-057 69.79

0641 113-390-058 69.79

0641 113-390-059 69.79

0641 113-390-060 69.79

0641 113-390-061 69.79

0641 113-390-062 69.79

0641 113-390-063 69.79

0641 113-400-003 69.79

0641 113-400-004 69.79

0641 113-400-005 69.79

0641 113-400-006 69.79

0641 113-400-007 69.79

0641 113-400-008 69.79

4



0641 113-400-009 69.79

0641 113-400-010 69.79

0641 113-400-011 69.79

0641 113-400-012 69.79

0641 113-400-013 69.79

0641 113-400-014 69.79

0641 113-400-015 69.79

0641 113-400-016 69.79

0641 113-400-017 69.79

0641 113-400-018 69.79

0641 113-400-019 69.79

0641 113-400-020 69.79

0641 113-400-021 69.79

0641 113-400-022 69.79

0641 113-400-023 69.79

0641 113-400-024 69.79

0641 113-400-025 69.79

0641 113-400-026 69.79

0641 113-400-027 69.79

0641 113-400-028 69.79

0641 113-400-029 69.79

0641 113-400-030 69.79

0641 113-410-001 120.4

0641 113-410-002 120.4

0641 113-410-003 120.4

0641 113-410-004 120.4

0641 113-410-005 120.4

0641 113-410-006 120.4

0641 113-410-007 120.4

0641 113-410-008 120.4

0641 113-410-009 120.4

0641 113-410-010 120.4

0641 113-410-011 120.4

0641 113-410-012 120.4

0641 113-410-013 120.4

0641 113-410-014 120.4

0641 113-410-015 120.4

0641 113-410-016 120.4

0641 113-410-017 120.4

0641 113-410-018 120.4

0641 113-410-019 120.4

0641 113-410-020 120.4

0641 113-410-021 120.4

0641 113-410-022 120.4

0641 113-410-023 120.4

0641 113-410-024 120.4

0641 113-410-025 120.4

5



0641 113-410-026 120.4

0641 113-410-027 120.4

0641 113-410-028 120.4

0641 113-410-029 120.4

0641 113-410-030 120.4

0641 113-410-031 120.4

0641 113-410-032 120.4

0641 113-410-033 120.4

0641 113-410-034 120.4

0641 113-410-035 120.4

0641 113-410-036 120.4

0641 113-410-037 120.4

0641 113-410-038 120.4

0641 113-410-039 120.4

0641 113-410-040 120.4

0641 113-410-041 120.4

0641 113-410-042 120.4

0641 113-410-043 120.4

0641 113-410-044 120.4

0641 113-410-045 120.4

0641 113-410-046 120.4

0641 113-410-047 120.4

0641 113-410-048 120.4

0641 113-410-049 120.4

0641 113-410-050 120.4

0641 113-420-001 69.79

0641 113-420-002 69.79

0641 113-420-003 69.79

0641 113-420-004 69.79

0641 113-420-005 69.79

0641 113-420-006 69.79

0641 113-420-007 69.79

0641 113-420-008 69.79

0641 113-420-009 69.79

0641 113-420-010 69.79

0641 113-420-011 69.79

0641 113-420-012 69.79

0641 113-420-013 69.79

0641 113-420-014 69.79

0641 113-420-015 69.79

0641 113-420-016 69.79

0641 113-420-017 69.79

0641 113-420-018 69.79

0641 113-420-019 69.79

0641 113-420-020 69.79

0641 113-420-021 69.79

0641 113-430-001 69.79

6



0641 113-430-002 69.79

0641 113-430-003 69.79

0641 113-430-004 69.79

0641 113-430-005 69.79

0641 113-430-006 69.79

0641 113-430-007 69.79

0641 113-430-008 69.79

0641 113-430-009 69.79

0641 113-430-010 69.79

0641 113-430-011 69.79

0641 113-430-012 69.79

0641 113-430-013 69.79

0641 113-430-014 69.79

0641 113-430-015 69.79

0641 113-430-016 69.79

0641 113-430-017 69.79

0641 113-430-018 69.79

0641 113-430-019 69.79

0641 113-430-020 69.79

0641 113-430-021 69.79

0641 113-430-022 69.79

0641 113-430-023 69.79

0641 113-430-024 69.79

0641 113-430-025 69.79

0641 113-430-026 69.79

0641 113-430-027 69.79

0641 113-430-028 69.79

0641 113-430-029 69.79

0641 113-430-030 69.79

0641 113-430-031 69.79

0641 113-430-032 69.79

0641 113-440-001 69.79

0641 113-440-002 69.79

0641 113-440-003 69.79

0641 113-440-004 69.79

0641 113-440-005 69.79

0641 113-440-006 69.79

0641 113-440-007 69.79

0641 113-440-008 69.79

0641 113-440-009 69.79

0641 113-440-010 69.79

0641 113-440-011 69.79

0641 113-440-012 69.79

0641 113-440-013 69.79

0641 113-440-014 69.79

0641 113-440-015 69.79

0641 113-440-016 69.79

7



0641 113-440-017 69.79

0641 113-440-018 69.79

0641 113-440-019 69.79

0641 113-440-020 69.79

0641 113-440-021 69.79

0641 113-440-022 69.79

0641 113-440-023 69.79

0641 113-440-024 69.79

0641 113-440-025 69.79

0641 113-440-026 69.79

0641 113-440-027 69.79

0641 113-440-028 69.79

0641 113-440-029 69.79

0641 113-440-030 69.79

0641 113-440-031 69.79

0641 113-440-032 69.79

0641 113-440-033 69.79

0641 113-440-034 69.79

0641 113-440-035 69.79

0641 113-440-036 69.79

0641 113-440-037 69.79

0641 113-440-038 69.79

0641 113-440-039 69.79

8



Page 1 of 2 

Agenda Item No. 11 

REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GUADALUPE 
Agenda of July 13, 2021 

  
_______________________________ _________________________________ 
Prepared by:   Approved by:  
Shannon Sweeney, Todd Bodem, City Administrator 
Public Works Director / City Engineer 

SUBJECT: Guadalupe Lighting District (FY 2021 – 22) – Public Hearing 

RECOMMENDATION: 

it is recommended that the City Council conduct a public hearing to provide all present with an 
opportunity to speak regarding the assessments for the Guadalupe Lighting District and that the City 
adopt Resolution No. 2021-58 setting the proposed assessments. 

DISCUSSION: 

Benefit assessments are levied for the Guadalupe Lighting District to cover the annual costs of street 
lighting. The Guadalupe Lighting District is a subsidiary district of the City of Guadalupe. Administration 
of the district is the responsibility of the City. In compliance with section 6066 of the Government Code, 
benefit assessments require a public hearing. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The Finance and Administration Departments have prepared an estimate of the annual costs for the 
Guadalupe Lighting District based on the Guadalupe Lighting Report. (See Exhibit A). Since the Lighting 
District also receives property tax, the annual cost to be covered by the benefit assessment is $7,194.22 
in 2021 – 22. 

The amount charged for parcel within the Lighting District varies based on the type of parcel – 
apartment, home, commercial, industrial, and so forth. The amount charged for parcel was established 
with the Lighting District. The proposed 2021 – 22 rates will vary from $2.40 (vacant land) to $28.72 
(heavy commercial). Rates are unchanged from last year. 

Rates 18/19 19/20 19/20 20/21 

Heavy Commercial $73.53 $28.72 $28.72 $28.72 

Industrial/Light  Commercial $49.71 $19.46 $19.46 $19.46 

MF Residential/ Apartments $25.94 $10.16 $10.16 $10.16 

Churches $18.01 $7.05 $7.05 $7.05 

SF Residential $10.08 $3.95 $3.95 $3.95 

Vacant land $6.15 $2.40 $2.40 $2.40 

Shannon Sweeney 



Page 2 of 2 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Resolution No. 2021-58 
2. Exhibit A 
3. Property Tax Roll 21-22 Fund 2686 

 



RESOLUTION NO.  2021-58 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY GUADALUPE CONFIRMING STREET LIGHTING 
CHARGES FOR THE GUADALUPE LIGHTING DISTRICTAND AUTHORIZING THE SANTA BARBARA 

COUNTY AUDITOR’S OFFICE TO COLLECT SAID BENEFIT ASSESSMENT FOR THE 2021-2022 TAX YEAR 

WHEREAS, the City of Guadalupe has established a benefit assessment district known as the 
Guadalupe Lighting District (“District”); and 

WHEREAS, said District was established to provide street lighting within the District; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code §54716, a written report containing a description of the 
parcels in the District and the amount of assessments based on the estimated benefit for such parcels 
has been prepared and filed with the City Clerk of the City of Guadalupe; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council designated Tuesday, July 13, 2021, at the hour of 6:00 p.m. in the Council 
Chambers, 918 Obispo Street, Guadalupe, California as the time and place for the hearing of protests 
and objections in relation to said assessment; and 

WHEREAS, notice of said hearing was duly posted and published, and affidavits of said posting and 
publication have been duly filed; and 

WHEREAS, Government Code §54716(d) provides that at said hearing the City Council shall hear and 
consider all protests and at the conclusion of the hearing the City Council may adopt, revise, change, 
or modify any assessment and shall make its determination by resolution upon each proposed 
assessment described in the said report. 

WHEREAS, the Auditor of Santa Barbara County requires that each year a resolution be passed which 
identifies the amount to be charged as an annual assessment; and 

WHEREAS, the Finance Departments of the City of Guadalupe has determined that the estimated 
lighting costs with administration for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 will be One Hundred Six  Thousand One 
Hundred Ninety-four Dollars and Twenty-Two Cents ($106,194.22) and Seven Thousand One Hundred 
Ninety-Four Dollars and Twenty-Two Cents ($7,194.22) of these costs need to be allocated to parcels 
within the Guadalupe Lighting District. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Guadalupe does hereby: 

SECTION 1.  Confirm and levy the benefit assessment outlined in the Guadalupe Lighting District Report 
for Fiscal Year 2020-21 (attached hereto as Exhibit “A”); and 

SECTION 2.  Distributes that assessment to each parcel in the district based on type of use, as follows: 

Attachment 1



# of Assess. Total 
Type of Use Parcels per Parcel Assess. 

Heavy Commercial 1 $28.72 $28.72 
Industrial/Light Commercial 73 $19.46 $1,420.58 
MF Residential/Apartments 112 $10.16 $1,137.92 
Churches 10 $7.05 $70.50 
SF Residential 1,078 $3.95 $4,258.10 
Vacant land 116 $2.40 $278.40 

Total 1,390 $7,194.22 

SECTION 3.  Directs the Santa Barbara County Auditor Controller’s office to collect said benefit 
assessments for the 2021-2022 tax year at the same time and in the same manner as the general tax 
levy for the County of Santa Barbara as set forth in Government Code §54716. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting on the 13th day of July 2021 by the following 
vote:  

MOTION: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

I, Amelia M. Villegas, City Clerk of the City of Guadalupe DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing 
Resolution, being C.C. Resolution No. 2021-58, has been duly signed by the Mayor and attested by the 
City Clerk, all at a regular meeting of the City Council, held July 13, 2021, and that same was approved 
and adopted.   

ATTEST: 

______________________________  ____________________________________ 
Amelia M. Villegas, City Clerk  Ariston Julian, Mayor 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

______________________________  
Philip Sinco, City Attorney 



EXHIBIT “A” 

City of Guadalupe 

Guadalupe Lighting District Report 

FY 2021-22 

Attachment 2



City of Guadalupe 

Lighting District 

FY 2021-22 

Street Lighting Operation, 
Maintenance, and Replacement Costs 

July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022 

This report provides the estimated annual PG&E Street Lighting costs, miscellaneous 
electrical costs, and assessment district administrative costs for 2021-22.  Street 
Lighting costs are based on PG&E Rate Schedule LS-1. 



City of Guadalupe 

Lighting District 

Estimated Costs 
July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022 

Administrative/Finance/Public Works/Water Department Staffing Costs: 
Administration, Public Works, and Finance costs include general oversight, monthly payment of invoices, 
preparation of the annual cost study and presentation to Council during a properly noticed Public Hearing, 
interaction with the Santa Barbara County Auditor-Controller’s office, review and sign-off on the annual 
cost study and interaction with PG&E concerning non-functioning street lights. 

Street Lighting Costs: 
Estimated street lighting costs for the period July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022 based on PG&E Rate 
Schedule LS-1.  There are 271 street lights in the Lighting District. 

  Number of 
Street Lights Rate/Year Total 

271 $136.44 $36,975.24 

Miscellaneous Electrical Costs: 
The Lighting District pays the electrical costs for the Katayama Clock, the downtown parking lot, and the 
Amtrak depot.  Estimated electrical costs for the period July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022. 

Item Months Per Month Total 
Katayama Clock 12   $22.00 $264.00 
Parking Lot 12   $156.67 $1880.00 
Amtrak Depot 12 $170.18 $2,042.16 
Total $3,889.00 

Total Annual Costs $106,194.22 

Less Property Taxes ($99,000.00) 

Annual Cost to be covered by Assessment $7,194.22 

6,155.00

Street Light Replacement Project 56,319.90

City Engineer 1,474.08

Liability Insurance 1,381.00

Overhead Costs 65,329.98$   

Admininstration/Finance



District Name: Guadalupe Lighting District

Description: Fund 2686, Street Lighting

Tax Year: 2021-22

Contact Person: City Administrator, (805) 356-3891

Total # of Assessments: 1386

Total Assessment Amount: $7,150.50

1

Attachment 3



FundNumber ParcelNumber Amount
2686 113-010-025 2.40

2686 113-320-001 3.95

2686 113-320-002 3.95

2686 113-320-003 3.95

2686 113-320-004 3.95

2686 113-320-005 3.95

2686 113-320-006 3.95

2686 113-320-007 3.95

2686 113-320-008 3.95

2686 113-320-009 3.95

2686 113-320-010 3.95

2686 113-320-011 3.95

2686 113-320-012 3.95

2686 113-320-013 3.95

2686 113-320-014 3.95

2686 113-320-015 3.95

2686 113-320-016 3.95

2686 113-320-017 3.95

2686 113-320-018 3.95

2686 113-320-019 3.95

2686 113-320-020 3.95

2686 113-320-021 3.95

2686 113-320-022 3.95

2686 113-320-023 3.95

2686 113-320-024 3.95

2686 113-320-025 3.95

2686 113-320-026 3.95

2686 113-320-027 3.95

2686 113-320-028 3.95

2686 113-320-029 3.95

2686 113-320-030 3.95

2686 113-320-031 3.95

2686 113-320-032 3.95

2686 113-320-033 3.95

2686 113-320-034 3.95

2686 113-320-035 3.95

2686 113-320-036 3.95

2686 113-320-037 3.95

2686 113-320-038 3.95

2686 113-320-039 3.95

2686 113-320-040 3.95

2686 113-320-041 3.95

2686 113-320-042 3.95

2686 113-320-043 3.95

2686 113-320-044 3.95

2686 113-320-045 3.95

2



2686 113-320-046 3.95

2686 113-320-047 3.95

2686 113-320-048 3.95

2686 113-320-049 3.95

2686 113-320-050 3.95

2686 113-320-051 3.95

2686 113-320-052 3.95

2686 113-320-053 3.95

2686 113-320-054 3.95

2686 113-320-055 3.95

2686 113-320-056 3.95

2686 113-320-057 3.95

2686 113-320-058 3.95

2686 113-320-059 3.95

2686 113-320-060 3.95

2686 113-320-061 3.95

2686 113-320-062 3.95

2686 113-320-063 3.95

2686 113-320-064 3.95

2686 113-320-065 3.95

2686 113-320-066 3.95

2686 113-320-067 3.95

2686 113-320-068 3.95

2686 113-320-069 3.95

2686 113-320-070 3.95

2686 113-320-071 3.95

2686 113-320-072 3.95

2686 113-320-073 3.95

2686 113-320-074 3.95

2686 113-320-075 3.95

2686 113-320-076 3.95

2686 113-320-077 3.95

2686 113-320-078 3.95

2686 113-320-079 3.95

2686 113-320-080 3.95

2686 113-320-081 3.95

2686 113-320-082 3.95

2686 113-320-083 3.95

2686 113-320-084 3.95

2686 113-320-085 3.95

2686 113-320-086 3.95

2686 113-320-087 3.95

2686 113-320-088 3.95

2686 113-320-089 3.95

2686 113-320-090 3.95

2686 113-320-091 3.95

2686 113-320-092 3.95

3



2686 113-320-093 3.95

2686 113-320-094 3.95

2686 113-320-095 3.95

2686 113-320-096 3.95

2686 113-330-001 3.95

2686 113-330-002 3.95

2686 113-330-003 3.95

2686 113-330-004 3.95

2686 113-330-005 3.95

2686 113-330-006 3.95

2686 113-330-007 3.95

2686 113-330-008 3.95

2686 113-330-009 3.95

2686 113-330-010 3.95

2686 113-330-011 3.95

2686 113-330-013 3.95

2686 113-330-014 3.95

2686 113-330-015 3.95

2686 113-330-016 3.95

2686 113-330-017 3.95

2686 113-330-018 3.95

2686 113-330-019 3.95

2686 113-330-020 3.95

2686 113-330-021 3.95

2686 113-330-022 3.95

2686 113-330-023 3.95

2686 113-330-024 3.95

2686 113-330-025 3.95

2686 113-330-026 3.95

2686 113-330-027 3.95

2686 113-330-028 3.95

2686 113-330-029 3.95

2686 113-330-030 3.95

2686 113-330-031 3.95

2686 113-330-032 3.95

2686 113-330-033 3.95

2686 113-330-034 3.95

2686 113-330-035 3.95

2686 113-330-036 3.95

2686 113-330-037 3.95

2686 113-330-038 3.95

2686 113-330-039 3.95

2686 113-330-040 3.95

2686 113-330-041 3.95

2686 113-330-042 3.95

2686 113-330-043 3.95

4



2686 113-330-044 3.95

2686 113-330-045 3.95

2686 113-330-046 3.95

2686 113-330-047 3.95

2686 113-330-048 3.95

2686 113-330-049 3.95

2686 113-330-050 3.95

2686 113-330-051 3.95

2686 113-330-052 3.95

2686 113-330-053 3.95

2686 113-330-054 3.95

2686 113-330-055 3.95

2686 113-330-056 3.95

2686 113-330-057 3.95

2686 113-330-058 3.95

2686 113-330-059 3.95

2686 113-330-060 3.95

2686 113-330-061 3.95

2686 113-330-062 3.95

2686 113-330-063 3.95

2686 113-330-064 3.95

2686 113-330-065 3.95

2686 113-330-066 3.95

2686 113-330-067 3.95

2686 113-340-001 3.95

2686 113-340-002 3.95

2686 113-340-003 3.95

2686 113-340-004 3.95

2686 113-340-005 3.95

2686 113-340-006 3.95

2686 113-340-007 3.95

2686 113-340-008 3.95

2686 113-340-009 3.95

2686 113-340-010 3.95

2686 113-340-011 3.95

2686 113-340-012 3.95

2686 113-340-013 3.95

2686 113-340-014 3.95

2686 113-340-015 3.95

2686 113-340-016 3.95

2686 113-340-017 3.95

2686 113-340-018 3.95

2686 113-340-019 3.95

2686 113-340-020 3.95

2686 113-340-021 3.95

2686 113-340-022 3.95

2686 113-340-023 3.95

5



2686 113-340-024 3.95

2686 113-340-025 3.95

2686 113-340-026 3.95

2686 113-340-027 3.95

2686 113-340-028 3.95

2686 113-340-029 3.95

2686 113-340-030 3.95

2686 113-340-031 3.95

2686 113-340-032 3.95

2686 113-340-033 3.95

2686 113-340-034 3.95

2686 113-340-035 3.95

2686 113-340-036 3.95

2686 113-340-037 3.95

2686 113-340-038 3.95

2686 113-340-039 3.95

2686 113-351-001 3.95

2686 113-351-002 3.95

2686 113-351-003 3.95

2686 113-351-004 3.95

2686 113-351-005 3.95

2686 113-351-006 3.95

2686 113-351-007 3.95

2686 113-351-008 3.95

2686 113-351-009 3.95

2686 113-351-010 3.95

2686 113-351-011 3.95

2686 113-351-012 3.95

2686 113-351-013 3.95

2686 113-351-014 3.95

2686 113-351-015 3.95

2686 113-351-016 3.95

2686 113-351-017 3.95

2686 113-351-020 3.95

2686 113-351-021 3.95

2686 113-351-022 3.95

2686 113-351-023 3.95

2686 113-351-024 3.95

2686 113-351-025 3.95

2686 113-351-026 3.95

2686 113-351-027 3.95

2686 113-351-028 3.95

2686 113-351-029 3.95

2686 113-351-030 3.95

2686 113-351-031 3.95

2686 113-351-032 3.95

2686 113-351-033 3.95

6



2686 113-351-034 3.95

2686 113-351-035 3.95

2686 113-351-036 3.95

2686 113-351-037 3.95

2686 113-351-038 3.95

2686 113-351-039 3.95

2686 113-351-040 3.95

2686 113-351-041 3.95

2686 113-351-042 3.95

2686 113-351-043 3.95

2686 113-351-044 3.95

2686 113-351-045 3.95

2686 113-351-046 3.95

2686 113-351-047 3.95

2686 113-351-048 3.95

2686 113-351-049 3.95

2686 113-351-050 3.95

2686 113-351-051 3.95

2686 113-351-052 3.95

2686 113-351-053 3.95

2686 113-351-054 3.95

2686 113-351-055 3.95

2686 113-351-056 3.95

2686 113-351-057 3.95

2686 113-351-058 3.95

2686 113-351-059 3.95

2686 113-351-060 3.95

2686 113-351-061 3.95

2686 113-351-062 3.95

2686 113-351-063 3.95

2686 113-352-001 3.95

2686 113-352-002 3.95

2686 113-352-003 3.95

2686 113-352-004 3.95

2686 113-352-005 3.95

2686 113-352-006 3.95

2686 113-352-007 3.95

2686 113-352-008 3.95

2686 113-352-009 3.95

2686 113-352-010 3.95

2686 113-352-011 3.95

2686 113-352-012 3.95

2686 113-352-013 3.95

2686 113-352-014 3.95

2686 113-352-015 3.95

2686 113-352-016 3.95

2686 113-352-017 3.95

7



2686 113-352-018 3.95

2686 113-352-019 3.95

2686 113-352-020 3.95

2686 113-352-021 3.95

2686 113-352-022 3.95

2686 113-352-023 3.95

2686 113-352-024 3.95

2686 113-352-025 3.95

2686 113-353-001 3.95

2686 113-353-002 3.95

2686 113-353-003 3.95

2686 113-353-004 3.95

2686 113-353-005 3.95

2686 113-353-006 3.95

2686 113-353-007 3.95

2686 113-353-008 3.95

2686 113-353-009 3.95

2686 113-353-010 3.95

2686 113-353-011 3.95

2686 113-353-012 3.95

2686 113-353-013 3.95

2686 113-353-014 3.95

2686 113-353-015 3.95

2686 113-353-016 3.95

2686 113-353-017 3.95

2686 113-353-018 3.95

2686 113-353-019 3.95

2686 113-353-020 3.95

2686 113-353-021 3.95

2686 113-353-022 3.95

2686 113-353-023 3.95

2686 113-353-024 3.95

2686 113-353-025 3.95

2686 113-353-026 3.95

2686 113-353-027 3.95

2686 113-353-028 3.95

2686 113-353-029 3.95

2686 113-353-030 3.95

2686 113-353-031 3.95

2686 113-353-032 3.95

2686 113-353-033 3.95

2686 113-353-034 3.95

2686 113-353-035 3.95

2686 113-360-001 28.72

2686 113-360-002 3.95

2686 113-360-003 3.95

2686 113-360-004 3.95

8



2686 113-360-005 3.95

2686 113-360-006 3.95

2686 113-360-007 3.95

2686 113-360-008 3.95

2686 113-360-009 3.95

2686 113-360-010 3.95

2686 113-360-011 3.95

2686 113-360-012 3.95

2686 113-360-013 3.95

2686 113-360-014 3.95

2686 113-360-015 3.95

2686 113-360-016 3.95

2686 113-360-017 3.95

2686 113-360-018 3.95

2686 113-360-019 3.95

2686 113-360-020 3.95

2686 113-360-021 3.95

2686 113-360-022 3.95

2686 113-360-023 3.95

2686 113-360-024 3.95

2686 113-360-025 3.95

2686 113-360-026 3.95

2686 113-360-027 3.95

2686 113-360-028 3.95

2686 113-360-029 3.95

2686 113-360-030 3.95

2686 113-360-031 3.95

2686 113-360-032 3.95

2686 113-360-033 3.95

2686 113-360-034 3.95

2686 113-360-035 3.95

2686 113-360-036 3.95

2686 113-360-037 3.95

2686 113-360-038 3.95

2686 113-360-039 3.95

2686 113-360-040 3.95

2686 113-360-041 3.95

2686 113-360-042 3.95

2686 113-360-043 3.95

2686 113-360-044 3.95

2686 113-360-045 3.95

2686 113-360-046 3.95

2686 113-360-047 3.95

2686 113-360-048 3.95

2686 113-360-049 3.95

2686 113-360-050 3.95

2686 113-360-051 3.95

9



2686 113-360-052 3.95

2686 113-360-053 3.95

2686 113-360-054 3.95

2686 113-360-055 3.95

2686 113-360-056 3.95

2686 113-360-057 3.95

2686 113-360-058 3.95

2686 113-360-059 3.95

2686 113-360-060 3.95

2686 113-360-061 3.95

2686 113-360-062 3.95

2686 113-360-063 3.95

2686 113-360-064 3.95

2686 113-360-065 3.95

2686 113-370-001 3.95

2686 113-370-002 3.95

2686 113-370-003 3.95

2686 113-370-004 3.95

2686 113-370-005 3.95

2686 113-370-006 3.95

2686 113-370-007 3.95

2686 113-370-008 3.95

2686 113-370-009 3.95

2686 113-370-010 3.95

2686 113-370-011 3.95

2686 113-370-012 3.95

2686 113-370-013 3.95

2686 113-370-014 3.95

2686 113-370-015 3.95

2686 113-370-016 3.95

2686 113-370-017 3.95

2686 113-370-018 3.95

2686 113-370-019 3.95

2686 113-370-020 3.95

2686 113-370-021 3.95

2686 113-370-022 3.95

2686 113-370-023 3.95

2686 113-370-024 3.95

2686 113-370-025 3.95

2686 113-370-026 3.95

2686 113-370-027 3.95

2686 113-370-028 3.95

2686 113-370-029 3.95

2686 113-370-030 3.95

2686 113-370-031 3.95

2686 113-370-032 3.95

2686 113-370-033 3.95

10



2686 113-370-034 3.95

2686 113-370-035 3.95

2686 113-370-037 2.40

2686 113-370-038 2.40

2686 113-450-001 2.40

2686 113-450-002 2.40

2686 113-450-003 2.40

2686 113-450-010 2.40

2686 115-010-003 2.40

2686 115-010-016 2.40

2686 115-010-020 2.40

2686 115-020-001 2.40

2686 115-020-005 2.40

2686 115-020-012 2.40

2686 115-020-026 3.95

2686 115-020-032 2.40

2686 115-020-033 2.40

2686 115-020-035 2.40

2686 115-020-036 2.40

2686 115-020-039 2.40

2686 115-031-001 2.40

2686 115-032-002 3.95

2686 115-032-003 10.16

2686 115-032-004 3.95

2686 115-032-005 2.40

2686 115-032-006 3.95

2686 115-033-001 3.95

2686 115-033-002 3.95

2686 115-034-001 3.95

2686 115-034-002 3.95

2686 115-034-003 3.95

2686 115-034-004 3.95

2686 115-034-005 3.95

2686 115-034-006 3.95

2686 115-034-007 10.16

2686 115-034-008 3.95

2686 115-034-009 3.95

2686 115-034-010 3.95

2686 115-034-011 3.95

2686 115-034-013 10.16

2686 115-034-016 2.40

2686 115-034-017 10.16

2686 115-034-018 3.95

2686 115-034-019 3.95

2686 115-035-001 2.40

2686 115-035-002 3.95

2686 115-035-004 3.95

11



2686 115-035-005 10.16

2686 115-035-006 2.40

2686 115-036-001 3.95

2686 115-036-002 2.40

2686 115-036-003 3.95

2686 115-036-007 3.95

2686 115-036-008 3.95

2686 115-036-009 3.95

2686 115-036-010 19.46

2686 115-036-011 3.95

2686 115-036-012 3.95

2686 115-036-013 10.16

2686 115-036-014 3.95

2686 115-036-015 2.40

2686 115-036-016 3.95

2686 115-036-017 10.16

2686 115-036-018 2.40

2686 115-036-019 3.95

2686 115-041-004 3.95

2686 115-041-005 3.95

2686 115-041-010 2.40

2686 115-041-011 3.95

2686 115-041-012 3.95

2686 115-041-013 3.95

2686 115-041-014 3.95

2686 115-041-018 3.95

2686 115-041-019 3.95

2686 115-041-022 19.46

2686 115-041-023 3.95

2686 115-041-024 2.40

2686 115-041-025 19.46

2686 115-042-001 3.95

2686 115-042-002 3.95

2686 115-042-003 2.40

2686 115-042-004 3.95

2686 115-042-006 2.40

2686 115-042-007 2.40

2686 115-042-008 2.40

2686 115-042-009 7.05

2686 115-042-013 2.40

2686 115-042-014 3.95

2686 115-042-015 2.40

2686 115-042-016 7.05

2686 115-042-017 7.05

2686 115-042-019 2.40

2686 115-042-020 7.05

2686 115-043-002 2.40

12



2686 115-043-003 3.95

2686 115-051-004 3.95

2686 115-051-005 3.95

2686 115-051-006 3.95

2686 115-051-009 2.40

2686 115-052-003 3.95

2686 115-052-004 3.95

2686 115-052-005 3.95

2686 115-052-006 2.40

2686 115-052-007 10.16

2686 115-052-009 10.16

2686 115-052-010 10.16

2686 115-052-011 3.95

2686 115-052-012 10.16

2686 115-052-013 3.95

2686 115-052-014 10.16

2686 115-052-015 10.16

2686 115-052-016 10.16

2686 115-052-017 7.05

2686 115-052-018 7.05

2686 115-061-001 10.16

2686 115-061-002 3.95

2686 115-061-003 10.16

2686 115-061-004 10.16

2686 115-061-005 10.16

2686 115-061-009 3.95

2686 115-061-010 10.16

2686 115-061-011 3.95

2686 115-061-012 7.05

2686 115-061-013 7.05

2686 115-062-006 3.95

2686 115-062-009 3.95

2686 115-062-010 3.95

2686 115-062-011 10.16

2686 115-062-012 3.95

2686 115-062-013 3.95

2686 115-062-014 3.95

2686 115-062-015 3.95

2686 115-062-016 3.95

2686 115-062-017 10.16

2686 115-063-002 2.40

2686 115-063-003 3.95

2686 115-063-004 3.95

2686 115-063-005 3.95

2686 115-063-006 3.95

2686 115-063-007 10.16

2686 115-063-010 3.95

13



2686 115-063-011 2.40

2686 115-063-012 3.95

2686 115-063-013 3.95

2686 115-063-017 10.16

2686 115-063-019 2.40

2686 115-063-020 10.16

2686 115-063-021 10.16

2686 115-063-023 3.95

2686 115-063-024 10.16

2686 115-063-025 10.16

2686 115-063-026 10.16

2686 115-063-027 10.16

2686 115-063-028 10.16

2686 115-071-002 10.16

2686 115-071-003 10.16

2686 115-071-004 10.16

2686 115-071-005 10.16

2686 115-071-012 3.95

2686 115-071-014 3.95

2686 115-071-015 2.40

2686 115-071-016 2.40

2686 115-071-017 2.40

2686 115-071-018 2.40

2686 115-071-019 10.16

2686 115-072-001 19.46

2686 115-072-002 10.16

2686 115-072-003 10.16

2686 115-072-004 3.95

2686 115-072-005 3.95

2686 115-072-007 3.95

2686 115-072-008 3.95

2686 115-072-009 3.95

2686 115-072-010 19.46

2686 115-072-011 19.46

2686 115-072-012 19.46

2686 115-072-013 19.46

2686 115-072-014 2.40

2686 115-072-015 2.40

2686 115-072-018 2.40

2686 115-072-020 19.46

2686 115-081-001 3.95

2686 115-081-006 3.95

2686 115-081-007 3.95

2686 115-081-008 3.95

2686 115-081-009 3.95

2686 115-081-013 10.16

2686 115-081-015 10.16

14



2686 115-082-003 3.95

2686 115-082-004 3.95

2686 115-082-005 3.95

2686 115-082-006 3.95

2686 115-082-008 19.46

2686 115-082-009 2.40

2686 115-082-010 3.95

2686 115-082-011 2.40

2686 115-082-013 3.95

2686 115-082-015 3.95

2686 115-082-016 3.95

2686 115-082-019 3.95

2686 115-082-021 2.40

2686 115-091-002 7.05

2686 115-091-003 3.95

2686 115-091-004 3.95

2686 115-091-005 3.95

2686 115-091-006 2.40

2686 115-091-007 10.16

2686 115-091-008 3.95

2686 115-091-011 2.40

2686 115-091-012 3.95

2686 115-091-013 3.95

2686 115-092-001 2.40

2686 115-092-002 2.40

2686 115-092-005 2.40

2686 115-092-006 10.16

2686 115-092-008 19.46

2686 115-092-009 19.46

2686 115-092-013 19.46

2686 115-092-014 19.46

2686 115-092-015 2.40

2686 115-092-016 19.46

2686 115-092-017 19.46

2686 115-092-018 19.46

2686 115-092-019 2.40

2686 115-092-020 3.95

2686 115-092-021 19.46

2686 115-092-023 2.40

2686 115-092-024 19.46

2686 115-101-002 19.46

2686 115-101-003 2.40

2686 115-101-004 19.46

2686 115-101-005 19.46

2686 115-101-006 19.46

2686 115-101-009 2.40

2686 115-101-010 3.95

15



2686 115-101-013 2.40

2686 115-101-014 19.46

2686 115-102-002 2.40

2686 115-102-005 10.16

2686 115-102-006 10.16

2686 115-102-007 10.16

2686 115-102-008 10.16

2686 115-102-009 10.16

2686 115-102-010 10.16

2686 115-102-011 10.16

2686 115-102-012 10.16

2686 115-102-013 2.40

2686 115-102-014 10.16

2686 115-102-015 2.40

2686 115-102-016 2.40

2686 115-102-017 2.40

2686 115-102-018 2.40

2686 115-102-019 10.16

2686 115-102-020 10.16

2686 115-102-021 10.16

2686 115-102-022 2.40

2686 115-103-001 10.16

2686 115-103-002 3.95

2686 115-103-003 3.95

2686 115-103-004 10.16

2686 115-103-005 3.95

2686 115-103-007 10.16

2686 115-103-008 3.95

2686 115-103-009 3.95

2686 115-103-010 2.40

2686 115-103-012 2.40

2686 115-103-016 3.95

2686 115-103-017 3.95

2686 115-112-001 19.46

2686 115-112-002 2.40

2686 115-112-003 19.46

2686 115-112-005 10.16

2686 115-113-004 2.40

2686 115-113-005 2.40

2686 115-113-006 2.40

2686 115-113-007 19.46

2686 115-121-001 2.40

2686 115-121-002 2.40

2686 115-121-003 3.95

2686 115-121-004 3.95

2686 115-121-005 3.95

2686 115-121-006 3.95

16



2686 115-121-007 2.40

2686 115-121-008 10.16

2686 115-121-010 10.16

2686 115-121-011 19.46

2686 115-121-012 19.46

2686 115-121-013 19.46

2686 115-121-014 19.46

2686 115-121-015 19.46

2686 115-121-016 3.95

2686 115-121-017 19.46

2686 115-121-018 3.95

2686 115-121-019 3.95

2686 115-121-020 3.95

2686 115-121-021 2.40

2686 115-121-022 3.95

2686 115-121-023 3.95

2686 115-121-024 3.95

2686 115-122-001 2.40

2686 115-122-002 3.95

2686 115-122-004 3.95

2686 115-122-005 10.16

2686 115-122-006 3.95

2686 115-122-007 3.95

2686 115-131-001 10.16

2686 115-131-002 3.95

2686 115-131-003 3.95

2686 115-131-004 3.95

2686 115-132-003 3.95

2686 115-132-004 3.95

2686 115-132-005 3.95

2686 115-132-006 3.95

2686 115-132-007 3.95

2686 115-132-008 3.95

2686 115-132-009 10.16

2686 115-132-010 3.95

2686 115-132-011 3.95

2686 115-132-012 3.95

2686 115-132-013 3.95

2686 115-132-014 3.95

2686 115-132-015 3.95

2686 115-132-016 2.40

2686 115-132-017 3.95

2686 115-132-018 3.95

2686 115-132-019 3.95

2686 115-133-001 3.95

2686 115-133-002 7.05

2686 115-133-003 3.95

17



2686 115-133-004 3.95

2686 115-133-005 19.46

2686 115-133-008 19.46

2686 115-134-001 10.16

2686 115-134-003 3.95

2686 115-134-004 19.46

2686 115-134-005 19.46

2686 115-134-006 19.46

2686 115-134-007 3.95

2686 115-134-008 3.95

2686 115-134-009 10.16

2686 115-140-001 19.46

2686 115-140-004 10.16

2686 115-140-005 2.40

2686 115-140-011 19.46

2686 115-140-013 10.16

2686 115-140-014 19.46

2686 115-140-015 2.40

2686 115-140-016 2.40

2686 115-140-021 2.40

2686 115-140-022 19.46

2686 115-140-026 2.40

2686 115-140-027 2.40

2686 115-140-028 19.46

2686 115-151-001 3.95

2686 115-151-002 3.95

2686 115-151-003 3.95

2686 115-151-004 3.95

2686 115-151-005 3.95

2686 115-151-006 3.95

2686 115-151-007 3.95

2686 115-151-008 3.95

2686 115-151-009 3.95

2686 115-152-001 3.95

2686 115-152-002 3.95

2686 115-152-003 10.16

2686 115-152-004 3.95

2686 115-152-005 3.95

2686 115-152-006 3.95

2686 115-152-007 3.95

2686 115-152-008 3.95

2686 115-152-009 3.95

2686 115-152-010 3.95

2686 115-152-011 3.95

2686 115-152-012 3.95

2686 115-152-014 10.16

2686 115-152-015 3.95

18



2686 115-152-016 3.95

2686 115-153-003 3.95

2686 115-153-004 10.16

2686 115-153-005 10.16

2686 115-153-006 3.95

2686 115-153-007 3.95

2686 115-153-008 3.95

2686 115-153-009 19.46

2686 115-153-010 19.46

2686 115-153-011 3.95

2686 115-153-012 3.95

2686 115-153-013 10.16

2686 115-153-014 10.16

2686 115-153-015 3.95

2686 115-153-016 3.95

2686 115-153-017 10.16

2686 115-153-018 3.95

2686 115-161-001 3.95

2686 115-161-002 3.95

2686 115-161-003 10.16

2686 115-161-004 3.95

2686 115-161-005 10.16

2686 115-161-006 3.95

2686 115-161-007 3.95

2686 115-162-001 3.95

2686 115-162-002 3.95

2686 115-162-003 3.95

2686 115-162-004 10.16

2686 115-162-005 3.95

2686 115-162-006 10.16

2686 115-162-007 3.95

2686 115-162-008 3.95

2686 115-162-009 3.95

2686 115-162-010 3.95

2686 115-162-011 3.95

2686 115-162-013 3.95

2686 115-162-014 3.95

2686 115-162-017 3.95

2686 115-162-018 3.95

2686 115-162-019 3.95

2686 115-162-020 3.95

2686 115-162-021 3.95

2686 115-162-023 3.95

2686 115-162-024 2.40

2686 115-163-001 3.95

2686 115-163-002 19.46

2686 115-163-003 19.46

19



2686 115-163-006 3.95

2686 115-163-007 3.95

2686 115-163-008 3.95

2686 115-163-009 3.95

2686 115-163-010 3.95

2686 115-163-011 3.95

2686 115-163-013 10.16

2686 115-163-014 3.95

2686 115-163-015 3.95

2686 115-171-001 3.95

2686 115-171-002 3.95

2686 115-171-003 3.95

2686 115-171-004 3.95

2686 115-171-007 3.95

2686 115-171-008 3.95

2686 115-171-009 3.95

2686 115-172-001 3.95

2686 115-172-002 3.95

2686 115-172-003 3.95

2686 115-172-004 3.95

2686 115-172-005 3.95

2686 115-172-006 3.95

2686 115-172-007 3.95

2686 115-172-008 3.95

2686 115-172-009 3.95

2686 115-172-010 3.95

2686 115-172-011 3.95

2686 115-172-012 3.95

2686 115-172-013 3.95

2686 115-172-014 3.95

2686 115-172-015 19.46

2686 115-172-016 10.16

2686 115-173-001 3.95

2686 115-173-003 3.95

2686 115-173-004 3.95

2686 115-173-007 3.95

2686 115-173-008 3.95

2686 115-173-009 3.95

2686 115-173-010 19.46

2686 115-173-011 19.46

2686 115-173-013 19.46

2686 115-173-015 19.46

2686 115-173-016 19.46

2686 115-173-017 3.95

2686 115-173-018 3.95

2686 115-173-019 3.95

2686 115-173-020 3.95

20



2686 115-180-015 19.46

2686 115-180-027 2.40

2686 115-180-028 19.46

2686 115-180-029 10.16

2686 115-180-030 2.40

2686 115-180-031 2.40

2686 115-191-002 3.95

2686 115-191-003 3.95

2686 115-191-004 3.95

2686 115-191-005 3.95

2686 115-191-006 3.95

2686 115-191-007 3.95

2686 115-192-001 3.95

2686 115-192-002 3.95

2686 115-192-003 3.95

2686 115-192-004 3.95

2686 115-192-005 3.95

2686 115-192-006 3.95

2686 115-192-007 3.95

2686 115-192-008 3.95

2686 115-192-009 10.16

2686 115-192-011 3.95

2686 115-192-012 3.95

2686 115-192-013 3.95

2686 115-192-014 3.95

2686 115-192-015 3.95

2686 115-192-016 3.95

2686 115-192-017 3.95

2686 115-192-018 3.95

2686 115-193-001 3.95

2686 115-193-002 19.46

2686 115-193-003 19.46

2686 115-193-006 19.46

2686 115-193-011 3.95

2686 115-193-012 3.95

2686 115-193-013 3.95

2686 115-193-014 3.95

2686 115-193-015 3.95

2686 115-193-016 3.95

2686 115-193-017 3.95

2686 115-193-018 19.46

2686 115-193-019 2.40

2686 115-201-001 3.95

2686 115-201-002 3.95

2686 115-201-004 3.95

2686 115-201-005 3.95

2686 115-201-006 3.95

21



2686 115-201-007 3.95

2686 115-201-008 3.95

2686 115-201-009 3.95

2686 115-201-010 3.95

2686 115-201-011 2.40

2686 115-201-012 2.40

2686 115-201-013 2.40

2686 115-202-001 3.95

2686 115-202-002 2.40

2686 115-202-003 10.16

2686 115-202-004 3.95

2686 115-202-006 10.16

2686 115-202-007 10.16

2686 115-202-008 10.16

2686 115-202-009 3.95

2686 115-202-010 2.40

2686 115-202-011 10.16

2686 115-210-010 10.16

2686 115-210-013 19.46

2686 115-210-014 19.46

2686 115-210-015 19.46

2686 115-210-019 19.46

2686 115-210-020 19.46

2686 115-210-023 2.40

2686 115-210-024 19.46

2686 115-210-026 19.46

2686 115-221-001 3.95

2686 115-221-002 3.95

2686 115-221-003 3.95

2686 115-221-004 3.95

2686 115-221-005 3.95

2686 115-221-006 3.95

2686 115-221-007 3.95

2686 115-221-008 3.95

2686 115-221-009 3.95

2686 115-221-010 3.95

2686 115-221-011 3.95

2686 115-221-012 3.95

2686 115-221-013 3.95

2686 115-221-014 3.95

2686 115-221-015 3.95

2686 115-221-016 3.95

2686 115-221-017 3.95

2686 115-222-001 3.95

2686 115-222-002 3.95

2686 115-222-003 3.95

2686 115-222-004 3.95

22



2686 115-222-005 3.95

2686 115-222-006 3.95

2686 115-222-007 3.95

2686 115-222-008 3.95

2686 115-222-009 3.95

2686 115-222-010 3.95

2686 115-222-011 3.95

2686 115-222-012 3.95

2686 115-222-013 3.95

2686 115-222-014 3.95

2686 115-222-015 3.95

2686 115-222-016 3.95

2686 115-222-017 3.95

2686 115-222-018 3.95

2686 115-222-019 3.95

2686 115-222-020 3.95

2686 115-222-021 3.95

2686 115-222-022 3.95

2686 115-222-023 3.95

2686 115-222-024 3.95

2686 115-222-025 3.95

2686 115-222-026 3.95

2686 115-222-027 3.95

2686 115-222-028 3.95

2686 115-222-029 3.95

2686 115-222-030 3.95

2686 115-222-031 3.95

2686 115-222-032 3.95

2686 115-222-033 3.95

2686 115-222-034 3.95

2686 115-223-001 3.95

2686 115-223-002 3.95

2686 115-223-003 3.95

2686 115-223-004 3.95

2686 115-223-005 3.95

2686 115-223-006 3.95

2686 115-223-007 3.95

2686 115-223-008 3.95

2686 115-223-009 3.95

2686 115-223-010 3.95

2686 115-223-011 3.95

2686 115-223-012 3.95

2686 115-223-013 3.95

2686 115-223-014 3.95

2686 115-223-015 3.95

2686 115-223-016 3.95

2686 115-223-017 3.95

23



2686 115-223-018 3.95

2686 115-223-019 3.95

2686 115-223-020 3.95

2686 115-223-021 3.95

2686 115-223-022 3.95

2686 115-223-023 3.95

2686 115-223-024 3.95

2686 115-223-025 3.95

2686 115-223-026 3.95

2686 115-223-027 3.95

2686 115-223-028 3.95

2686 115-223-029 3.95

2686 115-223-030 3.95

2686 115-223-031 3.95

2686 115-223-032 3.95

2686 115-224-001 3.95

2686 115-224-002 3.95

2686 115-224-003 3.95

2686 115-224-004 3.95

2686 115-224-005 3.95

2686 115-224-006 3.95

2686 115-224-007 3.95

2686 115-224-008 3.95

2686 115-224-009 3.95

2686 115-224-010 3.95

2686 115-224-011 3.95

2686 115-224-012 3.95

2686 115-224-013 3.95

2686 115-224-014 3.95

2686 115-224-015 3.95

2686 115-230-005 3.95

2686 115-230-007 10.16

2686 115-230-009 10.16

2686 115-230-010 2.40

2686 115-230-011 3.95

2686 115-230-012 3.95

2686 115-230-013 3.95

2686 115-230-014 10.16

2686 115-230-015 3.95

2686 115-230-016 3.95

2686 115-230-018 3.95

2686 115-230-019 3.95

2686 115-230-021 3.95

2686 115-230-022 3.95

2686 115-230-024 3.95

2686 115-230-027 3.95

2686 115-230-029 3.95

24



2686 115-230-030 2.40

2686 115-230-032 3.95

2686 115-230-033 3.95

2686 115-230-034 3.95

2686 115-230-035 3.95

2686 115-230-036 2.40

2686 115-230-037 10.16

2686 115-241-001 3.95

2686 115-241-002 3.95

2686 115-241-003 3.95

2686 115-241-004 3.95

2686 115-241-005 3.95

2686 115-241-006 3.95

2686 115-241-007 3.95

2686 115-241-008 3.95

2686 115-241-009 3.95

2686 115-241-010 3.95

2686 115-241-011 3.95

2686 115-241-012 3.95

2686 115-241-013 3.95

2686 115-241-014 3.95

2686 115-241-015 3.95

2686 115-241-016 3.95

2686 115-241-017 3.95

2686 115-242-001 3.95

2686 115-242-002 3.95

2686 115-242-003 3.95

2686 115-242-004 3.95

2686 115-242-005 3.95

2686 115-242-006 3.95

2686 115-242-007 3.95

2686 115-242-008 3.95

2686 115-242-009 3.95

2686 115-242-010 3.95

2686 115-242-011 3.95

2686 115-242-012 3.95

2686 115-242-013 3.95

2686 115-242-014 3.95

2686 115-242-015 3.95

2686 115-242-016 3.95

2686 115-242-017 3.95

2686 115-242-018 3.95

2686 115-242-019 3.95

2686 115-242-020 3.95

2686 115-242-021 3.95

2686 115-242-022 3.95

2686 115-242-023 3.95

25



2686 115-242-024 3.95

2686 115-242-025 3.95

2686 115-242-026 3.95

2686 115-242-027 3.95

2686 115-242-028 3.95

2686 115-242-029 3.95

2686 115-242-030 3.95

2686 115-242-031 3.95

2686 115-242-032 3.95

2686 115-242-033 3.95

2686 115-242-034 3.95

2686 115-243-001 3.95

2686 115-243-002 3.95

2686 115-243-003 3.95

2686 115-243-004 3.95

2686 115-243-005 3.95

2686 115-243-006 3.95

2686 115-243-007 3.95

2686 115-243-008 3.95

2686 115-243-009 3.95

2686 115-243-010 3.95

2686 115-243-011 3.95

2686 115-243-012 3.95

2686 115-243-013 3.95

2686 115-243-014 3.95

2686 115-243-015 3.95

2686 115-243-016 3.95

2686 115-243-017 3.95

2686 115-251-001 3.95

2686 115-251-002 3.95

2686 115-251-003 3.95

2686 115-251-004 3.95

2686 115-251-005 3.95

2686 115-251-006 3.95

2686 115-251-007 3.95

2686 115-251-008 3.95

2686 115-251-009 3.95

2686 115-251-010 3.95

2686 115-251-011 3.95

2686 115-251-012 3.95

2686 115-251-013 3.95

2686 115-251-014 3.95

2686 115-251-015 3.95

2686 115-251-016 3.95

2686 115-251-017 3.95

2686 115-252-001 3.95

2686 115-252-002 3.95

26



2686 115-252-003 3.95

2686 115-252-004 3.95

2686 115-252-005 3.95

2686 115-252-006 3.95

2686 115-252-007 3.95

2686 115-252-008 3.95

2686 115-252-009 3.95

2686 115-252-010 3.95

2686 115-252-011 3.95

2686 115-252-012 3.95

2686 115-252-013 3.95

2686 115-252-014 3.95

2686 115-252-015 3.95

2686 115-252-016 3.95

2686 115-252-017 3.95

2686 115-252-018 3.95

2686 115-252-019 3.95

2686 115-252-020 3.95

2686 115-252-021 3.95

2686 115-252-022 3.95

2686 115-252-023 3.95

2686 115-252-024 3.95

2686 115-252-025 3.95

2686 115-252-026 3.95

2686 115-252-027 3.95

2686 115-252-028 3.95

2686 115-252-029 3.95

2686 115-252-030 3.95

2686 115-252-031 3.95

2686 115-252-032 3.95

2686 115-252-033 3.95

2686 115-252-034 3.95

2686 115-253-001 3.95

2686 115-253-002 3.95

2686 115-253-003 3.95

2686 115-253-004 3.95

2686 115-253-005 3.95

2686 115-253-006 3.95

2686 115-253-007 3.95

2686 115-253-008 3.95

2686 115-253-009 3.95

2686 115-253-010 3.95

2686 115-253-011 3.95

2686 115-253-012 3.95

2686 115-253-013 3.95

2686 115-253-014 3.95

2686 115-253-015 3.95

27



2686 115-253-016 3.95

2686 115-253-017 3.95

2686 115-261-001 3.95

2686 115-261-002 3.95

2686 115-261-003 3.95

2686 115-261-004 3.95

2686 115-261-005 3.95

2686 115-261-006 3.95

2686 115-261-007 3.95

2686 115-261-008 3.95

2686 115-261-009 3.95

2686 115-261-010 3.95

2686 115-261-011 3.95

2686 115-261-012 3.95

2686 115-261-013 3.95

2686 115-261-014 3.95

2686 115-261-015 3.95

2686 115-261-016 3.95

2686 115-261-017 3.95

2686 115-261-018 3.95

2686 115-261-019 3.95

2686 115-261-020 3.95

2686 115-261-021 3.95

2686 115-261-022 3.95

2686 115-261-023 3.95

2686 115-261-024 3.95

2686 115-261-025 3.95

2686 115-261-026 3.95

2686 115-261-027 3.95

2686 115-261-028 3.95

2686 115-261-029 3.95

2686 115-261-030 3.95

2686 115-261-031 3.95

2686 115-261-032 3.95

2686 115-261-033 3.95

2686 115-261-034 3.95

2686 115-262-001 3.95

2686 115-262-002 3.95

2686 115-262-003 3.95

2686 115-262-004 3.95

2686 115-262-005 3.95

2686 115-262-006 3.95

2686 115-262-007 3.95

2686 115-262-008 3.95

2686 115-262-009 3.95

2686 115-262-010 3.95

2686 115-262-011 3.95

28



2686 115-262-012 3.95

2686 115-262-013 3.95

2686 115-262-014 3.95

2686 115-262-015 3.95

2686 115-262-016 3.95

2686 115-262-017 3.95

2686 115-270-001 10.16

2686 115-270-002 10.16

2686 115-270-003 10.16

2686 115-270-004 10.16

2686 115-270-005 10.16

2686 115-270-006 10.16

2686 115-270-007 10.16

2686 115-270-008 10.16

2686 115-270-009 10.16

2686 115-270-010 10.16

2686 115-270-011 10.16

2686 115-270-012 10.16

2686 115-270-013 10.16

2686 115-270-014 10.16

2686 115-270-015 10.16

2686 115-270-016 10.16

2686 115-270-017 10.16

2686 115-270-018 10.16

2686 115-270-019 10.16

2686 115-270-020 10.16

2686 115-270-021 10.16

2686 115-280-001 19.46

2686 115-280-002 19.46

2686 115-280-003 19.46

2686 115-280-004 19.46

2686 115-280-005 19.46

2686 115-280-006 2.40

2686 115-280-007 2.40

2686 115-280-008 2.40

2686 115-280-009 2.40

2686 115-280-010 2.40

2686 115-280-011 2.40

2686 115-280-012 2.40

2686 115-280-013 2.40

2686 115-280-014 2.40

2686 115-280-015 2.40

2686 115-280-016 2.40

2686 115-280-017 2.40

2686 115-280-018 2.40

2686 115-290-001 3.95

2686 115-290-002 3.95

29



2686 115-290-003 3.95

2686 115-290-004 3.95

2686 115-290-005 3.95

2686 115-290-006 3.95

2686 115-290-007 3.95

2686 115-290-008 3.95

2686 115-290-009 3.95

2686 115-290-010 3.95

2686 115-290-011 3.95

2686 115-290-012 3.95

2686 115-290-013 3.95

2686 115-290-014 3.95

2686 115-290-015 3.95

2686 115-290-016 3.95

2686 115-290-017 3.95

2686 115-290-018 3.95

2686 115-290-019 3.95

2686 115-290-020 3.95

2686 115-290-021 3.95

2686 115-290-022 3.95

2686 115-290-023 3.95

2686 115-290-024 3.95

2686 115-290-025 3.95

2686 115-290-026 3.95

2686 115-290-027 3.95

2686 115-290-028 3.95

2686 115-290-029 3.95

2686 115-290-030 3.95

2686 115-290-031 3.95

2686 115-290-032 3.95

2686 115-290-033 3.95

2686 115-290-034 3.95

2686 115-290-035 3.95

2686 115-290-036 3.95

2686 115-290-037 3.95

2686 115-290-038 3.95

2686 115-290-039 3.95

2686 115-290-040 3.95

2686 115-290-041 3.95

2686 115-290-042 3.95

2686 115-290-043 3.95

2686 115-290-044 3.95

2686 115-290-045 3.95

2686 115-290-046 3.95

2686 115-290-047 3.95

2686 115-290-048 3.95

2686 115-290-049 3.95

30



2686 115-290-050 3.95

2686 115-290-051 3.95

2686 115-290-052 3.95

2686 115-290-053 3.95

2686 115-290-054 3.95

2686 115-290-055 3.95

2686 115-290-056 3.95

2686 115-290-057 3.95

2686 115-290-058 3.95

2686 115-290-059 3.95

2686 115-290-060 3.95

2686 115-290-061 3.95

2686 115-290-062 3.95

2686 115-290-063 3.95

2686 115-290-064 3.95

2686 115-290-065 3.95

2686 115-290-066 3.95

2686 115-290-067 3.95

2686 115-290-068 3.95

2686 115-290-069 3.95

2686 115-290-070 3.95

2686 115-290-071 3.95

2686 115-290-072 3.95

2686 115-290-073 3.95

2686 115-290-074 3.95

31



Page 1 of 2 

Agenda Item No. 12 

REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GUADALUPE 
Agenda of July 13, 2021 

  
_______________________________ _________________________________ 
Prepared by:   Approved by:  
Shannon Sweeney, Todd Bodem, City Administrator 
Public Works Director / City Engineer 

SUBJECT: Water Standby Charges, Fiscal Year 2021 – 22 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2021-59 directing staff to forward to the 
Auditor’s Controller’s Office of the County of Santa Barbara the Water Standby Charges for vacant 
parcels within the City of Guadalupe for Fiscal Year 2021 – 22. 

DISCUSSION: 

In 1991, voters in the City of Guadalupe approved the City’s participation in the Coastal Aqueduct of 
the State Water Project. Participation was approved at the 550 acre-foot (605 acre-feet with drought 
buffer)-per-year level. To participate in the Project, the City became a member of the Central Coast 
Water Authority (CCWA). CCWA membership comprises all water purveyors in Santa Barbara County 
who are participating in the Project. 

Funding for construction of the Coastal Aqueduct and associated facilities was accomplished through 
voter approved bonds. One of the bond issuance conditions requires each participant to maintain a 
“coverage ratio” of 1.25. That means that each participant must have annual net income (revenue 
minus expenses) 25% higher than required debt service payments. 

Water rates for current customers are set with the debt service ratio in mind, but participation in the 
State Water Project is also a benefit to vacant parcels in the City which are currently not using City 
water. Participation in the State Water Project makes it possible for these parcels to develop in the 
future because State Water will be needed to meet future buildout needs. 

As a result, in 1993, the City imposed water standby charges on vacant parcels. These charges are 
permitted by Section 38743 of the Government Code of the State of California. Consistent with 
Government Code section 38743, it was determined that for parcels of less than one acre, the charge 
would be $5.00 per month. For parcels of one acre or more, the charge would be $10.00 per month 
per acre or part thereof. 

Shannon Sweeney 



Page 2 of 2 
 

The most significant changes in the water standby charge list in the past year are due to the continuing 
development of Pasadera/DJ Farms. 
 
The establishment of, or an increase to, these charges requires compliance with the procedures 
described in proposition 218.  State law permits water standby charges to be set annually by resolution 
of the City Council if the rates are not changed from the previous year. The City’s fees are not proposed 
to be increased from the previous year. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None. Resolution number 2021-59 establishes the same rates as charged in the 
past. 
 
The water standby fees for fiscal year 2021 – 2022 total as follows: 
 
Number of parcels: 99 
Total assessment: $27,180.00 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution No. 2021-59 
2. Property Tax Roll 21 – 22 Fund 0642 

 



Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO.  2021-59 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY GUADALUPE DIRECTING STAFF TO FORWARD TO 
THE SANTA BARBARA COUNTY AUDITOR’S OFFICE WATER STANDBY CHARGES FOR VACANT PARCELS 

WITHIN THE CITY OF GUADALUPE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022. 

WHEREAS, the City of Guadalupe historically obtained all its domestic water from wells tapping the Santa 
Maria River Basin aquifer; and 

WHEREAS, voters in Guadalupe in 1991 approved the City’s participation in the State Water Project to 
increase available water supplies for current and future needs and make those supplies more reliable; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City’s participation in the State Water Projects increases the costs to provide water 
service to the residents of Guadalupe; and 

WHEREAS, Section 38743 of the Government Code of the State of California allows for an annual water 
service standby charge to be applied on a per parcel basis to areas in which water service is made 
available, whether the water service is currently being used or not; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Guadalupe adopted Resolution No. 93-20 on August 9, 1993, 
stating that the correct and equitable standby charges should be $5.00 per month for each vacant parcel 
less than one acre in size, and $10.00 per month per acre, or portion thereof, for each vacant parcel of 
one acre or more; and 

WHEREAS, Section 38743 of the Government Code of the State of California allows for the standby 
charge to be collected as part of the annual general county tax bill by forwarding to the Santa Barbara 
County Auditor’s office a list of each parcel upon which the standby charges will be levied plus the 
amount of said levy; and 

WHEREAS, each fiscal year the City of Guadalupe must report to the Santa Barbara County Auditor’s 
office if the levy is to remain the same, be changed, or be abolished; and 

WHEREAS, the standby charge may be set by a resolution of the City Council if it is not increased. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Guadalupe as follows:   

1. Direct staff to forward to the Santa Barbara County Auditor Controller’s office a list of
parcels upon which the standby charge will be levied (attached hereto as Exhibit “A”); and

Indicate that the total levy for fiscal year 2021-2022 will be $27,180 in total coming from 99 parcels. 

Attachment 1



Page 2 of 2 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting on the 13th day of July, 2021 by the following 
vote:  

MOTION: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

I, Amelia M. Villegas, City Clerk of the City of Guadalupe DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing 
Resolution, being Resolution No. 2021-59, has been duly signed by the Mayor and attested by the City 
Clerk, all at a regular meeting of the City Council, held July 13, 2021, and that same was approved and 
adopted.   

ATTEST: 

______________________________  ____________________________________ 
Amelia M. Villegas, City Clerk  Ariston Julian, Mayor 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

______________________________  
Philip Sinco, City Attorney 



District Name: Guadalupe Water Standby Fee

Description: Fund 0642, Water Standby Charge

Tax Year: 2021-22

Contact Person: City Administrator, (805) 356-3891

Total # of Assessments: 99

Total Assessment Amount: $27,180.00

1

Attachment 2



FundNumber ParcelNumber Amount
0642 113-080-018 10320.00

0642 113-370-037 60.00

0642 113-370-038 60.00

0642 113-450-001 840.00

0642 113-450-002 1200.00

0642 113-450-003 600.00

0642 113-450-009 1560.00

0642 113-450-010 240.00

0642 113-470-022 60.00

0642 113-470-023 60.00

0642 113-490-024 60.00

0642 113-490-025 60.00

0642 113-490-026 60.00

0642 113-490-031 60.00

0642 113-490-032 60.00

0642 113-490-033 60.00

0642 113-490-180 60.00

0642 113-490-217 60.00

0642 115-010-016 360.00

0642 115-020-026 60.00

0642 115-020-032 60.00

0642 115-020-033 60.00

0642 115-020-035 60.00

0642 115-031-001 60.00

0642 115-032-005 60.00

0642 115-034-016 60.00

0642 115-035-001 60.00

0642 115-036-002 60.00

0642 115-036-015 60.00

0642 115-036-018 60.00

0642 115-041-010 60.00

0642 115-042-006 60.00

0642 115-042-007 60.00

0642 115-042-008 60.00

0642 115-042-013 60.00

0642 115-042-019 60.00

0642 115-043-002 360.00

0642 115-051-009 60.00

0642 115-052-006 60.00

0642 115-063-002 60.00

0642 115-063-011 60.00

0642 115-063-019 60.00

0642 115-071-015 60.00

0642 115-071-016 60.00

0642 115-071-017 60.00

0642 115-071-018 60.00

2



0642 115-072-014 60.00

0642 115-072-015 60.00

0642 115-072-018 60.00

0642 115-082-009 60.00

0642 115-082-021 240.00

0642 115-091-006 60.00

0642 115-092-002 60.00

0642 115-092-005 60.00

0642 115-092-015 60.00

0642 115-092-019 60.00

0642 115-092-023 60.00

0642 115-101-003 60.00

0642 115-101-009 60.00

0642 115-101-013 60.00

0642 115-102-002 240.00

0642 115-102-013 60.00

0642 115-102-015 60.00

0642 115-102-016 60.00

0642 115-102-017 60.00

0642 115-102-018 60.00

0642 115-102-022 60.00

0642 115-103-010 120.00

0642 115-103-012 60.00

0642 115-112-002 60.00

0642 115-113-004 60.00

0642 115-113-005 60.00

0642 115-113-006 60.00

0642 115-121-001 60.00

0642 115-121-002 60.00

0642 115-121-007 60.00

0642 115-121-021 60.00

0642 115-122-001 60.00

0642 115-132-016 60.00

0642 115-140-005 60.00

0642 115-140-015 3240.00

0642 115-140-016 240.00

0642 115-140-021 60.00

0642 115-140-026 480.00

0642 115-140-027 240.00

0642 115-162-024 60.00

0642 115-180-027 240.00

0642 115-180-030 240.00

0642 115-180-031 60.00

0642 115-193-019 60.00

0642 115-201-011 60.00

0642 115-201-012 60.00

0642 115-201-013 60.00

3



0642 115-202-002 60.00

0642 115-202-010 60.00

0642 115-210-019 360.00

0642 115-210-020 600.00

0642 115-230-005 720.00

0642 115-230-010 60.00

4



Page 1 of 1 

Agenda Item No. 13

REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GUADALUPE 
Agenda of July 13, 2021 

_________________________________ 
Prepared by:   
Todd Bodem, City Administrator 

SUBJECT:  

City of Guadalupe 75th Anniversary Celebration 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the City Council approve the 75 Anniversary Celebration special events application for use of the 
Veteran’s Memorial Plaza and accompanying street closures. 

DISCUSSION: 

The City of Guadalupe was incorporated in 1946. To recognize and celebrate this momentous occasion, 
city staff recommends the approval of this special events application. Below are the proposed city costs: 

City costs: 

Public Safety:      $3000 
Public Works:      $3200 
Insurance:      $903 (Liability and Property Insurance for parade/Caltrans & event 
Veterans Mem. Plaza:  $110 (facility waiver) 
Utility Flyers:      $101.95 (print costs for basic flyer) 
Utility Flyers:      $130.00 (cost city charges to insert flyers) 

Tentative Total City Costs $7,444.95 

City staff recommends waiving the cost involved in the use of the Veterans Memorial Plaza in the amount 
of $110.00 and any other city costs the city council wishes to consider. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Special Events Application



Attachment 1













Page 1 of 4 

Agenda Item No. 14 

REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GUADALUPE 
Agenda of July 13, 2021 

_______________________________ 
Prepared by:  
Todd Bodem, City Administrator 

SUBJECT: Cannabis Business Permit Applications Procedure and Guidelines 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Review, comment, and provide input on the proposed Cannabis Business Permit Applications Procedures 
and Guidelines document. 

BACKGROUND:  

At the City Council Meeting of March 9, 2021, staff presented a report on the topic of possible 
legalization of cannabis uses in the city.  Staff provided a report on the history of legalization of cannabis 
in California, the City status with respect to regulation of cannabis, and current cannabis law and policy 
issues. Subsequently, Council gave staff direction to hire a cannabis consultant from Hinderliter, de 
Llamas & Associates (HdL), a leading company in assisting cities and counties in creating and managing 
cannabis tax and regulatory permit programs.  On April 13, 2021, the City Council, city staff, and the 
public listened to a presentation from HdL which led to discussions about cannabis policy and strategy 
options, including direction from the Council for staff to hold at least one community workshop to get 
input from the community about possibly cannabis legalization in the City.  A community workshop (a 
special joint meeting between the City Council and the Recreation and Parks Commission) was held on 
May 12, 2021. 

At the May 12, 2021, Cannabis Education & Outreach Workshop in the City Hall Auditorium on the topic 
of cannabis, approximately 34-40 individuals participated and appreciated the presentation. The 
workshop also included breakout sessions where members of the audience were able to discuss the key 
policy questions which help guide some of the staff recommendations in the regulatory ordinance 
development. As such this led to the development of the commercial cannabis ordinance. 

DISCUSSION:  

With the assistance of HdL Companies, the City Attorney drafted a cannabis regulatory ordinance to 
govern cannabis businesses in the City of Guadalupe.  On May 25, 2021, the City Council adopted 
Ordinance 494 repealing 9.21 and adding chapter 9.22 to Title 9 of the Guadalupe Municipal Code 
relating to Commercial Cannabis Businesses and amending various sections of Title 18 (Zoning) of the 
Guadalupe Municipal Code to Designate Zoning Districts for Commercial Cannabis Businesses.     



Page 2 of 4 

The ordinance implements the provisions of the Medicinal and Adult Use Cannabis Regulation and Safety 
Act (“MAUCRSA”) and Proposition 64; imposes sensible regulations to protect the health, safety, and 
welfare of the residents of the City of Guadalupe; and enforces rules and regulations consistent with 
state law. The regulations on the use of land to protect the residents, neighborhoods, and businesses 
are necessary to mitigate possible negative impacts that might arise from the legalization of commercial 
cultivation, processing, manufacturing, testing, sale, delivery, and distribution of cannabis and cannabis 
products. The ordinance does not allow for indoor or outdoor cultivation but does permit indoor 
cultivation processing as a permitted use. 

The ordinance details several components including the regulatory permit process, operating standards 
that must be met to be eligible for the regulatory permit to operate a cannabis business, buffer zones, 
zoning requirements, types of businesses activities, and location to name a few.   

The ordinance amends various provisions of the City’s Zoning Code (Title 18 of the Municipal Code) to 
specifically designate commercial cannabis businesses in several of the City’s commercial zoning 
districts.  All selected cannabis businesses would only be allowed in these zoning districts as conditional 
uses, and therefore, the City Council would need to approve a conditional use permit for the business 
before it would be allowed to open.  

The ordinance did not include specific procedures regarding the application process for graning 
commercial cannabis business permits, but provided that the City Counci would, by resolution, 
subsequently adopt procedure guidelines and review criteria for evaluation of cannabis business permit 
applications.  (GMC Section 9.22.13).  These procedural guidelines are required to provide for the process 
for soliciting applications including time frames, limitations, forms, and rules for completing applications, 
providing of review criteria, scoring on the review criteria, and payment of application and related fees. 
Draft Application Procedures & Guidelines for a Commercial Business Permit 

Attachment 1 contains the proposed application procedures for applications to operate a commercial 
cannabis business in Guadalupe. After City Council reviews and comments on the proposed Procedures 
and Guidelines document, staff will return with a separate resolution to finalize the proposed draft which 
must be approved by the Council, which is tentatively being scheduled for July 27, 2021. The number of 
each type of cannabis business that shall be permitted to operate in the City shall also be established by 
resolution by the City Council following this meeting. 

The City Administrator’s Office, or its designee, is responsible for the processing and the administration 
of commercial cannabis permits, however, the City Council will make the final determination as to which 
Applicants might be awarded permit(s) and will hear all appeals.   

If the proposed draft application procedure is adopted by resolution, this will establish a rigorous vetting 
process for commercial cannabis applications and allow the City Administrator or its designee(s) to 
administer it in a very transparent and objective matter. 

The proposed procedures create a three-phase application process.  Phase 1 will involve a preliminary 
determination of eligibility.  Phase 2 will result in an initial ranking of applicants based on points earned 
for each of eight (8) defined criteria.  Upon the completion of Phase 2, the City Administrator or its 
designee(s) will present to the City Council the top Applicants which qualify under the established 



Page 3 of 4 

process which will be interviewed by the City Council to make a final determination as to who will be 
awarded a cannabis business permit(s). Phase 3. As part of this phase each applicant should be prepared 
to conduct a brief presentation and to be interviewed by the City Council. 

In addition, all applicants will have to undergo a thorough criminal background check.  The applications 
process requires that a location be identified and detailed description of the proposed  location, a 
business plan that includes a budget and proof of financial ability, a neighborhood compatibility plan, a 
description of how the cannabis business will benefit the community, a description of product safety 
measures, a description of environmental benefits, labor and employment standards, a statement of the 
extent to which the business will be locally managed, qualifications of the owners, and an air quality 
plan. 

There is no guarantee that applicants who successfully complete the application process will obtain a 
commercial cannabis business permit. The City retains the right to reject any or all applications, with or 
without cause.  

To recover all associated with the development of the cannabis program and application process a 
separate resolution will need to be established to determine fees required of applicants to participate 
in each phase of the commercial cannabis business permit selection process.  Applicants will pay a fee 
to participate in each phase.  It is anticipated that the City will recoup City costs of reviewing the 
applications and administering the adopted procedures should it be able to solicit a reasonable number 
of applicants in the process.  The proposed fee schedule includes the following elements. 

Application fee costs shall be established upon the City Council’s adoption of the proposed process. It 
currently is anticipated the fees will range from $8,500-10,000. However, additional fees will need to be 
proposed for Zoning Verification Letters, LiveScan, and Background Checks pursuant to the actual cost 
to the City of Guadalupe for the Planning Department to write a Zoning Verification Letter, and City’s 
cost to conduct the required background investigation, all of which shall be paid at the time application 
for a Cannabis Business Permit is submitted.  

Background Investigation 

The LiveScan Fee is for criminal background check. The Background Review comprehensively focuses on 
employment history, historical business operations, financial history, and places of residence. The fees 
must be paid for each applicant, principal in the business, and for each business employee and is further 
defined in Chapter 9.22.37. 

The LiveScan Fee and Background Review Fee must be paid for the applicant and owners for the Phase 
1 review.  Each employee must pay an additional LiveScan Fee and Background Review Fee to work for 
an approved commercial cannabis business, and that potential employee must pass the Background 
Check before that employee can start working.  Under municipal code Chapter 9.22.37(K) and (L), the 
Director of Public Safety, or its designee (s) has the authority to conduct unannounced investigations of 
all cannabis businesses and has the authority to conduct business financial audits. 

Application fees are designed for the city to recover all costs of evaluating each application and 
conducting investigations.  Fees will be established for ongoing inspections while the business is 
operating.  



Page 4 of 4 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Expansion of possible retail, manufacturing and commercial cannabis activities will result in some costs 
to the city, but these costs would be offset by increased revenue to the city. The consultant contract 
with HdL to assist in developing the cannabis regulatory program costs $25,000 but it may be 
reimbursable from the applicant (s) during the application process as part of the program development 
cost. There are additional costs for processing cannabis-related business applications and one-time or 
ongoing monitoring.  

Based on proposed tax rates, HdL estimates potential revenue between $150,000 to $250,000 annually. 
This estimate assumes an average of $3 million in gross receipts for one retailer, $1 million for a 
manufacturer, and is exclusive of any tax revenue generated from testing labs, delivery services or hemp 
businesses.  Therefore, even if the cost of the consultant’s contract is not fully reimbursed during the 
application process, revenue will fully offset this cost. 

Tentative Schedule (subject to change): 

1. July 27. Adopt Resolution approving the application procedures and guidelines for granting of
commercial cannabis business permits.

2. July 27. Adopt Resolution establishing and adopting fees to process applications for commercial
cannabis business permits.

3. July 27. Adopt Resolution establish the number of each type of cannabis business that shall be
permitted to operate in the City

4. Application Period: Opens on August 16, 2021, and Closes on September 29, 2021

ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Draft Application Procedures & Guidelines for a Commercial Cannabis Business Permit



Commercial Cannabis Business Application Procedure Guidelines/July 7, 2021 1 

City of Guadalupe 
Planning Department 

918 Obispo Street 
Guadalupe, CA 93434 
Phone: 805.356.3903 

Email: Asaucedo@ci.guadalupe.ca.us 

APPLICATION PROCEDURES & GUIDELINES FOR A 
COMMERCIAL CANNABIS BUSINESS PERMIT 

Application Period 
OPENS – August 16, 2021 

CLOSES-September 29, 2021 

Information regarding the Commercial Cannabis Business (CCB) Application process can be found on 
the City’s website at https://www.ci.guadalupe.ca.us. and includes the following: 

▪ Application Procedures & Guidelines ▪ Financial Responsibility, Indemnity and
▪ City of Guadalupe Municipal Code (GMC)

Chapter 9.22
▪ City of Guadalupe Municipal Code (GMC)

Title 18 (Zoning Code)

Consent to Inspection Terms Agreement
▪ Background Check Portal Link
▪ Commercial Cannabis Business (CCB)

Permit Application
▪ Ownership Acknowledgement Form

To be considered for issuance of a Cannabis Business Permit, final applications must be submitted to 
the Planning Department located at the address listed on these procedures by the deadline. There will 
be no exceptions. This application process is adopted pursuant to the Guadalupe Municipal Code (GMC) 
Chapter 9.22.13 and Title 18 (Zoning Code).  

Applicants should monitor the City’s web page for any additional information, FAQs, or updates.  It is the 
responsibility of the Applicant to stay informed of this information.  

AMENDMENTS TO THE APPLICATION 
Applicants will not be allowed to make amendments to their application or to supplement their 
application, except as otherwise specifically permitted in these procedures, or posted on the City’s 
website as a clarification update, or as authorized in writing by the City Administrator or his/her 
designee.  

During Phase I, City staff and HdL Companies (“Consultant”) will conduct a preliminary evaluation of the 
applications for completeness and will reject any application that is missing a major component (for 
example. a Security Plan), notifying the applicant by email that they have been disqualified.  In addition, 
the City will be notifying applicants by email if their applications are found to be missing minor 
requirements (for example, signatures/dates on forms, proof of payment receipts, scanned pages in one 
of the scoring criteria documents, or incorrect formatting or organization of files).  If this is the case, the 
Applicant may be granted five days from the date of the email to submit the required supplemental 

Attachment 1

mailto:Asaucedo@ci.guadalupe.ca.us
https://www.ci.guadalupe.ca.us./


 

Commercial Cannabis Business Application Procedure Guidelines/July 7, 2021 2 

information. Should you receive an email from the City we ask that you confirm receipt of it immediately. 
If the City does not get confirmation from your primary contact within two days, it may, but is not required 
to, make an attempt to notify the primary contact by phone in case the email went into the recipient’s 
spam folder unnoticed. However, please note should this be the case you will not be provided additional 
time to complete the curing process so make sure you monitor your incoming or spam email carefully. 
Furthermore, you may not submit any additional information other than what was requested to cure the 
minor requirements. Finally, an applicant will be notified if their application is incomplete or if there is any 
other reason for which they will not be moving forward in the application process.  
 
 
LIMITATIONS ON MULTIPLE APPLICATIONS 
Applicants possessing an ownership interest of ten percent (10%), or more, in a retail or microbusiness 
cannabis permit application shall be limited to submitting only one retail application during this initial 
process. However, there will be no limitations on any other permit type which are permitted in the City, 
such as cultivation (processing only), manufacturing, distribution, and testing labs. In addition, the City 
will only accept two retail or microbusiness application Zoning Verification Letters (ZVL) per property 
(APN). Every owner on the application will be required to complete the Ownership Acknowledgement 
form which is provided on the City’s website.  
 
 
CITY’S RESERVATION OF RIGHTS 
The City reserves the right to reject any and/or all applications, with or without cause or reason. The City 
may modify, postpone, or cancel the request for a CCB license without liability, obligation, or commitment 
to any party, firm, or organization. In addition, the City reserves the right to request and obtain additional 
information from any Applicant submitting an application in order to conduct a complete review of the 
application or an investigation into the truthfulness of the statements set forth in the application or 
provided at any stage of the application process and it is not fully responsive to this request for a CCB 
application. 
 

Late proposals WILL BE REJECTED. Applications must be received by the Planning Department by 
4:00 pm on September 29, 2021. 
 
Furthermore, a proposal RISKS BEING REJECTED for the following reasons:  
 

1. It is not responsive to this request for a Cannabis Business Permit application and the 
Procedures & Guidelines for a Cannabis Business Permit. 

2. The issuance of the Cannabis Business Permit for the proposed location is inconsistent with 
State law, GMC Section 9.22.33, and/or Title 18.  

 

 

APPLICATION PROCESS 
 

This application process is adopted pursuant to GMC Section 9.22.13. Review the information regarding 
the application process and which documents you will need. Before submitting your application, review 
your application in its entirety to ensure that it is complete and accurate. Review the information 
regarding the Cannabis Business Permit application process for a CCB on the City webpage provided on 
page one.  

The following procedures outline the application evaluation and selection process, required materials, 
and other information necessary to apply for a Cannabis Business Permit to operate a cannabis business 
in City of Guadalupe.  



 

Commercial Cannabis Business Application Procedure Guidelines/July 7, 2021 3 

 

 

 

APPPLICATION SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS  

Applications must respond to all requirements outlined in the “Application Procedures & Guidelines for a 
Cannabis Business Permit.” Applicants must submit all required application materials together in one 
complete comprehensive application package. This can be done in person, by U.S. Mail, or by common 
carrier delivery service (e.g. FED EX, UPS, etc.) as long is it a complete application. The application 
package must include all the following documents with original signatures for each document.  

 

(a) Cannabis Business Permit Application;  

(b) Financial Responsibility, Indemnity and Consent to Inspection Terms Agreement;  

(c) Agreement on Limitations of City’s Liability and Indemnification to City;   

(d) Application fee and Background Check fee(s); and 

(e) Owner Acknowledgment Agreement 

 

FLASH DRIVE CONTENT 

In addition, all Applicants must submit a USB flash drive containing one complete copy of the application 
submittal requirements as outlined in the below format. The application package and application fees 
must be received by the Planning Department at the same time.  

Responses to the Evaluation Criteria (Sections A-H found in Appendix A of the Application Procedures & 
Guidelines) shall be limited to 200 pages. Responses pertaining to Backgrounds, Proof of Capitalization, 
Zoning Verification Letter, and Property Owner Consent/Lease Agreements, Property Owner/Landlord 
Affidavit, Owner Acknowledgement Agreement shall not be included in the 200-page limitation. Those 
responses should be saved in PDF files that are separate from the Evaluation Criteria (see below).  
 

All materials must be submitted on a USB flash drive in a PDF format in the following files. You must 
submit the files in the correct format and organized correctly or your application may be rejected. 

• PDF File #1 – Cannabis Business Permit Application (pages 1-3), Financial Responsibility, Indemnity 
and Consent to Inspection Terms Agreement (pages F1-F3), Agreement on Limitations of City Liability, 
and Certification, Assurances, Warranties, and Indemnification to City (pages F4-F6), proof of 
insurance or a letter of insurability; and Owners Acknowledgement Agreement. All copied documents 
shall display required signatures to be deemed complete.  

•  PDF File #2 – Evaluation Criteria (Responses to Sections A-H of Appendix A limited to 200 pages) 

•  PDF File #3 – Background Check documentation (All required documents for each owner). Upon 
submission of the online background application, Applicants will receive an email confirmation. This 
confirmation needs to be printed, scanned, and included within PDF File #3.  

•  PDF File #4 – Proof of Capitalization (Appropriate bank statements, loan documents, promissory 
notes, financial and commitment letters)  

•  PDF File #5 – Zoning Verification Letter (ZVL) which shows the correct location and units in the 
building being used. Proof of Insurance or a letter showing proof of insurability by a qualified insurance 



 

Commercial Cannabis Business Application Procedure Guidelines/July 7, 2021 4 

company which shows the location being insured in City of Guadalupe, the type of activity being 
insured, and the name of the business being insured. Copies from another business location in another 
city owned by the Applicant will not be accepted.  

 
CRIMINAL BACKGROUND CHECK 
Each Owner must undergo a criminal history background check to demonstrate they do not provide 

“good cause” for denial per GMC Sections 9.22.08 and 9.22.38K. Owners who do not meet the criminal 

history eligibility requirements of Section 9.22.38K will be disqualified. The background form can be 

found online at https://hdlcompanies.formstack.com/forms/bc_guadalupe. 

In addition, each successful applicant will be asked to submit to a Live Scan as part of the background 
check as determined by the Director of Public Safety. Prior to being issued a permit the Applicant’s 
primary contact will be notified by email with the instructions on how to schedule the Live Scan 
appointment.  
 
The initial background check fee for each owner shall be $300.00. This process will be required to meet 
the minimum threshold qualifications pursuant to GMC Section 9.22.38K. The results of the background 
check along with the City-issued Zoning Verification Letter must be included with the CCB Application 
(Phase I).  
 
ZONING VERIFICATION LETTER (ZVL) 
Prior to submitting a CCB application (Phase I), an Applicant must obtain a Zoning Verification Letter 
from the Planning Department. To secure this letter, an Applicant must make a written request which 
should specify the intended use of the building (cultivation (processing only), manufacturing, distribution, 
retail, or Microbusiness), and the proposed building location.  Please advise the City if you currently 
occupy the premises or if there is a tenant currently occupying the premises.   
 
The issuance of a ZVL does not constitute written evidence of permission given by the City or any of its 
officials to operate a cannabis business, nor does it establish a “permit” within the meaning of the Permit 
Streamlining Act, nor does it create an entitlement under the Zoning or Building Code. A regulatory 
permit for a CCB does not constitute a permit that runs with the land on which the cannabis business is 
established. Please note that the cannabis business will also require a discretionary, conditional use 
permit. This is a separate application that will be made only after the awarding of the permit at the 
conclusion of Phase III.  
 

FEES 

All applicants will be required to submit a fee of $X,XXX.00. This amount will be charged against time 
spent by City staff and the Consultant in reviewing applications and administrating the application 
process.  Applicants are advised that they may be required to pay additional amounts as required for the 
sole purpose of the City’s completion of the application review process. However, there will also be a 
separate fee for the Zoning Verification Letter (ZVL) of $XXX.00 per site and the Background Check Fee 
of $300. For the successful Applicants there will also be a Live Scan Fee of $XX.00 prior to obtaining the 
Cannabis Business Permit. 
 

Payment must be made by a certified check, cashier’s check or money order made payable to the City 
of Guadalupe. Please note the City will not accept cash or credit cards and application fees are non-
refundable once the City has begun reviewing the application.   
 

 
APPLICATION REVIEW, SCORING AND APPROVAL PROCESS 

 
 

PHASE I: DETERMINATION OF ELIGIBILITY 



 

Commercial Cannabis Business Application Procedure Guidelines/July 7, 2021 5 

Applications will be reviewed for completeness and compliance to meet the minimum submittal 
requirements. The determination of eligibility will be based on the criteria outlined in these procedures 
and as described in Appendix A. However, the criteria will be evaluated and scored with the process 
adopted in these procedures in accordance with GMC Chapter 9.22 and may be amended as provided 
in GMC Section 9.22.49 A & C in writing for clarification to application submittal questions which will be 
posted in the FAQ section of the Cannabis Information webpage and shall go into full effect immediately 
prior to the closing of the application process.   
 
 
PHASE II: APPLICATION EVALUATION AND REVIEW (2,500 points) 
During Phase II, the Consultant will review and score each application using a merit-based system. The 
top applicants as determined by the City which score a minimum of 90% or higher (2,250 points) in 
Phase II may be eligible to advance to Phase III. However, the decision as to how many applicants will 
be interviewed will be determined by the quantity of applicants and the overall quality the City receives. 
Notice of the results of Phase II will be provided in writing via email to the primary contact listed on the 
application.  

 

See APPENDIX A for a description of the evaluation criteria: 
▪ Section A.  Business Plan (400 points) 
▪ Section B.  Labor, Equity, Diversity, and Inclusion Plan (300 points) 
▪ Section C.  Safety Plan (200 points) 
▪ Section D.  Security Plan (300 points) 
▪ Section E.  Qualifications of Owners (300) 
▪ Section F.  Neighborhood Compatibility Plan (300 points)  
▪ Section G.  Community Benefit and Investment Plan (500 points) 
▪ Section H.  Proposed Location (200 points)    

 
PHASE III: CITY COUNCIL INTERVIEW AND FINAL RECOMMENDATION  
Upon the completion of Phase II, the City Administrator will present to the City Council the top Applicants 

that will be interviewed by them in order to make a final determination as to who will be awarded a CCB 

permit(s). Each Applicant should be prepared to conduct a brief presentation and to be interviewed by 

the City Council.   

After the City Council has made a determination as to who if any Applicants will be awarded a CCB 

permit and as a condition of issuance of the regulatory permit, the operator of each cannabis facility shall 

enter into a Community Benefit Agreement with the City setting forth the terms and conditions under 

which the cannabis facility will operate that are in addition to the requirements of Chapter 9.22.37.C, 

including, but not limited to community benefits such as public outreach and education, community 

service, payment of fees and other charges as mutually agreed, and such other terms and conditions 

that will protect and promote the public health, safety and welfare. It shall be very important for each 

applicant to strategically understand the Council Policy direction on reaching its economic incentive goals 

related to the community benefit when negotiating it with the City Administrator. 

In addition, any community benefits that a commercial cannabis business agrees to provide shall be 
incorporated into the terms and conditions under which the commercial cannabis business will operate 
with the City of Guadalupe’s approval, if and when a Community Benefit Agreement is executed. Upon 
successfully negotiations in this phase of the process the Applicant will then be authorized to proceed to 
apply for both a land use (conditional use) permit and a business license and related approvals. 

 
Any Applicant wishing to appeal Phase I or Phase II of the Application Process may appeal to the City 
Council or appointed hearing officer within ten (10) days of the Applicant receiving a notice that they will 
not move forward in the application process or be issued a permit. Such appeals shall comply with the 



 

Commercial Cannabis Business Application Procedure Guidelines/July 7, 2021 6 

requirements of GMC Sections 9.22.23 and 9.22.24. 
 
 
Note: Being awarded a CCB does not constitute a land use entitlement and does not waive or remove 
the requirements of applying for and receiving permits for all construction including: electrical, plumbing, 
fire, Planning Department permits or reviews, and any other permits, licenses, or reviews as deemed 
necessary by the relevant departments or governmental entities in charge of said permits. Nor does the 
award of a CCB guarantee that the plans submitted via the CCB application process meet the standards 
or requirements in Title 18 and any other permit requirements from other City departments or agencies. 
 
CONTACT 
If you have any questions or would like an update on the status of your application, please contact  Alice  
Saucedo, at 805.356.3903 or by email at Asaucedo@ci.guadalupe.ca.us. 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:Asaucedo@ci.guadalupe.ca.us


 

Commercial Cannabis Business Application Procedure Guidelines/July 7, 2021 7 

 

 

APPENDIX A:  EVALUATION CRITERIA 

The City is a public agency subject to the California Public Records Act (“CPRA”). In the event a request 
for information under the CPRA seeks disclosure of application materials marked by Applicant as 
“Confidential Information,” the City will make reasonable efforts to provide notice to Applicant prior to 
such disclosure to allow Applicant to seek a protective order, injunctive relief, or other appropriate 
remedy. If Applicant contends any designated application materials are exempt from the CPRA and 
wishes to prevent disclosure, it is required, at its own cost, liability, and expense to obtain a protective 
order, injunctive relief or other appropriate remedy from a court having jurisdiction over the matter at 
least two (2) days before City’s deadline to respond to the CPRA request. If Applicant fails to obtain such 
a remedy before the deadline for the City’s response to the CPRA request, the City will disclose the 
requested information and shall not be liable or responsible for such disclosure. 
 
 
SECTION A: BUSINESS PLAN (400 points) 
 

1. Finances* – A budget for construction, operations, maintenance, compensation of employees, 
equipment, property lease, security equipment and staff, City fees, state fees, utility costs, 
product purchases and other anticipated contingency costs. The budget must demonstrate 
sufficient capital in place to pay startup costs and at least three months of operating costs, as 
well as a description of the sources and uses of funds.  

A. Proof of capitalization, in the form of documentation of cash or other liquid assets on 
hand, Letters of Credit or other equivalent assets which can be verified by the City. 

B. A pro forma for at least three years of operations.  
C. A schedule for beginning operation, including a narrative outlining any proposed 

construction and improvements and a timeline for completion. 

2. Daily Operations - The Business Plan should describe the day-to-day operations which meet 
industry best practices for the type of cannabis business you are applying.   

2.1 Describe the day-to-day operations if you are applying for a RETAIL permit. This should include 
at a minimum the following criteria: 

A. Describe customer check-in procedures. 
B. Identify location and procedures for receiving deliveries during business hours. 
C. Identify the name of the Point-of-sale system to be used and the number of Point-of-Sale 

locations. 
D. Estimate the number of customers to be served per hour/day. 
E. Describe the proposed product line to be sold and estimate the percentage of sales of 

flower and manufactured products. 
F. If proposed, describe delivery service procedures, number of vehicles and product 

security during transportation. 
G. How the Cannabis Business will conform to local and state laws. See GMC Sections 

9.22.40 and Title 18 as they pertain to retail establishments in the City of Guadalupe.   
H. How cannabis and cannabis products will be tracked and monitored to prevent diversion.  

Describe the Point-of-Sale system to be used and how it will interact with the state’s 
mandated track and trace system.  

2.2 Describe the day-to-day operations if you are applying for a DISTRIBUTION permit. This should 
include at a minimum the following criteria: 

A. Identify the number of delivery drivers, hours of delivery and vehicles to be used. 
B. Describe the transportation security procedures. 



 

Commercial Cannabis Business Application Procedure Guidelines/July 7, 2021 8 

C. Describe how inventory will be received, processed, stored, and secured in the permitted 
premises. 

D. Describe the quality control procedures designed to ensure all cannabis is properly 
packaged, labeled, and tested. 

E. How the Cannabis Business will conform to local and state laws. See GMC 9.22.43 and 
Title 18 as they pertain to Distribution.  

 2.3 Describe the day-to-day operations if you are applying for a MANUFACTURING permit.   
       This should include at a minimum the following criteria: 

A. Identify all cannabis products manufactured within the permitted premises. 
B. Describe quality control procedures. 
C. Describe inventory control procedures.  
D. Describe the extraction process, equipment and room in which extractions will be 

conducted. 
E. Provide detail as to whether the extraction equipment has been reviewed and certified by 

a Professional Engineer or Certified Industrial Hygienist.  
F. Describe the sanitation procedures. 
G. How the Cannabis Business will conform to local and state laws. See GMC 9.22.45 and 

Title 18, as they pertain to Manufacturing. 
 2.4 Describe the day-to-day operations if you are applying for a TESTING permit. This should  

 include at a minimum the following criteria: 
A. Describe the sampling standard operating procedures. 
B. Describe procedures for transporting cannabis field samples. 
C. Describe the chain of custody for field samples. 
D. Describe the quality control procedures. 
E. Describe the Laboratory Supervisor/Manager responsibilities and qualifications. 
F. Identify location and procedures for storing cannabis products. 
G. Describe how the cannabis business will conform to local and State laws. See GMC 

9.22.44 and Title 18 as they pertain to testing labs in the City of Guadalupe.   
H. Describe how the cannabis and cannabis products will be tracked and monitored to 

prevent diversion.   
I. Describe the Point-of-Sale system to be used and how it will interact with the State’s 

mandated track and trace system.  
2.5 Describe the day-to-day operations if you are applying for a CULTIVATION (processing only)  

permit.  This should include at a minimum the following criteria: 
A. Identify all cannabis products processed within the permitted premises. 
B. Describe quality control procedures. 
C. Describe inventory control procedures.  
D. Describe the drying, curing, grading, trimming, rolling, storing, packaging, and labeling of 

nonmanufactured processes which will be utilized for these activities. 
E. Describe the sanitation procedures in such a way as to ensure the health, safety, and 

welfare of the public, the employees working at the processing facility, visitors to the area, 
neighboring properties, and to ensure the security of the cannabis processed; and to 
safeguard against diversion of cannabis. 

F. How the Cannabis Business will conform to local and State laws. See GMC 9.22.48 and 
Title 18, as they pertain to cultivation (processing only). 

G. Describe the plan for addressing public odor nuisances that may derive from the 
processing facility. 
 

2.5 Describe the day-to-day operations if you are applying for a MICROBUSINESS permit.  This 
should include at a minimum the following criteria: 

A. A microbusiness license engaged in retail shall describe all the requirements in 
subsection 2.1 of Appendix A, Section A in accordance with CCR §5500 and applicable 
requirements in GMC Section 9.22.40. 



 

Commercial Cannabis Business Application Procedure Guidelines/July 7, 2021 9 

B. A microbusiness license engaged in distribution shall describe all the requirements in 
subsection 2.2 of Appendix A Section A in accordance with CCR §5500 and applicable 
requirements in GMC Section 9.22.43. 

C. A microbusiness license engaged in manufacturing shall describe all the requirements in 
subsection 2.3 of Appendix A, Section A in accordance with CCR §5500 and applicable 
requirements in GMC Section 9.22.45. 

D. A microbusiness license engaged in cultivation (processing only) shall describe all the 
requirements in subsection 2.5 of Appendix A, Section A in accordance with CCR §5500 
and applicable local and State laws. See GMC Section 9.22.48 and Title 18 as they 
pertain to Cultivation (processing only) in the City of Guadalupe. 

 
 

SECTION B: LABOR, EQUITY, DIVERSITY & INCLUSION PLAN (300 points) 
 

1. The application should describe to what extent the cannabis business will adhere to 
heightened pay and benefits standards and practices, including recognition of the collective 
bargaining rights of employees.  

2. Identify number of employees at initial opening and the maximum number of employees when 
the business is at full capacity.   

3. Describe any diversity and inclusion programs that will be developed as part of the business 
model which embraces a rich and diverse work force with a diverse set of perspectives, work 
and life experiences, as well as religious and cultural differences that provide equal 
opportunities for employee development.  

4. Identify all positions and their responsibilities.   

5. Describe compensation to and opportunities for continuing education and training for 
employees. 

6. Describe whether the cannabis business is committed to offering employees a Living Wage. 
7. Briefly describe benefits provided to employees such as health care, vacation, and medical 

leave, to the degree they are offered as part of employment. 
8. Describe to the extent to which the cannabis business will be a locally owned enterprise and 

the owner(s) reside within the City of Guadalupe. In order to qualify for this criteria, an owner 
must have lived in the City of Guadalupe for at least one year prior to June 1, 2021. 

 
SECTION C: SAFETY PLAN (200 points) 
 

1. The detailed Safety Plan shall be prepared by a California professional fire prevention and 

suppression consultant. 

2. This plan will describe all fire prevention and suppression measures, fire extinguisher locations, 

evacuation routes and alarm systems the facility will have in place. 

3. Describe all accident and incident reporting procedures. 

4. Describe the waste management locations and procedures. 
 

SECTION D: SECURITY PLAN (300 points) 
  

1. The security plan shall be prepared by a professional security consultant. This can be done with 
in-house staff or a consultant, but it must clearly demonstrate that it meets the professional 
standards requested to receive the appropriate points for each criterion in this section. 

A. The plan should demonstrate how the cannabis business wishes to develop the floor plan 
and address other security issues on the property. 

2. Premises Diagram: In addition to the site plans submitted for the Proposed Location (in Section H 
of Appendix A), a separate Premises Diagram must be included in this Security Plan section 
(Section D) of the application. The diagram must meet the requirements of the Bureau of 
Cannabis Control CCR Title 16, Division 42, §5006 Premises Diagram. 



 

Commercial Cannabis Business Application Procedure Guidelines/July 7, 2021 10 

A. The diagram shall show the boundaries of the property and the proposed location to be 
licensed, showing all boundaries, dimensions, entrances and exits, interior partitions, 
walls, rooms, windows, and doorways, and shall include a brief statement or description of 
the principal activity to be conducted therein.   

B. The diagram shall show and identify commercial cannabis activities that will take place in 
each area of the premises and identify all limited-access areas. 

C. The diagram shall show where all cameras are located and assign a number to each 
camera for identification purposes.   

D. The diagram should be accurate, dimensioned and to-scale (minimum scale of 1/4”). 
E. If the proposed location consists of only a portion of a property, the diagram must be 

labeled indicating which part of the property will be used for the licensed premises and 
what activities will be used for the remaining property.   

3. Description of operational security, including but not limited to general security for access/visitor 
control, inventory control and cash handling procedures. 

4. Description of perimeter security, on-site security guards, lighting, and parking. 

5. Identify transportation techniques and security procedures. 

6. Description of employee training and general security policies. 
 
 
SECTION E: QUALIFICATION OF OWNERS (300 points) 
 

1. Experience – Demonstrate the business owner’s experience in owning, managing, and operating 
a retail cannabis business.  For purposes of this section, owner shall mean the State definition of 
owner in the State Business and Professions Code Section 26001 and all persons, companies, 
and entities that will be directing, controlling, and/or managing the day-to-day operations of the 
business.  Evidence that prior experience was from legally permitted activities. 

2. Cannabis Industry Knowledge – Demonstrate overall knowledge of the cannabis industry (as 
demonstrated throughout the screening application), including identification of how industry best 
practices and State regulations have been incorporated in existing/prior legal businesses outside 
the City of Guadalupe. 

3. Ownership Team – Describe the involvement of the ownership team in day-to-day operation of 
the business.  Owner is defined based upon the State definition of owner, see Business and 
Professions Code Section 26001. 

 
SECTION F: NEIGHBORHOOD COMPATIBILITY PLAN (300 points) 
 

1. Describe how the business will proactively address and respond to complaints related to noise, 
light, odor, and vehicle and pedestrian traffic. 

2. Describe how the business will be managed to avoid becoming a nuisance or having impacts on 
its neighbors and the surrounding community. 

3. Describe odor mitigation practices: 
A. Identify potential sources of odor. 
B. Describe odor control devices and techniques employed to ensure that odors from 

cannabis are not detectable beyond the licensed premises. 
C. Describe all proposed staff training and system maintenance plans. 

4. Describe the waste management plan. The plan shall include waste disposal locations, security 
measures, methods of rendering all waste unusable and unrecognizable, and the vendor in 
charge of disposal. 

5. The application should include the following information about the proposed location: 
A. Physical address and a detailed description of the proposed location, including the overall 

property, building, and interior floor plan. 



 

Commercial Cannabis Business Application Procedure Guidelines/July 7, 2021 11 

B. Description of all known nearby State and local sensitive use areas. The cannabis 
business must have the appropriate zoning and meet all the locational requirements as 
described in GMC sections 9.22.33 and Title 18. 

C. List any nearby well-traveled paths to schools and describe how the cannabis business 
will proactively protect the youth on these paths from exposure to the cannabis business. 

D. Describe how the business will proactively take steps about community concerns to 
protect the youth generally from the impacts of the cannabis business. 

E. Proof of ownership, lease agreement, or a Letter of Intent to Lease. 
F. Vicinity map. 
G. Photographs of existing site and buildings. 
H. Evidence that the location has access to public transportation for employees or 

customers. 
 

SECTION G: COMMUNITY BENEFITS AND INVESTMENTS PLAN (500 points) 
 
The cannabis business should describe the benefits the business will provide to the local community, 
for example by directly aiding, participating in, or funding the work of local non-profits, community-based 
organizations, civic organizations, or social services organizations. Benefits may be in the form of 
volunteer services, monetary donations, financial support of City-sponsored activities or organizations, 
in-kind donations to the City or other charitable organizations and/or any other economic incentives to 
the City which will meet the revenue goals expected by the City Council.  
 
 
SECTION H: PROPOSED LOCATION (200 points) 

 

In addition to the location related details required in the Security Plan section of this application, the 

application shall include a thorough narrative description of the proposed location, including but not 

limited to the overall site, existing and/or proposed building(s), parking spaces, driveways, pedestrian 

sidewalks/rights-of-way, and neighboring businesses on the parcel. Description of floor plans and interior 

design are not a requirement of this section. In addition to the narrative description of the proposed 

locations, Applicants shall also include the following items.     

1. The CBP applicant must have the appropriate zoning and meet all the locational requirements as 

described in GMC sections 9.22.33 and Title 18. 

2. The application shall include photographs of the front (street facing) side of the building. In the 

event the proposed location is undeveloped land, photographs shall depict the property from all 

vantage points of the property.   

3. The application must include a (Site) diagram depicting all details described in the narrative 

description of the proposed location. The diagram required for this section need not include a 

description of any building interior, floor plan or security detail. 


	CC Agenda 7 13 2021 
	6B (1) Warrants - July 7, 2021
	6B (2) Warrants - June 30, 2021
	6C CC Minutes 6 22 2021
	6D Cost of Living for Unrepresented Employees
	Staff Report Cost of Living unrepresented employees 7 13 2021
	Resolution No. 2021-51 Cost of Living Unrepresented Employees 7 13 2021

	6E Agreement with Andrew Goodwin Designs - Royal Theater
	Staff Report Approve Agreement Andrew Goodwin Designs - Royal Theater 7-13-2021 Final
	Attachment 1 Resolution No. 19-3 Approving the Bond Proceeds Expenditure Agreement between the City of Guadalupe and the Guadalupe SA
	Attachment 2 Guadalupe_OB_Action_2019-03
	Attachment 3 Letter to Andrew Goodwin Designs - Response to RFP Royal Theater
	Resolution No. 2021-52 approving contract Andrew Goodwin Designs - Royal Theater 7-13-2021 Final
	Andrew Goodwin Designs Agreement - Royal Theater 7 13 2021 (City Admin Revision)

	6F Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study
	Staff Report Guad trail to beach feasability study 7 13 2021
	Resolution No. 2021-53 finalize Trail to Beach Feasability Study 7-13-2021 Final
	Attachment 2 Guadalupe Trail Feasibility Study March 2021
	Table of Contents
	Introduction 1
	Chapter 1: Community Snapshot 4
	Chapter 2: Community Engagement and Vision Framework 10
	Chapter 3: Potential Trail Alignments 14
	Chapter 4: Implementation 24
	Appendices

	Introduction
	Study Purpose
	Study Area
	Document Organization
	Guadalupe Community
	Setting
	Nature and Culture
	Transportation
	Economy
	Opportunities and Constraints Highlights
	Biological
	Opportunities
	Constraints

	Physical/Connectivity
	Opportunities
	Constraints

	Hazards
	Opportunities
	Constraints

	Cultural
	Opportunities
	Constraints



	Figure 1. Multi-Use Trail Study Area
	Figure 2. Biological Opportunities and Constraints
	Figure 3. Physical/Connectivity Opportunities and Constraints
	Figure 4. Hazards Opportunities and Constraints
	Figure 5. Cultural Opportunities and Constraints
	Chapter 2: Community Engagement and Vision Framework
	Engagement Process
	Project Advisory Team Meetings
	Community Workshop
	Stakeholder Interviews and Discussions
	City Council

	Engagement Themes
	Serve Guadalupe Community Needs
	Establish Important Connections
	Address Safety Concerns
	Stimulate Local Economy
	Weave in Cultural and Natural Resources

	Community Vision
	Vision Statement
	Trail Planning Goals


	Guadalupe to Beach Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study: Participants in the Process
	Related Trail Planning Priorities
	The Draft Guadalupe General Plan (2018) and the Guadalupe Mobility and Revitalization Plan (2019) include important priorities related to future trail planning in Guadalupe.
	General Plan Goals (1.8)
	Related Trail Planning Priorities
	(Continued)
	Chapter 3: Potential Trail Alignments
	Trail Alignment Criteria
	Connecting the Guadalupe Community to the Beach
	Table 1. Trail Alignment Criteria
	Figure 7. Trail Alignment Assessment


	Top Trail Alignment Alternatives
	Alignment Alternative A: “River Trail” (Route 5)
	Alignment Alternative B: “Walkaround Trail” (Route 6)
	Alignment Alternative C: “West Main Trail” (Route 7)

	Trail Typologies
	Separated Shared-Use Path
	Figure 14. Separated Shared-Use Path Typology (Class I Bikeway)

	On-Street Shared-Use Path
	Figure 15. On-Street Shared-Use Path Typology (Class I Bikeway)

	Bike Lanes
	Figure 16. Bike Lane Typology (Class II Bikeway)



	Figure 6. Potential Trail Alignments
	Figure 8. River Trail: Guadalupe Segment
	Figure 9. River Trail: Dunes Segment
	Figure 10. Walkaround Trail: Guadalupe Segment
	Figure 11. Walkaround Trail: Dunes Segment
	Figure 13. West Main Trail: Guadalupe Segment
	Figure 12. West Main Trail: Guadalupe Segment
	Chapter 4: Implementation
	Phasing Strategy
	Start in the Heart
	Shared-Use Path Development

	Planning and Design Guidelines
	Support a functional trail system
	Provide sustainable trails that incorporate best practices and limited maintenance
	Incorporate accessibility and safety features
	Attract a range of users with unique trail features

	Preliminary Cost Estimate
	Table 2: Alignment Alternative A: “River Trail” Cost Estimate
	Table 3: Alignment Alternative B: “Walkaround Trail” Cost Estimate
	Table 4: Alignment Alternative C: “West Main Trail” Cost Estimate



	Attachment 3 Guadalupe Trail Study Appendices March 2021
	Guadalupe_Alignments_Map_11x17

	6G Wastewater Effluent Pump Station Notice of Award
	Staff Report  effluent pump station improvement project NOA 7-13-2021
	Resolution No. 2021-54 Effluent pump station notice of award 7-13-2021
	Bid Results
	W.M. Lyles Co Agreement 7-13-2021
	Wallace Group Agreement 7-13-2021
	Agreement -Wallace Group_signed
	Proposal Inspection Services Effluent Pump Project - Wallace Group


	6H Notice of Completion of Improvements and Conditions for Phase 4b Point Sal Dunes
	Staff Report  Resolution re Notice of Completion 7-13-21
	Attachment 1 -  Reso 99-09
	Attachment 2- SIA (Phase 4.b.) (1)
	Attachment 3 - Reso 99-12 
	Attachment 4 - CC staff report 3 12 02
	Attachment 5 - Letter 3-1-07 
	Attachment 6 - Letter 2-8-07 
	Resolution No. 2021-55 Notice of Completion Point Sal Dunes Phase 4b 7-13-21 
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	6I (1) Planning Department Monthly Report - June 2021
	1st page 07-2021 Planning Report
	2nd page 7-2021 Ministerial Report
	3rd page 7-1-21 Monthly Tracking Log

	6I (2) Building Department Monthly Report - June 2021
	Building Departmetn Monthly Report - June 2021
	SKM_C360i21070211560

	6I (3) Public Works Department Monthly Report - June 2021
	DPW Summary 2021 07 13
	Guadalupe Inventory One-Pager

	8 (1) M E M O R A N D U M - Summary of Guadalupe Police Department Response to Individuals in Crisis due to Mental Health Issues - 2021
	8 (2) Summary and Recommendations – Contracted Supplemental Law Enforcement Services between the City of Guadalupe and the Santa Maria Public Airport District - 2021
	9 Pasadera LLD
	Staff report Pasadera LLD Public Hearing 7-13-2021 Final
	Gudalupe Pasadera LLD FY21-22 Engineer's Report (Signed Final PH 07.13.21)
	Pasadera LLD Spreadsheet PDF
	Pasadera LLD cover page
	064320210713

	Resolution No. 2021-56 Pasadera LLD assessments FY21-22 7-13-2021 Final
	Blank Page

	10 Benefit Assessment District
	Staff Report Benefit District 1 7 13 2021
	Resolution No. 2021-57 Benefit District No 1 FY 2021-22 7 13 2021 Final
	Benefit District 2021-22 Costs Ex A
	Benefit District Spreadsheet PDF
	Benefit Cover Page
	Benefit Parcel List 


	11 Guadalupe Lighting District
	Staff Report Guadalupe Lighting District 7 13 2021
	Resolution No. 2021-58 Guadalupe Lighting District FY 2021-22  7 13 2021
	Lighting District 2021-22 Costs Ex A
	Lighting  Spreadsheet PDF
	Lighting District Cover Page 
	Lighting APN List 


	12 Water Standby Fee
	Staff Report Water Standby FY 21 22 7 13 2021 Final
	Resolution No. 2021-59 Water Standby Charge 7 13 2021
	Water Standby Spreadsheet PDF
	Water Standby Cover Page
	064220210713


	13 City of Guadalupe 75th Anniversary Celebration final
	13 City of Guadalupe 75th Anniversary Celebration
	Staff Report Special Events Application 7 13 2021
	75 Year Special Event aps

	Copy of Untitled document

	14 Cannabis Business Permit Applications Procedure and Guidelines
	Staff Report Policy and Procedure Guidelines 7-13-2021
	Guadalupe Application Procedures and Guidelines (FINAL) 




